Environmental Commission

Meeting Packet

January 9, 2019
Contents
Environmental Commission Meeting AGENDA: January 9, 2018 .........uuiiiiciiieiiiiieeeciieeeeecteeeessiteeesssveeeesssstaeessssseeessnsaeessans 2
Environmental Commission Minutes: DeCeMBDEr 12, 2018 .......uuuuuuuuueuirereeteeeeeeeeerreereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee.———————————.——..—.——————————————————. 3
Wetland Ordinance ReVIEW DiSCUSSION POINTS......cccutiiiiiiiiiietiete ettt sttt ettt sttt ettt e bt e s be e s st e s abeenbeesbeesaeesaneeane 4
2009 GOAIS <.ttt h e bt e s h et ea et et e bt e bt e bt e eh et eat e e at e et e e beeeh e e eheeeabeeabe e bt e beenbeeebeeeateenreeteens 5
STAFF UPDATE/RELATED ISSUES ......uttiitieetteitiecte et ettt e iteesteesteesaaeebeesteesteestaesasesabeenseesaesaessssesseesseesseestaesssesasesasesnsesnseeseessns 6
GREEN THEME SCHEDULE AND TOPICS ...t e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aeaeaeeaeeaaaaaeens 7
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION ROSTER (2019) ..euvierieieeieenieesieeseesteesieesteesteesusesasesasesssessseessesssessssssssesssesnsesssesssesssnessesans 8
Meridian Climate Sustainability REPOIT (Araft)........ooo i et e e et e e e e tte e e e e be e e e e ebte e e e ssteeeesnraeaesans 9
Supplemental Attachments:
(@70T 0] 0 g 1T Fo T WAY ] o] o= Y o] o 13PTSR see additional attachments
WETIaNd USE PEIMITS ..c..vieiiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt r e e r e sne e s see additional attachments
Staff Response/Comments to Wetland Ordinance Revisions (coming soon).........ccceeveevveenveennen. see additional attachments

PLEASE READ: To make best use of our time before, during, and after our meeting, I'd like to draw your attention
to agenda items 1, 2, and 3 (along with the supplemental reading related to these items). Peter Menser from
Planning will join to discuss the Permits and the Ordinance. Planning staff responses/comments Note: The
Chimney Oaks permit seems to be a good example of a “Minor Permit.”



Environmental Commission Meeting
AGENDA: January9, 2018

Nelson Room - Public Safety Building 5151 Marsh Rd. Okemos

GREEN THEME PRESENTATION: Garry Rowe

“Ingham County Groundwater Survey and Important Issues for Well Head Protection”

Garry Rowe has been a sanitarian, program specialist in groundwater protection and a supervisor of
the on-site wastewater treatment and well water system programs with the Ingham County Health
Department. Garry serves on the Ingham County Board of Health and does volunteer work with the
Groundwater Management Board and Groundwater Technical Advisory Committee for Tri-County
Regional Planning.

REGULAR MEETING

1.

WETLAND PERMIT(S) - tentative
A. Chimney Oaks (culvert/driveway)
B. Newton Park

WETLAND ORDINANCE UPDATES (see latest draft and comments)
Goals for 2019

2019 COMMITTEE LIAISON APPOINTMENTS (in Bold Below)
Environmental Commission Applications (see attached)

RELATED UPDATES & ANNOUNCEMENTS

Chair

Planning - David Premoe

Land Preservation - James Kielbaso

Energy - John Sarver

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority - Ned Jackson
Green Team - Aparna Krishnamurthy

Staff

Others

TOoEmoOOow>

OTHER

A. Joint Board Meeting (January 15)
B. Other

PUBLIC REMARKS

ADJOURN



Environmental Commission Minutes: December 12,2018

Attending: Kirk Masten, Ned Jackson, Jim Kielbaso, Aparna Krishnamurthy, Kirk Lapham, Bill McConnell, Sarver,
Harvey (staff)

Guests: David Premoe, Dave Batten, and Tom Cary (interested in Env. Commission)

Minutes: Approved as Amended

Calendar for 2019: Jan 9, Feb 6, Mar 6, Apr 3, May 1, Jun 5, Jul 10, Aug 7, Sep 4, Oct 2, Nov 6, Dec 4

The Commission discussed a number of minor changes to the Wetland Protection Ordinance (see attached).
The Commission asks that staff develop a draft revised ordinance including new language concerning:

e A permit requirement for signage alerting property owners to the presence of ) )
protected wetlands (what is the origin of the graphic at right?). ' WET[_ANDV

e Wetland banking in conformance with State law, initially to facilitate public works
projects through wetland restoration on land preservation property.

In addition, the Commission asked staff for guidance on:

e The state requirement concerning Essentiality Determination - please cite the NO Dumping
statute =

o The extent of historic and current mining operations and grazing (including poultry BOUN‘b ARY /
notifications) in the Township ———

The Commission will review the relevant State definition of “minor projects” that may be exempt from permitting
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/deq/wrd-minor-project-categories 555829 7.pdf

Planning Update:

e Township Farmers Market: Planning approved a land swap with Meridian Mall.
e Car Dealership developments at Grand River and Powell were approved, including many accommodations
to allay concerns of the neighbors.

Land Preservation Update: Harvested 52 deer including a huge buck at Towar woods
Energy Team: No urgent update.
Brownfield Authority: meets next Thursday

Green Team: no report

Staff: Staff distributed a “Green Infrastructure Audit Tool Report Card” which might be used to encourage, protect,
and enhance green infrastructure in existing and future developments.

Adjourned: 9:15 pm


https://www.michigan.gov/documents/deq/wrd-minor-project-categories_555829_7.pdf
http://seagrant.wisc.edu/home/Portals/0/Files/Coastal%20Communities/Green_Infrastructure/DRAFT_GIaudit_tool.pdf

Wetland Ordinance Review Discussion Points
See latest draft here: http://www.meridian.mi.us/Home/ShowDocument?id=15368

Wetland Banking Update

Mike Pennington, with the Water Resources Division at DEQ, recently informed us that local municipalities can establish
a local wetland bank. Here is a link to DEQ’s banking page. https://www.michigan.gov/deq/0,4561,7-135-3313 3687-
10426--,00.html. He writes: The document entitled “Process for developing mitigation banks in Michigan factsheet”

provides a pretty good overview of the steps required to establish a bank site.  Our community would have to identify
one or more sites that total 10 acres (once were wetlands to be restored). To help determine sites, there’s an on-line
wetlands map viewer https://www.mcgi.state.mi.us/wetlands/mcgiMap.html|” If you open the map and zoom to your

township and then click on the “wetland” tab and “high potential restoration” tab you can see suitable restoration areas
in your township. The red and yellow areas are the best for restoration. There is $100,000 available to help with
design, purchase, signing, etc. Also low interest loans are available.

Minor Projects

There is the potential to streamline permitting of project approval where approval is likely. The State has two
documents that define examples where disruption is minimal. Projects would still receive staff review. However,
time, $$, and energy could be reduced (delineation, essentiality determination, and Environmental Commission
review)

We are still exploring whether our Township has the ability to grant minor permits.
The State Documents detailing minor and general projects can be found here:

e https://www.michigan.gov/documents/deq/wrd-minor-project-categories 555829 7.pdf
Applicable to wetlands: 10, 16, 17, 18, 29, 31, 32, 34, 38, 39, 40, 44, 45, 47, 48

e https://www.michigan.gov/documents/deqg/wrd-general-permit-categories 555828 7.pdf
Applicable to wetlands: G, H, M, N, P, S, U, V, Y, CC, DD

Response and edits from Planning: coming soon

Longer Term Issue (related to items mentioned in prior packet): How do we provide incentives/encouragement
for blue/green infrastructure (and other ecological landscaping, green building, LEED-related amenities, low-
impact development, etc.) in future development projects?


http://www.meridian.mi.us/Home/ShowDocument?id=15368&isPublished=False
https://www.michigan.gov/deq/0,4561,7-135-3313_3687-10426--,00.html
https://www.michigan.gov/deq/0,4561,7-135-3313_3687-10426--,00.html
https://www.mcgi.state.mi.us/wetlands/mcgiMap.html
https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.michigan.gov%2Fdocuments%2Fdeq%2Fwrd-minor-project-categories_555829_7.pdf&data=02%7C01%7Cvalorc%40michigan.gov%7C2d59e917913340d282d008d66079575d%7Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1%7C0%7C1%7C636802471607296252&sdata=jBF%2B5q2els6nwvzODPOdTdCPSNW4TMLPkC28iUVsytg%3D&reserved=0
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/deq/wrd-general-permit-categories_555828_7.pdf

2019 Goals

What are our Goals for 2019?

What are our accomplishments in 2018?

2018 Goals

B wn e

5.

Collaborate with the Park Commission and Transportation Commission on wayfinding

Review progress on the Greenspace Plan

Actualize the Climate Sustainability Plan and review ordinances related to the Climate Sustainability Plan
Work with the Economic Development Director to discuss how greening the Township might attract green

businesses

Collaborate with the Land Preservation Advisory Board

The above goals will not preclude the Environmental Commission from working on other projects; they simply

provide a guide for activities for the year.

Environmental Commission Strategic Plan.

Topics to consider:

Economic: Place-making

Public Welfare: Wayfinding

Water conservation practices
Collaboration: Climate Sustainability Plan
Stewardship: Green Themes Presentation
Administration: College student involvement
Planning: environmental amenities
Planning: environmental incentives
Native plant recommendations

Solar incentives

Greenspace plan

The following motion is included to formally adopt the 2018

Green buildings

Pathway connections
Educational outreach

Recycling outreach and incentive
partnerships

Transportation partnerships
Street Tree ordinance

Irrigation practices

Landscape requirements
Pervious and Impervious requirements
Lighting/ Dark Sky requirements



STAFF UPDATE/RELATED ISSUES

Summary
Preparing for Joint LeRoy will work with Bill and others to help prepare a list of Goals and
Board Meeting Accomplishments of the Environmental Commission, Green Team, and Energy Team
Recycling Spring Recycling Event: Apr 27 - Sponsors will be approached in early ‘19

Rain barrel and compost bin sale is being planned for the spring
Home & Garden Show with Regional Recycling Groups
Developed recycling outreach campaign with Grange Acres

Rain Garden & Discussed native landscaping with John Anderson of Conservation Connection. He
Native Plantings may help convert mowed areas to pollinators/low maintenance landscapes.

Bids were received for a small rain garden in front of the solar array.

Energy A 1-yr report on the climate action plan is underway. A draft is pasted below.
The Energy Team meets to discuss pathways to 100% renewables in January.

There is a lot of interest in the new solar array http://bit.ly/meridiansolar

LeRoy and John recently met to discuss issues with a condo association.

PAH Memo Derek attended a presentation with Rebecca Essleman this month.

Language for RPS was provided to Dennis (Facilities) and Derek (Engineering)

Outreach A “green” outreach campaign will be planned for 2019 to include utility bill inserts.

Wetland Research LeRoy’s made some connections with wetland experts at the State level who have
been helpful identifying resources for the Township.

Green Gazette Current issue: http://bit.ly/GreenGazette]an2019

= 10 Green Resolutions

*» Free Home Energy Analysis
= What's in Your Backyard?
= Plan Your Eco-Landscape

» Green Infrastructure Key to Sustainability

= Benefits of Green Infrastructure
» (Climate: A New Story

Subscribe here. Story ideas to Harvey@meridian.mi.us



http://bit.ly/meridiansolar
http://bit.ly/GreenGazetteJan2019
https://us2.list-manage.com/subscribe?u=7c8550ce7f4e8fc703fad6721&id=8b62e5ef2b
mailto:Harvey@meridian.mi.us

GREEN THEME SCHEDULE AND TOPICS

Jan 9 Garry Rowe
Nelson
Room

"An Update on the Ingham County Groundwater Survey and Important
Issues for Well Head Protection Management."

Feb 6 Karim Chatti

Pavement Preservation

Mar6 | Tom Frazier (MI Twp
Assoc./MTA)? - invited

Green Communities (tentative)

Apr 3

May1 | Wanda Bloomquist
(Williamstown Twp)

Green Initiatives in Williamstown Twp. (Green Zone District, Red Cedar Clean-Up,
Green Burial)

Jun 5

(tentative)

Jul10 | Aparna Krishnamurthy | Student Environmental Initiatives (tentative)

Aug 7

Sep 4

Oct 2

Nov 6

Dec 4

Ideas
e Green Infrastructure
e Wetland Issues Person - model ordinances - Elise Tripp? State Bank Program
(Mark Pennington)
Blue Trails -- (large county grant)
Salt: Suggested by Rebecca Essleman
Radon (Susan)
EL’s Sustainable Building Ordinance - Green Building, Low Impact Development
100% Renewable Goal of Traverse City - Kate Madigan (John)
Ecological Landscaping - Bill Schneider - WildType; John Anderson -
Conservation Connection
Wayfinding: (related to our 2018 goals)
Greenspace Plan
Climate Sustainability - review ordinances
Relation between Greening and Economic Development/ attracting green
businesses - incentives for green development
Collaboration with the Land Preservation Advisory Board
e Green chemistry (Ned)
e Green Businesses

o (Hopcat has a landfill/waste diversion is 90%

o Buddies’ composting food waste https://livegreenlansing.org/scraps-to-

soil/

Others? Possibly a “Green Panel” of business people

View Past Green Themes: https

www.youtube.com/watch?v=6gFiWiZQA9A&list=PLYCL9BfEG5RX5LMXKoAde3L.CmdRhwrcCF



https://livegreenlansing.org/scraps-to-soil/
https://livegreenlansing.org/scraps-to-soil/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6qFiWiZQA9A&list=PLYCL9BfEG5RX5LMXKoAde3LCmdRhwrcCF

ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION ROSTER (2019)

BILL MCCONNELL (Chair) (12/31/19, 3 year term) mcconn64@msu.edu
Dr. William McConnell is a faculty member in MSU’s Department of Geography, Environmental, and Spatial Sciences. He

currently manages an international multi-institution research project related to food security with the Center for Global
Change and Earth Observations. More http://geo.msu.edu/people/mcconnell-william/

NED JACKSON (Vice Chair) (12/31/20, 3 year term) jackson@chemistry.msu.edu
Ned Jackson teaches and performs research at MSU in the Department of Chemistry.

https://www.chemistry.msu.edu/faculty-research/faculty-members/james-e-ned-jackson

J. JAMES KIELBASO (12/31/19, 3 year term) kielbas3@msu.edu
Jim Kielbaso is a Professor Emeritus from Urban Forestry and Arboriculture in MSU’s Department of Forestry. He

currently serves on the Land Preservation Board. https://www.canr.msu.edu/people/james_kielbaso

APARNA KRISHNAMURTHY (12/31/19, 1 year term) (Student) aparnakrish9@gmail.com
Aparna Krishnamurthy is a junior at Okemos High School. She serves as Okemos Action Captain for Eco-friendliness. She

also is active on the Meridian Green Team.

KIRK LAPHAM (12/31/21, 1 year term) laphamK@gmail.com
Kirk Lapham is a Legal Policy Specialist and Regulatory Affairs Officer at Michigan Department of Natural Resources.
https://www.linkedin.com/in/kirk-lapham-6a723661

SUSAN MASTEN (12/31/21, 3 year term) masten@msu.edu
Dr. Susan Masten is on the faculty of MSU’s Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering.

https://www.egr.msu.edu/masten/home

JOHN SARVER (12/31/20, 3 year term) johnsarver3@gmail.com

John Sarver serves on the Environmental Commission and the Meridian Energy Team. He is a retiree who
worked for the Michigan Energy Office for 35 years developing programs and policies related to renewable
energy and energy efficiency. John has been a township resident for over 40 years.

Vacant (3 year term)
Vacant (1 year term) (Student)
STAFF:

LEROY HARVEY 517-505-2809 5151 Marsh Rd. Okemos, MI 48864 harvey@meridian.mi.us
LeRoy Harvey serves as an Environmental Program Manager with Meridian Township and is engaged in a variety of

energy, recycling, and other initiatives. www.re-news.net

Application Form: http://bit.ly/commission-app



mailto:mcconn64@msu.edu
http://geo.msu.edu/people/mcconnell-william/
mailto:jackson@chemistry.msu.edu
https://www.chemistry.msu.edu/faculty-research/faculty-members/james-e-ned-jackson
mailto:kielbas3@msu.edu
https://www.canr.msu.edu/people/james_kielbaso
mailto:aparnakrish9@gmail.com
mailto:laphamK@gmail.com
https://www.linkedin.com/in/kirk-lapham-6a723661
mailto:masten@msu.edu
https://www.egr.msu.edu/masten/home
mailto:johnsarver3@gmail.com
mailto:harvey@meridian.mi.us
http://www.re-news.net/
http://bit.ly/commission-app

Meridian Climate Sustainability Report (draft)

The Meridian Township Board approved a Climate Sustainability Plan in October 2017. The following is a
report on progress during the first year of implementation.

Energy Efficiency

Energy efficiency improvements included both lighting and improvements to the heating, ventilation, and
air conditioning systems (HVAC). For example, twenty-four 250 watt soffit lights with 21.7 watt LEDs in
the Municipal Building. Currently, Meridian is also replacing older computers and monitors. This
process is 1/3 complete (50 of 150 computers). Newer monitors are approximately 15% more efficient
with increased size. Newer CPUs are about 50% more efficient based upon watt-meter testing. Finally, a
new condensing unit and coil were installed in the public safety building.

Energy efficiency improvements have continued in the Meridian streetlighting system. Older mercury
vapor are being replace with high pressure sodium and LEDs are being considered in other locations.
Meridian is also partnering with a “Municipal Coalition” to help ensure desirable pricing for more
efficient, longer lasting, and brighter replacements. This coalition included Grant Rapids, Kentwood, East
Lansing, Flint, Meridian Twp., and others.

The installation of smart meters was largely completed during 2018. Smart meters allow many benefits
including the potential to better track and manage energy usage. Smart meters are also an important
step toward creating a Smart Grid, improving utility-wide reliability and ability to avoid the use of less
efficient power plants, especially when coupled with time-of-use rates and other demand management
technologies. In 2019, an engineering study is planned for the Municipal Building HVAC system.

Renewable Energy

The Plan includes a commitment to obtain 100% of the township government’s electricity from
renewable energy by 2035 and 25% of the total community electricity from renewable energy by 2025.
In pursuit of the community goal, the Meridian Energy Team developed a workshop program to
encourage and make it easier for homeowners, businesses, and churches to install solar electric systems
on their buildings.

The Meridian Energy Team worked with the Lansing Area Solar Users Network (LaSUN) and local civic
organizations and houses of worship. There were 11 workshops held in Meridian Township, East
Lansing, and Lansing that reached 272 persons. In addition, there was a workshop in Delta Township
that reached 18 persons. There was a significant increase, 19 new solar projects (88.6 kW), in residential
solar electric systems in Meridian Township in 2018. The number of residential solar systems doubled.
While not all the new installations should probably be attributed to the Solarize Meridian project, it is
reasonable to assume that the project was a major influence in increasing the number of solar
installations in the township.

Recycling & Waste Reduction
Meridian Green Team was active in planning and coordinating two major regional recycling events
during the spring and the fall. Each event drew hundreds of participants and resulted in the recycling,



reuse, and proper disposal of 100,000 lbs of materials. 1600 vehicles dropped off recyclables and over
180 volunteer shifts were filled.

The Green Team also promoted recycling in the broader community including multi-family apartment
buildings and complexes. Surveys were distributed to owners and managers to gain insight on recycling
views, barriers, and opportunities.

Participation in curbside recycling continues to grow slowly. Global markets for certain materials have
put a strain on recycling processors and have resulted in a push to reduce contamination through
programs like “Recycle Right” and others.

Specific details on the quantities of materials recycled at our Recycling Center and through curbside
recycling are forthcoming.

Transportation

In 2018, a major focus has been upon maintain Meridian’s 80+ miles of pedestrian and bicycle pathways.
This includes repair of bridges and installation of culverts. Planning is underway to connect several key

pathways along Marsh Rd., Okemos Rd., and Towner Rd. A “road diet” (4- to 3-lane, plus 2 bike lanes) is

being planned for Lake Lansing Rd. as well.

Capital Area Transportation Authority and Meridian will explore efficiency improvements and a millage
renewal for Redi-Ride services in 2019. Bike parking requirements and a complete streets ordinance
remain in effect to guide development and infrastructure improvements.

In regards to vehicles, Meridian purchased two electric mowers in 2018 which help emission reductions.
Another electric mower purchase is planned for 2019.

Water Management

Meridian was involved with several initiatives to enhance green infrastructure in the township. Perhaps
most significantly, land preserves exceeded parks in total acreage. Over 900 acres of land preserves have
been made possible by a Land Preservation Millage.

In addition, the Township has engaged in several educational and demonstration projects including:

e Buffer strips near the edge of the Lake Lansing.

¢ Plantings in the Hidden River Rain Garden

e Invasive species mitigation in area parks and land preserves

e Tree planting

e Utility bill inserts (lawn care for water conservation and pollution reduction; fats, oil, and grease
reduction; flushable wipes reduction)

Meridian is also a partner in the East Lansing Meridian Water and Sewer Authority. Significant
renovation will greatly boost efficiency and provide waste reduction and renewable energy production
(methane generator)

10


https://ecode360.com/28777715?highlight=complete%20streets

Supplemental Attachments:

Commission Applications

Note: | received an additional email from Linda Burghardt elaborating on her enviro interest....

Dear Mr. Harvey,

Thank you very much for letting me know about the Environmental Commission's meeting next Wednesday. | am
very interested in the Commission's work in protecting the Township's environmental interests and would like to
help any way that | can.

My involvement in environmental concerns began many years ago when | was the Michigan Senate Fiscal
Agency's analyst for the Natural Resources and Environmental Affairs Committee and wrote the analyses of
legislation reported out by the Committee.

When | left the Agency | joined the Environmental Division of Zurich US, an international insurance carrier, as a
Manager/Senior Underwriter. The Division handled policies covering underground petroleum storage tank
systems and was responsible for cleaning up many contaminated sites. | was responsible for reading
contamination reports and interpreting maps to determine the extent of the contamination and its effect on
groundwater sources.

I am currently on the Steering Committee and Board of Directors for Art in the Wild, a nonprofit dedicated to the
task of educating the public on the detrimental effect that our everyday activities can have on our water resources
and changes that we can make in our behavior to mitigate the damage.

I hope this helps explain my interest in the Commission's work on behalf of our environment. | will be at the
meeting next Wednesday.

Linda
Linda Burghardt, MPA, CAE

517-420-3706 (cell) 517-347-1077 (home) LBurghardt@comcast.net

Wetland Use Permits

Staff Response/Comments to Wetland Ordinance Revisions (coming soon)

11


mailto:LBurghardt@comcast.net

Riley Millard

From: webmaster@meridian.mi.us

Sent: Thursday, November 29, 2018 12:55 AM

To: Michelle Prinz; Deborah Guthrie; Erin Cornett; Brett Dreyfus; Riley Millard
Subject: Public Service Form Received

A new entry to a form/survey has been submitted.

Form Name: Public Service Application Form
Date & Time: 11/29/2018 12:55 AM
Response #: 12

Submitter ID: 8268

IP address: 172.25.96.105

Time to complete: 35 min., O sec.

Survey Details

Page 1

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

Ropald | Styka Superviser ¢ Phil Deschaing Trustoe
Brett Dreytus Cherk MERIDIAN -!7'};3 Patricia Mervieg Jackson Trustes
Julie Brixie Treasurer TOWHSHI ;s‘f“}rﬂ Dan Opaommer Trusboe
Frank L. Walsh Mamager e Kathy Ann Sundland Trustos

=~

| am interested in service on one or more of the following public bodies as checked
below:

*Special conditions restrict eligibility for appointment

[x] Brownfield Redevelopment Authority*

[x] Corridor Improvement Authority*
[x] Downtown Development Authority*
[x] Economic Development Corporation
[x] Environmental Commission

[x] Planning Commission
[x] Township Board (Elected/Appointed)



2. Occupation:

Currently unemployed -- previously executive director of several nonprofits, manager and senior underwriter for insurance
carrier, legislative analyst and fiscal analyst

3. Indicate areas not included above which may warrant special attention or study that are of interest to you:

Mental Health services and community discussions
Safe, affordable assisted living options and other services and supports for seniors

4. Describe education, experience or training which will assist you if appointed:

During my tenure with the Michigan State Senate | wrote the analyses for a number of legislative initiatives that pertain to
economic development and municipal finance initiatives including tax increment financing, downtown development
authorities, economic growth zones, brownfield redevelopment, revenue sharing, urban land assembly fund, surplus funds
investment pools for municipalities, land use inventory reports, principal shopping areas redevelopment, plant rehabilitation
tax credit, enterprise zones, and zoning of day care homes.

As a Senior Underwriter/Manager in the Environmental Division of a major insurance carrier | was responsible for evaluating
environmental contamination reports and maps and remediation reports.

I have served on a number of coalitions, committees and task forces as part of the mental health and aging advocacy
communities and as an executive branch appointee. | also have served on the Boards of Directors for two non-profits.

As the executive director of several nonprofits | have worked with Boards of Directors and committees of volunteers and
have facilitated effective meetings and strategic planning sessions.

This summer | ran for public office for the first time and came in second in a four-person primary race for Ingham County
Commissioner for the 12th District..

5. Contact Information:

Name: Linda Burghardt Occupation: Not answered

Place of Employment: Not answered Home Address: 1907 Atherton Way, Okemos,
Ml 48864

Phone (days): 517-347-1077 (home) Phone (evenings): 517-420-3706 (cell)

Date: 11-29-18

6. Attach Resume and Cover Letter
Resume is attached Linda Burghardt Resume 11-26-18.doc

Thank you,
Meridian Township, Ml

This is an automated message generated by the Vision Content Management System™. Please do not reply directly to this email.



LINDA P BURGHARDT

1907 Atherton Way ® Okemos, MI 48864 ® 517.347.1077 (h) ® 517.420.3706 (c) ® LBurghardt@comcast.net

PROFILE

Public Speaking — Over 300 presentations across the state to legislators, faculty, students, professionals, and
the general public. Presentations involved training, advocacy, public education on issues, classroom lectures,
and testifying before legislative committees.

Writing - Over 3,000 legislative analyses on a wide range of topics; briefing and public policy materials;
testimony on legislation; budget bills and decision documents; training and advocacy materials; responses to
questions from Governor’s Task Force on Licensure; Appropriations Manual for Senate Fiscal Agencys; articles
for newsletters and agency publications; communications with regulatory agencies; marketing materials. Editor
of business plan for non-profit.

Liaison/Collaborations/Networking - Liaison to legislators, staff, government agencies, business and
community groups, association members and national offices, nonprofit and other organizatons. Collaborations
with, or member of, over 20 coalitions /committees, including Behavioral Health Advisory Council, the Board
of Directors for Enroll Michigan and MMARP, the Lt. Governor’s Section 298 Large Work Group and 298 Next
Steps Workgroup, Partners for Parity, MI Coalition for Children and Families, Michigan Voice/America Votes.

Events - Trained NASW-MI members on licensure issues for Lobby Day. For eight years planned and
conducted annual Legislative Education and Advocacy Day for over 400 college students, faculty, and social
workers. Speakers included issue experts, state legislators, and representatives from the Governor’s office and
various state agencies. Planned all content and speakers for NAMI Michigan and AAAAM annual conferences.

Social Media/Communications - Worked with NASW-MI Communications Director on web advocacy tools,
including a Legislative Action Web Page for communication with legislators. Worked with Deputy Director at
NAMI MI to provide information to members through social media. Authored AAAAM newsletter. Have done
radio, phone, and print interviews. Led and participated in press conferences. Use of website, Facebook,
LinkedIn, and Twitter in disseminating information.

Analysis - Policy, fiscal, and/or program analysis of budget and non-budget legislation, administrative rules,
departmental program operations and staffing priorities; insurance accounts and regulations. Identified,
analyzed, and communicated legislative/policy initiatives for MHAM, NAMI MI, NASW MI, and AAAAM.

Capacity Building - Educated members, staff, and boards on legislative issues, advocacy techniques,
appropriations processes, functions of political action committees. Worked with MHAM, NAMI MI, NASW
MI, and AAAAM public policy committees on legislative and policy issues and testimony on bills. Obtained
training for NAMI Board Members and sent employees to various trainings and workshops.

Fiscal Responsibility — Responsible for total NAMI MI, MHAM, and AAAAM budgets, including
membership dues, donations, bequest, investment portfolio, sponsorship funds, foundation grants, and federal
grant through Michigan Department of Health and Human Services. Led $250 million budget bill through the
State budget process. Responsible for disbursement of political action committee (PAC) funds, compliance with
state campaign finance/lobbying laws and government and private foundation grant reporting requirements.

Management — Supervised staff at NAMI MI, MHAM, and AAAAM. Oversaw all daily operations of
associations. Trained and directly supervised 15 employees at Zurich US East Lansing office. Drafted update of
NAMI Michigan’s Strategic Plan and worked with MHAM Board and outside consultant on revised MHAM
strategic plan. Developed all documents/policies/systems necessary for the chartering of state office by NAMI



National.

LINDA P BURGHARDT

e Teaching — Instructor of Legislative Relations class for Masters in Public Administration (MPA) degree
program for Western Michigan University. Guest lecturer at a number of colleges and universities.

e Additional course work — Have taken courses toward Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer and A+
certification; courses in financial management and accounting for nonprofits; and seminars in grant seeking and
government contracting.

e Credential -- Completed Michigan Society of Association Executives’ (MSAE) Academy of Association
Management classes for nonprofit executives and the Certified Association Executive (CAE) exam preparation
course. Earned CAE credential in 2014. Invited member of MSAE CEO Circle.

e International Experience — Lived in and attended school in five countries and traveled extensively overseas
(33 countries).

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR Area Agencies on Aging Association of Michigan ® Lansing, MI ® 2017 to 2018

PRESIDENT AND CEO Mental Health Association in Michigan ® Okemos, MI ® 2014 to 2016

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR National Alliance on Mental Illness — Michigan Chapter ® Lansing, MI ® 2010 to
2014

GOVERNMENT RELATIONS DIRECTOR National Association of Social Workers - Michigan Chapter ®
Lansing, MI ® 2002 to 2010

IT STUDENT Career Quest Learning Center ® Lansing, MI ® 2000 to 2002
MANAGER/SENIOR UNDERWRITER Zurich U.S. ® East Lansing, MI ® 1997 to 2000
LEGISLATIVE/FISCAL ANALYST Michigan Senate Fiscal Agency ® Lansing, MI ® 1986 to 1997

LEGISLATIVE ANALYST Michigan Senate Analysis Section ® Lansing, MI ® 1980 to 1986

EDUCATION

MASTER OF PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION Emphasis on Public Policy and Program Evaluation ® Michigan
State University ® East Lansing, M1

BACHELOR OF ARTS Major in Government ® Cornell University ® Ithaca, NY



Riley Millard

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

A new entry to a form/survey has been submitted.

Form Name:

Date & Time:
Response #:
Submitter ID:

IP address:

Time to complete:

Survey Details

Page 1

Ropsld | Styka
Brett Dreyfus
Julie Brixie
Frank L. Walsh

Public Service Application Form
12/07/2018 9:42 AM

16
8282
172.25.96.105

22 min., 2 sec.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

Supervitor
Cherk
Treasurer
Mamager

webmaster@meridian.mi.us

Friday, December 7, 2018 9:42 AM

Michelle Prinz; Deborah Guthrie; Erin Cornett; Brett Dreyfus; Riley Millard
Public Service Form Received

Patricia Herriag Jackson

Kathy Ann Sundland

Trustos
Trustos:
Trusboe
Trustes

| am interested in service on one or more of the following public bodies as checked

below:

*Special conditions restrict eligibility for appointment

[x] Community Resources Commission

[x] Environmental Commission
[x] Land Preservation Advisory Board

[x] Township Board (Elected/Appointed)

[x] Zoning Board of Appeals

2. Occupation:
Attorney

[x] East Lansing-Meridian Water & Sewer Authority

[x] Park Commission (Elected/Appointed)
[x] Planning Commission



3. Indicate areas not included above which may warrant special attention or study that are of interest to you:

Any areas involving legal concerns and/or areas of involving the monitoring of the upkeep of township owned property for
things like trees that need removing or trash being dumped or drains that need clearing

4. Describe education, experience or training which will assist you if appointed:

I have been a licensed attorney in the state of Michigan since May 2011. | have a background in criminal law as well as civil
practice with a forcus on landlord-tenant law, contract law, and real property law. | have called the greater Lansing Area
since 2006 and specially Meridian Township since January 2018. However, prior to moving to Meridian Township | re-
located my law office, Doering Law, PLLC, to Meridian Township in November 2015. In November 2016 | completed the
Meridian Township Police Department's Citizens' Academy as a Meridian Township business owner where | met now
Trustee Patricia Herring Jackson. At the close of the Academy | signed up for and later engaged in a ride-along with Officer
Erin Linn in December 2016. At that time my now husband and | were already looking to move to Meridian Township and
participating in the Academy only strengthened that desire.

5. Contact Information:

Name: Erin K. Schroeder Occupation: Attorney

Place of Employment: Doering Law, PLLC Home Address: 2348 Sower Blvd., Okemos, Ml
48864

Phone (days): 5173477739 Phone (evenings): 8105317017

Date: 12/07/2018

6. Attach Resume and Cover Letter
Resume is attached LEGAL RESUME.doc

Thank you,
Meridian Township, Mi

This is an automated message generated by the Vision Content Management System™. Please do not reply directly to this email.



Erin K. Schroeder

Business Address: 2295 Sower Blvd., Okemos, MI 48864
Business Phone: (517) 347-7739
erin@doeringlawpllc.com

LEGAL EXPERIENCE

Doering Law, PLLC, Okemos, MI
Owner & Managing Attorney, December 2015—present
= Provide legal counsel to clients in criminal and civil matters including: land contract
transactions; landlord-tenant; criminal defense; probate; divorce; and estate planning.
= Managing the day-to-day operations of a private legal practice.
= Supervising interns.

30th Circuit Mental Health Court, Lansing, MI
Public Defense Attorney, October 2014—present
= Provide legal counsel to Mental Health Court participants in criminal matters where mental
health has been determined to be a factor.
= Assisting in the promotion of the Mental Health Court.

Ingham County Court Services, Lansing, MI
Court Appointed Attorney, September 201 1—present
= Provide legal counsel to indigent defendants in felony and misdemeanor cases including:
domestic violence; aggravated stalking; fleeing and eluding police; larceny; drug possession;
violations of probation; food stamp fraud; CCW violations; false police reports; felony failure to
pay child support; operating while intoxicated; and welfare fraud.
= Represent clients in court proceedings including: Preliminary Exams; Friend of the Court
hearings; Personal Protection Order violation hearings; and Probation Violation hearings.

Nichol & Doering, PLLC, East Lansing, MI
Managing Attorney, October 2012—November 2015
= Provide legal counsel to clients in criminal and civil matters including:
= operating while intoxicated; leaving the scene of an accident; debt collection; dog bite; minor in
possession; expungement; divorce; and estate planning.
= Assist in the day-to-day operations of a private legal practice.

Washtenaw County Public Defender Clinic, Ann Arbor, MI
Student Attorney, May 2010—November 2010
= Interviewed, counseled, and represented indigent defendants in a variety of felony matters
including: drug possession; shoplifting; probation violations; criminal sexual conduct; breaking
and entering; fleeing and eluding police; and domestic violence.
= Engaged in the practice of law and conducted legal research under the supervision of
experienced attorneys.

Open Door Ministry, Lansing, MI
Student volunteer, February 2009—December 2009
= Provided clients with community resources information for services such as drug and alcohol
abuse counseling.



= Assisted indigent or homeless clients in the handling of medical bills, divorces, and child custody
and contact with children.

Prison Legal Services of Michigan, Lansing, MI
Student volunteer, January 2008—May 2008
= Provided general legal advice to prisoners regarding Michigan Department of Corrections’
Policies on: personal possessions; injuries incurred while in custody; access to legal materials
while in prison; and eligibility for rehabilitation programs and education.

Ingham County 30" Judicial Circuit Court, Lansing, MI 05/2006-08/2006
Juvenile Court Officer—Intern
= Contacted probationers three times a week.
= Kept case notes and detailed records.
= Assisted with transport of probationers and the intake and release from detention center.

MEMBERSHIPS AND ACTIVITIES

State Bar of Michigan - Member in Good Standing, May 201 1—present

Not Just Protect and Serve Anymore, Mason, MI
Certificate of Achievement for Participation, May 2018

Mental Health First Aid USA, Lansing, MI
Certified in Mental Health First Aid USA, May 2018

Youth Mental Health First Aid USA, Lansing, MI
Certified in Youth Mental Health First Aid USA, March 2018

Meridian Township Police Department Citizens' Academy Session #18, Okemos, MI
Certificate of Completion, November 2016

Michigan Civil Service Commission - Entry-Level Law Enforcement Examination
Passed, December 2014

Resolution Services Center of Central Michigan, Lansing, MI
Certificate of Completion - General Civil Mediator Training, October 2013

Michigan Commission on Law Enforcement Standards
A - Band Certified in Reading & Writing, 2006

EDUCATION

Western Michigan University Cooley Law School, Lansing, MI
Juris Doctor, September 2010

Concentration in Litigation

Melissa Mitchell Memorial Scholarship Recipient

Dean's List

Michigan State University, East Lansing, MI
Bachelor of Arts in Criminal Justice, December 2006
Dean's List



To: Environmental Commission

From: Peter Menser, Principal Planner
Date: January 4, 2019
Re: Wetland Use Permit #18-03 (DTN), discharge storm water to regulated

wetlands to facilitate construction of mixed use project at the southeast
corner of Saginaw Highway and Newton Road.

Newton Pointe, LLC has submitted a mixed use planned unit development (MUPUD) proposal for a
project identified as Newton Park. The approximate 23.97 acre project site is located at the
southeast corner of Saginaw Highway and Newton Road and consists of two parcels, a property
addressed as 6276 Newton Road (17.97 acres) and a property recognized as Tax L.D. #04-252-005
(six acres). The site is zoned C-2 (Commercial). The proposal includes the construction of a new
86,468 square foot mixed use building with 85 multiple family dwelling units and 19,367 square
feet of commercial space, 10, 10-unit multiple family buildings, six, four-unit single family attached
buildings, nine single family dwellings, and a 4,778 square foot clubhouse. The map below depicts
the site location and surrounding land uses.

s

Singie Fa:miW
Residential

{
Singlle Family Residential

= A
=]
| . QO
=] Clty f .'.6
= Limits 4 8
E New Hope g
Vacant E Church
Rezoned to C-2 =
in 2018
(REZ #18070)
Towner
Road
Consumers Park
Energy
Water
Tower

Kingdom Hall
Jehovah's Witnesses

|
Hammond Farms
Landscape}Supply Sierra Ridge Single Family

- . 99 lots Residential
N Single Family——|

A Residential
| T ——




Wetland Use Permit #18-03 (DTN)
Environmental Commission (January 9, 2018)

Page 2
Wetlands
Towner Rd
=
<
S
O
"§'|
2
z
N
478 acres 0.65 adre
Wetland C
0.14 acre
Wetland D % (on subier:lI site)
N 0.12 acre 0.18 acre overall
A ‘ @ @I Wetlands
|

Four wetlands are located on the subject property. A wetland delineation was conducted by the
applicant’s wetland consultant to determine the boundary, regulatory status, and size of the
wetlands. The delineation was verified by the Township’s wetland consultant in July of 2018.
Wetland A on the submitted plans is 4.78 acres in size and regulated by the Township. Wetland B is
0.65 acres in size and, while under the 0.25 acre threshold for Township regulation, was deemed to
be essential by the Township Board at its December 4, 2018 meeting and is therefore regulated.
Wetlands C and D are 0.18 and 0.12 acres in size and are not subject to Township regulation as they
fall below the 0.25 acre threshold.

Section 86-471 of the Code of Ordinances requires all structures and grading activities be set back 20
feet (Wetland B) or 40 feet (Wetland A) from a delineated wetland boundary depending on the size
of the wetland, and that a natural vegetation strip be maintained within 20 feet of the wetland
boundary.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

. . . . ) meridian.mi.us
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Wetland Use Permit #18-03 (DTN)
Environmental Commission (January 9, 2018)
Page 3

The applicant proposes to discharge storm water to Wetlands A and B, which requires approval of a
wetland use permit. The wetland use permit is being processed concurrently with the MUPUD and
SUP requests. Wetland use permit applications submitted in conjunction with a related land
development activity are decided by the same entity that decides the related land development
activity; therefore the Township Board will make the decision regarding the wetland use permit.
The Township Board will hold a public hearing on the wetland use permit request at the same time it
holds its public hearing for the MUPUD request.

After the initial review of the proposal the Township’s consultant requested additional information,
which was provided by the applicant. Based on the additional information the Township’s
environmental consultant has reviewed the request and has recommended approval of the request
with conditions. Details of the wetland use permit review and the list of suggested conditions of
approval are included in the attached report.

Environmental Commission Options

The Environmental Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the
proposed wetland use permit. A motion to recommend approval in accordance with the conditions
proposed by Township’s wetland consultant is provided.

e MOTION to recommend approval of Wetland Use Permit #18-03 to discharge storm water
into regulated wetlands subject to the conditions proposed by the Township’s wetland
consultant in the report dated January 3, 2019.

Attachments

1. Joint permit application.

2. Site plans prepared by Kebs, Inc. dated November 22, 2017 (Revision Date November 19, 2018)
and received by the Township on November 19, 2018.

3. Wetland delineation report prepared by Voice Environmental Group, LLC dated February 22,
2018.

4. Letter of Essentiality prepared by Township wetland consultant dated November 28, 2018.

5. Updated wetland report and supporting materials prepared by Voice Environmental Group, LLC
dated December 12, 2018.

6. Application review letter prepared by Township wetland consultant dated October 24, 2018.

7. Final wetland report prepared by Township wetland consultant dated January 3, 2018

G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\ WETLAND USE PERMITS (WUP)\2018\WUP 18-03 (DTN)\WUP 18-03 Env Comm
review.envl.docx

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

. . . . ) meridian.mi.us
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

Detroit District Office

Phone: 313-226-2218, Fax: 313-226-6763
Website: www.Ire.usace.army.mil

Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
Water Resources Division

See staff map on page iii for contact information
Website: www.mi.gov/jointpermit

1=

Joint Permit Application

For Work in Inland Lakes and Streams, Great Lakes, Wetlands, Floodplains, Dams,

High Risk Erosion Areas and Critical Dune Areas
www.mi.gov/jointpermit

What is the purpose
of the Joint Permit
Application?

This Joint Permit Application was developed to facilitate the state and federal permit application process
administered by the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers (USACE).

The Joint Permit Application is a multi-purpose application used to describe and quantify proposed
activities regulated by the DEQ and/or the USACE. This application is for those activities regulated by
the following Parts of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as
amended by the State of Michigan.

Part 301, Inland Lakes and Streams

Part 325, Great Lakes Submerged Lands

Part 303, Wetlands Protection

Floodplain Regulatory Authority found in Part 31, Water Resources Protection
Part 315, Dam Safety

Part 323, Shorelands Protection and Management (High Risk Erosion Areas)
Part 353, Sand Dunes Protection and Management (Critical Dune Areas)

The regulated activities are summarized in Appendix D. The statutes and rules are available at
www.mi.gov/jointpermit.

This application is also for those activities regulated by the USACE within the waters of the United
States under Section 10, Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C. 403) and Section 404, Clean Water
Act of 1977 (33 U.S.C. 1344).

Preapplication Meeting: This is an optional service available for activities proposed in inland lakes and
streams (Part 301), wetlands (Part 303), and critical dune areas (Part 353). A preapplication meeting
can answer many questions regarding whether or not a permit is required and the review process. The
application form and fee schedule are available at www.mi.gov/jointpermit.

How do | complete
the Joint Permit
Application?

An accurate and
complete application
package is required for
processing; inaccurate
or missing information
will delay processing.

There are three parts to a complete Joint Permit Application package:

1. Application Form
2. Maps and Drawings
3. Fee

Follow the checklists on the following page for each part of the application package.
When you have questions or need assistance in completing the application package refer to the

following information on our website www.mi.gov/jointpermit or you may contact the appropriate
district office, page iii, or through the website link “Who to Contact.”

Joint Permit Application Training Manual

EZ Guides for small projects

Acronyms in Appendix A

Sample drawings in Appendix B

Minor Project and General Permit Categories in Appendix C
Fee schedule in Appendix C

State and Federal Authority and Penalties in Appendix D
Glossary in Appendix E

Joint Permit Application

Page i of iv EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)



http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit

E

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE

Application
Checklist

The following website
will provide township,
range, section, latitude
and longitude
information:

www.mcgi.state.mi.us
/wetlands/

In each section check
all boxes that apply to
your project.

Show and label
property lines on the
site plan.

Label existing and
proposed contours,
dimensions, excavation
and/or fill on the site
plans and cross
sections.

Provide tables for
multiple impact areas.

1. Application Form
U Complete Sections 1 through 9 of the application form.

U An authorization letter from the property owner if someone other than the property owner is
signing the application.

U Complete those Sections 10 through 20 that apply to your project. Follow the instructions at
the beginning of each section. For additional information, the instructions for each sample
drawing in Appendix B indicate the application sections you will most likely need to complete.
Complete the application form as much as possible before adding attachments. Label each
attachment with the applicant's name.

U Stake or flag the area for site inspection including the property corners, proposed road or
driveway centerlines, and areas of proposed impacts. The site must be flagged when the
application is submitted.

2. Maps and Drawings

U All maps and drawings must be black and white, legible, reproducible, and sized to 8.5” x 11”.
Aerial photographs do not substitute for site plans. If larger drawings or blueprints are required
to show adequate detail for review, you may also submit one full size copy.

O Vicinity Map: A map to the proposed project location that includes ALL streets, roads,
intersections, highways, or cross-roads to the project. Do not assume review staff knows your
project location.

U Project Site Plan: Overhead drawings to scale or with dimensions, length and width, of the
proposed project are required. Show and label property lines on the site plan.

U Cross-section drawings are required. Provide the cross-sections and profile views to scale or
with dimensions, length, width, and height.

U Elevation data must include a description of the reference point or benchmark used and its
corresponding elevation. For projects on the Great Lakes or Section 10 Waters, elevations
must be provided in IGLD 85. For observed Great Lake water elevations in IGLD, visit the
USACE website under “water levels”. If elevations are from still water, provide the observation
date and water elevation. On inland sites, elevations can use NGVD 29, NAVD 88, a local
datum or an assumed bench mark.

U Provide descriptive photographs of the proposed work site showing vegetation if wetlands
are involved or the shoreline for shore protection projects. All photographs must be labeled
with your name and the date of the photograph, indicate what they show, and be referenced
to the site plan. Proposed activities or structure(s) may be indicated directly on the
photographs using indelible markers or ink pens. Provide aerial photographs 1:400 or larger
for major projects.

3. Fee

U Payment to the State of Michigan. Fees typically range from $50 to $4,000 depending on the
type of project. Refer to Appendix C of the application and/or visit www.mi.gov/jointpermit to
determine the appropriate fee for your project and for directions to pay by credit card or
electronic fund transfer payment.

U Applications should be sent directly to the district offices. Please refer to page iii, or refer to
www.mi.gov/jointpermit “who to contact” for address and/or phone number. Applications that
cross county boundaries should be sent to the district containing the primary work effort.

U Applications for dams regulated under Part 315 or from public agencies eligible to receive
federal and/or state transportation funding for a project involving public roadways, non-
motorized paths, airports, or related facilities should be mailed to: DEQ, WRD, P.O. BOX
30458, LANSING, MI 48909-7958.

Joint Permit Application

Page ii of iv EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)

(=4



http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit

[ caflu.s. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DEi_i

Field/District

Offices
Nffira

Nictrirt

Joint Permit Application

WWW.Mmi

83 \\Vater Resource

.gov/joint

permit

ScHoolcraf
Mackinac

Grand
Traver

Cadll
Iac

—

Ao

.....

Upper Peninsula: 906-228-
4853

éadaﬁac 2Sagimw960

l—l

120 W. ChapiB8y, Cadillac

Bay

éaqmaw Bay: 989-894- -

A g

6200

%ﬁr@g@gﬁw .

R stn b,

é%gﬁﬁchlg_ 586-753- 37§E M

)
)

27700 Donald Court, Warren

Klamazoo: 26958543500

|

7953 Adobe RoadsOn

$2I308°8 7943 7600 -

Page iii of iv

301 E. Louis Glick Hwy,
Jackson 49201

EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)


http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
mailto:deq-wrd-district-gwinn@michigan.gov
mailto:deq-wrd-district-gaylord@michigan.gov
mailto:deq-wrd-district-cadillac@michigan.gov
mailto:deq-wrd-district-saginaw-bay@michigan.gov
mailto:deq-wrd-district-grand-rapids@michigan.gov
mailto:deq-wrd-district-lansing@michigan.gov
mailto:deq-wrd-district-warren@michigan.gov
mailto:deq-wrd-district-kalamazoo@michigan.gov
mailto:deq-wrd-district-jackson@michigan.gov
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit

E

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE

APPENDICES
Appendix A: Acronyms and ADDreviatioNS .........cooo e A-1
Appendix B: Sample Drawings
1. General Instructions for all Drawings and Sample Site Location Maps.........ccccccevevviiiiiieeiee e B-1
2. Inland Lake Shore Prot@ClioN ...........ooo ittt et e et e e e et e e e e eneeeens B-2
3. BUIKNEAA/SEAWAI ... ...ttt et e ettt e e e et e e e nbe e e e e nbe e e e annae e e e anreeaeann B-2
S o o To [ @0 Tg 1= i (1 1 o o SRR B-3
T el (eToTe [ o] =11 o T || OO PPRTR PP B-3
6. Wetland BOArdWalK..........coouiiiiiiiiee ittt e e e e re e e B-4
A O (= [ 11 T TSR B-4
8.  Driveway ACrOSS WELIANG..........uiiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e s e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e s e nrreees B-5
9. Residential Wetland Fill and Boardwalk ConStrUCHION ............oiiiiiiiiiiii e B-5
10. DOCKS - Piers - MOOMNG PiIES ...ttt e e e s e e e e e e s B-6
11, BACKH SANAING ...ttt ettt re e B-6
12. Pipe/Utility Crossings iN @ TIENCR .........coiiiiiiiiieiiee et e e e s e e e e e e s s nnnrreeeeaeee s B-7
13. Pipe/Utility Crossings using DireCtional BOTE...........cooiiiiiiiiiie et r e e e s snnranen e e e B-7
14. Bridge or CUIVErt (4 draWingS) ......cccuiiiiiiee ittt e sttt e e e e e s st e e e e e e s s st b et e e aeessssbbeeeeaaeesssnnsrneeneaaenns B-8
LRI B = 10 W 00T o 1S3 (U T 1o o SRR B-12
TB. WALEr INTAKE ...ttt e ettt e e e e e s e bbbt e e e e e e e s e bbb e e e e e e s s aanbbeeeaeeeeas B-12
17. Great Lakes Shore ProteCiON ..........ooi it et e e e nee e s nee e e enees B-13
18. Maintenance Dredge ChanNEl...........cooiiiiiiiiiii et B-13
19. Proposed Residence in a High Risk EroSion Area ...........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiii e B-14
20. Proposed Residence in @ Critical DUNE AFCa .........coocuuiiiiiie ettt e e steee e e e e s snrraeeeaa e B-14
b B Y = Ty g = TR T (= = o PR B-15
D © U (=Y o= PR B-16
23. Temporary Logging ROGA CrOSSING .......cciuuieiiiiiiiiiiit ittt nne e naee s B-16
Appendix C:  Fees and Categories for Minor Project and General Permit for Minor Activities ............cccccvvvveeeiiiciiieeneeenn C-1
Appendix D:  State Authority, Federal Authority, Privacy Act Statement, and State and Federal Penalties......................... D-1
Appendix E: Glossary (listed words are italicized in the application package) ..........cooecuvvieiiee i E-1

Application status can be viewed on the Water Resources Division (WRD) website at www.michigan.gov/miwaters. During the
application period, if any information is missing from the application or if any clarification is needed regarding materials provided,
the application is incomplete and staff will request the information from the applicant/agent by letter, email, fax or phone call. If a
complete response is not provided within 30 days, the application will be closed. Some regulatory parts allow extensions if
requested within the 30 day time frame. Once the WRD has received the information necessary for review of the project,
including a thoroughly completed application, consistent drawings that have adequate detail for review and the full application
fee, the file will be reviewed for final processing. A mailed postcard or a public notice will provide the file number and the
telephone number of the office where the application is being processed. The review time to determine if an application is
complete for processing ranges from 15 to 30 days. Technical processing times, after the application is administratively
complete, may range from 60 to 90 days. Processing times will be longer if a public hearing is held. Staff from your local
District/Field Office may visit the project site and may request additional information prior to a decision on the application.
Application fees are not refundable or transferable.

If a federal permit will also be required, a copy of the permit application will be sent to the Detroit District Office,
USACE, for processing at the federal level. Additional copies of this application form can be downloaded from the WRD
website at www.mi.gov/jointpermit or can be photocopied from the original. If you have any questions about the permitting
process or if you need to modify your application, you can contact the WRD by phone or fax at the addresses on the previous
page, or email at DEQ-WRD-MiWaters@michigan.gov.

Joint Permit Application Page iv of iv EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)

(=4


http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.michigan.gov/miwaters
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
mailto:DEQ-WRD-MiWaters@michigan.gov

-8 §1U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Mich
> Previous USACE File Number -
Sw o2
e %9
Q = | USACE File Number o k

igan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.qov/jointpermit

(=4

DEQ File Number

Fee received $

[] All items in Sections 1 through 9 are completed.
[] Project-specific Sections 10 through 20 are completed.

[[] Map, site plan(s), cross sections; one set must be black and whit
[] Application fee is attached.

Validate that all parts of this checklist are submitted with the application package. Fill out application and additional pages as needed.

[[] Dimensions, volumes, and calculations are provided for all impact areas.
[[] All information contained in the headings for the appropriate Sections (1-20) are addressed, and identified attachments (®) are included.

e on 8 %2 by 11 inch paper; photographs.

Project Location Information For Latitude, Longitude, an

d TRS info anywhere in Michigan see www.mcgi.state.mi.us/wetlands/

Project Address (road, if no street address) Zip Code Municipality County
6276 NEWTON ROAD 48840 (Township/Village/City) INGHAM
HASLETT
Property Tax Identification Number(s) Latitude Township/Range/Section (TRS)
32-02-02-04-252-004 42762983 N T4NorS: R1EorW:
Subdivision/Plat and Lot Number Longitude Sec4
- -84 430909 W OR Private Claim#

Applicant and Agent Information

Owner/Applicant (individual or corporate name)
NEWTON POINTE, LLC

Agent/Contractor (firm name and contact person)
CHUCK HOLMAN

Mailing Address 2502 LAKE LANSING ROAD,STE C

Mailing Address 2502 LAKE LANSING ROAD

City LANSING State Ml Zip Code 48912-

3661

City LANSING State Ml Zip Code 48912-3661

Fax
517-371-5326

Contact Phone Number
517-371-5326

Fax
517-371-5326

Contact Phone Number
517-371-5300

Email cholman@dtnmgt..com

E-mail cholman@dtnmgt..com

[(JNo X Yes Is the applicant the sole owner of all property on wh
this project? # If no, attach letter(s) of authorization from all propert:

ich this project is to be constructed and all property involved or impacted by
owners including the owner of the disposal site.

Property Owner’'s Name (If different from applicant)

Mailing Address

Contact Phone Number City State Zip Code
;I Project Description
Project Name NEWTON PARK MUPUD Preapplication File Number - - -P

Name of Water body MERIDIAN TWP. REGULATED WETLAND

Date project staked/flagged JUNE AND JULY 2017

The proposed project is on, within, or involves (check all that apply)

[] a Great Lake
X a wetland

[] an inland lake (5 acres or more)

[] a pond (less than 5 acres)

[] a stream, river, ditch or drain

[] a legally established County Drain
Date Drain was established

[J a channel/canal

[[] 500 feet of an existing water body

[Jadam

[] a designated
[] a designated
[] a designated

[J a 100-year floodplain

Project Use

[] private

X] commercial

[ public/government

[ project is receiving federal/state
transportation funds

[J Wetland Restoration

[ other

or Section 10 Waters

high risk erosion area
critical dune area
environmental area

Indicate the type of permit being applied for: [] General Permit [X] Minor Project

[J Individual (All other projects.) = See Appendix C.

OUTLET CONTROL STRUCURE FROM WETLANDS WITH OUTL

Written Summary of All Proposed Activities CONSTRUCT SINGLE AND MULTIBLE RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH ATTACHE GARAGES,
PARKING AREAS. CONSTRUCT SANITARY AND STORM SEWERS, AND STORM WATER PRE-TREATMENT AND STORM DETENTIOM

ET TO PUBLEC STORM SEWERS.

UNDERGROUND FACILITIES AND BUILDINGS.COSTRUCT

Construction Sequence and Methods CONSTRUCT UNDER GROUND FACILITIES, APPROACHES FOR VEHICLES TO NEWMAN ROAD,

Joint Permit Application

Page 1 of 14

EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)


http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mcgi.state.mi.us/wetlands/

-8 §1U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil

Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE

(=4

Project Purpose, Use and Alternatives Attach additional sheets as necessary.

Describe the purpose of the project and its intended use; include any new development or expansion of an existing land use.
CONSTRUCT SINGLE AND MUTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH GARAGES AND PARKING AREAS.

Describe the alternatives considered to avoid or minimize resource impacts. Include factors such as, but to limited to, alternative locations,
project layout and design, and construction technologies. For utility crossings include alternative routes and construction methods.

PROVIDE PRE-TREATMENT FOR FOR STORM RUN OFF TO THE WETLANDS AND CONSTRUCT STORM WATER DETENTION OUTLET
STRUCTURES FROM THE WETLANDS WITH STORM WATER OUTLET TO PUBLIC STORM SEWERS.

Locating Your Project Site Attach a legible black and white map with a North arrow.

Names of roads of closest intersection NEWTON ROAD AND M-78 (E.SAGINAW STREET)

Directions from main intersection to the project site, with distances from the best and nearest visible landmark and water body EXISTING
DRIVEWAY IS LOCATED SOUTH IF INTERSECTION ON E. SIDE OF NEWTON ROAD .

SITE IS VACANT

Description of buildings on the site (color; 1 or 2 story, other)

Description of adjacent landmarks or buildings (address; color; etc)

MERIDIAN WATER TOWER IS LOCATED ON WEST SIDE OF
NEWTON ROAD

How can your site be identified if there is no visible address? OPPISITE SIDE OF WATER TOWER ON NEWMAN ROAD

E Easements and Other Permits

[XI No [] Yes Is there a conservation easement or other easement, deed restriction, lease, or other encumbrance upon the property?
=» If yes, attach a copy. Provide copies of court orders and legal lake levels if applicable.

List all other federal, interstate, state, or local agency authorizations including required assurances for Critical Dune Area projects.

Agency Type of Approval

Number Date Applied Date approved /denied

Reason for denial

Compliance

If a permit is issued, when will the activity begin? (M/D/Y) MARCH, 2019

Proposed completion date (M/D/Y) NOVEMBER 2019

=» |f Yes, attach explanation.

[XI No [] Yes Has any construction activity commenced or been completed in a regulated area?
=» If Yes, identify the portion(s) underway or completed on drawings or attach project specifications and give completion date(s).
XI No [] Yes Were the regulated activities conducted under a DEQ and/or USACE permit?
»If Yes, list the permit numbers
[XI No [] Yes Are you aware of any unresolved violations of environmental law or litigation involving the property?

B Adjoining Property Owners

Provide current mailing addresses. Attach additional sheets/labels for long lists.

[[] Established Lake Board
[[] Lake Association

Contact Person

Mailing Address

City

State and Zip Code

List all adjoining property owners.

If you own the adjoining lot, provide the requested information for the first adjoining parcel that is not owned by you.

Property Owner's Name Mailing Address City State and Zip Code
MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 5151 MARSH ROAD OKEMOS MI, 48864
HAMMOND, L. LEE 5834 M-99 DIMONDALE MI, 48821

Joint Permit Application Page 2 of 14 EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)


http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE

g Applicant’s Certification

Read carefully before signing.

| am applying for a permit(s) to authorize the activities described herein. | certify that | am familiar with the information contained in this
application; that it is true and accurate; and, to the best of my knowledge, that it is in compliance with the State Coastal Zone Management
Program. | understand that there are penalties for submitting false information and that any permit issued pursuant to this application may be
revoked if information on this application is untrue. | certify that | have the authority to undertake the activities proposed in this application. By
signing this application, | agree to allow representatives of the DEQ, USACE, and/or their agents or contractors to enter upon said property in
order to inspect the proposed activity site before and during construction and after the completion of the project. | understand that | must obtain
all other necessary local, county, state, or federal permits and that the granting of other permits by local, county, state, or federal agencies does

not release me from the requirements of obtaining the permit requested herein before commencing the activity. | understand that the payment
of the application fee does not guarantee the issuance of a permit.

[X] Property Owner
[] Agent/Contractor
[] Corp. or Public Agency / Title

Printed Name
CHUCK HOLMAN

Signature

Date

Joint Permit Application

Page 3 of 14

EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)

(=4



http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit

&
-8 §1U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE"_’.

Projects Impacting Inland Lakes, Streams, Great Lakes, Wetlands or Floodplains

e  Complete only those sections A through M applicable to your project.
e If your project impacts wetlands also complete Section 12. If your project impacts regulated floodplains also complete Section 13.

e To calculate volume in cubic yards (cu yd), multiply the average length in feet (ft) times the average width (ft) times the average depth (ft)
and divide by 27. Example: (25 ft long x 10 ft wide x 2 feet deep) / 27 = 18.5 cubic yards

e  Some projects on the Great Lakes require an application for conveyance prior to Joint Permit Application completeness.

= Provide a black and white overall site plan, with cross-section and profile drawings. Show existing lakes, streams, wetlands, and other water
features; existing structures; and the location of all proposed structures, land change activities and soil erosion and sedimentation control
measures. Review Appendix B and EZ Guides for aid in providing complete site-specific drawings.

= Provide tables for multiple impact areas or multiple activities such as multiple fill areas or multiple culverts. Include your calculations.

Water Level Elevation
On inland waters [ ] NGVD 29 [] NAVD 88 [] other Observed water elevation (ft) date of observation (M/D/Y)
On a Great Lake []IGLD 85 [ surveyed [] converted from observed still water elevation.

[[] A. PROJECTS REQUIRING FILL (See All Sample Drawings)

= Attach a site plan and cross-section views to scale showing maximum and average fill dimensions with calculations.
= For multiple impact areas on a site provide a table with location, dimensions and volumes for each fill area.

Purpose [ bioengineered shore protection [] boat ramp [] boat well [] bridge or culvert [] crib dock
[ riprap [] seawall [Jswimarea [ other
Dimensions of fill (ft) Total volume (cubic yards) Volume below OHWM (cubic yards)
Length Width Maximum Depth

Will filter fabric be used under proposed fill?

Maximum water depth in fill area (ft) Area filled (sq ft
(saft) [JNo [ Yes (If Yes, type)
Fill will extend feet into the water from the shoreline and upland feet out of the water.
Type of clean fill [] peastone % [ sand % [ gravel % [ other
Source of clean fill [[] commercial [] on-site = If on-site, show location on site plan.
[ other = |f other, attach description of location.

[J B. PROJECTS REQUIRING DREDGING OR EXCAVATION (See Sample Drawings)
e Refer to www.mi.gov/jointpermit for spoils disposal and authorization requirements.
= Attach a site plan and cross-section views to scale showing maximum and average dredge or excavation dimensions with calculations.
= For multiple impact areas on a site provide a table with location, dimensions and volumes for each dredge/excavation area.

Purpose [] boat ramp [] boat well [] bridge or culvert [[] maintenance dredge
[ navigation [] pond/basin [ other
Dimensions (ft) Total volume (cu yds) Volume below OHWM (cu yds)
Length Width Maximum Depth
Has this same area been previously dredged? [JNo [ Yes If Yes, provide date and permit number:
Will the previously dredged area be enlarged? [JNo [ Yes If Yes, when and how much?
Is long-term maintenance dredging planned? [(JNo [ Yes If Yes, how often?

Dredge or Excavation Method [] Hydraulic [] Mechanical []] other

Dredged or excavated spoils will be placed [] on-site []landfill [[] USACE confined disposal facility [] other upland off-site
For disposal, provide a ®Detailed spoils disposal area location map and site plan with property lines.
= |etter of authorization from property owner of spoils disposal site, if disposed off-site.

Spoils
Disposal

For volumes less than 5,000 cu yards, has proposed dredge material been tested for contaminants within the past 10 years?
[(JNo [ Yes =If Yes, provide test results with a map of sampling locations.

X] €. PROJECTS REQUIRING RIPRAP (See Sample Drawings 2, 3, 8, 12, 14, 22, and 23)

Riprap water ward of the ordinary high water mark: dimensions (ft) length width depth Volume(cu yd)

Volume(cu yd) 15CYD X
16 =240 CYD

Type and size of riprap (inches) Will filter fabric or pea stone be used under proposed riprap?
[X field stone 3"- 6" [X] angular rock 3" - 6" [] other [[1No [X Yes, Type

Riprap landward of the ordinary high water mark: dimensions (ft) length 20 width 15 depth 0.5 TO 2.0

Joint Permit Application Page 4 of 14 EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)


http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE

(=4

[J D. SHORE PROTECTION PROJECTS (See EZ Guides and Sample Drawings 2, 3, and 17. Complete Sections 10A, B, and/or C.)
= For bioengineering projects include the list of native plants/seeds, if available.

Type and length (ft) [] bioengineering (ft)

[J revetment (ft)

[ riprap (ft) [[] seawall/bulkhead (ft)

Structure is [] new [ repair

[CJreplacement of an existing structure

Will the existing structure be removed? [] No [] Yes

Proposed Toe Stone (linear feet)

Distance of project from adjacent property lines (ft)

Distance of project from an obvious fixed structure (example - 50 ft from SW corner of house)

For bioengineering projects indicate the structure type [] brush bundles [] coirlog [] live stakes [] tree revetment [] other

[] E. DOCK - PIER — MOORING PILINGS (See Sample Drawing 10)

=» Attach a copy of the property legal description, mortgage survey, or a property boundary survey report.

Dock Type [ openpile [Jfiled []crib

[ floating [] cantilevered

[ spring piles [] piling clusters [] other

Is the structure within the applicant’s riparian area interest area? [ No [] Yes

= Show parcel property lines on the site plan.

Proposed structure dimensions (ft) length width

Use [ private [] public [] commercial

Dimensions of nearest adjacent structures (ft) length width

Distance of dock from adjacent property lines (ft)

[] F. BOAT WELL (See EZ Guide. Complete Sections 10A and 10B)

Dimensions (ft) length width depth

Number of boats

Type of sidewall stabilization

[] concrete []riprap [] steel [] vinyl

[ wood [ other

Volume of backfill behind sidewall stabilization (cu yd)

Distance of boat well from adjacent property lines (ft)

[] G. BOAT RAMP (See EZ Guide. Complete sections 10A, 10B, and 10C for mattress and pavement fill, dredge, and riprap)

Type [Onew [Jexisting [] maintenance/improvement Use [ private [] public [] commercial
Existing overall boat ramp dimensions (ft) Type of construction material
length width depth [J concrete [[]wood []stone [ other
Proposed overall ramp dimensions (ft) Proposed ramp dimensions (ft) below ordinary high water mark
length width depth length width depth
Number of proposed Proposed skid pier dimensions (ft) . . .
[, Distance of ramp from adjacent property lines (ft
skid piers length width P jacent property lines (f)

[] H. BOAT HOIST - ROOFS (See EZ Guide)

Type [cradle [ side lifter [] other

Located on [] seawall [] dock [] bottomlands

Hoist dimensions, including catwalks (ft) length width

Area occupied, including cat walks (sq ft)

Distance of hoist from adjacent property lines (ft)

Permanent Roof [] No [] Yes
=» If Yes, how is the roof supported?

Maximum Roof Dimensions (ft): length width height

[] . BOARDWALKS and DECKS in WETLANDS or FLOODPLAINS (See Sample Drawings 5 and 6. Complete Sections 12 and/or 13)
=» Provide a table for multiple boardwalks and decks proposed in one project; include locations and dimensions.

Wetlands

Floodplains

Boardwalk [] on pilings [] on fill Deck [] on pilings [] on fill
Dimensions (ft) Dimensions (ft)
length width length width

Boardwalk [] on pilings [] on fill Deck [] on pilings [] onfill
Dimensions (ft) Dimensions (ft)
length width length width

<] J. INTAKE PIPES (See Sample Drawing 16) or OUTLET PIPES (See Sample Drawing 22)

If outlet pipe, discharge is to [] inland lake [] stream, drain or river [] overland flow [] Great Lake [X] wetland [] other

Number of pipes Pipe diameters and invert elevations Does pipe discharge below the OHWM? XI No [] Yes

7 12" 24" Is the water treated before discharge? [[INo [X Yes
Dimensions of headwall OR end section (ft)

Type [] headwall [X] end section [] other Izeﬂgth 21035 width 2/ TO 4 height 12" TO

Joint Permit Application Page 5 of 14

EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)


http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit

&
-8 §1U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE"_’.

[] K. MOORING and NAVIGATION BUOYS (See EZ Guide for Sample Drawing)

=» Provide a site plan showing the distances between each buoy and from the shore to each buoy, and depth (ft) of water at each location.
=» Provide cross-section drawing(s) showing anchoring system(s) and dimensions.

Purpose of buoy [[] mooring [] navigation [] scientific structures [] swimming [ other
Number of Dimensions of buoys (ft) Boat Lengths Type of anchor system
buoys width height swing radius chain length
Buoy Location: Latitude . N Longitude  -- . W. = Provide a table for multiple buoys.
Do you own the property along the shoreline? [JNo []Yes = If No, attach an authorization letter from the property owner(s).
Do you own the bottomlands? [JNo []Yes = If No, attach an authorization letter from the property owner(s).

[1 L. FENCES

=» Provide an overall site plan showing the proposed fencing through streams, wetlands or floodplains.
=» Provide a drawing of fence profile showing the design, dimension, post spacing, mesh, and distance from ground to bottom of fence.

Purpose of [ Airport [] Cervidae [ Livestock [] Residential [] Security [] Other
fence

Total length (ft) of fence through Fence height (ft) Fence type and material

streams wetlands floodplains

[] M. OTHER - e.g., structure removal, maintenance or repair, aerator, dry fire hydrant, gold prospecting, habitat structures, scientific measuring
devices, soil borings, or survey activities.

Structure description, dimensions and volumes. Complete Sections 10A-C as applicable.

Expansion of an Existing or Construction of a New Lake or Pond (See Sample Drawings 4 and 15)
= Complete Section 10J for outlets and Section 17 for water control structures.

= Provide elevations, cross-sections and profiles of outlets, dams, dikes, water control structures and emergency spillways to nearest water
bodies.

Which best describes your proposed water body use (check all that apply)
[J mining [ recreation [] storm water retention basin [] wastewater basin [ ] wildlife [] other

Water source for lake/pond
[] groundwater ~ [] natural springs  [] Inland Lake or Stream [_] storm water runoff [] pump [] sewage [] other

Location of the lake/basin/pond [ floodplain [] wetland [] stream (inline) ~ [] upland

Maximum dimensions (ft) Maximum Area: [Jacres [ sq ft

length width depth
Has the there been a hydrologic study performed on the site? [JNo []Yes = If Yes, provide a copy.

= If Yes, provide a copy or WIP number:
Has the DEQ conducted a wetland assessment for this parcel? [JNo []Yes

= If Yes, provide a copy with data sheets.
Has a professional wetland delineation been conducted for this parcel? [JNo []Yes

Dredged or excavated spoils will be placed [] on-site [ landfill [] USACE confined disposal facility [] other upland off-site

For disposal, provide a ®Detailed spoils disposal area location map and site plan with property lines.

Spoils
Disposal

= |etter of authorization from property owner of spoils disposal site, if disposed off-site.

Joint Permit Application Page 6 of 14 EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)


http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit

-8 §1U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE

m Activities That May Impact Wetlands (See Sample Drawings 8 & 9). Complete other Sections as applicable.

e Locate your site and wetland information with the DEQ Wetlands Map Viewer at www.mcgi.state.mi.us/wetlands/

¢ For information on the DEQ’s Wetland Identification Program (WIP) visit www.mi.gov/wetlands.
=» Provide a detailed site plan with labeled property lines, upland and wetland areas, and dimensions and volumes of wetland impacts.
= Complete the wetland dredge and wetland fill dimension information below for each impacted wetland area.
= Attach tables for multiple impact areas or activities.
=» Attach at least one cross-section for each wetland dredge and/or fill area; show wetland and upland boundaries on the cross-section.

Has the DEQ conducted a wetland assessment for this parcel?

X No [] Yes = If Yes, provide a copy or WIP number:

Has a professional wetland delineation been conducted for this parcel? [J No [X Yes = If Yes, provide a copy with data sheets

Is there a recorded DEQ easement on the property?

X No [] Yes = If Yes, provide the easement number

Did the applicant purchase the property before October 1, 19807 X No [] Yes =» If Yes, provide documentation.

Is any grading or mechanized land clearing proposed?

XI No [] Yes = If Yes, label the locations on the site plan.

maximum width (ft)

Has any of the proposed grading or mechanized land clearing been X No [] Yes = If Yes, label the locations on the site plan
completed?
Proposed Activity [ boardwalk or deck (Section 10I) [] bridges and culverts [] designated environmental area
(Section 14)
[[] dewatering [X] draining surface water [] driveway / road
[ fences (Section 10L) [] fill or dredge [] restoration
[] septic system [X] stormwater discharge [ other
(Section 10J)
Dimensions Area Average depth (ft) Volume (cu yd)
FILL maximum Iepgth (ft) O acres [ sqft
maximum width (ft)
Dimensions Area Average depth (ft) Volume (cu yd)
DREDGE maximum Iength (ft) D acres D sq ft

Spoils
Disposal

Dredged or excavated spoils will be placed [] on-site [] landfill [] USACE confined disposal facility [] other upland off-site

For disposal, provide a = Detailed spoils disposal area location map and site plan with property lines.

= |etter of authorization from property owner of spoils disposal site, if disposed off-site.

Septic
System

The proposed project will be serviced by:
X public sewer [] private septic system
=» Show system on plans.

If a private septic system is proposed, has an application for a permit been made to
the County Health Department? [] No []Yes

If Yes, has a permit been issued? [] No [] Yes ® Provide a copy of the permit.

Describe the wetland impacts, the proposed use or development, and the alternatives considered:

SURFACE RUN OFF WILL BE INTERCEPTED BY STORM SEWERS AND CURB SPILLWAYS, FOREBAYS WILL BE CONSTRUCTED AT
EACH OUTLET AND SIZED FOR THE SIZE OF THE DRAINAGE AREA FROM EACH STORM PIPE OR CURB SPILLWAY.

Does the project impact more than 1/3 acre of wetland? [X] No [] Yes
=» If Yes, submit a Mitigation Plan with the type and amount of mitigation proposed. For more information go to www.mi.gov/wetlands

Describe how impacts to waters of the United States will be avoided and minimized:

Describe how the impact to waters of the United States will be compensated. OR Explain why compensatory mitigation should not be required
for the proposed impacts.

Joint Permit

Application

Page 7 of 14 EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)

(=4



http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mcgi.state.mi.us/wetlands/
http://www.mi.gov/wetlands
http://www.mi.gov/wetlands

&
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE"_’.

;|

Floodplain Activities (See Sample Drawing 5 and others. Complete other applicable sections.)

For more information go to www.mi.gov/floodplainmanagement. This site also lists the projects and requirements for an expedited floodplain
review under “Expedited Review Information for Minor Floodplain Projects.”

Examples of projects proposed within the non-floodway portions of the 100-year-floodplain which may qualify for an expedited review: Open
pile decks and boardwalks; residences, commercial/industrial facilities, garages and accessory structures; parking lots; pavilions, gazebos,
large community playground structures; residential swimming pools

Examples of projects proposed within the floodway portions of the floodplain which may qualify for an expedited review: Open pile decks and
boardwalks, (non-enclosed) that are anchored to prevent floatation and that do not extend over the bed and bank of a watercourse; parking
lots constructed at grade or resurfacing that is no more than 4 inches above the existing grade; dry hydrants that do not require fill
placement; scientific structure such as staff gauges, water monitoring devices, water quality testing devices, and core sampling devices
which meet specific design criteria and fish structures that meet specific design criteria.

For expedited review include:

=» Photographs of the work site labeled to identify what is being shown and with the direction of the photo clearly indicated. Include
photographs of any river or stream adjacent to the project.

=» A letter or statement from the local unit of government acknowledging your proposed application. See the website for sample wording.
A hydraulic analysis or hydrologic analysis may be required to fully assess floodplain impacts.

The state building code requires an Elevation Certificate for any building construction or addition in a floodplain. A sample form can be found at
www.fema.gov/nfip/elvinst.shtm.

=» Attach additional sheets or tables for multiple proposed floodplain activities and provide hydraulic calculations.
=» Show reference datum used on plans.

Proposed Activity Rl [J excavation or cut 100-year floodplain elevation (ft) (if known)
[] other Datum [JNGVD 29 [ NAVD 88 [] other
Site is feet above [] ordinary high water mark (OHWM) OR [] observed water level. Date of observation (M/D/Y)
Fill volume below the 100-year floodplain elevation Compensating cut volume below the 100-year floodplain elevation
(cu yds (cu yds)

Lowest adjacent grade (ft): existing proposed
datum [JNGVD 29 []NAVD 88 [] other
2 Existing Structure Information Proposed Structure Information
§ Foundation type [] basement Foundation type [] basement
§ [] concrete slab on grade [ pilings [ concrete slab on grade [ pilings
] [] crawl space [ other [] crawl space [ other
T% Foundation floor elevation (ft) Foundation floor elevation (ft)
0 Height of crawl space/basement from finished foundation floor to Height of crawl space/basement from finished foundation floor to
g‘ bottom of floor joists (ft) bottom of floor joists (ft)
% Elevation of 1st floor above basement floor/crawl space (ft) Elevation of 1st floor above basement floor/crawl space (ft)
21]

Type of construction is [] residential [] garage/pole barn [] non residential [] other

Construction is [[] new [] addition AND Serviced by [] public sewer [] private septic [] other

For enclosed areas below the flood elevation, such as a crawl space, garages and accessory structures:
Area of proposed foundation (sq ft)
Elevation of proposed enclosed area (ft) datum [J NGVD 29 []NAVD 88 [] other

Number of flood vents net opening of each vent (sq inches) lowest elevation of flood vents (ft)

Joint Permit Application Page 8 of 14 EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)


http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/floodplainmanagement
http://www.fema.gov/nfip/elvinst.shtm

-8 §1U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE

(=4

m Bridges and Culverts Including Foot and Cart Bridges. (See EZ Guides and Sample Drawings 5, 14A, 14B, 14C, 14D.)
e Complete other applicable Sections, including 10A-C.
e A hydraulic analysis or hydrologic analysis may be required to fully assess impacts. ®Attach hydraulic calculations.

e High Water Elevation - describe reference point and highest known water level above or below reference point and date of observation.
= Attach additional sheets for multiple bridges and/or culverts.
= Provide detailed site-specific drawings of existing and proposed Plan and Elevation View at a scale adequate for detailed review.
= Provide all information in the boxes below; do not write in a reference to plan sheets. Show reference datum used on plans.

Stream Information

The site has a high water elevation (ft) [] above or [] below the Reference Point of Date observed

Reference datum used [] NGVD 29 [] NAVD 88 [] IGLD 85 (Great Lakes coastal areas) [] other

Average stream width (ft) at the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) outside the influence of Upstream
any ponding or scour holes around the structure

Downstream

Cross-sectional area of primary channel (sq ft) (See Sample Drawing 14C for more information)

The width of the stream where the water begins to overflow its banks. Bankfull width (ft)

The invert of the stream 100-feet from structure (ft) Upstream

Downstream

Is the existing culvert perched? [ No [] Yes If Yes, provide a profile of the channel bottom at the high and low points for a distance of
200 feet upstream and downstream of the culvert.

Complete this form for each bridge / culvert location. Existing Proposed

Bridge

Number of bridge spans

Bridge type (concrete box beam, concrete I-beam, timber, etc.)

Bridge span ( length perpendicular to stream) (ft)

Bridge width (parallel to stream) (ft)

Bottom of bridge beam (ft) Upstream

Downstream

Stream invert elevation at bridge (ft) Upstream

Downstream

Bridge rise from bottom of beam to streambed (ft)

Culvert

Number of culverts

Culvert type (arch, bottomless, box, circular, elliptical, etc.)

Culvert material (concrete, corrugated metal, plastic, etc.)

Culvert length (ft)

Culvert [[] width [] diameter (ft)

Culvert height prior to any burying (ft)

Depth culvert will be buried (ft)

Elevation of culvert crown (ft) Upstream
Downstream

Higher elevation of [] culvert invert OR [] streambed within culvert (ft) Upstream
Downstream

Complete for both Bridges and
Culverts

Entrance design (mitered, projecting, wingwalls, etc.)
Total structure waterway opening above streambed (sq ft)

Total structure waterway area below the 100-year elevation (sq ft) (if known)

Elevation of road grade at structure (ft)

Elevation of low point in road (ft)

Distance from low point of road to mid-point of bridge crossing (ft)

Length of approach fill from edge of bridge/culvert to existing grade (ft)

A Licensed Professional Engineer may certify that your project will not cause a harmful interference for a range of flood discharges up to
and including the 100-year flood discharge. The "Required Certification Language” is found under “forms” on the “maps, forms and
documents” link from the www.mi.gov/jointpermit page or a copy may be requested by phone, email, or mail. A hydraulic report
supporting this certification may also be required.

Is Certification Language attached? [] No [] Yes

Joint Permit Application Page 9 of 14 EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)


http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit

&
-8 §1U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE"_’.

m Stream, River, or Drain Construction , Relocation and Enclosure Activities
e Complete Section 10C for riprap activities.
» If side casting or other proposed activities will impact wetlands or floodplains, complete Sections 12 and 13, respectively.

= Provide a scaled overall site plan showing existing lakes, streams, wetlands, and other water features; existing structures; and the location of
all proposed structures and land change activities.

= Provide scaled cross-section (elevation) drawings necessary to clearly show existing and proposed conditions.

= For activities on legally established county drains, provide original design and proposed dimensions and elevations.
Water elevation (ft) datum [J] NGVD 29 [] NAVD 88 [] IGLD 85 (Great Lakes coastal areas) [] other
= Show elevation on plans with description.

Dimensions (ft) of existing stream/drain channel (ft) length width depth

Stream
Information

Existing channel average water depth in a normal year (ft)

Proposed Activity [] enclosure [] improvement [] maintenance [] new drain [] relocation [] wetlands [] other

If an enclosed structure is proposed, check material type [] concrete [] corrugated metal [] plastic [] other

Dimensions (ft) of the structure: diameter length Volume of fill (cu yds)

Will old/enclosed stream channel be backfilled to top of bank grade? [] No [] Yes

Length of channel to be abandoned (ft) Volume of fill (cu yds)

Dimensions (ft) of improved, maintained, new, relocated or wetland stream/drain | \/olyme of dredge/excavation (cu yds)
channel.

length width depth
How will slopes and bottom be stabilized? Proposed side slopes (vertical / horizontal)
@ ‘_8° Dredged or excavated spoils will be placed [] on-site [] landfill [] USACE confined disposal facility [] other upland off-site
g-)._% For disposal, provide a = Detailed spoils disposal area location map and site plan with property lines.
e = Letter of authorization from property owner of spoils disposal site, if disposed off-site.

Drawdown of an Impoundment

o If wetlands will be impacted, complete Section 12.

Type of drawdown [] over winter [] temporary [] one-time event [] annual event [] permanent (dam removal) [] other

Reason for drawdown
Has there been a previous drawdown? [] No [] Yes Previous DEQ permit number, if known
If Yes, provide date (M/D/Y)

Does waterbody have established legal lake level? [ No [] Yes [] Not Sure

Dam ID Number, if known

Extent of vertical drawdown (ft) Impoundment design head (ft) Number of adjoining or
impacted property owners
Date drawdown would start (M/D/Y) Date drawdown would stop (M/D/Y) Rate of drawdown ( ft/day)
Date refilling would start (M/D/Y) Date refill would end (M/D/Y) Rate of refill (ft/day)
Type of outlet discharge structure to be used Impoundment area at Sediment depth behind impoundment
[] surface [] bottom [] mid-depth normal water level (acres) discharge structure (ft)

Joint Permit Application Page 10 of 14 EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)


http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit

&
-8 §1U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE"_’.

h Dam, Embankment, Dike, Spillway, or Control Structure Activities (See Sample Drawing 15)

e For more information go to www.mi.gov/damsafety. If wetlands will be impacted, complete Section 12.

¢ Information on removing a dam is available at www.mi.gov/damsafety and following the Related Link -Dam Management.
= = Attach detailed signed and sealed engineering plans for a Part 315 dam repair, dam alteration, dam abandonment, or dam removal.
=»Part 315 Dam Safety application fees are added to all other application fees.
= Mail applications for dams regulated under Part 315 to DEQ, WRD, P.O. BOX 30458, LANSING, MI 48909-7958, attention Dam Safety.

Proposed Activity [[] abandonment [] alteration [] enlargement of an existing dam
[] removal [] repair [ reconstruction of a failed dam
[J new dam construction [ other

Dam ID Number, if known ) )
Type of outlet discharge structure [ ] surface [] bottom [] mid-depth

Will proposed activities require a drawdown of the waterbody to complete the work? [] No [] Yes = If Yes, complete Section 16.

Structural height (difference between embankment top elevation and streambed elevation at downstream embankment toe) (ft) _

Hydraulic Height (difference between design flood elevation and streambed
elevation at downstream embankment toe) (ft)

Does dam meet the criteria for regulation under Part 315? (i.e. hydraulic height of 6 feet or more and an impoundment size at the design flood of 5
surface acres or more) []No [] Yes

Impoundment size at design flood elevation (acres)

Dredging/excavation volume (cu yd) Fill volume (cu yd) Riprap volume (cu yd)

Will a water diversion during construction be required? [] No [] Yes

If Yes, describe how the stream flow will be controlled through the dam construction area during the proposed project activities:

Complete the following for a new dam, reconstruction of a failed dam or enlargement of an existing dam

For Part 315 regulated dams, the following must be attached:

=» Site-specific conceptual plans of the dam for resource impact review (An engineering report and detailed engineering plans are not required
until the project has been determined to be permitable).

=» A description and evaluation of the loss of natural resources associated with the project.

=» A description of the natural resources that are associated with or created by the impoundment and how they offset the natural resources lost by,
the creation of the impoundment.

=» An assessment of all known existing and potential adverse effects within the scope of the project.

Embankment : : slopes Upstream
dimensions length (ft) top width (ft) bottom width (ft) (vertical / horizontal) Downstream
Have soil borings been taken at dam location? [JNo [ Yes =» If Yes, attach results.

Do you have flowage rights to all proposed flooded property at [JNo [J Yes = If No, provide a letter of authorization from the property
the design flood elevation? owner.

Applications for Part 315 regulated dam removal projects must also include the following:

An evaluation of the capacity of the remaining structure to pass flood flows.

An evaluation of the quantity and quality of the sediments behind the impoundment.

A description of the methods to be employed to control sediments.

An assessment of all known existing and potential adverse impacts within the scope of the project.

Joint Permit Application Page 11 of 14 EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)


http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/damsafety
http://www.mi.gov/damsafety

o Jlus. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE

m Utility Crossings (See Sample Drawings 12 and 13, and EZ Guide)

¢ |f side casting is proposed, complete Sections 10A and 10B. If spoils will be placed in or impact wetlands, complete Section 12.
= Attach additional sheets or tables with the requested information as needed for multiple crossings.
=» For wetland crossings using the open trench method show clay plugs at the wetland/upland boundaries on the plans.

Crossing of [] Inland Lake or Stream [Ifloodplain [] Great Lake [] wetlands (also complete Section 12)

What method will be used to construct the crossings? [] directional boring [] jack and bore [] open trench [] plow / knife [] flume

Utility Tvoe Number of lake or Number of wetland Pipe diameter | Pipe length per Distance below Trench width
yiyp stream crossings crossings with casing (in) | crossing (ft) |streambed or wetland (in) (ft)

[] sanitary sewer

[] storm sewer

[] watermain

[ cable

[ electric

[[] fiber optic cable

[] oil/gas pipeline

Marina Construction, Expansion and Reconfiguration (See Sample Drawing 21)
e For more information go to www.mi.gov/marinas

¢ Marinas located on the Great Lakes, including Lake St. Clair, may be required to secure leases or conveyances from the state of Michigan to

place structures on the bottomlands. If a conveyance is necessary, an application must be submitted before the Joint Permit Application can be
determined complete.

= Fully complete Section 10 E. For multiple structures provide a table with the requested information.
=» Enclose a copy of any current pump-out agreement with another marina facility, if on-site sanitary pump out facilities are not available.
=» Attach a copy of the property legal description, mortgage survey, or a property boundary survey to your application.

=» The WRD may require a riparian interest area (RIA) estimate survey, sealed by a licensed surveyor, in order to determine whether the
proposed project will adversely impact riparian rights. Include any available sealed RIA estimate survey and/or written authorizations from
affected adjoining riparian owners with your application.

Proposed Marina Activity [J New construction [J Expansion [] Reconfiguration

Do you have an existing Great Lake Conveyance? [JNo [ Yes For more information visit www.mi.gov/deqgreatlakes.

Are sanitary pump-out facilities available? [] No [] Yes Is there a pump out agreement? [] No [] Yes If Yes, provide a copy.

Marina Description Current Count Final Count

Number of boat slips/wells (do not include broadside dockage or mooring buoys)

Lineal feet of broadside dockage

Maximum number of boats at broadside dockage

Number of mooring buoys

Number of launch ramps/lanes

Joint Permit Application Page 12 of 14 EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)

(=4


http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/marinas
http://www.mi.gov/deqgreatlakes

&
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit DE"_’.

m Critical Dune Areas and High Risk Erosion Areas (See Sample Drawings 19 and 20)

Critical Dune Areas (See Sample Drawing 20)

¢ Although not required, submitting PHOTOGRAPHS of the site may provide for a faster application review.

e For more information go to www.mi.gov/jointpermit, select “Sand Dune Protection” under “Related Links.”

o All property boundaries and proposed structure corners, including decks, septic systems, water wells, driveways, grading, and terrain alteration
locations must be staked before the WRD site inspection.

o Scaled overhead and cross-section plans must include all property boundaries, locations, and dimensions of all existing structures and impacted
areas, and all proposed structures, terrain alterations, and construction access. Cross-sections must show existing and proposed grades,
including foundations.

e Construction in critical dune areas on slopes greater than 33 percent (1 vertical: 3 horizontal) is prohibited without a special exception.

e Construction in critical dune areas on slopes that measure from 25 percent (1 vertical: 4 horizontal) to less than 33 percent requires sealed plans
prepared by a registered architect or licensed professional engineer.

High Risk Erosion Areas (See Sample Drawing 19)
e For more information go to www.mi.gov/jointpermit, select “HREA” under “Related Links.”
o All property boundaries, proposed structure corners, and septic system locations must be staked before the WRD site inspection.
o Scaled overhead plans must include all property boundaries, and the location and dimensions of all structures and septic systems must be
included.
o Additional information, including the building construction plans, may be required to complete the application review.

Parcel dimensions (ft) width depth Date project staked (M/D/Y)

Property is a [] platted lot [] unplatted parcel Year current property boundaries created

Dune habitat present in Building Site and access route (check all that apply): [ JWooded [[JOpen Dune  []Shrubs

[IBare Sand [JLakefront Lot [ JMNFI Community if known:

Type of construction activities [] addition [] driveway [] garage [] new home [] renovation [] septic [] deck(s) [] other

[] Provide a sand relocation plan with location and dimensions of disposal area. Indicate [] on-site OR [] off-site
If on-site show location and how the disposal site will be accessed on the plans. Indicate the depth of the disposed sand on the plans.

[] Provide the permit or letter from the County Enforcing Agent stating the project complies with Part 91 (Soil Erosion and Sedimentation
Control).

The proposed project will be serviced by [] public sewer [ private septic system.

=» On the plans, show the location and dimensions of the private septic system.

If a private septic system is proposed, has a permit been issued by the health department? [ ] No [] Yes
=» If Yes, provide a copy of the permit for all Critical Dune Area projects.

[] Provide a copy of the vegetation assurance letter.

[J Provide a re-vegetation plan, including # of trees to be removed and # of trees to be replanted.

Critical Dune Areas

Proposed Utility Installation

Proposed New Construction

Utility Installation Method
[] directional bore [J plowing in
[] open trench [] other

[J] basement
[ concrete slab [ pilings
[] crawl space [] other

Foundation type

= Show utility locations and dimensions on the site plan.

Area of existing structure (sq ft)

= Show construction access route on the site plan.

Area of proposed structure (sq ft)

= Show existing and proposed grades on the cross-section.

Area of existing deck (sq ft)

= Show locations of vegetation to be removed on the site plan.

Area of proposed deck (sq ft)

Provide the following information for special use projects:
(a) Lot size, width, density, and front and side setbacks.

d) Re-stabilization plan.
e) Environmental Impact Statement.

(b) Storm water drainage that provides for disposal of drainage water without serious erosion.
(c) Methods for controlling erosion from wind and water.
(
(

Joint Permit Application

Page 13 of 14

EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)



http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit

-8 §1U.S. Army Corps of Engineers www.Ire.usace.army.mil Michigan Department of Environmental Quality www.mi.gov/jointpermit

(=4

Parcel dimensions (ft) width depth

Date project staked (M/D/Y)

Existing Structure Information

Proposed New Construction

Foundation type [] basement
[] concrete slab [ pilings
[] crawl space [] other

Foundation type [] basement
[] concrete slab [ pilings
[] crawl space [] other

Material above foundation wall
[ block [log [ stud frame [] other

Material above foundation wall
[ block [ log [] stud frame [] other

Siding material

[ block [ vinyl [] wood [ other

Siding material

[ block [ vinyl [] wood [ other

Area of the foundation, excluding attached garage (sq ft)

Area of the foundation, excluding attached garage (sq ft)

High Risk Erosion Areas

Area of the garage foundation (sq ft)

Area of the garage foundation (sq ft)

If renovating or restoring an existing structure, indicate the renovation or restoration cost $

Current structure replacement value $

Tax assessed value of existing structure excluding land value $
Provide the number of individual living units in the proposed building

Assessment Year

Joint Permit Application

Page 14 of 14

EQP 2731 (Rev. 2/2017)



http://www.lre.usace.army.mil/
http://www.mi.gov/jointpermit

SOANLINY 9T'ET'8 8TOZ/9T/TT OMPBITHT-TT WANdNIN-LZ2Z6-I\OMP\LZZT6N\Z6NT

SNOSIHVANOS ON
3LIS INVOVA JIAIVM 1G04

BY'62 MOVEL3s
00718 d0dd HINGS

J3INOZ VILNIQIS3Y
WO¥4 ,001 o018 (£)(®) yov—98

X3 0L NOSRVAWOD J3LS3IN03Y d3AIVM

NOSV3d

ININ3EIND3Y NOILO3S
S1S3IN03d H3AIVM

JOVHIACO OUTIE %08'GL = LGCCY0'L/Z08'SL

4'S 20891 = FOVMEIAQD 'H018 WIoL
4'S 8997 = 103r0¥d 3HINT TWVIOL
48 999 %L = VILNIGIS3Y TV
O v3dy
‘4'S 0BG'Tg = WioL
‘4'S 017746 = TILNZGIS3Y
‘4'S 98¢°L = 4SN0H 100d % 39vavd FONYNILINIVRH
4S 84LY = ASNOHENTO
g V3¥v
4'S 89v'9g = BiAteln
4'S BZZ = HSOM IV
4S8 ¢£/8'99 = IVIINIQIS3Y
4'S /809 = ININYZZ3NW
48 08¢l = IVIOHIWWOD MOOT1d 1Sdld — v D08
Y Y3§Y
'NOILYWNOANI ONIGTING

S3OVdS 09 = (30IA0Hd ONDIMYd g

(FONVNIGHO ¥3d OIMINDIY 38 AVA 0S)

SIOVLS ¥9 = 01/2£9 QIMINDIY ONDIMYd g

g J3NOZ

G3M0OTIY

SLING §'868C = 0L X §B6'¢Z

DY G6°CZ = 45 [SEIEv0L v3MY 3N
0¥ ¥L'0 = ‘4SS 1Z1°G 0¥

NOIM3IN AVM 40 1HOW GIS0d40dd

DY L0 = A4S £PGL8 = MYNIOVS

S30vdS 0Ly = (3TAOMd ONDIMYd WIOL
289 L03r0¥d HO04 d3¥iND3IY ONDRvd WIOL

(08) ONDIbYd 3MI8 ¥O04 NOLLONGIQ

S3IOVS £99 = 103r0dd FYIINI J3¥iN03Y ONDRMVY WIOL

oo S3OVAS €41 = Q30IA0¥Y TVIOL
% NOLMIN AYM 3O LHOW ONILSIX3 - .
W L1z = ez \.mﬁ.m =y Ssous S30VdS €5 = ONDRIVA ¥3HLO
SAVM 40 LHORN—
S30VdS 0Z) =
v3¥Y SSOY9) IMOV/SLNN 0L = 103r0¥d ZL X 0L = 9078/SI0VdS I9vaVS Zi g3l N
3MIIN3 SLINN GIMOTIY WNNIXYA /530vdS 30v0 21 030 >omaowmwmwm

S30vdS 0SZ = GT'L X 00Z = Z X 00l SLNNM 001 O V3yV

03S0d0dd SLINM WIoL 412

QIMOTIV SUNN 8L°GLHL
SLNN 001 = (LNN OL) Ot

U30IAOYd S30VdS 06
S30VdS d3HIO 8¢
SIOVHS FOVHVD

WD VIV vS = JOVHVD d¥D ¢ X SLINN Z¢ = (30IA0Hd ONDR¥Yd

J3M0OTIY SLINN §'%E S30YdS ¥ =

S30OVdHS £L01 = (Q3HIN03Y S30vdS WICL
8'¢T = § X 0001/3SNOHENTO '4'S BLLY

SLINA TVIOL €€ SIOVAS €8 = GZ'L X 99 = Z X £¢ SIUNM £¢ g vIuY

ISNOHENTD “4'S 008%
SHNN 6 = ATV JIONIS 6
SIUNN #Z = (UNN %) 8

S30VdS [yl = (Q30IAOHd TWI0L

S30VdS 0L = (3dIND3Y S30vdS WIOL

«8. V3V S30VdS £6 = 896 = & X 000L/°4'S L9¢°6l
o ~ S30VdS
TVIDYIANOD “4'S £9€'6L $IZ = G771 = GTL X 0L = Z X S8 SLNN S8 V VI

SLINA 68 — Vv "001d
W7, VIHY

SNOIYINOTWO ALISN3G

4'S SS0¥9 0001/S3I0VS & IWIDHUINNOD

%SZ+ LINN/SIOVAS T WILNICIS3Y
IONVYNIGYHO A8 (J38INDIM ONDIMYd

MY NPL v D3S U938 40 Ld OL 3N ¥/L M3 OIVS ONOTY L4 09'BIZ M L+ £ 93Q
88 N v "03S 40 INM +/1 M—3 NO "Id OL L4 06'%EZL M 91 ,¥Z 930 10 S ‘14 L8ICZ 3INIT M/ QIVS ONOTY 3 ,8G /S 930 LL N ‘8/—W AMH 40 3NMT A/
A1S NO Id OL 14 GC°9GLL 3,91 ¥Z 930 10 N 938 40 "id Ol L4 /%6401 ¥ 'D3S 40 3INIT ¥/1 M—3 ONOW 3 ¥ L 930 88 S ¥ "D3S 40 'N3ID 1V "WOD
G00—-2S¢—¥0—-20-20—¢¢ I XVi

3IV0S ON .
dVIA NOILYD0T1

MM NvL ¥ D3S U938 40 id OL 3NN v/t M—3 QIvS
ONOTY 14 09'81Z M /¥ £L 930 88 N ¥ "03S 40 3INM /L M—3 NO "Id OL 14 08'%€Zi M 91 #Z 930 10 S ‘14 181027 3INIT M/Y QIVS ONOWY 3 .66 LS
930 14 N '84-W AMH 40 3NN M/Y ATS NO Id Ol 14 S£9GLL 3 .91 $Z 93C 10 N 938 40 "Id OL 14 /%801 ¥ O3S 40 3INMT #/1 M—3 ONOWW 3 L¥ S}
930 88 § ‘v 035 40 N3O IV CWOD LJI0X3I OSW =938 OL 3N N3O QWS ONOTY ATM QM H3INMOL 40 3N N30 0L 3NIT 8/L 3 ONOW N + 23S 40 3NN
‘8/1 3 0L 3,02 40 930 24 S 14 00€ M OF 930 85 S— QY HINMOL 40 3N NIT % AMH 3LVIS 8/-W 40 AMGY GNNOS 3 40 3NIT N30 40 ¥3LINI 1V 938
OX3 0S¥ 938 OL L4 00Z N 938 WOH4 14 00Z 40 3ONVISIC ¥ ¥ O3S 40 3NM +/1 SN NO Id OL 14 #%°6€8% M L08.¥% 930 G¢ S— 14 008 3 0% '93C 68
N— ¥ 035 40 3NIT ¥/1 SN ® AMH 3LVIS 8/—W 40 AMOY ONNCH 3 40 3NMT N30 40 M3LNI LV 938 OX3 “AMH 8/—W 40 'S /L 3N 40 #/1 MS 40 'Id LVHL

¥00—-262-¥0—-20—-20-¢¢

g Xvi
{pepiroid sy)

avod
HINMOL

vOd NOLMIN

-NOILJIFOS3d 1voTl

..._‘,.M.wmmm..xmw_.wmw.ﬂ._

e AN SOt X

O

R T

|
w

Movali3s *ognd

R

TYPE 1

1T

Y

&)
{--.lflhmj'

e G

o

&

Nk L

0Z gd0dd
1

%e
e
¥
®e
i "

{
i

*

o
wo

%

.-ot.von AR LR RN

&
&
°
-
®
il
°
5
o

. a ! 1 uv
®
&

PRI
s es® Tsoe,
e

o

[¥08—-6¢¢ (£1G):XV4
¥101—65¢ (Z1G) Hd
0¥88% IN ‘L1IISYH
‘¥ 113ISVYH 9112
oUf ‘SEIM

P e

ez = -
=

9GeG—1/¢ (L1G):XV4
005GS—14¢ (L1S) Hd

19T —Z168Y ‘1N ‘ONISNYT

O 31S ¥ ONISNVT 3NV Z0SZ
INVJNCD INIWIOVNYIN NLA

*HOAIANNS/ ¥I3NIONI

-IN3M0

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WVHONI ‘dIHSNMOL NVIQIY3N i

dNA 3ted UOIMON

NV1d andniy

(vioL mvo
S30VdS 39VHYO S3ILON3G

\

i

i
/ 30VdS
ﬁmno««.zma

m HOH 3—.8
/ ¥ X £1
/ NOIS 345 dO¥d
i

¢—0 U3INOZ

98 — 18 SONIgUNg
‘S'I'N

SLNN 03S0d0¥d ¥04 Tvi3a

ONIMYYL/IOVEVD TWOIdAL

N

&

4
%

/ AVMHIVD .01
03S0d0¥d -

‘BL—W GNNOELSIM
40 3NMYEINID 40 ATHIISIMHLIYON S8 ATILVAIXONdDY

dd J3INOZ

12226 INVJWOD INIWIOVYNVIW NLA 11 M ‘ |
# . o S3Mig 40 ¥IGWNN 8 SNOILYIOT MOvY 3Mig SILONIA @ I B R
gor ‘A8 Q3ZIMOHLNY ol o s 11 R
SMP G HOVEL3S 9078 Vvd J3NOZ P (
¥ 40 L 133HS MW Howwoma L1=ZZ—11 3LvQ \b? GIHINDY NOIS 2US "dOtd ol - -
. MP W] g =1 7wos \ T HOLDYANOD x|/ 1
‘A8 QIAO¥ADY MINOISAA - o - =S ! 3 o= i MII_ |
NY1d TVH3A0 L , . s N 3
. (SYIHLIO A8) NYId ONILHOM ANV 1L3IM / ,
ON {
QDAMDE M.Hﬁﬁw Mm@f&f@ Z SEEQ L E 0 L . F NS MOVELIS ONDIYYH
SIA (8¥3HLO »mvj/ e ] | 'L 43S0d0Nd
00S6—18.—69Z Ud e ‘M »mw e NVd ALINIWY ONV 3dVOSONYT \ ; \
20140 |IDYSIDW andnn 8L—61—t1 , y / il '
TS Nvld 30VdSNIdO ¥ \\ﬂ - 1P
LP08—BCC—L1G XY #i01-BLC—L1S "Hd angni 8i-5—01 NVId LNINZOVNVYN dILVMANHOLS ¢ - g = : LN
0¥88% IN “LLIISVH ‘QvOY LITISVH 9LIZ T e o Nv1d ALMUN 2 w Be y 3SNOHENTD N
: WLLINGNS £1-62-Z1 NY1d TIVEEA0 L = BE 1004 J PN I
SAZANNS ONV NVANE ° s A TIONT TTIRS , = ‘ . P
sneaanona sao . ONI SEIA SNOISIATY / , ' , S ( 1
i h
, — \ ™ o
SINIS ONDRVA 77 X 6 40 SN d3s0d0dd saionaa (0) / e SN < I R -
5 sy S XN :
%0, Q3IMOTIV V3¥Y SNOIANIINI XYW - | @ S T q o i -
% ZCY9 = "4'S 1G0'L/9 = VIYV SNOIAMIJAI TWIOL SIMdS 4/d SsIIN NVA SHUONA . M 8 s0s0N ~ ANY1L3M e o —
#89°GY = '4'S ) , o ) JITTLAEN o i
90$Z/8 = NVId 3OVdS NIJO NO NMOHS v3dV SNOIANId TVLOL SINAS 4/4d H0 HIGWIN s31oNTd H , = o M
'4'S LSEEY0'L = VANV 3US VLOL b T s ) r T i
'SNOLLYINOTVO SNOIAYIAAL/SNOIAYI | T § (M S Tty a— : | —
B . < . y
B ERLTTTERTTLLLL A S | 5 wwwmwmwmc % O
............... S : w .
ovelds ‘oang O
(NV1d ALINIWY 33S) SMOVELIS NI ANYLIM . M 570 dO¥d 1 W A
SIVA TVHL ONDIIVM 03S0d0oNd WO¥4 MovaL3s (1)@ iLr—98 .. g N . Sl ) O
H 2e®®® Foeaag,, o /w W ae Vu M 3 O
MOH V0N WOMI Ve = = £ S = & = ./// \N& = - = = = = © . - ~ = i - - = i M;\u “V
YIAWM S8l S MOVEL3S ONYVd 02 (11) 952-98 M i, N\, / o =8 / A
ALY3dO¥d | Voo S "\ / o T T ST T T 7 O ),
0L YoveL3s Q3NOZ TVILN3QISTY WO , Voo, o\ / m .
NIAIVM 08 ONIMAY D “dOdd MOVELIS ONIMYYd 0¥ (01) 9s/-98 \ " - e e e -5 . / - = e === s - = - = = = = = =
Y > L \ H
S'GL Moval3s AMH MVYNIOVS ;o N« R / L L L. S
HIAVM GHT 'OAT8 "dO¥d AMH MYNIOVS /0 WO¥4 Movealds 'oaig 00l £9¢-98 [ o MOvE13as : ! p |
S0 MOVELIS QY NOLM3N ! ‘. QZﬁWM\S . ONYILIM- ,0Z- . : i M : AOVEL3S - - - . . . - . . . -
YIAVM S92 ‘9078 "dO¥d "GY NOLM3N  "M'O'¥ WOM4 »ovards 'vaig sz £9£-98 \ . / I i \\\ NY1LEm 0¥
aIMINDIY . = : : : R T / LR T s S
HIAIVM 3OVdS 272 SIOVdS G3IS0d0¥d Ol SIOVAS ONIMEVY ££9 §G.—98 < *
0Z Movalras |
YIAIVM 08 9078 "dOo¥d LSV3 !
AL¥3d0¥d ,

gL¢68 = 'ANI MS OAd B
BL'CSE = 'ANI N DAd .8

27698 = AT13 WM
Z0Z# TIOHNYW AHVLINYS

BL/L¥B = ANI M OAd 8B
18°/%8 = ANl 3 OAd 8

ZE¥S8 = AITI WY
10Z# TIOHNYI AMVLIINVS

% OVOd Y3NMOL 40 HLNOS ,0Z ATALYRIXO¥ddY ‘310d
HIMOd 40 3CIS LSIMHINOS NI IMIdS QvONTIVY aNNOoS
(98CAYN) ¥5°6/8 = AT13 Z# HNYRHONIS

‘OV0Y ¥INMOL 40 HIXNON g98'6sg =
F,007 % 'GvOY NOLM3N 40 LWHJSY 40 3903 40
1SY3 F.8Z ‘3104 ¥3IMOJ 40 30IS HLMON Ni IYN Q08
(880AVYN) 19898 = ‘AT # SRYNHONIS

19°6G8 = 'ANI MS dOA 01

08258 = AN 3

SHHVNHONSGE SIHOINIANI HIMIS X3
‘ATI3 GM¥ND 40 dOL G3S0dOHd 00008 /LW
MO0TE 1SNUHL v
IAWA HILVM &
INVHOAH 3413 L,
AN ALY3HONd
; - 87 N AVM 40 1HON Qvod
NOLVAITE UMOLINOD DNUSKI = \__of avoN 10 INA AN & — 3
NOLUVATIZ 10dS ONUSIXI = O
TIAVED = X3) TOHNVH o
LTONOD = e =
) (M3N) TIOHNYH &
LIWHISY = HINIS AUOLS (ISOLONd g Goemmmmepgmmaes
IoNg4 = HIMIS AUVIINYS (IS0d0¥d  —ppgrmeme @mpgeem
31 YA
TS 0L LON IONVISIO = NIV B3R (350008 e ®
SNOLVATTI 1X3 f
N HIAIS WHOLS 1N —m =
U3L0N S¥ NOWi ONNOd = = SIS AUVLINYS 1XT g O
d¥YD HLW ¥vE ,2/1 135 = s NIYH YALVM 1X3 —x it
SHNOLNOD 1X3 — —— —— ——
aNZ93T X3 gNEDET

(wiol zi) °
S3OVAS 3OVHVO SILONIA

|
e | ® 100
(o] sssse

|
<

N
<

L= .

01D — LD SONIgINS
S'I'N

SLINN 03S0d0Nd Y04 TvL3a

ONIMNYL/IOVEYD TWOIdAL

™

AN 3N OAd L8
18°668 = ANI N .8
$6°/98 = ATII AR
00Z# FIOHNYA ANVLINYS




727 Lake Park Drive

V@ECE% Boyne City, MI 49712

L Bus (231) 582-3498
Environmental Fax (231) 582-2300

Group, LLC

WWww.voiceenv.com

WETLAND AND JURISDICTION DETERMINATION REPORT

Prepared for: DTN Management Company
2502 Lake Lansing Road
Suite C
Lansing, MI 48912

Project Site: Newton Pointe, LLC property
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant
Tax ID Nos. 33-02-02-04-252-004 and 33-02-02-04-252-005
T4N, R1'W, Section 4
Meridian Township
Ingham County, Michigan

Project Number: 17-1554
Investigator: Steven P. Voice, MS, PWS, CSE
Senior Ecologist & Regulatory Specialist
Inspection Dates: June 13-14 and July 18-19, 2017
Report Date: February 22, 2018
INTRODUCTION

This report is intended to follow up the various site inspections listed above of the above-
captioned parcels/project site by Voice Environmental Group, LLC. The purpose of these
inspections was to conduct a site evaluation and wetland determination of the subject
properties/project site and to render an opinion on 1) the presence and location of any wetlands
that may occur on the property and 2) the jurisdictional status of any wetlands identified.

SITE LOCATION AND GENERAL CHARACTERISTICS

The project site is located southeast of the intersection of Newton Road and M-78 in
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan. It is comprised of two parcels: Parcel (Tax ID)
No. 33-02-02-04-252-004 (6276 Newton Road) lies immediately east of and adjacent to Newton
Road and immediately south of and adjacent to M-78 and Parcel (Tax ID) No. 33-02-02-04-252-
005 (no assigned address) lies immediately to the east the first parcel and also has frontage on
M-78. Both parcels, which together encompass approximately 26 acres, are vacant.

Science o  Expertise e  Creativity e  Solutions




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22, 2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page 2

The project site supports various highland areas ranging from relatively open fields to
shrub-dominated (abandoned) fields to hardwood forests. It also supports four (4) lowland areas
which range from marsh/open water areas to scrub-shrub and forested community types.

There are six (6) soil series mapped for the site. Three of these soils series, Capac loam,
0 to 4 % slopes (CaA), Oshtemo-Spinks loamy sands, 0 to 6% slopes (OtB) and Spinks loamy
sand, 0 to 6% slopes (SpB), are non-hydric. The other three, Houghton Muck, 0 to 1 percent
slopes (Hn), Urban land-Capac-Colwood complex, 0 to 4 percent slopes (UpA) and Urban Land-
Marlette complex, 2 to 12% slopes (UtB) are designated as hydric soils.

WETLAND DESIGNATION CRITERIA AND METHODOLOGY

Under Part 303, Wetland Protection, of the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act (1994 P.A. 451, as amended), which is commonly referred to as the NREPA,
wetland is defined as "land characterized by the presence of water at a frequency and duration
sufficient to support and that under normal circumstances does support wetland vegetation or
aquatic life and is commonly referred to as a bog, swamp, or marsh..." From a regulatory
standpoint, a site must support a predominance of hydrophytic vegetation, a hydric soil and a
wetland hydrological regime in order to be appropriately designated as wetland.

Part 303 requires that the state (as well as local units of government) use the federal
methodology for wetland determinations. Thus, in determining whether or not a site is
appropriately designated as wetland, Meridian Township, the Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality (DEQ) and the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) must use the
federal 1987 Wetland Identification Manual and appropriate regional supplements. Accordingly,
the subject property was evaluated using the federal methodology. On-site investigations
included various "spot" evaluations of dominant plant species, soils and apparent hydrology as
well as detailed evaluations at representative upland and wetland data point locations, herein
termed "wetland determination points."

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

It is the opinion of the investigator as a professional wetland ecologist and regulatory
specialist that the subject property supports four (4) areas that are appropriately designated as
wetland as shown on the attached Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Plan prepared by
KEBS, Inc. on December 14, 2017 (Appendix A).

Five (5) Wetland Data Forms per the 1987 Corps of Engineers Wetland Determination
Manual from various representative “Wetland Determination Points” (WDPs), are attached in
Appendix B: Three (3) are from identified upland (non-wetland) areas and two (2) are from
identified wetland areas.

vOICE

Environmental
Group, LLLC




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22, 2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page 3

Upland Areas

As indicated above, there is a variety of upland ecosystem types present on the project
site. A Wetland Determination Point, WDP #1, was established and evaluated on July 19, 2017
to characterize the open field areas that dominate the west side of the property (west of the
relatively large lowland area delineated as Wetland A (Appendix A). At this location, both the
tree and sapling-shrub layers (strata) are absent. The herbaceous layer is dominated by rough-
leaf goldenrod (Solidago rugosa), and Kentucky bluegrass (Poa pratensis) but daisy fleabane
(Erigeron strigosus), Queen Anne’s lace (Daucus carota) and black medic (Medicago lupulina)
are also present. A soil boring at this location revealed a 14” thick, somewhat mottled (but
brightly colored) loam surface soil over a more typical, mottled clay loam sub-soil. The water
table was absent in the 20”-deep soil boring, Accordingly, although the soils likely qualify as
hydric (which is consistent with the mapping of this area as Urban land-Marlette complex, 2 to
12 percent slopes), their clearly is not a predominance of wetland vegetation nor a wetland
hydrological regime. Accordingly, given these observations, a non-wetland (upland) designation
for this area is appropriate.

WDP #3 was established and evaluated on the south side of the property immediately to
the west of an isolated lowland depression delineated as Wetland C to characterize the upland
forest ecosystems present on this and other portions of the site. At this location, the tree stratum
is dominated by black oak (Quercus velutina) and shagbark hickory (Carya ovata), the sapling
shrub layer is dominated by shagbark hickory and black cherry (Prunus serotina) and herbaceous
layer is dominated by black cherry seedlings and somewhat weedy, dwarf enchanter’s nightshade
(Circaea alpina). A soil boring revealed a well-developed, well-drained soil profile consisting
of loamy sand surface soils over sand sub-soils. The water table was absent in the 30” deep
boring. Given these observations, a non-wetland (upland) designation for these areas is clearly
appropriate.

Finally, a third upland Wetland Determination Point, WDP #5 was established and
evaluated in the northeast portion of the project site to characterize the shrub-dominated,
abandoned field areas undergoing old field succession that are present in this area. At this
location the tree layer is absent, the sapling shrub layer is dominated by autumn olive (Elaeagnus
umbellata), grey dogwood (Cornus racemosa) and honeysuckle (Lonicera tatarica), and the
herbaceous layer is dominated by common blackberry (Rubus alleghaniensis), rough leaf
goldenrod (Solidago rugosa) and perennial rye (Lolium perenne). A soil boring at this location
revealed a well-drained, well developed profile consisting of relatively brightly colored loamy
sand soils and the water table was absent in the 30” deep boring. Again, given these
observations, a non-wetland (upland) designation for these areas is clearly appropriate.

Wetland Area

As indicated above, four (4) lowland areas are present on site and these were delineated
by the investigator as Wetlands A, B, C and D. Wetland Determination Points were established
in the two larger wetland areas, Wetland A (4.78 acres) and Wetland B (0.65 acres). Wetland

vOICE®

Environmental
Group, LLC




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22,2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page 4

data points were not established or evaluated in either Wetland C or Wetland D as both are less
than Y4 acre in size.

The majority of Wetland A is best characterized as an open marsh; however, WDP #2
was established in a forested area adjacent to this open marsh community on the south side of the
feature and near the delineated upland/wetland boundary. At this location, this tree layer of this
wetland is dominated by Eastern cottonwood (Populus deltoides) and silver maple (Acer
saccharinum), the sapling/shrub layer is dominated by glossy buckthorn (Frangula alnus), grey
dogwood and silver maple, and the herbaceous layer is dominated by grey dogwood and poison
ivy (Toxicodendron radicans). Although the majority of the feature (i.e. the open marsh areas
are mapped as Houghton’s muck, a soil boring at WDP #2 revealed a dark, loam surface soil
over a dark clay sub-soil. The water table was observed at 8” below the surface during this July
19 evaluation. Given the above, a wetland designation for this area, is clearly appropriate.

In contrast to Wetland A, Wetland B is a forested wetland depression throughout. At
WDP #4, which was established roughly in the center of this depression, the tree layer is
dominated by red maple (Acer rubrum) and Eastern cottonwood, the sapling/shrub layer is
dominated by red maple and green ash (Fraxinus pennsylvanica) and the herb stratum is
dominated by a cover (estimated at 15%) of green ash seedlings and virtually no other species.
A soil boring at this location revealed a dark loam surface soil over a dark loamy sand horizon
over a dark sandy clay loam horizon. The water table at the time of his July 19 evaluation was
observed at 117 below the surface. Given these observations, a wetland designation is clearly
appropriate.

JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION

State of Michigan (MDEQ) Jurisdiction

By statute, the Michigan Department of Environment Quality regulates wetlands that:
1. Are directly connected to (contiguous with) the Great Lakes, or an inland “lake or
pond, river or stream,”

2. Are within 500’ of one of the above-mentioned inland water bodies, or within 1000°
of a Great Lake - unless the owner/applicant demonstrates that the wetland is
hydrologically isolated from the water body. Hydrologically isolated means there is
neither a surface water or ground water connection,

3. Have “a seasonal or intermittent direct surface water connection to” one of the above-
mentioned water bodies or,

4. Are over 5 acres in size.

Accordingly, it is the investigator’s professional opinion that the four (4) wetland areas
identified and delineated on the project site are NOT subject to state regulation by the MDEQ as:

vOICEdp

Environmental
Group, LLC




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22,2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page 5

1) None of these wetlands are contiguous to, within 500’ of, or have a seasonal or
intermittent direct surface water connection to an inland lake, pond, river or stream,

2) None, obviously, are within 100’ of any of the Great Lakes, and finally

3) None of these wetlands is over 5 acres in size.

NOTE 1: The current properties/project area was formerly part of a much larger project area that was twice the
subject of a Level IIT wetland assessment by the DEQ (the current project area is the northern, approximately 25
acres of the former site evaluated by the DEQ). In both the November 3, 1997 letter from then-District Supervisor
Gary F. Marx to Dennis Forsberg and Keith Schroeder, as well as in the October 18, 2002 letter from then-District
Supervisor Walter Danyluk to G.S. Fedewa Builders, Inc., the DEQ confirmed that all four (4) wetlands identified
and delineated on the current project site, specifically Wetland A (previously Wetland 1), Wetland B (previously
Wetland 10), Wetland C (previously Wetland 2) and Wetland D (previously Wetland 2), are NOT subject to state
jurisdiction or regulation under Part 303 (Appendix C).

NOTE 2. Prior to completing the current wetland determination for this project site, Voice Environmental asked
KEBS, Inc. to confirm and stake the eastern and southern property boundaries of the current project site. They did
so, and Voice Environmental subsequently confirmed that the two wetland areas that were identified as Wetlands 13
and 14 in 1997 and 2002 are NOT located on the current project site.

Federal (US Army Corps of Engineers) Jurisdiction

In Michigan, only wetlands that are adjacent to “navigable waters” (waters of the U.S.),
as defined by Section 10 of the River and Harbors Act of 1899 (amended), are independently
regulated by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) under the federal Clean Water Act of
1972, as amended. Per two Memorandums of Agreement executed in 1984 between the state
and the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the state and the USACE, respectively,
the EPA/USACE has suspended its jurisdiction of wetlands that are not adjacent to navigable
(“Section 10”) waters as defined by the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899.

Accordingly, since none of the four wetland areas delineated on the project site are
adjacent to a navigable waterway, it is the investigator’s professional opinion that the identified
wetland areas are NOT subject to independent federal jurisdiction or regulation.

Local (Meridian Township) Jurisdiction

Meridian Township has a wetland ordinance that authorizes the township to regulate all
wetlands that are greater than 2 acres and size and to potentially regulate wetlands as small as
0.25 acres in size. In the latter case, i.e. if the wetland is between 0.25 and 2.0 acres in size, the
wetland would be regulated if 1) the township environmental consultant issues a preliminary
finding that one or more of ten listed criteria are likely to apply to the wetland and 2) the
Township Board, in turn, determines that “a wetland use permit application meeting the
requirements of § 22-154 shall be required, based on a finding that the wetland is essential to the
preservation of the natural resources of the Township.”

vOICED

Environmental
Group, LLC




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22, 2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page 6

Given the above, it is the investigator’s professional opinion that:

e Wetland “A” (4.78 actes) is subject to Meridian Township jurisdiction and regulation.
e Wetland “B” (0.65 acres) is potentially subject to Meridian Township jurisdiction and

regulation.
e Wetland “C” (0.18 acre) and Wetland “D” (0.12 acre) are NOT subject to Meridian
Township jurisdiction and regulation.

LIMITATIONS

This report serves to confirm the findings and opinions of the principal investigator as a
professional wetland ecologist and consultant; it does not constitute a township, state or federal
wetland or jurisdiction determination. It should be noted, however, that the evaluations reported
herein have been conducted in accordance with both state and federal criteria for wetland
designations and jurisdiction determinations. The client may wish to confirm these findings with
Meridian Township, the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and/or the US
Army Corps of Engineers (USACE).

This determination is valid for a period of three years from the date of this letter unless
additional evidence or new information warrants a revision of these findings prior to that date.
This determination does not preclude the necessity to obtain federal, state, and local permits
and/or approvals that may be required for use or additional development of the property.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

A wetland and jurisdiction determination/upland-wetland boundary delineation was
completed for DTN Management Company for the Newton Pointe, LLC property, which is
comprised of Parcel Nos. 33-02-02-04-252-004 and 33-02-02-04-252-005 (6276 Newton Road
& M-78 Vacant), in Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan. It is the professional
opinion of the investigator that the parcel supports four wetland areas identified herein as
Wetlands A-D, as shown on the attached Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Plan prepated
by KEBS, Inc. on December 14, 2017 (Appendix A).

It is the investigator’s professional opinion that none of the identified and delineated
wetlands are subject to regulation or jurisdiction by the Michigan Department of Environmental
Quality (DEQ), a finding that has been confirmed by the Department on two previous occasions
(in 1997 and again in 2002). Furthermore, none of the identified and delineated wetlands are
subject to independent federal jurisdiction and regulation by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

With respect to Meridian Township jurisdiction and regulation, it is the investigator’s
professional opinion that:

vOICE® —

Environmental
Group, LLC



Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22, 2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page 7

e Wetland A (4.78 acres) is subject to township jurisdiction and regulation.

e Wetland B (0.65 acres) is potentially regulated by the township under § 22-154 of the
Meridian Township Wetland Ordinance since it is between 0.25 and 2.0 acres in size, and

e Wetlands C (0.18 acre) and Wetland D (0.12 acre) are not subject to township jurisdiction
or regulation.

Respectfully submitted,

VoICE ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP, LL.C

-

Steven P. Voice, MS, PWS, CSE
Senior Ecologist & Regulatory Specialist

Enclosures

cc: R. Uppal
C. Holton
J. Kyes

vOICE

Environmental
Group, LLC



Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22,2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page 7

REFERENCES AND RESOURCES

Lichvar, R.W. 2012. The National Wetland Plant List. ERDC/CRREL TR-12-11. Hanover, NH:
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Cold Regions Research and Engineering Laboratory.
http://acwe.sdp.sirsi.net/client/search/asset:asset?t:ac=$N/1012381

Part 303, Wetland Protection, of the Natural Resource and Environmental Protection
Act, Act 451 of the Public Acts of 1994, being sections 324.30301 to 324.30323
of the Michigan Compiled Laws annotated.

Soil Conservation Service, United States Department of Agriculture. 1993. Hydric Soils of the
State of Michigan.

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, U.S. Army Engineer Research and Development Center. 2012.
Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual:
Northcentral and Northeast Region (Version 2.0). ERDC/EL TR-12-1.

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Detroit District. 1998. Navigable Michigan Waters of the
United States.

vOICEép

Environmental
Group, LLC




February 22, 2018

Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co.
Page A-1

6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan

APPENDIX A.

Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Plan
prepared by IXEBS, Inc. on December 14,2017
showing the location of the delineated upland and wetland ecosystems
on the Newton Property Partnership properties (Tax ID Nos. 33-02-02-04-252-004 and
33-02-02-04-252-005) Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan.

vOICE®®

Environmental
Group, LLC



saful ' Z190°8 L10Z/62/21  Bmp

NOILYNINERII] NOUDIGSINNT ONYLLEM

202 "BL/L puo ‘gl/L ‘vi/9 *€L/9 531V NOUD3ISNI 3US

WS> AUTaDoRG IBIORINITS
g6ve-285 (152)

Ziesy W AlD INAGE

SAING_ OfHvd 3N LZL

21 ‘dNONY WINIPINOYIAND 20104

30I0A °d NIA3LS  ‘AB GILVANMIO SANVILIM

B0 KRS 'p 935 D30 4D “hd OL N /1 A1 GWS ONOWY Ui 09'BIE M L¥ SU 230 44 1 Y
93$ 40 IWN ¥/1 =1 NO 'Ld OL 13 06YCEl /4 01 YT 930 10 § 'Ld 1U'IEZ NN WE VS IKOT
3.8 ,£5 030 1 2 BL~it AMH 40 3NN A/H L15 KO “id 01 L §T'S61L 3 .91 PZ 030 10 N 1038

J0 1d 0L L 296404 ¥ 048 40 INN ¥/4 A=3 UNTIY 3 L0y U1 D20 QU 3 'y JIS 40 10D LY hDD
§00=TET=y0=L0-FO-CL I XYL

¥ Nyl ¥ DS "I 40 “ld 01 NN /1 A=3 QY5 SNOW LI 09T M 0¥ St
930 89 1t ‘¥ '935 40 30 ¥/ =] N0 ‘Ld 01 1d 00STL 14 94 3T 230 10 5 'L 18I IND M/
QIYS SHOTY 3 56 L5 030 (£ N ‘B~ ARM 40 3NN #/8 ANS K0 Ud 01 L4 ST95AE 3 .91 T 030
10 1 930 40 "Ld OL 14 £#'0L01 % *D35 JO N ¥/ A~3 GNOTY 3 2¥ L1 330 ¥8 S ¥ '035 Jo
NS LY NOJ Ld39%T 057¥ ~DIB O1 NN 'NID QIYS ONOTY AT G ¥3RVOL 40 3NN MID O i
9/1 3 SROTY N » D35 40 3N '9/1 301 3 .07 (0 930 T S Ld Q0 A 0 ‘030 55 Ew QY KINUOL
40 UM NID 7 MM ILYLS BE-1) 4O M08 ONROT 3 40 INN 13) 4D MIINI 1Y D108 3X] OSW
030 61 UJ 002 t 030 WOHd 13 GOF 40 JINYLSIO ¥ ¥ 935 40 240 /4 SK NO Jd 0L Ld Tk M
LA,k ‘530 SC = 14 0O 3 ,0b '93 G5 N~ b 35 JO IMT /L SN X JKH ILVIS 9¢-n Jo Ahau
GNNDE 3 40 3NN 3D 50 ALK 1Y DI KT “HMH BLN 4O T W3 IN JO b/1 4S 4O id LYHL
Ze..u...«..:..«?«m.nn al Vm«w

papivi
ROLJEISIT Won

IS ON
Jvbt NOHYIOT

L]

N, ONVULIM

NYOIHOIN 'ALNNOD WYHONI ‘dIHSNMOL NYIGIY3N

JuedBA /- 2% UOIMIN 9/79

Nv1d NOILYNIAYELIQ NOILOIOSIIN® %7 GNYILIM

S\

. Z.mmno. »zﬁzau:_urww«_.uﬂﬂuﬂ N z L
[N onigX g Cvime vl .
4 440 e !um. gl < ) TS . R i
SRS SekaR LS 7 ;
§ = . . E
4 o et . TIVY3A0 S3HOV 81°0F
m. SRS | (A9vANNOE NIHLIM) SOV ZLOF m
G S S e ON SaE D e SINAY b 10T .4, ONYIIEM _ .
§ : 0, ONYLLIM e
3 | i {12
2 . _m =
e _ 'e)
a . TRy . Iz
=R . H .
J : }
E| INI0d VIV = &0 _ it Fao ™ - M
m4 a3LYINOIBNN QIUVIND3BNN O ONVILIM _ P .n. ..

Q3LVINO3XNN 0ALYINO3ENN WO ANVILIA . ° ; t

A3LNNOINN 031¥IN03Y AVUNIL0d JB. ONYIIIH : SINOV G9'0F : : L !

QAUYINIIANN QavINo3Y N ONVILIM _ "8, ONVILEM R

30 JIHGNRGL NViGIgan qVIER f <3OV BLbF




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22,2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page B-1

APPENDIX B.

Wetland Determination Data Forms
(1987 USACE Wetlands Delineation Manual and approved regional supplements)
from five (5) data point locations (three upland and two wetland)
on the Newton Property Partnership properties (Tax ID Nos. 33-02-02-04-252-004 and
33-02-02-04-252-005) Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan.

vOICE@®

Environmental
Group, LLC



WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region

Project/Site: DTN/6276 Newton & M-78 Vacant City/County: Meridian Township/Ingham Co. Sampling Date: 19-Jul-17
Applicant/Owner: DTN Management Company/Newton Pointe, LLC State; Michigan Sam;l;\wg Paint: WDP #1
Investigator(s): Steven P. Voice, MS, PWS, CSE Section, Township, Range: S. 4 T. 4W R. 1IW
Landform (hillslo|-3e, terrace, etc.):  Flat ’mLocaI relief (concave, convex, none): flat Slape: _00% /WQ4Q.°
Subregion (LRR or MLRA): | RR L Lat.: 42,763871 Long.: -84.4316; - batum:
Soil Map Unit Name: UtB-Marlette Complex NWI classification: Upland

Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes ® No O (If no, explain in Remarks.)

Are Vegetation ] , Soil IR} , or Hydrology [J significantly disturbed? Are "Normal Circumstances" present? Yes ® No O

Are Vegetation D , Soil D , or Hydrology D naturally problematic? (If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Summary of Findings - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Yes O No [©)

e Is the Sampled Area
Hydric Soil Present? Yes O No @ within a Wgtland? Yes O No @

Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes O No C

Remarks: (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)

Data point is located in a relatively open field on the southwest comer of the Newton Road/M-78 intersection, to the west of s large and distinct lowland
area in the center of the property.

Hydrology
Wetland Hydrology Indicators: _Secondary Indicators (minimum.of 2 required)
Primary Indicators (minimum of one required; check all that apply) [ surface Soil Cracks (B6)
[ surrace water (A1) [] water-Stained Leaves (B9) [] prainage Patters (B10)
] High water Table (A2) [] Aquatic Fauna (B13) [ Moss Trim Lines (B16)
[ saturation (A3) [] Mar peposits (B15) [ ory season Water Table (C2)
[] water Marks (81) [J Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1) [ crayfish Burrows (C8)
[ sediment Deposits (B2) [] oxidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3) D Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)
[] orift deposits (83) [] presence of Reduced Iron (C4) (] stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)
[ Aigal Mat or Crust (84) ] Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6) [ Geomorphic Position (D2)
[ 1ron Deposits (B5) [ Thin Muck Surface (C7) [ shallow Aquitard (D3)
[J Inundation Visible on Aerial Tmagery (87) [] other (Explain in Remarks) ] Microtopographic Relief (D4)
D Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8) D FAC-neutral Test (D5)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present? Yes O pNo @ Depth (inches): _
Water Table Present? Yes O No @ Depth (inchesy: __ O @
T Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes No
?
Saturation Present? Yes O No @ Depth (inches):

(includes capillary fringe)

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previaus inspections), if available:

Remarks:
No water table or evidence thereof observed in the 20" deep boring. Dry clay loam soils encountered at 14"

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region ~ Version 2.0




VEGETATION - Use scientific names of plants

Sampling Point: WDP #1

Tree Stratum__ (Plotsize:

NO O AN

_Sapling/shrub Stratum_ (Plotsize:

N o s L

Herb Stratum _ (Plot size:

. _Solidago rugosa

._Daucus carola

._Erigeron strigosus

Poa pralensis

Medicago lupulina

OND oA WDN

©

10.

1.

12.

Waody Vine Stratum _(Plot size:

1

2.
3
4

Absolute Dominant rngicator

9 Covey_.Species? status

0

(] —
]

I
(] N
O —
O ——
L] —

= Total Cover

(] R
(]

O R
(]

(]

(]

L]

= Total Cover

RO
] UPL

O FACU
AU
D FACU
]

o
D N ]
O R
I
(] R
L] I

([l
0

= Total Cover

Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species

That are OBL, FACW, or FAC: . (A)
Total Number of Dominant
Species Across All Strata: 2 (B)

Percent of dominant Species

That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:  ...50.0% __ (A/B)

Prevalence Index worksheet:

Total % Cover of: Multiply by:
OBL species Q. x1= 0
FAQW species 0 . x2= 0
FAC species L9 x3= 285
FACU species 55 Xx 4= _220
UPL species B X 5 = 2D

Column Totals: 155 . (A 530 ®

Prevalence Index = B/A = 3.419

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:
D Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
[_] pominance Testis > 50%
[J prevalence Index is 3.0 *

O Morphological Adaptations * (Provide supporting
data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

[ problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation ! (Explain)

1 Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Tree - Woody plants, 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in diameter
at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Sapling/shrub - Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH and
greater than 3.28 ft (1m) tall..

Herb - All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless of
size, and woody planis less than 3.28 ft tall.

Woody vine - Alt woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in
height.

Hydrophytic
Vegetation
Present?

Yes O No ®

Remarks: (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

*Indicator suffix = National status or professional decision assigned because Regional status not defined by FWS.

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region ~ Version 2.0




Soil

Sampling Point:  WDP #1

Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth Matrix Redox Features .

(inches) Color (moist) % Color {moist) % _ Type ! _lLoc? Texture Remarks
0-14 10YR 3/3 10YR 5/4 Loam
14-20 10YR 42 10YR 4/4 Clay Loam

1Type: C=Concentration. D=Depletion. RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains  2Location: PL=Pore Lining. M=Matrix

Hydric Soil Indicators;

[] Histosot (A1)

[ Histic Epipedon (A2)

[ Black Histic (A3)

D Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)

[ stratified Layers (AS)

] Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11)
] Thick Dark Surface (A12)

O Sandy Muck Mineral (51)

] sandy Gleyed Matrix (54)

O Sandy Redox (S5)

[ stripped Matrix (S6)

[] park Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

] Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R,
MLRA 1498)

] Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)
(] Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) LRR K, L)

O Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

[ Depleted Matrix (F3)

] redox Dark Surface (F6)

D Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

[] Redox Depressions (F8)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils : 3

[ 2 em Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)
] coast Praitie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

) 5 cm Mucky Peat or Peat (S3) (LRR K, L, R)
[] park Surface (57) (LRRK, L, M)

[ potyvalue Below Surface (58) (LRR K, L)

[ Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRRK, L)

| Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)
[ piedmont Foodptain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)
] Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)
(] Red Parent Material (F21)

O Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

OJ other (Explain in Remarks)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Restrictive Layer (if observed):
Type:

Depth (inches):

ves O No@

Hydric Soil Present?

Remarks:

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region

Project/Site: DTN/6276 Newton & M-78 Vacant City/County: Meridian Township/Ingham Co, Sampling Date: 19-Jul-17
Applicant/Owner: DTN Management Company/Newton Pointe, LLC State: Michigan Sampling Point: WDP #2
Investigator(s): Steven P, Voice, MS, PWS, CSE Section, Township, Range: S. 4 T. 4W R. 1W
Landform (hillslo;;, terrace, etc.):  Lowland Local relief (concave, convex, none): flat™’ Slope: AWQA;;T::Q:&;
Subregion (LRR or MLRA):  [RR L o » Lat:: 42,763462 Long.: -84.431001 ' B patum:

Soil Map Unit Name: Houghton muck (Hn) NWI classification: PEM1C

Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes ® No O (If no, explain in Remarks.)

Are Vegetation [ , Soil [ , or Hydrology | significantly disturbed? Are "Normal Circumstances” present?

Yes ®  No O

Are Vegetation D ; Soit D , or Hydrology [:] naturally problematic? (If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)
Summary of Findings - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Yes ® N O
Is the Sampled Area
Yes @ No O : b o Yes ® No O

Hydric Soil Present? within a Wetland?
Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes @ NoO

Remarks: (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)
Data pointed is located in the southwest "corner" of this large, lowland area near the delineated upland/wetiand boundary,

Hydrology
Wetland Hydrology Indicators: _Secandary Indicators (minjmum.of 2 reauired)
Primary Indicators (minimum of one reauired; check all that apply) [] surface Soil Cracks (B6)
(] Surface Water (A1) [J water-Stained Leaves (B9) [ prainage Patterns (810)
High Water Table (A2) [J Aquatic Fauna (B13) [J Moss Trim Lines (B16)
Saturation (A3) l:] Mar} Deposits (B15) [:] Dry Season Water Table (C2)
[] water Marks (B1) [ Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1) [1 crayfish Burrows (C8)
D Sediment Deposits (B2) I:] Oxidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3) D Saturation Visible on Aeral Imagery (C9)
D Drift deposits (B3) I:] Presence of Reduced Iron (C4) |:] Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)
[J Algal Mat or Crust (B4) [] Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Sails (C6) [] Geomorphic Position (D2)
[ 1ron Deposits (B5) [] Thin Muck Surface (C7) ] shallow Aquitard (D3)
[J 1nundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7) [] other (Explain in Remarks) [ Microtopographic Relief (D4)
D Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8) FAC-neutral Test (D5)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present? Yes O No@ Depth (inches):

Water Table Present? Yes ® No O Depth (inches): ____ 8 ® o
Saturation Present? Yes ® N O Depth (inches): Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes No
(includes capillary fringe) es o p : e

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2,0



VEGETATION - Use scientific names of plants

Sampling Point: WDP #2

Absolute Deminant rndicator

Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species

That are OBL, FACW, or FAC: d (A)
Total Number of Dominant

Species Across All Strata: 27 (8)
Percent of dominant Species

That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:  ...100.0% _ (4/B)
Prevalence Index worksheet:

Total % Cover of: Multiply by:

OBL species 0. x1l= 0

FACW species a5 x2= _90 .

FAC species 500 x 3= 450

FACU species ~ 0 _ x4= 0

UPL species B x5 = O
Column Totals: 195 (A) 540 ®

Prevalence Index = B/A = _2.769

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:
D Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
Dominance Test is > 50%
Prevalence Index is <3.0

D Morphological Adaptations ! (Provide supporting
data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

D Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation * (Explain)

1 Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Tree Stratum__ (Plot sieer ) % Cover_.SPeCies?  statys |
1. Populus deltoides _60 FAC
O Acer saccharinum 30 FACW
3. T T
4. O O S
5. 0 0
6. S I 5
7. wirion 0 et

. 90 = Total Cover

_Sapling/Shrub Stratum _ (Plotsize: ) o
1. Umus americana 2 D FACW |
o Frangula alnus 30 FAC
3. Cornus racemosa U LS.
4. Rhamnus cathartica e 0 FAC .
5. Acer saccharlnum 1o Facw
6. N
7. T

60 = Total Cover

_Herb Stratum (Plot size: e ) o
1, _Comus racemosa LA JLEL
e e [
3. S 6
4. -2 I
5 9 O —
6 0 0
7. L0000
8. T
9, o O N

10. IS
11. . 0 e I
12. O [
15 = Total Cover
Woody Vine Stratum_(Plotsize: ) T
{,_Vitls riparla o O e
o Toxlcodendron radicans A Fac
3 N 6
4 S 0 e

30 =Total Cover

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Tree - Woody plants, 3in. (7.6 cm) or more in diameter
at breast height {DBHY), regardiess of height.

Sapling/shrub - Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH and
greater than 3.28 ft (1m) tall..

Herb - All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless of
size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall,

Woody vine - All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in
height.

Hydrophytic
Vegetation
Present? Yes O] No O

Remarks: (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

*Indicator suffix = National status or professional decision assigned because Regional status not defined by FWS.

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




Soil

Sampling Point:  WDP #2

Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth Matrix Redox Features

(inches) Color (maist) % Calor (moist) % _ Type ! _ Loc? Texture Remarks
0-8 10YR 3N Loam

8-18+ 10YR 41 Clay

1Type: C=Concentration. D=Depletion. RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains  2Location: PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix

Hydric Soil Indicators:

(] Histosol (A1)

([ Histic Epipedan (A2)

(J slack Histic (A3)

O Hydrogen Suifide (A4)

[ stratified Layers (A5)

] Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11)
(] Thick Dark Surface (A12)

O Sandy Muck Mineral (S1)

| Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)

| Sandy Redox (S5)

Stripped Matrix (S6)

(] Dark Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

[J potyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R,
MLRA 149B)

(] Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 1498)
Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) LRR K, L)

(] Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

[ Depleted Matrix (F3)

[J Redox Dark Surface (F6)

D Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

[] rRedox Depressions (F8)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils : 3

[] 2 cm Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)

[ coast Praitie Redox (Al6) (LRRK, L, R)

[ 5 cm Mucky Peat or Peat (S3) (LRRK, L, R)
[ park Surface (S7) (LRRK, L, M)

] Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR K, L)

(] Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR K, L)

[] 1ron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRRK, L, R)
[] piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 1498B)
[ Mesic Spodic {TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)
[[] Red Parent Material (F21)

[ Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

[ other (Explain In Remarks)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydralogy must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Restrictive Layer (if observed):
Type:

Depth (inches):

Hydric Soil Present? Yes ® No O

Remarks:

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region

Project/Site: DTN/6276 Newton & M-78 Vacant

City/County: Meridian Township/Ingham Co.

Applicant/Owner: DTN Management Company/Newton Pointe, e

Sampling Date: 19-1ul-17

State: Michigan Sampling Point:

WDP #3

Investigator(s): Steven P. Voice, MS, PWS, CSE

Section, Township, Range: S. 4

Landform (hillslope, terrace, etc.):  Flat

Local relief (concave, convex, none): flat

Subregion (LRR or MLRA): |RRL

Lat.: 42.762973

Soil Map Unit Name: Oshtemo-Spinks loamy sands (0 to 6 percent slopes)

Long.: -84.429338

T. 4W R, IW

NWI classification: Upland

Slope: 0,0 % /____gﬂ,g:

Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year?

, or Hydrology [ significantly disturbed?

, Soil D
, Soil D

Are Vegetation D

Are Vegetation D

, or Hydrology []  naturalty problematic?

Yes ® No O

Are "Normal Circumstances” present?

(If no, explain in Remarks.)

Yes ® No O

(If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Summary of Findings - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Yes O No ®

. . Is the Sampled Area
Hydric Soil Present? Yes O No® within a W:ﬂand? Yes O No ®
Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes O Nn®

Remarks: (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)
Data point is located near the southern property line, immediately west of a small, lowland depression.

Hydrology

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:

Primary Indicators (minimum of one required; check all that apply)

[ surface Water (A1)

D High Water Table (A2)

[} saturation (A3)

[] water Marks (B1)

[} sediment Deposits (B2)

[ orift deposits (B3)

] Algal Mat or Crust (B4)

D Iron Deposits (B5)

D Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)
D Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (88)

D Water-Stained Leaves (B9)

D Aquatic Fauna (B13)

[} ™arl Deposits (B15)

D Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)

[T] Oxidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3)
D Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

[J recent Tron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6)

D Thin Muck Surface (C7)

[ other (Explain in Remarks)

_Secondarv Indicators (minimum.gf. 2 reauired) .

[] surface Soif Cracks (B6)

[ Drainage Patterns (B10)

] Moss Trim Lines (B16)

D Dry Season Water Table (C2)
[ Crayfish Burrows (C8)

[] saturation Visible an Aerial Imagery (C9)
] stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)
[ Geomorphic Position (D2)

[ shaliow Aquitard (D3)

[ Microtopographic Relief (D4)
[] FAC-neutral Test (D5)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present? Yes O o ® Depth (inches): __ e

Water Table Present? Yes O No ® Depth (inches): . O ®
. Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes No

Saturation Present? : .

(includes capillary fringe) Yes O ne® Depth (inches):

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:

No water table or evidence thereof observed in the 32" deep boring.

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




VEGETATION - Use scientific names of plants

Sampling Point: WDP #3

Absolute Domimant rngicatar| Dominance Test worksheet:
Tree Stratum__ (Plot size: ) % Cover_.SPecies? _ ctatus
e T T "l Number of Dominant Species
1._Quercus velutina _ 60 _ UPL | That are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 2 . ®
2. Quercus macrocarpa 10 O FACU
N . 0 “~ | Total Number of Dominant
3._Carya ovalis 10 FACU | species Across All Strata: 7 (8)
4. Corya ovata 30 Facu
5 O Percent of dominant Species
6 T 0 That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:  ...28.6%. __ (A/B)
7 o Ol . | prevalence Index worksheet:
! ' 110 = Total Cover Total % Cover of; Multiply by:
_Sapling/Shrub Stratum_ (Plotsize: ) — oBL species 0 x1= o
a 20 FACU T e
1 - vl ava[aﬁ ““1‘(‘)“ ";:a“j““ FACW species 74 X 2= 84
runus serotina
2 e " | FAC species .30 x3= __90
3. Ulmus americana 2 O FACW
4 o 0] FACU species 125 x4 = _ 500
5 '_7)“” 0 - UPL species 60 x5 300
6 0 Ol column Totals: 257 (A) 974 ®
7 0 U R Prevalence Index = B/A = 3.790
= Total Cover . . "
_Herh Stratum (Plot size:_ .m"_) .._93,._ Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:
1. Prunus seroting 10 FACU [ ra pid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
5 56
: wr—— P Dominance Test is > 50%
2. Circaea alpina 40 FACW L po °
3' Rowa mottiors ""'1'5"" a FAF(—Z‘U [] prevalence Index is <3.0 *
) - " [:] Morphological Adaptations ! (Provide supporting
4, Cornus racemosa 20 E FAC data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)
5. 0 0 (] problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation ! (Explain)
6. 0 R
7. 0 [:] 1 Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must
8 "‘“6““ D be present, unless disturbed or problematic.
g: 0 0] :w_“: Definitions of Vegetation Strata:
10. U U wmneene—e. | Tree - Woody plants, 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in diameter
11. o | | atbreast height (DBH), regardless of height.
0
12. - ""8’5'“ T Fllc ~eane | Sapling/shrub - Woody plants fess than 3 in. DBH and
1 = Total Cover an 3. ..
Woody Vine Stratum_(Plotsize: ) A greater than 3.28 ft (1m) tall
1._Smilax rotundifolia 1o _FAC Herb - All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless of
5 0 n| size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.
3 9 0 Woody vi i i
3 B e y vine - All woody vines greater than 3.28 1t in
4 0 0 |height
10 = Total Cover

Hydrophytic
Vegetation
Present? Ys O No @

Remarks: (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

*Indicator suffix = National status or professionat decision assigned because Regional status not defined by FWS,

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




Soil

Sampling Point: WDP #3

Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth Matrix Redox Features
_ (inches) Color (moist) % Color {moist) % Type ¢ Loc? Texture Remarks
0-1 10YR 3/3 e - Loamy sand
1-18 10YR 4/3 S ~ Loamy sand
18-24 10YR 4/4 R B Sand
24-30 10YR 4/6 i o _ Sand o )

1 Type: C=Concentration. D=Depletion. RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains  2Location: PL=Pore Lining. M=Matrix

[ Histosot (A1)

Hydric Soil Indicators:

{7 Histic Epipedon (A2)
[ Black Histic (A3)
[J Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)

[ stratified Layers (A5)

il Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11)
7] Thick Dark Surface (A12)

[ sandy Muck Mineral (S1)

[J sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)

7] sandy Redox (S5)
[T stripped Matrix (S6)
] Dark Surface (57) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

[ Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R,

MLRA 149B)

[ Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 1498)

(] Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) LRR K, L)

(] Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)
[] pepleted Matrix (F3)

(] Rredox Dark Surface (F6)
[] Depteted Dark Surface (F7)
D Redox Depressions (F8)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils : 3
1 2 em Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)

(7 coast Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

[ 5 cm Mucky Peat or Peat (S3) (LRR K, L, R}
(] park Surface (S7) (LRRK, L, M)

) Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR K, L)

(] Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRRK, L)

E] Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRRK, L, R)
(] piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)
[ Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)
[] Rred Parent Material (F21)

E] Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

(] other (Explain in Remarks)

3indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Type:

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Depth (inches):

Hydric Soil Present? Yes O No ®

Remarks:

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region

Project/Site: DTN/6276 Newton & M-78 Vacant

City/County:

Applicant/Owner: DTN Management Company/Newton Pointe, LLC

Meridian Township/Ingham Co.

Sampling Date: 19-Jul-17

State:

Michigan

Sampling Point: WDP #4

Investigator(s): Steven P. Voice, MS, PWS, CSE

Landform (hillslope, terrace, etc.):  Lowland

Subregion (LRR or MLRA): |LRR L

Lat: 42.763663

Soil Map Unit Name: Urban land-Capac-Colwood complex, 0 to 4 percent slopes (UpA)

Section, Township, Range: S, 4

Local relief (concave, convex, none): flat

Long.: -84.428968

T. 4W R. IW

NWI classification: PEM1C

Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year?

, or Hydrology U

, Soil D
,soil []

Are Vegetation D

Are Vegetation D

Summary of Findings - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

, or Hydrology D

Yes ® N O

significantly disturbed?

naturally problematic?

Are "Normal Circumstances” present?

(If no, explain in Remarks.}

Yes @ nNo O

(If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Yes @ NoO

: " Is the Sampled Area
Hydric Soil Present? Yes @ No O within a Wetland?
Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes @ NoO

Yes @ No O

Remarks: (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)
Data point is located in a smaller lowland area to the east of the lowland at WDP #2.

Hydrology

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:

Primary Indicators {minimum of one required; check all that apply)

D Surface Water (A1)

High Water Table (A2)

Saturation (A3)

[ water Marks (81)

[ sediment Deposits (B2)

D Drift deposits (B3)

D Algal Mat or Crust (B4)

[ wron Deposits (B5)

D Inundatlon Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)
D Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

D Water-Stained Leaves (B9)

D Aquatic Fauna (B13)

D Marl Deposits (B15)

O Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)

D Oxidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3)
D Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

[] Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6)

[ Thin Muck Surface (C7)

[ other (Explain in Remarks)

_Secondary Indicators (minimum.of 2 required). ..
] surface Soil Cracks (B6)
[ prainage patterns (B10)
] Moss Trim Lines (B16)
] bry Season Water Table (C2)
U Crayfish Burrows (C8)
D Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)
] stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)
[l Geomorphic Position (D2)
[ shatlow Aquitard (D3)
(] Microtopographic Relief (D4)
FAC-neutral Test (D5)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present? Yes O No @
Water Table Present? Yes @ No O
Saturation Present? Yes @ No O

{includes capillary fringe)

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Depth (inches): e
Depth (inches): Y S
Depth (inches). 10 .

Yes @ NoO

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




VEGETATION - Use scientific names of plants

Sampling Point: WDP #4

Dominance Test worksheet:

. Absolute Pominant yndicator
Tree Stratum _ (Plotsize: ) %% Coyer_.Species?  statys ) .
s Number of Dominant Species
1. Acer rubrum 70 FAC That are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 5 (A)
2. Populus deltoides 25 FAC
W Total Number of Dominant
3. 0 Species Across All Strata: 5 (8)
4. 0 O
5 0 0 Percent of dominant Species
6 'y 0 ——=| That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:  .—100.0% _ (A/8)
7. 0 C] | prevalence Index worksheet:
= Total C Y : i :
sanling/Shrub Stratum_ (Plat size: ) 95 otal Cover Tot_al % Cover of Multiply by
.Sapling/Shrub Stratum _ —— 0BL species 0 x1l= 0
1. Acer rubrum 5 FAC FAQW i 20 2 40
— e species X 2=
2 Fraxinus pennsylvanica 5 v FACW
; £ — ~— | Fac species 100 x3= _300
4 0 O] — FACU species 0 x4= 0 _
5 0 ) | UPL species 0 X 5= B
6. 0 ] column Totals: _ 120 (A 340 ®
7. 0 0 Prevalence Index = B/A = 2.833
= Total C . . N
Herb Stratum {Plot size: ) m..l.gw_ al Cover Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:
o Wani s FACW D Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
raxinus pennsylvanica
; PENEY. ‘“a““ D emm——— Dominance Test is > 50%
3' ""B”" 0 W] prevalence Index is 3.0 1
“0— D T D Morphological Adaptations 1 (Provide supporting
4, —_— D data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)
5, 0 O ] problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation ! (Explain)
6. 0
7. 0 D] 1 yndicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must
8 T D be present, unless disturbed or problematic.
9' 0 0 o Definitions of Vegetation Strata:
10 0 0 e | Tree - Woody plants, 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in diameter
11 0 ] at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.
0
12 — O Sapling/shrub - Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH and
Woody Vine Stratum_(Plotsiz: ) 15 =Total Cover greater than 3.28 it (1m) tall..
1 0 | Herb - All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless of
5 0 | size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.
3 -9 L} e | Woody vine - All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in
4 0 | height.
0 = Total Cover
Hydrophytic
Vegetation
Present? Yes @ No O
Remarks: (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

*ndicator suffix = National status or professional decision assigned because Regional status not defined by FWS.

Us Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




Soil Sampling Point: WDP #4

Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth Matrix Redox Features

(inches) Color (moist) % Color (inoist) % Type 1 Loc? Texture Remarks
0-18 10YR 2/1 Loam
18-24 10YR 41 Loamy sand

24-28+ 10YR 4/1 Sandy Clay Loam

1Type: C=Concentration. D=Depletion. RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains  2Location: PL=Pore Lining. M=Matrix

Hydric Soil Indicators: Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils :

i ppggemsrcscn s, Do o

[ Biack Histic (43) Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 1498) 0 ‘53°35t:’a‘"9:e‘:°" (PA“;) éLaRRL';'RL'K R)L i

[ Hycrogen sulfide () [ Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) LRR K, L) It b

(] stratified Layers (AS) L Loamy Gileyed Matix (%2 [J Polyvalue Below Surface (’SB’) (BRR K, L)

[] Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11) [ Depleted Matrix (F3) 0 Thi:vDark Surface (59) (LRRK, L '

(] Thick Dark Surface (A12) [ Redox Dark Surface (75) [J rron-Manganese Masses((Flz) EleR K, L, R)

] sandy Muck Mineral (51) [ oepleted Dark Surface (77) OJ PledmcntgFlood lain Soils (F19) (MLR/; 11498

[] sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4) [J redox Depressions (F8) O] st <ooci p! )
podic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 1498B)

[] sandy Redox (S5) [ Red Parent Material (F21)
(] stripped Matrix (S6) [} Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)
(] Dark Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 1498) ] Other (Explain in Remarks)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Type: _sandy clay foam
Depth (inches): 24 Hydric Soil Present?  Yes ®  No O

Remarks:

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region

Project/Site: DTN/6276 Newton & M-78 Vacant City/County: Meridian Township/Ingham Co. Sampling Date: 19-Jul-17
Applicant/Owner: DTN Management Company?Newton Painte LLC State: Michigan Sampling Point: WDP #5
Investigator(s): Steven P. Voice, MS, PWS, CSE Section, Township, Range: S. 4 T. 4W R. 1W
Landform (hillslope, terrace, etc.): Local relief (concave, convex, none): Slope: __Q;Q% /_()_,(_)_°
Subregion (LRR or MLRA):  |RR L Lat.: 42.764946 Long.: -84,420032 T Datum:

NWI classification:  Upland

Soil Map Unit Name: Qshtemo-Spinks loamy sands, 0 to 6 percent slopes (OtB)

Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes ® No O (If no, explain in Remarks.)

Are Vegetation D , Soil D , or Hydrology D significantly disturbed? Are “Normal Circumstances” present?

(], soil (] , orHydrology (] naturally problematic? (If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Yes @ No O

Are Vegetation
Summary of Findings - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc,

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Yes O No ®
Is the Sampled Area
Yes O nNo @ pled Are Yes O No @

within a Wetland?
Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes O No ®

Remarks: (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)
Data point is located in a relatively open to shrub dominated field area to the northeast of the large lowland where WDP #2 was evaluated.

Hydric Soil Present?

Hydrology
Wetland Hydrology Indicators: Secondary Indicators (minimum of 2 required)
Primary Indicators (minimum of one required; check all that apply) [ surface Soil Cracks (B6)
[] surface Water (A1) (] water-Stained Leaves (B9) [] orainage Patterns (B10)
[] High water Table (A2) (] Aquatic Fauna (B13) (] Moss Trim Lines (B16)
D Saturation (A3) D Marl Depasits (B15) D Dry Season Water Table (C2)
(] water Marks (B1) (] Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1) [J crayfish Burrows (C8)
D Sediment Deposits (B2) [j Oxidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3) D Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)
D Drift deposits (B3) [j Presence of Reduced Iron (C4) D Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)
[ Algal Mat or Crust (B4) ] Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6) ] Geomorphic Position (D2)
(] Iron Deposits (B5) (] Thin Muck Surface (C7) (] shallow Aquitard (D3)
D Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7) [j Other (Explain in Remarks) D Microtopographic Relief (D4)

| Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8) "] FAC-neutral Test (D5)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present? Yes @) No @ Depth (inches):

Water Table Present? ves O No @ Depth (inches): O ®
N Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes No

Saturation Present? . i

{includes capillary fringe) Yes O No @ Depth (inches):

Describe Recorded Data {stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:
No water table or evidence thereof observed in the 32" deep boring.

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




VEGETATION - Use scientific names of plants

Sampling Point: WDP #5

Sapling/Shrub Stratum _ (Plot size: )
9. Flaeagnus umbellata

2. Acer negundo

3. Malus pumila

4. Cornus racemosa

5. Lonicera tatarica

6

7.

_Herb Stratum _ (Plotsize: )

1. _Rubus allegheniensls

2. Solidago rugosa

3._Lolium perenne

4., Achlilea millefollum

® oo

9

10

11

12.

Woody Vine Stratum _ (Plot size: ) )
1._WVitis riparla

2

3

4

Absolute

% Cover

-l bl

sl blsleb

Dominant ynhdicator
Species? Status

(] )
L] ——
o
0 @ ——
L]
L] e
(I
= Total Cover
L
L] fac
0w
FAC
FACU
(]
L]
= Total Cover
AU
FAC
FACU
FACU

00 C0OCC o0y

= Total Cover

Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species
That are 0BL, FACW, or FAC: 3 (A)

Total Number of Dominant
Species Across All Strata: 7 (B)

Percent of dominant Species

That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:  ...42.9%  (AB)
Prevalence Index worksheet:
Total % Cover of: Multiply by:
OBL species 0 X1l= 0]
FACW species 0 X 2= 0]
FAC species 70 X3 = 210
FACU species 125 x 4= _500
UPL species 20 x5= 100
column Totals: 215 (W 810 (8)
Prevalence Index = BfA = 3.767

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:
D Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
[) pominance Testis > 50%
[} prevalence Index is <3.0 1

D Morphological Adaptations 1 (Provide supporting
data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

[] problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation ! (Explain)

1 Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Tree - Woody plants, 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in diameter
at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Sapling/shrub - Woody plants less than 3in. DBH and
greater than 3.28 ft (1m) tall.,

Herb - All herbaceous {non-woody) plants, regardless of
size, and woody plants less than 3,28 ft tall.

Woody vine - All woody vines greater than 3.28 ftin
height.

Hydrophytic
Vegetation
Present?

Yes O No@

Remarks: (Include photo numbers here orona separate sheet.)

*Indicator suffix = National status or professional decision assigned because Regional status not defined by FWS.

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




Soil sampling Point: WDP #5

Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth Matrix - Redox Features

(inches) Color (moist) % Color (moist) 9%  Type 1 _Loc? Texture Remarks
0-12 10YR 3/4 Loamy sand

12-30+ 10YR 4/6 Loamy sand

LType: C=Concentration, D=Depletion. RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains 2( ocation: PL=Pore Lining. M=Matrix

Hydric Soil Indicators: Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils : >

E‘ :z:f:lp ?::jon - [ ZTKvAallu‘:gg)elow Surface (S8) (LRRR, % 2cm Muc}( (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 1498B)

(] Biack Histc (43) [ Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 1498) 0 ?aSt:’a"‘e ;*e‘:m‘ (:mt) ;;RRL';' LR

(] Hydrogen Sulfide (A4) L Loamy Mucky Mineral (FL) LRR K, 1) 0 D::I: sjr;kze ?;7)0(rm:|<( L )Nf s

[ stratified Layers (AS) (] Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2) {1 olyvalue Below Surfa '58' L)RR K, L

IR Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11) D Depleted Matrix (F3) D Th-WDa k Surfa usgce f_RFZf( L o

[ Thick Dark Surface (A12) L Redox Dark Surface (76) O IroI:-Ma:'n aneseC ebv1(assz=.s((f=12) IUZR K L R

[ sandy Muck Mineral (S1) [ Depleted Dark surface (F7) ] PiedmontgHood fain Soils (F19( MLR/’\ 1'49:3

[ sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4) [] Redox Depressions (F8) ST, p ) )
esic Spodic (TAG) (MLRA 144A, 145, 1498)

D Sandy Redox (S5) D Red Parent Material (F21)
[ stripped Matrix (S6) [] Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)
[ park surface (57) (LRR R, MLRA 149B) (] other (Explain in Remarks)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Type:
Depth (inches): Hydric Soil Present? Yes O No ®

Remarks:

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22,2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page C-1

APPENDIX C.

Copies of the November 3, 1997 letter from then-DEQ District Supervisor Gary F. Marx to
Dennis Forsberg and Keith Schroeder and the October 18, 2002 letter from then-DEQ
District Supervisor Walter Danyluk to G.S. Fedewa Builders, Inc., confirming that all four
(4) of the wetlands identified and delineated on the current project site, specifically
Wetland A (previously Wetland 1), Wetland B (previously Wetland 10), Wetland C
(previously Wetland 2) and Wetland D (previously Wetland 2), are NOT subject to state
jurisdiction or regulation under Part 303 (Appendix C).

vOICE(®

Environmental
Group, LLC




EQP 01006
{Rov. 10/98)

STATE OF MICHIGAN

REPLY TO:
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY SHAwassee oisTRicr oFrice
HOLLISTER BUILDING, PO BOX 30473, LANSING M! 48900-7973 MORRICE M| 48857.9792

INTERNET; http!/fwww.deq.state.mi.us
RUSSELL J, HARDING, Dirsclor

November 3, 1997

Dennis Forsberg and Keith Schroeder
Newton Property Partnership

2360 Jolly Oak Road -
Okemso, Michigan 48864

Dear Messrs. Forsberg and Schroeder

Subject; Wetland Determination
WD-11-97-70
ingham County

| have reviewed the materials included in your consultant's July 21, 1997 letter to this office as well as other
information to confirm a wetland determination on property located in the west 1/2 of the northeast 1/4 of the
southeast 1/4 of Section 4 of Meridian Township, T4N, R1W, in accordance with Section 30321 (3) of Part 303,
Wetland Protection, of ithe Natural Resource and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451. The

determination was made In response to your request to the Department,

It was determined that regulated wetlands do exist on the parcel of fand as indicated In your determination,
We also confirm that the wetlands designated 4 and 14 are state regulated pursuant to the above statute.

Any of the following activities in a regulated wetland area require a permit under Section 5 of the
aforementioned act;

(a) Deposit or permit the placing of fill material in a wetland,
N |2)) Dredge, remove, or permit the removal of soil or minerals from a wetland.
(© Construct, operate, or maintain any use or development in a wetland,

(d) Drain surface water from a wetland,

This jurisdictional wetland determination is valid for five (5) vears from the date of this letter unless new
information warrants a revision of the delineation before the expiration date.

This determination does not obviate the need for any other state, federal, or local permils which may be
required by law.

Should you have any questions regarding this detemmination, ‘please contact this office at 517/625-5515.

Sinc

Land & Water Management Division

cc: LWMD, Lansing
ingtiam CEA
Meridian Township
Vital Resources Consulting




————

——_PRW .

DY TTCRIR_

The property is located between
M-78 (1-69 Business) to the north
and Lake Lansing Road to the
gouth., Newton Road forms the
westermn proper.ty boundary. The
site con be accessed from the first
drive immediately south of M-78
(1-69 Business), leading enst from
' Newton Road, across from the
Meridian Township water tower.

Mag 15,00 .
FdJ - ~———— Secondary SR/Road/H Ramp - :

d Jut 18 17:05 1997 ry vy Ramg . . N Figure 1
Scale 1:15,625 (at center)

=== |nterstate/Limited Access

Population Genter

1000 Feet
| 500 Meters County Boundary : .
' Water C

River/Canal




S(N\ﬂ-b 47&“’*1 /\"\.ﬁ' f"' o

S(’AA}U\ '_‘.../""
P 7 o
//" ‘/**0.1 acres®
L —0.1 acres:k:
: (@//.. - " a 78 15@‘ — Dur Ppopew,fy Lime
3/ Boedk Tipmestonts 1) 0.1 gerest Al |12@/ ~D.1 acresk
. \ |
0.2 -acres / s
N/ / o
"~ ,/\\ s
\ / - "’""'m'“‘@ Stovim Sewmer
73,4 Heres' i
(50/01) [~
2.0 acres:tk
0.3 acres®k ;
/
5 /
.‘f/ N
)
0.2 doresk
i 9.0 acresd:, JiL
/ U
‘,f
i
7
0.3 acres+
308
0.0 dcres Q\_ Figure 2
0.1 acres+t SranTred Tor

Newton Property Partnerahip
2360 Jelly Qak Road
Okemeos, Ml 48864

Sec. 4, TAN. R1W,

Q@J % * VITAL RESOURCES CONSULTING s A[Zy Meridian Twp., Ingham Co. M!
NCINEERING = SURVETING = FLANNING —ENVIRONMENTAL C- et o B
Sorving our Buslormers 20 Years v—975822 | S.E.Bell |
120 NORTH THIRD STRE 517)345—5030 ates Sheat No.:
WEST BRANCH, Ml. 48661 AX: (517)345—~7302 July 14, 1997| 1 of 1
© 1997 COPYRIGHT, PAUL B. LAPHAM AND ASSOCIATES INC. cala: Checkad by: -
UNAUTHORIZED COPYING IS PROHIBITED. 1°=500" B




BesLL/Y0Ws Beid( 5173394822 GS FEDEWA BUILDERS - = PAGE B2

STATE o MicuroaN

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
SHIAWASSBE DisTrIcT OFRIGE D %
. I
JOHN ENGLER RUBSELL J, HARDING
DIRECTON

GOYERNOR

October 18, 2002

G.S. Fedewa Builders, Ing.
5570 Okemos Road
East Lansing, Ml 48823

Dear: Mr. Fedawa

SUBJECT; Wetland Assessment Report - Wetland Assassment File Nurmber: 02-33-0009-WA

The Deparimant of Environmental Quality {DEQ) conducted-a Level 3 Wetland Assessment on
property (property tax identification humber 33-02-02-04-400-005, 009, and 01D) located in
Town 04N, Range 01W, Section 04, Meridian Township, Ingham County on September 10,
September 17, and September 26, 2002. The assessment was conducted in accordance with
Part 303, Wetland Protection of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994
PA 451, as amended (NREPA); and Rule 4, Wetland Assessments (R 281.924) of the
Administrative Rules for Part 303, This is a repart of our findings ih response to yaur wetland
assessment application.

The DEQ staff walked the flagged boundarles as requesfed in your wetland assessment
application, Based onh our an-site investigation, which included review of plant communities,
hydrologic indicators, and soils of the assessment area, and an in-office review of other
pettinent information, the' DEQ confimms, in part, the wetland boundaries observed during the
site inspection. Staff hoted a couple of arrors in Wetlands 3 and 4. Staff found a small area of
wetland coming out of the narthem part of Wetland 8. The wetland is alohg & slope Jeading into
Wetland 3, and catches water from up hill. There is a dominance of wetland vegetation in the
ared including Reed Canary Grass, Sedges, Red Osier Dogwood, and Poison Jvy. The area
was added between Flags D49 and D12. Flags D49a ~ D49d were added. There were several
changes made In Wetland 4. Flags F22a — F22d were added between F22 and F25 to jhclude
an area of wetland that had bare soil, shallow roofs, and huttressed tree trunks. The plants in
the area included American Elm, Green Ash, Rough Avens, and Black Cherry. Flags F23 and
F24 were excluded, Flags F29, F30, F31, F32a, and F32h were moved and F32c was excluded
to include an area of welland with watermarks, shallow roots, and buttraessed tree trunks, The
dominant vegetation in the area included American Elm, Sensitive Fern, Jewelweed, Green
Ash, Late Goldenrod, Gray Dogwood, and Crooked Aster, Flags F58, F57, B2, and F59 ware
moved to include an area of wetland that contalned Late Goldenrod, American Elderberry, and
Black Ash, which are all indicative to wetlands, Finally, Flags AA19a and AA19b were added
between Flags AA19 and AA20, fo include an area that contained drainage pattemns,
Vegetation, including L.anced Leaf Goldenrod, Reed Canary Grass, Green Rush, and Swamp
Aster, were found in the area. East of Wetland 5, a small unflagged wetland was found. It
contained Glossy Buckthorn, Green Ash, Narrow Leaf Meadowsweet, Bulrush, Silky Dogwood,
-and Poison lvy. Watermarks were also found in the wetland. This wetland is not believed to be

regulated by the Stats, and is marked on the provided map.

10850 BENNETT DRIVE ~ MORRICE, MICHIQAN 48857-8782

v michigan.gov « (517) 6258515 5)Y t>xS- L{ BN
RIS LoD

™ 4a s b T i )




lﬁ//ll;’ZUU'o’ yu/l:37 5173394822 . G5 FEDEWA BUILDERS - PAGE

(5.8, Fedewa Builders, Inc
Page 2 -
October 18, 2002

Wa flagged the madified boundaries with pink DEQ flagging tape and documented the new
boundaries on the enclosed site map. The site map of the assessment area was created by
combining information from your consulfant and the DEQ. The new map identifles the areas
containing wetland and the upland areas of the assessment area, A new delineation is not

necessary.

For those areas identified as State regulatad wetland on the site map, specifically Wetlands 4,
5, and 14, please be advised that any of the following activities require a permit under Part 303;

a) Deposit or permif the placing of fill material in a regulated wetland.
by Dredge, remove, or permit the removal of soil or minerals from regulated wetland.
c)  Construct, operate, or maintain any use or development in a regulated wetland.

d) Drain surface water from a regulated wetland.

Far those areas identified as upland and non-regulatad wetland on the site map, the DEQ lacks
jurisdiction under Part 303 for activities occurring in those areas. The non-regulated wetiands
are not regulated since they are not cantiguous to the Great Lakes, an inland lake ar pond, or a
river or stream, and smaller than five acres in size.

You may request the DEQ reassess the subject parcel or any portion of the parce! within 30
days of the date of this report should you disagree with the findings. A written request to
reassess the parcel must be accompanied by supporting evidence with regard to wetland
vegetation, sails or hydrology different from, or in addition o, the information relied upon by
DEQ staff in preparing this report and sent to:

Woetland Assessment Program

Intand Lakes and Wetlands Unit

Land and Water Management Division
Depariment of Environmental Quality
P.O. Box 30468

Lansing, Michigan 48909-7958

Please be aware that this assessment report does hot constitute a determination of the
presence of wetland that may be regulated under local ordinances or federal law. The
U.S, Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) retains regulatory authority over certain wetlands

* pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (CWA), and specifically those wetlands
assoclated with traditionally navigabls waters of the state. Traditionally, navigable waters are
generally the Great Lakes, their connacting watsrs, and rivet systems and lakes connected to
these waters. In other areas of Michigan, the DEQ is responsible for determination of wetland
houndaries for purposes of compliance with the CWA under an agresment with the

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency,

Your assessment area does not appear to be within those areas also regulated by the USACE,
However, should you dasire more information, please contact the USACE at 313-226-2218.  ~

This assessment repott is limited to findings pursuant to Part 303 and does not constitute a
determination of jurisdiction under other DEQ administsred programs. Any land use activities




B7/11/2083 @7:37 5173394822 ’ GS FEDEWA BUILDERS : PAGE B4~

G.S. Fedewa Builders, Inc
Page 3
October 18, 2002

undertaken on the assessed parcel may be subject to regulation pursuant to the NREPA under
the following programs:

Floodplain Regulatory Authority found in Part 31, Water Resources Protection
Part 91, Sail Erosion and Sedimentation Control
Part 301, Inland Lakes and Streams

The findings contained in this report do not convey, provide, or otherwise imply approval of any
governing act, ordinance, or regulation, nor does jt waive the obligation to acquire any
applicable state, county, local, or federal approval or authorizations necessary to conduct any
possible activities. This assessment report js not a permit for any activity that requires a permit
from ihe DEQ,

The findings contained in this report are binding on the DEQ until Septémber 26, 2005: a period
of three years frem tha date of the assassment unlsss a reasssssment is conducted. Please
contact me if you have any questions regarding this assessment report.

Sincerely,
ﬁ,%/

&
Walter Danyluk
District Supsrvisor _
Geological and Land Management Division
517-625-4655 ’

Enclosure

cc:  Meridian Township
Mr. John Skubinna, DEQ
Ms, Wendy Veltman, DEQ




v llf 2003 O¥e3¢ nl /3334022 GS FEDEWA BUILDERS e PAGE: 85"

GS Fedewa Builders Inc
Page 4 L
OcTORER 18. 2002

WR . N
D.1 acrest

[
/——0.1 gcreak

=W .

N
“—0.1 acrest |

i A Y 0.] acres:k 1 2&/‘ ;
| 0.2 qcren A :
' : Y || _Paces
WN ;
2.0 agreat ’ 1T h " _ i

0.7 acrast

(]
i w5 :
1 % '
1 : ?s | ;
i = 0.2 ocragk ;/
; , 8.0 acrosk.
‘ N | pAGE 7
UPL
WN : "
ASSESSMENT AREA 0,3 acres
T—DRAIN
" Legend: B
0.0 qeres 0.1 dores®

WR = Wetland- Regulated
WN =Wetland- Not Regulated

UPL = Upland (non-wetland)
Approximate Scale; 1inch = 500 feet

This drawing showing those areas containing wetland and not containing wetiand is an
approximation of the boundaries flagged on-site,

This drawing does not authorize ar permit activities requiring a permit in accordance with
Part 303 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as

amended.




3

¥//11/2883 87:37" 5173394822

GS FEDEWA BUILDERS

GS Fedewa Builders Inc

Page 5 .
OCTORER 18, 2002

uPL

s o

b e —., sy

UPL

Legend:

WR = Wetland- Regulated
WN =Wetland- Not Regulated

UPL = Upland (non-wetland) ‘
Approximate Scale: 1 inch = 150 feet

This drawing showing those areas containing wetland and not containing wetland s an
approxXimation of the boundaries flagged on-site.

This drawing does not authorize or permit activities requiring a permit in accordance with
Part 303 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as

amended.

PAGE - 86-




Y¢711/2P83  87:37 5173394822 GS FEDEWA BUILDERS - o PC;GE' o7
» T

:{GS Fedewa Builders Inc
Page&
QCTORER 18, 2002

.."“‘mm
o gy e

Legend:

WR = Wetland- Regulated
WN =Wetland- Not Regulated

UPL = Upland (non-wetland)
Approximate Scale: 1 inch = 150 feet

This drawing showing those areas containing wetland and not containing wetland is an
approximation of the boundaries flagged on-site,

This drawing does not authorize or permit activities requiring a permit in accordance with
Part 303 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as

amended.




B7/11/2883 @7:37 5173394822 GS FEDEWA BUILDERS
, ‘:‘ K I: , "' ,'/1/, _I- y . ..-/_.
S e /./,' {, .l
s
AN, /// L

% N,

i AL,
/_,/¢ )7/

[

SL L
/'// l/.'lil... '.I

SIS

A

‘.

GS Fedewa Builders Inc
Page7 =
Sctober 18, 2002

/

P L
/ ]

ey P E""V 1““ i
R
(' B .
(A v R

T

Legend:

WR = Wetland- Regulated
WN =Wetland- Not Regulated

UPL = Upland (non-wetland) _ _
Approximate Scale: 1 inch = 150 feet

This drawing showing those areas containing wetland and not containing wetland is an

approximation of the boundaries flaggad on-site.

This drawing does not authorize or permit activities requiring a permit in accordance with
part 303 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as

amended.

PAGE B8




November 28, 2018
Project No. 181579

Mr. Mark Kieselbach

Director of Community Planning and Development
Charter Township of Meridian

5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, MI 48864-1198

Re: Letter of Essentiality
Wetland Use Permit #18-03
Newton Park MUPUD

Dear Mr. Kieselbach:

As requested by your office, Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber (FTCH) reviewed application materials from
KEBS, Inc. regarding Wetland Use Permit #18-03 to discharge stormwater into two wetlands in Section 4 of the
Charter Township of Meridian. The proposed stormwater discharge is in association with a proposed residential
housing development located at 6276 Newton Road, Haslett, Michigan. One of the wetlands that would receive
stormwater discharge is forested wetland less than 2 acres in size and greater than 0.25 acre in size. This
wetland is noted as Wetland 4-20 on the Meridian Township’s wetland inventory map and is referred to as
Wetland B in the MUPUD Plan provided by KEBS.

Voice Environmental Group, LLC (Voice) delineated Wetland B’s boundary in 2017, as described in its
February 22, 2018 Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report. FTCH’s subconsultant, Peterson
Environmental, verified the wetland boundary on June 4, 2018, and adjusted the boundary. Additional
adjustments were made to Wetland B’s boundary as a result of additional field studies completed by Voice in
late June.

The identified wetland is a depressional forested wetland that is approximately 0.7 acre in size and is not
contiguous with a body of water. Therefore, a determination of essentiality is necessary to determine the
regulated status of this wetland under Meridian Township’s Wetland Ordinance.

The purpose of this letter is to relay to the Township FTCH’s preliminary findings as to whether one or more of
the essentiality criteria are likely to apply to the identified wetland. The criteria are listed below, followed by our
assessment.

(1) The wetland supports state or federal endangered or threatened plants, fish, or wildlife appearing on a list
specified in Part 365 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (MCL 324.36501 et seq.).

e FTCH did not conduct a thorough inventory of species present within the wetland. However, data obtained
by Voice indicated low plant diversity within Wetland B. Historic aerial photographs obtained from Google
Earth indicate the surrounding area was farmed. It is unlikely Wetland B supports protected plant or fish
species. FTCH has no knowledge of Wetland B supporting protected wildlife.

(2) The wetland represents what is identified as a locally rare or unique ecosystem.

e FTCH has no knowledge that this wetland has been identified as a locally rare or unique ecosystem.

5913 Executive Drive, Suite 100 517.882.0383 Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc.
Lansing, Michigan 48911 www.ftch.com engineers | scientists | architects | consfructors



Mr. Mark Kieselbach
Page 2
November 28, 2018

(3) The wetland supports plants or animals of an identified local importance.

e No species of local importance have been identified in Wetland B.

(4) The wetland provides groundwater recharge documented by a public agency.

e FTCH is not aware that a public agency has documented this wetland as providing groundwater recharge.

(5) The wetland provides flood and storm control by the hydrologic absorption and storage capacity of the
wetland.

e Wetland B is located in a topographical depression and receives and stores stormwater from the
surrounding landscape. KEBS’s has completed stormwater calculations which determined the stormwater
capacity of Wetland B.

e Stormwater overflow from Wetland B potentially discharges to Wetland A (Meridian Township Wetland
4-19), located approximately 100 feet to the west. KEBS did not provide a topographic map of the site,
which would verify the likelihood of this overflow.

(6) The wetland provides wildlife habitat by providing breeding, nesting, or feeding grounds or cover for forms
of wildlife or waterfowl, including migratory waterfow! and rare, threatened, or endangered wildlife species.

e Based on Voice’s wetland delineation report, Wetland B contains an open understory. It did not contain
standing water during wetland delineation on July 17, 2017 but did contain standing water during the
wetland boundary verification inspection on June 4, 2018. The presence of seasonal standing water in the
spring suggests Wetland B is a vernal pool. Vernal pools provide important habitat for many wildlife species.
Because vernal pools lack predatory fish populations, they provide critical breeding habitat for a host of
forest-dwelling amphibians and invertebrates. Vernal pools support frogs, toads, salamanders, snakes,
turtles, waterfowl, wetland birds, songbirds, and mammals.

(7) The wetland provides protection of subsurface water resources and provision of valuable watersheds and
recharging groundwater supplies.

e The wetland provides a limited area (approximately 0.7 acre) of groundwater recharge storage.
(8) The wetland provides pollution treatment by serving as a biological and chemical oxidation basin.

e The wetland has the capacity to provide this service, although no sources of pollution within the
surrounding area are evident.

(9) The wetland provides erosion control by serving as a sedimentation area and filtering basin, absorbing silt
and organic matter.

e The wetland is surrounded by old fields. No sources of erosion were observed, but if they were present due
to land disturbance, the wetland would act as a sedimentation area, due to its landscape position.

(10) The wetland provides sources of nutrients in water food cycles and nursery grounds and sanctuaries for
fish.

e Itis not likely that fish are present in this wetland because it does not contain standing water year-round
and it is not contiguous with a body of water.

We conclude that Wetland B provides stormwater control by its hydrologic absorption and storage capacity,
wildlife habitat and pollution treatment, and therefore is determined to be essential.

Z:\2018\181579\WORK\CORR\LETTER OF ESSENTIALITY.DOCX



Mr. Mark Kieselbach fTCfrh
Page 3

November 28, 2018

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me at 616.464.3738, 616.446.2269,
or ehtripp@ftch.com.

Sincerely,

FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER, INC.
. /- .

Ui M Ty

Elise Hansen Tripp, PWS

By email
cc:  Mr. Peter Menser — Charter Township of Meridian

Z:\2018\181579\WORK\CORR\LETTER OF ESSENTIALITY.DOCX


mailto:ehtripp@ftch.com

727 Lake Park Drive

VOICE"’ Boyne City, Ml 49712

Environmental Bus (231) 582-3498

Fax (231) 582-2300
Group, LLC Www.voiceenv.com

December 12,2018

Mr. Mark Kieselbach
Charter Township of Meridian
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, MI 48864
Re:  October 24, 2017 FTCH Wetland Use Permit #18-03 Application Review
Newton Pointe, LL.C
Newton Park MUPUD

Dear Mr. Kieselbach:

As you are aware, on October 5, 2018, Newton Pointe, LLC submitted a Wetland Use
Permit (WUP) application to the township, as well as various documents in support of that
application, for the proposed Newton Park MUPUD project.

On October 24, 2018, Meridian Township Wetland Consultant Elise Tripp from
Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. (FTCH) provided you with a “Wetland Use Permit
#18-03 Application Review” document which presented the following:

1. An Overview of Proposed Wetland Impacts in which Ms. Tripp provides a basic
description of the two township-regulated wetlands present on the site and an overview of
proposed wetland impacts,

2. A preliminary Review of the WUP Application as submitted in which she outlined
various potential concerns and/or identified additional information she felt should be
provided by the applicant, and

3. FTCH’s Recommendations which are as follows:

“Based upon our review of the submitted materials, it is our opinion that insufficient
information was submitted in the WUP application to ensure that irreparable harm
would not result to site wetlands from proposed stormwater discharge to the wetlands.
This harm could result from:

e Altering wetland hydrology to the extent that the wetlands become ponds,
instead of wetlands.

e Erosion from water discharging down the slopes between the numerous |
forebays to the wetlands, resulting in deposition of soil within the wetlands. |

e Utilizing the wetlands for water quality treatment and not adequately
addressing water quality treatment in the sediment forebays prior to
discharging into the wetlands.

Science e Expertise e  Creativity e Solutions




M. Kieselbach
December 12,2018
Page 2

FTCH recommends the Applicant provide additional information to ensure the above
harm would not result from the proposed project. This information may include design
details pertaining to the forebays, storm pipes and outlet structure, and water budgets
for site wetlands that reflect both before and after site development conditions. FTCH
recommends that a WUP not be issued until the Applicant adequately addresses the
concerns noted in this letter.”

Accordingly, the purpose of this letter is to provide the Township and FTCH with as
much of the additional information for the project as is possible at this point in time as well as a
response to Ms. Tripp’s October 24™ WUP Application Review to “ensure that irreparable harm
would not result to site wetlands from proposed stormwater discharge to the wetlands.”

STORMWATER PLAN DETAILS & ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Subsequent to the receipt of Ms. Tripp’s October 24™ letter/application review, the
applicant, Newton Pointe, LLC, the project Engineer, KEBS, Inc. and the project environmental

consultant, Voice Environmental, LLC, collectively reviewed her comments and potential
concerns, as well as the additional information being requested.

It should be noted that some of the additional information being requested, specifically
design details on the forebays, the storm pipe between Wetland A and B and the outlet structure
cannot be fully designed without KEBS, Inc. “engineering” the entire site. While that it is
possible to do that, it obviously involves a great deal of time and expense. As such, it
realistically only makes sense to do that once the township’s Land Use Committee approves the
proposed site plan, so that in the event that there are any changes to the plan the engineering
design for the forebays, storm pipe and outlet do not have to be “engineered” twice.

Nonetheless, KEBS has developed and/or revised the following site plans and documents,
which I am hereby submitting for the township’s review and consideration, to provide sufficient
information to assure the township and FTCH that irreparable harm will not result to site
wetlands:

1. An Existing Drainage Area map (Appendix A: Sheet 1 of 3),

2. A Proposed Drainage Area map (Appendix A: Sheet 2 of 3)

3. Anupdated MUPUD site plan, including the proposed stormwater management
plan/system and some additional typical details (Appendix A: Sheet 3 of 3)

4. A Proposed Water Budget with an updated “Detention Requirement and Discharge
Allowance for Small Sites” calculation spreadsheet for the project (Appendix B).

The purpose of the above site plans and Proposed Water Budget document is to provide
the township and FTCH as much of the additional information being requested as possible and
reasonable at this point in the design/site engineering process.

vOICE®

Environmental
Group, LLC




M. Kieselbach
December 12, 2018
Page 3

I have reviewed these plans and the Proposed Water Budget in detail in light of the
various questions and concerns identified by Ms. Tripp and would like to provide the Township
with the following summary and comments relative to the stormwater management plan and
design details that are incorporated therein to avoid or minimize potential wetland impacts.

Existing Drainage Area and General Characteristics of Wetlands A and B

The existing drainage area surrounding Wetland A (Meridian Township Wetland 4-19)
and Wetland B (Meridian Township Wetland 4-20) is 15.01 acres (Appendix A: Sheet 1 of 3).
Wetland A, at 4.78 acres in size, and Wetland B, at 0.746 acres in size, collectively occupy more
than 36% of the existing drainage/local watershed area.

Wetland A is primarily an open marsh (which seasonally and/or periodically supports
large areas of open water) with forested wetland located around segments of the perimeter.
Wetland B is a relatively small forested wetland depression, dominated by red maple (4cer
rubrum). Both wetlands are isolated (and in the case of Wetland A expansive) depressions in the
local watershed with no inlets or outlets. As such, both are currently already functioning as
stormwater detention/retention areas with seasonal and periodic surface and ground water inputs

into both wetlands only dissipating via evaporation or infiltration into the ground over time.
Proposed Drainage Area of Wetlands A and B

The proposed, post-development drainage area will be 23.22 acres, an increase of 8.01
acres (Appendix A: Sheet 2 of 3). As such, Wetlands A and B will collectively occupy
approximately 24% of the proposed drainage area once the site is developed as proposed.

Proposed Stormwater Management Plan

The proposed stormwater management plan/system has been specifically designed to
ensure that:

o The introduction of additional stormwater into Wetland A will not “result in the
conversion of this wetland into a pond”(although I would note, as indicated above, that
portions of this wetland currently exist as open water at least for portions of the year),

e That Wetland B will not become inundated to the extent that its trees will die, resulting
conversion from forested wetland to wetland meadow, emergent wetland, or pond, and
perhaps just as important as the above two points,

e That water levels are managed such that there is enough water/water level fluctuations to
maintain the existing wetland retention hydrological characteristics of both Wetlands A
and Wetland B to support and maintain the existing open marsh of Wetland A and
forested wetland of Wetland B.

vOICE@®

Environmental
Group, LLC




M. Kieselbach
December 12, 2018
Page 4

To accomplish this, the applicant is proposing, as correctly noted by Ms. Tripp, to install
a storm pipe between Wetland B and Wetland A and then construct an outlet structure at the
southwest end of Wetland A to allow stormwater to discharge to the municipal stormwater
system (Appendix B). The details and basis for this design are as follows:

Wetland B, with an upland/wetland boundary line that ranges approximately from
870.70” to 871.00” appears to be slightly higher than Wetland A, with an upland/wetland
boundary line of the latter that varies from approximately 870.50 to 871.00. Accordingly, as
currently designed, a 12”-diameter, concrete “equalization” storm pipe from Wetland B to
Wetland A will be installed at an elevation of approximately 870.00° to allow any additional
drainage and/or stormwater that may enter Wetland B to overflow into the expansive Wetland A,
which will be controlled by an outlet set at a slightly lower elevation, which, in turn, will allow
any additional drainage and/or stormwater that may enter this wetland to outlet into the
municipal stormwater system. The elevation of the outlet structure for Wetland A is currently
designed to be at an elevation of 869.75°, which is the elevation KEBS has calculated to be the
water level of the existing wetland following back-to-back 100-year storm events under existing
conditions (i.e. with no outlet).

Proposed Water Budget for Newton Park

A Proposed Water Budget for Newton Park that was prepared by KEBS, Inc. staff is
attached in Appendix C. A summary of their calculations and findings is as follows:

FExisting Conditions

e Using an elevation of 868.90” as the lowest ground elevation in the subject wetlands, the
storage volume available in the existing wetlands between 868.90° and 871.00° is
478,293 cft.

e With no outlet other than infiltration/evaporation (the existing condition), the water
volume input resulting from back-to-back 100’ storms would be 113,332 cft (or
approximately 24% of the total available storage capacity).

e The resulting water level for the existing wetlands in this event, again under existing
conditions (i.e. no outlet) and assuming the water level prior to the event was at or below

the ground surface, would be at an elevation of 869.75°.

Proposed Conditions

e With a proposed outflow of 0.93 cfs (only 0.04 cfs/acre), KEBS has calculated the 100-
year volume being added to the wetlands under the proposed conditions to be 154,166 cft
(an increase of 40,832 cft from pre-development conditions).

vOICE(®

Environmental
Group, LLC




M. Kieselbach
December 12, 2018
Page 5

e The resulting water level for the existing wetlands in this event, again under existing
conditions (i.e. no outlet) and assuming the water level prior to the event was at or below
the ground surface, would be at an elevation of 870.02’.

e Accordingly, the “impact” to the water level in wetlands after a 100-year storm would
be an increase in elevation from 869.75 to 870.02, which is 0.27° or about 3 inches.
Obviously, the increase in water levels following more typical precipitation events would
be substantially less.

COMMENTS ON AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IN RESPONSE TO
FTCH’S OVERVIEW OF PROPOSED WETLAND IMPACTS

FTCH Comments

In Ms. Tripp’s October 24™ Application Review, she provided the following basic
characterization of Wetlands A and B and an overview of the proposed wetland impacts.

The proposed activities are located in Parcel Number 33-02-02-04-252-004 in the northeast
quarter of Section 4, Town 4 North, Range 1 West, Ingham County, Michigan. The parcel is
currently undeveloped and contains two wetlands greater than 0.25-acre in size:

® Wetland A, which is approximately 4.78 acres in size and primarily consists of open marsh.
Forested wetland is located around the perimeter of the marsh. This wetland is designated at
Wetland 4-19 on the Township wetland map.

® Wetland B, which is approximately 0.65-acre in size and consists of forested wetland. This
wetland is designated at Wetland 4-20 on the Township wetland map.

NOTE: Wetland B, based on the approved boundary, has been surveyed at 0.746 acres.
The Applicant has submitted a WUP application to the Township requesting the following:

e Construct multiple housing units in upland.

® Maintain a 40-foot buffer between site development and Wetlands A and B.

e Discharge stormwater into Wetlands A and B via storm sewers and curb cuts.

e Construct forebays in upland at each stormwater outlet. Some of forebays will be constructed
within the 40-foot wetland buffer near the wetland boundary and some would be constructed
outside of it. The WUP application stated the forebays would be sized for the drainage area of
each storm pipe and curb spillway. No design details regarding the forebays were provided to
FTCH (emphasis added).

e Install a storm pipe between Wetlands A and B. The plan denotes forebay symbols at each end
of the pipe. It appears the function of this pipe is to allow water to drain from Wetland B to
Wetland A. Design details regarding this structure were not provided to FTCH (emphasis
added).

@ Construct an outlet structure at the southwest end of Wetland A to allow stormwater to
discharge to the municipal stormwater system. No plan details regarding the outlet were
provided to FTCH. The stormwater detention calculations do size the outlet structure orifices to
control the first flush and 100-year events (emphasis added).

vOICE@(

Environmental
Group, LLC




M. Kieselbach
December 12, 2018
Page 6

Voice Environmental Comments and Response

While Ms. Tripp’s overview is basically accurate, she included three comments (which I
emphasized in italics above). Her comments and my response to each are as follows:

Comment: The WUP application stated the forebays would be sized for the drainage area of each storm pipe
and curb spillway. No design details regarding the forebays were provided to FTCH.

Response: Conceptual plan and cross-sectional design details for the sediment forebays have
been added to the updated MUPUD site plan contained in Appendix A (Sheet 3 of 3). While the
exact sizing and designed details for each of the 12 forebays could be developed at this time, it
would basically require “engineering” the entire site. Doing so at this point in the process,
absent an approved site plan (which if modified from what is currently being proposed would
require some or potentially all of the forebays to be re-designed), is not reasonable.

As indicated above, once the Township’s Land Use Committee approves the site plan for
the project, each of the forebays will be sized for the drainage area of each storm pipe and

curb spillway. As such, the subject wetlands will not be used for the first flush water
quality treatment but rather the entire first flush water quality treatment will occur in the
upland-based sediment forebays prior to discharging into the wetlands.

Comment: Install a storm pipe between Wetlands A and B. The plan denotes forebay symbols at each
end of the pipe. It appears the function of this pipe is to allow water to drain from Wetland B to Wetland
A. Design details regarding this structure were not provided to FTCH.

Response: As indicated above, the elevation for this “equalization” storm pipe between
wetlands A and B is currently proposed to be at 870.00°, which is the approximate
elevation of the approved upland/wetland boundary. By setting the pipe at this elevation,
if the water level of Wetland B rises above this level it will discharge into Wetland A and
allow the remaining water in Wetland B below this elevation to dissipate via evaporation
and infiltration into the ground as is currently the case. Thus the existing hydrological
regime and water level fluctuations that maintain this forested wetland community will be
maintained.

Again, once the Township’s Land Use Committee approves the site plan for the project,
additional design details on this storm water pipe connection between Wetland A and
Wetland be will be prepared and presented to the township along with the sediment
forebay design details.

Comment: Construct an outlet structure at the southwest end of Wetland A to allow stormwater to
discharge to the municipal stormwater system. No plan details regarding the outlet were provided to
FTCH. The stormwater detention calculations do size the outlet structure orifices to control the first flush
and 100-year events.

voicE(W

Environmental
Group, LLC




M. Kieselbach
December 12, 2018
Page 7

Response: Again, as indicated above, the elevation of the outlet structure is currently
proposed to be at 869.75, which approximates the elevation of the upland/wetland
boundary of Wetland A. It is 0.25° or 3 inches lower than the current design elevation of
Wetland B, which again will allow excess water above 870.00° in wetland B to drain into
Wetland A, as well as excess water above 869.75” in Wetland A to drain into the
municipal storm water system. In both cases, this design is specifically intended to
maintain the existing seasonal water levels and water level fluctuations currently present
in both wetlands.

NOTE: As noted above, the design elevations for the storm pipe between Wetland A
and Wetland B and the outlet from Wetland A are based on the elevations of the
respective upland/wetland boundaries and the existing and proposed water budgets. They
are specifically intended, as also noted above, to ensure that Wetland A will not be
converted into a pond, that the trees in Wetland B do not die and the area becomes a pond
or a marsh, but just as importantly, that neither wetland is dewatered to the point that they
are adversely impacted from too little water.

With that said, I would note that these elevations are not “cast in stone” (which is another

reason why final design details for these structures have not been provided). For
instance, with a proposed outflow of 0.93 cfs (only 0.04 cfs/acre), the outlet from
Wetland A could be lowered (as stormwater detention requirements allow up to 0.15
crs/acre), if the township and/or FTCH felt it was desirable to do so, necessary to ensure
that the area will not turn into a pond, or to otherwise encourage more scrub-shrub or
forested wetland types in this wetland. The point again, is that once the Land Use
Committee approves the site plan, and the Environmental Commission/FTCH provides
their input on or evaluation of the outlet elevations proposed herein, final engineering of
these structures can be completed and submitted to the township for final approval.

RESPONSE TO THE OCTOBER 24, 2018 FTCH “REVIEW OF WUP APPLICATION”

In her October 24, 2018 “Wetland Use Permit #18-03 Application Review” letter, Ms.
Tripp notes that “(t)he review standards used to evaluate WUP applications are found in Section
22-157 of Article IV (Wetland Protection) of Chapter 22 of the Township’s Code of Ordinances.
WUPs are not to be issued unless the proposed activity is found to be in the public interest, the
permit is necessary to realize the benefits from the activity, and the proposed activity is
otherwise lawful in all respects. Section 22-157(2) lists eleven general criteria to be considered
when evaluating whether or not a proposed activity is in the public interest.” Ms. Tripp then
provided her evaluation of or comments on the proposed activity and/or information submitted
with or missing from the original application according to each of the eleven criteria.

Accordingly, on behalf of Newton Pointe, LL.C, I would like to provide the following
discussion of each of the eleven general criteria listed in Section 22-157(2) that are to be
considered when evaluating whether or not a proposed activity is in the public interest, including
a response to Ms. Tripp’s October 24™ comments where appropriate.

voIiCE(®

Environmental
Group, LLC




M. Kieselbach
December 12, 2018
Page 8

Section 22-157(2)(a) The relative extent of the public and private need for the proposed activity.

This site received approval for rezoning (#06050) to Commercial (C-2) by the Meridian
Township Board on March 20, 2007. The approval for rezoning is conditioned on the site being
developed under the Township’s mixed use planned unit development ordinance and limiting the
types of permitted uses and the residential density of the development. The purpose of the mixed
use planned unit development (mixed use PUD) is to create more walkable pedestrian oriented
developments by promoting and accommodating developments in rational mixed patterns that
respect Meridian Township's transitional land use concept to protect, enhance and preserve
natural resources.

Newton Park meets the Township’s goals of a well-planned, integrated and high quality
mixed use development project:

e It will enhance health and safety goals by meeting requirements for walkability,
pedestrian orientation and high quality, durable, building materials.
e It will increase Township prosperity goals and citizen welfare by appreciated property

values which will support necessary public services.

e It will actualize our cultural heritage through citizen pride in creative, new places to walk
to, shop at and work in that retain a flavor of Meridian Township's rich history.

e It will enhance diversity goals with new types of residential uses in close-knit community
design.

e It will improve our natural environment goal by mixed use development with incentives
for more intensely landscaped buffers and open spaces designed to complement
Township parks and green space plans.

Section 22-157(2)(b) The availability of feasible and prudent alternative locations and methods
to accomplish the expected benefits from the activity.

As indicated above, the proposed stormwater management plan/system has been
specifically designed to ensure that:

e The introduction of additional stormwater into Wetland A will not “result in the
conversion of this wetland into a pond”(although I would note, as indicated above, that
portions of this wetland currently exist as open water at least for portions of the year),

e That Wetland B will not become inundated to the extent that its trees will die, resulting
conversion from forested wetland to wetland meadow, emergent wetland, or pond, and
perhaps just as important as the above two points,

e That water levels are managed such that there is enough water/water level fluctuations to
maintain the existing wetland retention hydrological characteristics of both Wetlands A

vOICE@M

Environmental
Group, LLC




M. Kieselbach
December 12, 2018
Page 9

and Wetland B to support and maintain the existing open marsh of Wetland A and
forested wetland of Wetland B

To accomplish this, the applicant is proposing to construct forebays in upland at each
stormwater outlet. As indicated above, the forebays will be sized to hold and filter the first flush
of the drainage area of each storm pipe and curb spillway it is receiving stormwater from, before
discharging to the wetlands. Additionally, the applicant will install a storm/equalization pipe
between Wetland B and Wetland A and then construct an outlet structure at the southwest end of
Wetland A to allow stormwater to discharge to the municipal stormwater system (Appendix B),
specifically allow any additional storm water input into these wetlands above the normal high
water levels to drain from the wetlands to the municipal stormwater system consistent with storm
water detention requirements. '

Alternative locations
One hypothetical alternative to utilizing the subject wetlands as part of the stormwater

system would be to construct the entire system in uplands, i.e. construct stormwater detention
basins in the upland that would handle both the first flush and 100-year storm events. While this

alternative is certainly feasible, it clearly is not prudent from either an economic or an ecological
perspective.

Wetlands A and B have a combined acreage of 5.526 acres, which is approximately 21%
of the entire site and 24% of the drainage area of the proposed developed. Under this scenario, a
number of detention basins would likely have to be constructed, further reducing the area
available for the housing units and associated infrastructure. While this alternative is certainly
feasible (as most alternatives are) it would likely destroy the economic viability of the project.
As such, it clearly is not a prudent alternative for the applicant, especially when there are
expansive wetlands on site that are already providing valuable and effective storm water
detention, storage and water filtration functions, in addition to numerous other ecological
benefits.

This hypothetical alternative is also not a prudent course of action from an ecological
standpoint. If stormwater is collected from the developed site and channeled into multiple
upland-based detention ponds, it would essentially eliminate a substantial amount of the water
input into both Wetlands A and B, which would clearly alter their character and negatively
impact their ecological value significantly.

Given the fact that this hypothetical alternative would have significant economic and
ecological detriments, it was rejected. It clearly is far more feasible and prudent to utilize the
existing wetlands as an integral part of the stormwater system as the applicant has proposed.

Alternative Methods or Designs

In her October 24" review of the WUP application as submitted, Ms. Tripp expressed
concern that the stormwater plan as originally submitted was “utilizing the wetlands for water

vOICE(

Environmental
Group, LLC




M. Kieselbach
December 12, 2018
Page 10

quality treatment and not adequately addressing water quality treatment in the sediment forebays
prior to discharging into the wetlands.” The original plans did, in fact, contemplate limited
filtration/treatment by the proposed forebays and utilizing the wetlands for both the first flush
and 100-year storm events.

A primary reason that we have federal, state and local wetland protection statutes is
precisely because wetlands do provide valuable water quality treatment functions (storage,
sediment filtration, nutrient retention, etc). Wetlands A and B on this site are no exception as
Ms. Tripp has noted, which is why, in my professional opinion, these wetlands are and should
remain an integral part of the stormwater management/water quality treatment system. However,
it is my opinion that is does make sense to design and size the sediment forebays such that they
can receive and detain the first flush of storm events of the drainage areas feeding them to
provide as much pre-treatment of stormwater prior to discharging into the wetlands as Ms. Tripp
has suggested. Accordingly, it is the applicant’s and project engineer’s intent to do so in the
final design for each of these structures.

In summary, the plan that has been proposed, as discussed and modified herein, is

intended to maintain the existing hydrological regimes and water level fluctuation patterns and
characteristic of both wetlands and to pretreat stormwater input into these wetlands such that
adverse impacts to the wetlands is avoided or minimized to the maximum extent possible. It is
my professional opinion that there are no feasible and prudent alternative locations or methods
that would to accomplish stormwater management that would further avoid or minimize impacts
to the subject wetlands. Since both wetlands are characterized by seasonal and periodic water
fluctuations, the additional water input (managed and controlled as described herein) may
actually result in a positive benefit to the character and diversity of these wetlands).

Section 22-157(2)(c) The extent and permanence of the beneficial or detrimental effects which
the proposed activity may have on the public and private uses to which the area is suited,
including the benefits the wetlands provide.

In her October 24™ Application Review, Ms. Tripp noted that Wetlands A and B provide
the following functions and values: Water storage, water quality improvement, groundwater
recharge, wildlife habitat, and aesthetic value. I agree and it is precisely because of the capacity
of these wetlands to provide these functions that they should be an integral part of the stormwater
management plan.

As indicated herein, the proposed stormwater plan, including but not limited to the
installation of 12 forebays that will capture and treat 100% of the first flush volume and the
installation of outlets in both Wetlands A and B at design elevations to properly handle the
additional water input to these wetlands, is specifically designed to maintain existing wetland
hydrology and not adversely impact site wetlands, such that the functions listed are not
negatively affect but rather enhanced.

vOICE(W

Environmental
Group, LLC




M. Kieselbach
December 12,2018
Page 11

The outlet elevations, as detailed above, are specifically designed such that the
introduction of additional stormwater into Wetland A will NOT result in conversion of the
wetland into a pond and to ensure that Wetland B will NOT become inundated to the extent that
its trees will die, resulting in conversion from forested wetland to wetland meadow, emergent
wetland, or pond. Just as importantly these elevations are intended to also ensure that sufficient
water remains in each of the wetlands to allow the seasonal water level fluctuations that currently
occur through evaporation and infiltration into the ground to continue.

Given the above design and measures there will be no “conversion of wetland into ponds
that would result in a net loss of regulated Township wetlands,” which as Ms. Tripp has noted,
“is prohibited by the Township’s Wetland Protection ordinance.”

Since neither wetland currently has any inlets or outlets, Ms. Tripp is correct in her
statement that “adjustment of the wetlands’ water budget to prevent conversion of wetland to a
water body is therefore dependent upon dewatering the wetlands through appropriate designed
outlet structures.” The design elevations of those structures, and the basis for those design
elevations, is outlined in detail above. KEBS, in consultation with Voice Environmental, has
intentionally set these outlet structures at what we believe are the appropriate elevations based on

the existing upland/wetland boundaries present. Furthermore, the final design of these
structures, again, once the land use plan is approved, will ensure that these structures have the
appropriate capacity to dewater the wetlands as needed to maintain wetland hydrology required
for the emergent wetland (Wetland A) and the forested wetland (Wetland B).

In her review, Ms. Tripp indicated that “The stormwater detention outlet calculations
identify the control of the first flush event for water quality management within the wetlands.
This appears to be in addition to the sediment forebays.”

Response: As indicated above and in the submitted application, the sediment forebays
and not the wetlands themselves will be designed to handle the first flush volumes.

Mr. Tripp also indicated that “the stormwater management plans identify new wetland
areas around the perimeter of the existing wetlands, without providing details to support how or
why these areas would become wetland, or what type of wetlands would develop.

Response: There are no new wetland areas that are being proposed to be created around
the perimeter of the existing wetland or anywhere on the site.

Section 22-157(2)(d) The probable impact of each proposal in relation to the cumulative effect
created by other existing and anticipated activities in the watershed.

I agree with Ms. Tripp that there are no identified cumulative impacts of the proposed
project.

Section 22-157(2)(e) The probable impact on recognized historic, cultural, scenic, ecological, or
recreational values and on the public health or safety, or fish or wildlife.

vOICE(®

Environmental
Group, LLC




M. Kieselbach
December 12,2018
Page 12

As I have indicated repeatedly above, the proposed stormwater plan has been
intentionally designed such to account for and effectively control the introduction of additional
stormwater into site wetlands such that they will not convert into open water bodies and the
existing functions and ecological values of the wetlands are not impaired.

I agree with Ms. Tripp that no impacts on recognized historic, cultural, scenic or
recreational values or impacts on fish, public health or safety are apparent for the proposed

activities.

Section 22-157(2)(f) Economic value, both public and private, of the proposed land change to
the general township area.

Newton Park is a financially-attractive and high-quality mixed use project proposed in
the Township. It will meet the Township’s goals of a safe, healthy and sustainable community.

e [t will enhance incentives for investment by the ability to mix residential with

commercial and office uses within the same development.

e It will provide specific community amenities.

e [t will achieve creating attractive and commercially successful core areas through
cooperative development projects with one or more land owners.

e It will encourage mitigation to lessen potential hazards associated with the location of a
mixed use PUD.

e [t will increase Township prosperity goals and citizen welfare by appreciated property
values which will support necessary public services.

Section 22-157(2)(g) The size and quality of the wetland being considered.

The proposed activities will result in stormwater being discharged into an approximately
4.78-acre marsh/forested wetland complex (Wetland A) and an approximately 0.746-acre
forested wetland (Wetland B). Both wetlands are currently provided stormwater

Section 22-157(2)(h) The findings of necessity for the proposed activity which have been made
by other agencies.

Neither FTCH nor Voice Environmental is aware of any specific findings of necessity for
the proposed activity which have been made by other agencies.

However, the Meridian Township Zoning Ordinance states that “planned unit
developments shall, where feasible, provide for underground installation of utilities in both
public ways and private extensions thereof. Provisions shall be made for construction of storm
sewer facilities including grading, gutters, piping, and treatment of turf to handle storm waters,
prevent erosion and the formation of dust. This could include the establishment of retention

vOICE(

Environmental
Group, LLC



M. Kieselbach
December 12, 2018
Page 13

basins in order to minimize storm water runoff. Utilities and maintenance of facilities shall be in
accordance with the requirements and regulations of Meridian Charter Township.” The design
we are proposing that incorporates the use of the on-site wetlands will meet Meridian Charter
Township requirements and regulations.

Section 22-157(2)(i) Amount of wetland remaining in the general area and proximity to a
waterway.

This consideration was adequately addressed in Mr. Tripp’s October 24™ application
review, in which she noted the following:

¢ According to the Township wetland map, Wetlands A and B are located approximately
500 feet and 100 feet (respectively) northwest of Township Wetland 4-22, a 47.75-acre
wetland complex. The Costigan Drain, a designated county drain, flows through this
wetland.

e Wetlands A and B are located approximately 1,800 feet north of the Costigan Drain. The
Costigan Drain discharges into Lake Lansing via the Pine Lake Outlet Intercounty Drain.

Section 22-157(2)(j) Proximity to any waterbody.

This consideration was also adequately addressed in Mr. Tripp’s October 24 application
review, in which she noted the following:

e Lake Lansing is located approximately 0.9 mile east of Wetlands A and B.

e Anapproximately 3.8-acre pond is located approximately 0.25 mile north-northeast of
Wetlands A and B.

Section 22-157(2)(k) Extent to which upland soil erosion adjacent to the protected wetland is
controlled.

In her application review, Ms. Tripp noted the following:

e Asoil erosion and sedimentation control (SESC) plan was not submitted as part of the WUP
application.

Response: This is true. The SESC plan and application will be prepared and submitted once the
Townships Land Use Committee has approved the site plan and final site engineering, including
but not limited to the requested design details for the forebays, equalization pipe between
Wetlands A and B, and the outlet from Wetland A, has been completed.

e Design details for the stormwater pipes and forebays were not provided to assure that
appropriate measures would be implemented to curtail erosion resulting from stormwater flow.

vOICE@W

Environmental
Group, LLC




M. Kieselbach
December 12, 2018
Page 14

Response: This is also true. As indicated above, these design details will be provided once the
Townships Land Use Committee has approved the site plan and final site engineering, including
but not limited to the requested design details for the forebays, equalization pipe between
Wetlands A and B, and the outlet from Wetland A, has been completed. Clearly, all required
and appropriate temporary and permanent soil erosion control measures (silt fences, temporary
cover crops, permanent vegetative cover, geotextile fabric and riprap, etc.) will be utilized and
included in the final design as appropriate.

e The potential exists that soil will erode as stormwater is discharged from the numerous
stormwater forebays and flows into Wetland A and B and as it flows through a pipe between
Wetland A and B.

Response: While the potential for erosion from stormwater discharge exists on any site or
project, appropriate and effective soil erosion control measures (both temporary and permanent)
will be utilized as required and/or appropriate to ensure that soil will not erode as stormwater is
discharged from the numerous forebays into Wetlands A and B or as it flows through the pipe
between Wetlands A and .

RESPONSE TO THE FTCH’s “RECOMMENDATIONS”

In the Recommendations section of her October 24™ Application Review, and as noted at
the beginning of this letter/application review response, Ms. Tripp indicated that insufficient
information was submitted in the original WUP application to ensure that irreparable harm
would not result to the site wetlands from proposed stormwater discharge to the wetlands.

Understanding that there are additional design details that still need to be prepared and
submitted to the Township/FTCH for their review and approval, which will be done as soon as
the Township’s Land Use Committee approves the site plan for the project, it is my professional
opinion that this document, the updated stormwater plans, design details and calculations
presented herein have clearly documented that irreparable harm will not result to the wetlands on
the site. Specifically:

e Wetland hydrology will not be altered to the extent that the wetlands become ponds, instead
of wetlands.

@ Appropriate erosion control measures for all of the water control structures that will be
discharging water down the slopes between the numerous forebays to the wetlands will be
undertaken and as such, will prevent the deposition of soil within the wetlands.

e The stormwater management plan as updated and detailed herein proposes and adequately
addresses water quality treatment in the sediment forebays prior to discharging into the
wetlands.

voicE(W

Environmental
Group, LLC




M. Kieselbach
December 12, 2018

Page 15

REQUEST FOR WUP APPROVAL FROM THE
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION

Given the updated and/or additional information, site plans, design details and water

budget calculations presented in this document which demonstrate that “irreparable damage to
the wetlands will not occur,” Newton Pointe, LLC is respectfully requesting approval of their
pending Wetland Use Permit (WUP) application to:

Discharge stormwater into Wetlands A and B via storm sewers and curb cuts.

Construct forebays in upland at each stormwater outlet, with the forebays providing
sufficient capacity for 100% of the first flush volume. Some of forebays will be
constructed within the 40-foot wetland buffer near the wetland boundary and some would
be constructed outside of it.

Install a 12” equalization storm pipe between Wetlands A and B.

Construct an outlet structure at the southwest end of Wetland A to allow stormwater to
discharge to the municipal stormwater system.

As indicated above, final design details and/or elevations for all of the proposed

structures will of course be prepared and submitted for review and approval by the
Township/FTCH once the Meridian Township Land Use Committee has approved the proposed
site plan for the project and site.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Sincerely,
VOICE ENVIRO GROUP LLC

%e MS, PWS, CSE

Senior Ecologist & Regulatory Specialist

Enclosures: 2 Appendices

CC:

C. Holman
R. Uppal
J. Kyes

G. Petru

vOICE(®

Environmental
Group, LLC




M. Kieselbach
December 12, 2018
Page A-1

APPENDIX A.

Updated/Additional Site Plans for WUP Permit Application #18-03

Sheet 1 of 3: Map of Existing Drainage Area to Wetlands A and B
Sheet 2 of 3: Map of Proposed (Post-Development) Drainage Area to Wetlands A and B

Sheet 3 of 3: Updated MUPUD Plan

vOICE@W

Environmental
Group, LLC




12226

ANVAN03 INIWISVNYH NLG|

¥ oo, un oy
N zz-u ava
P o] v = vos|
Wid TV oAISIG
ANdNA ded ToIMaN

RGBT e
U0 Py o Eiaich

i

r0a-acx=a1s Xve, wiDl-ocE=cis Ha o B
Ovou I "LLITYH @YOU LLIEVH OIiE e o

amon sa° ONI "Sg3X

('M-0'y 3aM 99 — onand)
avoyd ¥3INMOL

1 P
e

J:__u NRNN
ALY

& [
l:e:..\.v ¥

\

&5 v e

\
J9vN

Ivdd ONILSI

===----.-

N
P

99 - onend) Q| 0

\

Sam
avQd NOLM3N

'

(Mo

e — —h—

JSROY 8Ly = T T
WUONTEM T T T

NYOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WYHONI ‘diHSNMOL NYIQI¥3N
g ONV V SANYLLIM OL Sv3dY 30VNIVHJ ONLSIX3

ANdNN Jred UoImMaN




nwﬁi ANVAHOD NZWIIVNYK NG|
¥ son) 49 oEmoHINY |
v @ T o o o] 41—zt Tiva
0 el ape| 09 =i TS NN R et

WVid SOVNYEQ C3500081
QNN ed U0LaN

000G-IRL G0 W
0 won

A et

LYOU-EKC=LIG XVA PIOL=OKE-LIC Wd

= AY
VDY I LLIYH OVOY LIISYH BUT “HHH
e ane NI 'S8 HHMl»!!Illxllltl
<3
(@]
<
C
2=
om
| M
5
82
Ex
\Mlm{\
[25
| =
€T =" SONVIEM oo
39VYNIVYA TIFSO

d0dd

' = 04 NVAM3N aNY
100W Ol 39VYNIVdQ
J3s0d0yd

(M'0'¥ 3aM 99 — OMENd)
avoy d3INMOL

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WYHONI ‘dIHSNMOL NYIGRIW
8 ONV V SONVILIM OL SYIYY J9VNIVYA (LNIWJOTIAIQ-1SOd) 03S0d0Nd

dNdNIN 3Ted UoImaN




12226  ANVAW0D INIWZOVNVH NL|
¥ eor) A8 TEZROHLNV|

T & cums T
y ) Sl a9 = vos |

NYid INGRGIVNVA MLVM RS

QNN e DOIMON

COGE-1BL=E0T Ud
010 RSN

LY00-BCC LIS XVd, $IOI-ECE=LIG Hd
Or29y I "LLTEVH ‘Ov0H LLITSYH DT

Somes sa- ONI 'SE3X

H1QIM 404 NY1d 33

AVE3H04
AN3WIO3S 40 ¥ALIWNIL ®

Z-r

MO 14

wﬁ
('v10,21-,9) dvidiy

j&%ﬁ

t w=  [g]
y 3
o

Y
\ﬂmm._.._ 14 O1yEvd
v

V=V NOILO35 S35050

310H ¥NDJS 40 3903
//Wég?J

3OS ON
JAQ d3ddvE MO0d

T10H HN0JS GIN0LI8d
30 AR WY Td

CITT

A3
LE

o | [t | sl

CNAL LS

- ﬁ - wmm_ it =2
i V=V Moo

N
W\

A\

AN
W\
T

\

-

S

<

7
N N

04

wenlefe

LT M D YUY o
RS - AT O MNMONE

NY1d andni

A
S
= =
.
o
(@)
5
c
2=
om
=
- Yo
Q=
=
=il
\N\W,
el
qu
=
Z

TR ERE
T
o me v
Foy :
—— A
m Sy T ——
RIS T
i — — —
P
ooy S S
R S
N
Py el gyl s
LT g R g e
TERE T Ee




M. Kieselbach
December 12, 2018
Page B-1

APPENDIX B.

Proposed Water Budget for Newton Park MUPUD project
Newton Pointe, LLC, WUP Permit Application #18-03

voicE®

Environmental
Group, LLC




Proposed Water Budget for Newton Park:

Existing Runoff to Wetland ‘A’ and ‘B’: 15.01 Acres
Existing ‘C’ Coefficient: 0.20

First Flush Volume = (3,630 x A x C) =3,630x 15,10 x 0.20 = 10,897 CFT

Channel Protection Volume = (8784.6 x A x C) = 8784.6 x 15.10 x 0.20 =26,371 CFT

100—Year Volume = 56,666 CFT (See Spreadsheet)

Volume Available in existing Wetlands:

868.90 0 0

869.0 112,904 sf 3,759 cft  (Volume from 868.9 to 869.0)

870.0 178,175 sf 145,540 cft (Volume from 869.0 to 870.0)

871.0 479,810 sf 328.994 cft (Volume from 870 to 871.0)
Total Volume Available = 478,293 cft

With no outlet other than infiltration/evaporation, etc. use back to back 100-Year Volumes to determine
maximum water level in the wetland area under existing conditions. V = 56,666 x 2 = 113,332 cft

Water Level for Existing Wetland = 869.0 + (113,332 — 3,759)/(145,540) = 869.75




Proposed Water Budget for Newton Park (Continued):

Proposed Runoff to Wetland ‘A’ and ‘B’: 23.22 Acres
Proposed ‘C’* Coefficient: 0.51

First Flush Volume = (3,630 x A x C) =3,630x23.22x0.51 =42,987 CFT

Channel Protection Volume = (8784.6 x A x C) =8784.6 x 23.22 x 0.51 = 104,029 CFT

100-Year Volume = 154,166 CFT (See Spreadsheet, only using 0.04 cfs/acre as allowable outflow)

Volume Available in existing Wetlands:

868.90 0 ‘ 0

869.0 112,904 sf 3,759 cft  (Volume from 868.9 to 869.0)

870.0 178,175 st ' 145,540 cft (Volume from 869.0 to 870.0)

871.0 479,810 sf 328,994 cft (Volume from 870 to 871.0)
Total Volume Available = 478,293 cft

With a proposed outflow of 0.93 cfs (Only 0.04 cfs/acre), use the 100-Year Volume to determine
maximum water level in the wetland area under proposed conditions. V = 154,166 cft

Water Level for Existing Wetland = 870.0 + (154,166- 3,759-145,540)/(328,994) = 870.02

Summary: The wetland water budget was compared with existing conditions and proposed
conditions. The volume increase was determined to be 40,834 cft when we used a runoff of
0.04 cfs/acre. Ingham County will generally allow 0.15 cfs/acre to be allowable, but we have
reduced this to utilize the large wetland area. Using the above data, the increase to the wetland
would be from an elevation of 869.75 to 870.02, or 0.27°, or about 3.




Detention Requirement and Discharge Allowance for Small Sites

[ Existae Conp rrlo«!;&

Storm Outlet: Existing Wetland 'A' and 'B' Existing "C" Value 0.20
Job Name: Newton Park Proposed "C" Value 0.20
Job Number: 92272 Aaximum Allowable Outflow (CFS) 0.00
Drainage Area (Acres) 15.01 Storm Recurrence Interval (Yrs) 100
A B C D E F i
Duration Rainfall 100% | Runoff Runoff Outflow Storage :
(Per NWS Bulletin 71) Runott "c" (Ac.-Ft) (Ac.-Ft) (Ac.-Ft.) |
20 min. 1.57 1.964 | 0.20 0.393 0.000 0.393 |
30 min. 1.92 2,402 | 0.20 0.480 0.000 0.480 )
40 min. 2.10 2.627 ]0.20 0.525 0.000 0.525 ‘
I hr, 244 | 3.052 [020 [ 0.610 0.000 0.610
2 hr. 3.02 3.778 1 0.20 0.756 0.000 0.756 ‘
3 hr, 3.33 4,165 1020 0.833 0.000 0.833
4 hr. 352 | 4403 [020 | 0.881 0.000 0.881
5 hr. 3.71 4.641 0.20 0.928 0.000 0.928
6-hr. 3.90 4.878-1-0.20 0.976 0:000 0.976 '
8 hr. 4.11 5.141 0.20 1.028 0.000 1.028 s
10 hr. 4.30 5379 |0.20 1.076 0.000 1.076 ‘
12 hr. 4.52 5.654 | 0.20 1.131 0.000 1.131 ,
18 hr. 4.89 | 6.117 [0.20 1.223 0.000 1.223 5
24 hr, 5.20 6.504 ]0.20 1.301 0.000 1.301

A) Inches of Rainfall: The numbers provided are taken from the National Weather Service

Bulletin #71

B) 100% Runoff for

of acres.

15.01 Acres: Divide inches of rainfall by 12 and multiply by number

C) Proposed % Runoff: Insert selected "C" value. "C" value of the total site can be adjusted
as a ratio of impervious area, plus 0.05 for vacant area.

D) Runoff: Multiply 100% runoff value by "C" value.

E) Outflow: Multiply outflow in ¢fs by duration in hours, then by 3600 and divide by 43,560.

F) Storage Required: Subtract Outflow from Runoff. Storage value will increase to a peak
value and then decrease. The peak (largest) value for storage should be used.

*  Maximum allowable Outflow (FCS) Q=CA (C exist) Q(CFS)=0

KEBS INC. Runoff Detention (cft): By: Date:

2116 Haslett Road 5666 11/2/2018
Haslett, MI 48840 J HULTT LY B 2 Foz gp

(517) 339-1014 el v GAUC BT

o2, LTENTION

—
-

12337 afr




Detention Requirement and Discharge Allowance for Small Sites

( Ppotosed Cowd rrion \5}
Storm Outlet: Existing Wetland 'A' and 'B' Existing "C" Value 0.20
Job Name: Newton Park Proposed "C" Value N
Job Number: 92272 Aaximum Allowable Outflow (CFS) 0.93
Drainage Area (Acres) 23.22 Storm Recurrence Interval (Yis) 100
A B C D E F
Duration Rainfall 100% Runoff Runoff Outflow Storage
(Per NWS Bulletin 71) Runott "cr (Ac.-Ft.) (Ac.-Ft) (Ac.-Ft.)
20 min, 1.57 3.038 0.51 1.549 0.026 1.524
30 min. 1.92 3.715 0.51 1.895 0.038 1.856
40 min., 2.10 4.064 0.51 2.072 0.051 2.021
1 hr. 2.44 4,721 0.51 2.408 0.077 2.331
2 hr, 3.02 5.844 | 0.51 2.980 0.154 2.827
3 hr. 3.33 6.444 0.51 3.286 0.231 3.056
4 hr, 3.52 6.811 0.51 3.474 0.307 _3.166
5 hr. 3.71 7.179 | 0.51 3.661 0.384 3.277
6 hr 3.90 7.547-|-0.51 3.849 0.461 3.388
8 hr, 4.11 7.953 0.51 4.056 0.615 3.441
10 hr, 4.30 8.321 0.51 4.243 0.769 3.475
12 hr. 4.52 8.746 | 0.51 4.461 0.922 3.538
18 hr, 4.89 9.462 | 0.51 4.826 1.383 3.442
24 hr, 5.20 10.062 | 0.51 5.132 1.845 3.287

A) Inches of Rainfall: The numbers provided are taken from the National Weather Service

Bulletin #71

B) 100% Runoff for

of acres.

23.22 Acres: Divide inches of rainfall by 12 and multiply by number

C) Proposed % Runoff: Insert selected "C" value. "C" value of the total site can be adjusted
as a ratio of impervious area, plus 0.05 for vacant area.

D) Runoff: Multiply 100% runoff value by "C" value.

E) Outflow: Multiply outflow in cfs by duration in hours, then by 3600 and divide by 43,560.

F) Storage Required: Subtract Outflow from Runoff. Storage value will increase to a peak
value and then decrease. The peak (largest) value for storage should be used.

*  Maximum allowable Outflow (FCS) Q= 0.04 CFS/ACRE Q(CFS)= 0.93

KEBS INC. Runoff Detention (cft): By: Date:

2116 Haslett Road 154126

Haslett, MI 48840 2D 117212018

(517) 339-1014




\
—— -

==

IQ (PUBLIC

\

l
NEWTON ROAD
66’ WIDE\ R.O.W.)

\O\ ~

NVOIHOIN "ALNNOD WYHONI "dIHSNMOL NVIQI43N
d NV V SANV'ILIM OL SV4dV JOVNIVHd ONILSIX
ANdIN 2ed UOIMIN

w

“<s=TF
SeTresce ss¢
ML L T T PO
" s -
" ur " w
B P P =
o e " e
- . - o
" " " =7
o - o k-

Y. ANVIL3IMm

~
cecssss "t
_—
Ed w
ot L3
" -
£ 3
3 3
i t

SIYOV 8L

=

-
W

£
£
=
=
£

s
oo
o

LAAAND

3

L

0C¢0
JOVNIVYA ONILSIX3 !

OV 1O°GL
SANVILIM O

\

AVLLINGNS
andni 81—-G-0l
NV1d Ld3ONOJ andni

M3IAFY Od
AVLLINGNS £1—62—C1L

andni 81L—61—LL

SNOISIA3Y

2

«b f3VOS

‘A8 J3ZIYOHLNY

L1—-¢2—1L1 ‘A1va

09

NVId 3OVNIVYA ONILSIX3

ANdNIN FTed UOIMIN

AMP
*43INOIS3A

me

ONI ‘Sg3x

ANVAWOD LNIWIOVNVIW NL1d

3240 IIDYSION

0086—18.-69Z ‘uUd
LYOB—6EE—LLG 'XVY VIOI—6EE—LIS "Hd

# gor
me
‘A8_Q3A0¥ddY

L2226
€ 40 L L33HS
0¥88Y IN ‘LLTISYH ‘QVOY LLTISVH 941Z
SAJANNS ONV1 NVANE °
ONINIINIONT SIAN

28748 = ANl
L33ATIND ONOD $Z

AvOod dINMOL

(‘M'O°¥ 3am ,99 — 2I1and)




\
I P

/

e
o

\

l
NEWTON ROAD

5
SO o) -
— /o

A 0 ()(PUBLIC — 66’ WIDE R.O.W.)
\ / \ Q. ~

T T

ONIdTING

3snoHan1d

350dodd| L/

SONVILIM OL

o
E |
o
E |
J
. 2
IZ
i >|l
N rcl% E | E i 3 8\ 3 i 3 3
u ! i i s B i \n\ v 8 \
* E | @ i B i k5 3 i T~ B
l\) 3 ; i 3 3 ; 3 \\ 3 u/ b\)
N i 3 » i 3 T ‘ » »

-
w
w
w
P
w

wr
wr
e
wr
3

-
P
w
o

10’898 =

i JdAL 3
C_—o—

—

'AN:/

" L¥3AIN0 ONOD .2
~

3%

N
s

8L°698 = ANI MS
16°698 = ‘Al
L¥AAIND 9
o,
7
/

7

o2lug [ER
cLlsT e |2
E‘f’ﬁ.‘.“‘f’m
Az |83 (=
== E%w@
5| 2|85 |0
5| °|25|Z
g3 |~
Zl_
o> 9olw
2538
ZE 7| G
32| ®
25 4|7 i
N
ZOIR| i
ow—s = N
m=32]x2 ,Ig"
X 82 mmw
m Cc V<OV = =
2 EElis |, @
— o* 812 x o
m Ol'"lb = UI_'—_|
o ol &l° T oam
O — %oy—u N |:IZ
< < § c4 a;u
T @ Z o g 25 |
Z SR |2 _P
=< m ==
o >»I | D
o S x> |2
o oo ? =
5 o v | <
[ [N 4 © "_’ull"_" %H
o5 2 g5 C 33| 2@
N D m ) |- cm
Ne | T3 D uz (28
o 4= 185
N 2 ts oz
N o [s ) cm
o O 22 |53
o < 'Fs Z
» &

AV LG'°¢

dd NVAMIN ANV
10dAN Ol 3J9OVNIVYAJ

d350d0dd

NYOIHOIN "ALNNOD WYHONI "dIHSNMOL NVIQI43IN

8 ANY ¥ SANYILIM OL SY3IYY IOYNIVYA (LNIWJOT3AIA—1SO0d) d3S0doyd

Z8C.8 =—AN|

LY¥3AINO ONOD #2

(‘M'O°¥ 3am ,99 — 2I1and)

AvOod dINMOL

AN 2Ted UOIMIN




MUPUD PLAN

Newton Park MUPUD

INV.—= 87”
—

%
5

SCALE 1” = 60’

IE +0.00' (SEE PLANS) _ H _
LEGEND EX. LEGEND — TBD. 0’ 60’ 120’ 180’
— g T CoNToRs P ———— mb ROCK RIP-RAP, D _ =6"~{2" _
L m R ER O - FOUND RON AS NOTED
.f- . ELEVATIO|
——— mwwmmm%%_mmwkémﬁ T Irae T ) QRIS
B " N mﬂw_ﬂm_m.moe‘mm&w M SEWER = ASPHALT o = UTILITY POLE dr mwmmmuxj_.m
a PROPOSED C.B. = CONCRETE % = LIGHT POLE THICKNESS = 147
> R._>._H___..__.m_|m>ﬁwmmﬂvmz._. w MV_M_MM_\._M—,_MQ SPOT ELEVATION 7 T oY roE
e g oo B e o o 5 1o SHCTIOR A=A
PROPERTY LINE 129} = OVERHEAD WIRES — = SIGN L = T.B.D
% FIRE HYDRANT ° = POST = [.B.D.
2 THRUST BLOCK A ] A
AT/C 800.00 PROPOSED TOP OF CURB ELEV. A \A TBD. J )
Q0 —_
EX. SEWER INVENTORIES BENCHMARKS ‘ rop.
SANITARY MANHOLE #200 BENCHMARK #1 ELEV. = 869.61 (NAVD88) %\A v&
RIM ELEV. = 867.94 60D NAIL IN NORTH SIDE OF POWER POLE, 25t EAST I
8" N INV. = 855.81 OF EDGE OF ASPHALT OF NEWTON ROAD, & 200’t
8” PVC NE INV. = 855.66 NORTH OF TOWNER ROAD. PLAN VIEW OF
SE INV. = 857.60 -
10" VCP SW INV. = 855.61 BENCHMARK #2 ELEV. = 876.54 (NAVD88)
FOUND RAILROAD SPIKE IN SOUTHWEST SIDE OF POWER
SANITARY MANHOLE #201 POLE, APPROXIMATELY 20’ SOUTH OF TOWNER ROAD &
_N_Z ELEV. = 854.32 APPROXIMATELY 95" NORTHWESTERLY OF CENTERLINE OF
8" PVC E INV. = 847.61 WESTBOUND M-78.
8" PVC W INV. = 847.78 TBD., ROCK RP_RAP. .
mv_z_m\_.ym/w ,m&um_.umq #202 mw 4 _\ L = TB.D.
8 PVC N INV. = 853.19 . o | I
8" PVC SW INV. = 853.16 o 1 G e o A \ / / B N : _n_lm_/ \ H l; . GEOTEXTILE N \ Vo \ j
. = B6B. A J — : — HICKNESS = 14"
~ — L LA A// \ ~ 7 = . - - b ’ A A
L R /Qh / . ’ AN — —
e . \ v = \ Nl \ { < | | SECTION A—A A : 4
. ~ 4 \ \ : QO _ a +
P \. N s = v 71 / C2 / / O@ \ \ 4 : SIZE_END ESTIMATED I 3 do W= TBD
= \ \¢ | / / M { U_ p \ : 7 SECTON'|LENGTH (L) WOTH (W) [ AREA ™ WOLUVE, .
R ~ { \ | TYPE /. \ =< \ ] , _Mo.. 8 5 4.4 17
N N o \ U 4 : 15" 10 6 6.7 2.6
4 e e s //» P rm () \ L , 18" 11 8 9.8 3.8
T e ) 2 | _ R R —x
e e e e e \ N J _r/ \ | — — @ N S~ J , 27" 16 11 19.6 7.6
e e e e . . LTITOA ERSEEAN N \ _ e | Mmu WW ﬁw wwm mm PLAN VIEW OF
2% /AN N \ /s 1 4) 26 20 | 6o 225 PREFORMED SCOUR HOLE
) . ) ) o Ja,/ . // A e \ / / \ vx ] b 54" 29 23 74.1 28.8
P — /< / y Na 60 32 25 88.9 34.6
o T W%@./., SN / / Y /_ , J/ Co ¥ \p\d ,
/ ~ °, —_— s ~
N Nt / ./ | \([ D /%v(ﬂ L) and / J > o
= . S S = = = i = = E = & % \ Ow \ — & D ww
= s . Vg o \
: 1oe /
.. fEnwenT FoReRa— - : X _, AN \ /j%mm/ / | / / m ,ﬂ s ROCK BARRIER OVERFLOW
| 2 Vo N \ / / J |
R R Y U R R R LT S | NO SCALE
O PO R | ; \ / - [/
N XD S /A
S e Bl B | / . | N
SR S G A / \./// : n \ \ | i o0 Rn0q
| / o /N / SAG R 2
- - @ @ - @ @ - - _ = V.u .u/.w " _._‘ A mZ._..mmmG_»mﬁw}< zz_ 5 Y p / P \ N \ / ,\/& m_U__l_l<<>/ﬂ m_lm< ._uw_u — |O Q O@@%W@Oﬂ \_ v Nq
) F | 4 0 AN \ ] EPN P 0295 QO QIRARD D%@
A S AN PN /@ / /L S S ORAGSEAE
e e e e e e e e a el _ \\\ Y VR \ C4 ( i \ , o6 b
/ /' . TYPE 2 \ | I
BUILDIN \ Coe e e e e e ey I \ \ TRRE: | —
| A \ . e w\ e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e a www. ) X p /— ,_ \ \ < {ENGTH PER PLA
‘ — e, o -
. / : ~ . / ,
o | N Tt NN .
BRA —~ L. .. . _ : ! N L L LN L L e, N , / EDGE OF SCOUR HOLE
A r  werLAnD T \ IR\ w IR / CROSS SECTION A—A & PERIMETER OF SEDIMENT
BN VAN - A.O <<m._- Z_U N \ | / . / ~ e, d \
A R i Al O . IS \ 90" *“WETEAND = = \A/CTF ANIA S _ ‘ i FOREBAY
i / . SETBACK I WETLAND ™\ | "
ol \ , - i P, seeack o JIYEIANE S L
1 . . LD ey - P It 18
= [ . o . e A=A
D Q - - . __ d \ \ \\ %m/ 9 9
< Y , _ ’ \\\ | RIPRAP Am —12 U_>.v
Sw s s e \_} o FABRIC FILTER o
x 2 . e AR i M\
= - R e / e > A N
R CR - S R — ROPOSED STORM— \ ‘ \\ [ / \DDD DDD/
Z © e, . — £ avey — - 19 / / 1 / D@ | T~
O © mvmo_u/Gmmu(.pl T e S an © & \%\\\ / / \DD - /A\/
— LOUTLET STRUCTUREs:".. .= — y L, Bl T L / 7 W S / O \ n \—SEE PLAN FOR WIDTH
_ Lo e —= e el S — & /| 7 'y / &) )
= AR B==a90 ) A [°] PLAN \ © )\
Ll O 5| / g \\ % . —
I / ,
- < Vol
~ / ¥ %
a ~ \,: ] V /,
~ ——— - _ = _
- , I A
_ |/ % b ,, —+—— = Y [l KYES ENGINEERING
‘ ‘ . h \_ o~ O :; \\ REVISIONS mem. INC. &rvan LAND SURVEYS
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, : " pOOL s , : | 5 . B S = el | [ 12-29-17 SUBMITTAL
CYR CLUBHOUSE = , B il L e w/w 111 a MUPUD CONCERT PLAN 2116 HASLETT ROAD, HASLETT, MI 48840
L m | - g -1 1 / Ww/ R Z: / ’ 10-5—18 MUPUD ® PH. 517-339-1014 FAX. 517-339-8047
- " 0 /BY \ B8 \ i | , mcumz__HE. .
% % \ NN | 11-19-18 MUPUD Marshall Office
Aaw // W\ |\ // , PC REVEW Ph. 269-781-9800
- / 1~ \ i /W
- = e \ |\ N
RbLE e SR DR RRNT A Newton Park MUPUD
B = ol | / e VAW /// /C //, STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN
= S 1 - % e R T A N gy f\ SCALE: 1°= 60 om\w_ozm? ><_w__wmo<mo BY:
— - At | — == 7 - S N N W :,¢ : S :
——= L il mmm‘h,mo&mmmmw.mwwc oy — — * 875 _ £, = /7 ) AV, / & /) &MN / pry DATE: 112217 |[ROUECT MGR. SHEET 3 OF 3
e VR0 e soum T T A R-% ~ S~ e E )8R /|
Rl Y 80 \ \ 5N \ A 2P/ AUTHORIZED BY: JOB #
\ Nt | ~ apd — — — — ~ J \ \ \ P I o) Ty g DTN MANAGEMENT COMPANY  |92227




October 24, 2018 (Revised November 2, 2018)
Project No. G181579

Mr. Mark Kieselbach

Charter Township of Meridian
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, M| 48864

Re: Wetland Use Permit #18-03 Application Review
Newton Pointe, LLC
Newton Park MUPUD

Dear Mr. Kieselbach:

Newton Pointe, LLC (the Applicant) is requesting to discharge stormwater into two wetlands regulated by the
Charter Township of Meridian (Township), in association with a proposed residential housing development
located at 6276 Newton Road, Haslett, Michigan.

At the request of the Township, FTCH reviewed the Wetland Use Permit (WUP) request, including the following:
® An undated Joint Permit Application prepared by the Applicant;

e Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report, dated February 22, 2018, prepared by Voice Environmental
Group, LLC (Voice);

e Newton Park MUPUD Stormwater Management Existing Drainage to Wetland figure, prepared by KEBS, Inc.
and dated November 12, 2017;

e Newton Park MUPUD Stormwater Management Plan Prop Drain Map, prepared by KEBS, Inc. and dated
November 12, 2017; and

e Two sheets of stormwater detention calculations.

This report provides a brief description of the resources that would be impacted by the proposed work,
evaluates WUP Application #18-03 according to review standards in the Township Wetland Protection
Ordinance (Article IV of Chapter 22 of the Code of Ordinances of the Charter Township of Meridian), and makes
recommendations to the Township regarding issuance or denial of the WUP application. This evaluation is
limited to a review of wetland impacts and does not assess broader hydrologic and hydraulic issues pertaining to
stormwater management at the site.

Overview of Proposed Wetland Impacts

The proposed activities are located in Parcel Number 33-02-02-04-252-004 in the northeast quarter of Section 4,
Town 4 North, Range 1 West, Ingham County, Michigan. The parcel is currently undeveloped and contains two
wetlands greater than 0.25-acre in size:

e Wetland A, which is approximately 4.78 acres in size and primarily consists of open marsh. Forested wetland
is located around the perimeter of the marsh. This wetland is designated at Wetland 4-19 on the Township
wetland map.

e Wetland B, which is approximately 0.65-acre in size and consists of forested wetland. This wetland is
designated at Wetland 4-20 on the Township wetland map.

5913 Executive Drive, Suite 100 517.882.0383 | Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc.
Lansing, Michigan 48911 www.ftch.com engineers | scientists | architects | consfructors



Mr. Mark Kieselbach
Page 2
November 2, 2018

Wetland A is regulated by the Township under Article IV (Wetland Protection) of Chapter 22 of the Township's
Code of Ordinances because it is greater than two acres in size. Because Wetland B is less than two acres and
greater than 0.25 acre in size, it is protected under the Township’s wetland ordinance if the Township
determines the wetland is essential to the preservation of the natural resources of the Township as provided in
Section 22-156 of the ordinance.

The Applicant has submitted a WUP application to the Township requesting the following:
e Construct multiple housing units in upland.

e Maintain a 40-foot buffer between site development and Wetlands A and B.

e Discharge stormwater into Wetlands A and B via storm sewers and curb cuts.

e Construct forebays in upland at each stormwater outlet. Some of forebays will be constructed within the
40-foot wetland buffer near the wetland boundary and some would be constructed outside of it. The WUP
application stated the forebays would be sized for the drainage area of each storm pipe and curb spillway.
No design details regarding the forebays were provided to FTCH.

e |Install a storm pipe between Wetlands A and B. The plan denotes forebay symbols at each end of the pipe. It
appears the function of this pipe is to allow water to drain from Wetland B to Wetland A. Design details
regarding this structure were not provided to FTCH.

e Construct an outlet structure at the southwest end of Wetland A to allow stormwater to discharge to the
municipal stormwater system. No plan details regarding the outlet were provided to FTCH. The stormwater
detention calculations do size the outlet structure orifices to control the first flush and 100-year events.

Review of WUP Application

The review standards used to evaluate WUP applications are found in Section 22-157 of Article IV (Wetland
Protection) of Chapter 22 of the Township’s Code of Ordinances. WUPs are not to be issued unless the proposed
activity is found to be in the public interest, the permit is necessary to realize the benefits from the activity, and
the proposed activity is otherwise lawful in all respects. Section 22-157(2) lists eleven general criteria to be
considered when evaluating whether or not a proposed activity is in the public interest. An evaluation of the
proposed activity, according to each of the eleven criteria, is as follows:

Section 22-157(2)(a)  The relative extent of the public and private need for the proposed activity.

e No information regarding the relative extent of the public and private need for the proposed housing
development was provided.

Section 22-157(2)(b)  The availability of feasible and prudent alternative locations and methods to accomplish
the expected benefits from the activity.

e The WUP application’s discussion of feasible and prudent alternatives was limited to the following: “Provide
pretreatment for storm runoff to the wetlands and construct stormwater detention outlet structures from
the wetlands with stormwater outlet to public storm sewers”. This narrative appears to be the proposed
actions and not a discussion of feasible and prudent alternatives.

e No alternative site plans or stormwater management approaches were discussed in the WUP application.
The availability of feasible and prudent alternative locations and methods to accomplish stormwater
management without impacting site wetlands was not discussed in the WUP application.

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2018\181579\WORK\PERMITSREGULATORY\WUP_APP_REVIEW.DOCX



Mr. Mark Kieselbach fT(:{rh

Page 3
November 2, 2018

Section 22-157(2)(c) The extent and permanence of the beneficial or detrimental effects which the proposed
activity may have on the public and private uses to which the area is suited, including the benefits the wetlands
provide.

e Wetlands A and B provide the following functions and values: water storage, water quality improvement,
groundwater recharge, wildlife habitat, and aesthetic value.

e The Applicant did not provide a cogent argument that the proposed stormwater management approach will
maintain existing wetland hydrology and not adversely impact site wetlands. The potential exists that the
introduction of additional stormwater into Wetland A will result in conversion of the wetland into a pond.
The potential exists that Wetland B will become inundated to the extent that its trees will die, resulting in
conversion from forested wetland to wetland meadow, emergent wetland, or pond.

e Conversion of wetland into ponds would result in a net loss of regulated Township wetlands, which is
prohibited by the Township’s Wetland Protection ordinance.

e The additional stormwater entering the wetlands due to site development is not expected to leave the
wetlands to a significant extent through infiltration, because the wetlands have a high water table, as
documented by Voice’s wetland delineation. Adjustment of the wetlands’ water budget to prevent
conversion of wetland to a water body is therefore dependent upon dewatering the wetlands through
appropriately designed outlet structures. Specifically, maintenance of appropriate wetland hydrology is
dependent upon discharge through the outlet structure in Wetland A and the storm pipe between Wetland
A and B. Sufficient detail was not supplied in the WUP application to ensure that the outlet structure and
pipes would be set at appropriate elevations and had appropriate capacity to dewater the wetlands as
needed to maintain wetland hydrology required for emergent wetland (Wetland A) and forested wetland
(Wetland B).

e The stormwater detention outlet calculations identify the control of the first flush event for water quality
management within the wetlands. This appears to be in addition to the sediment forebays.

e The stormwater management plans identify new wetland areas around the perimeter of the existing
wetlands, without providing details to support how or why these areas would become wetland, or what
type of wetlands would develop.

Section 22-157(2)(d)  The probable impact of each proposal in relation to the cumulative effect created by
other existing and anticipated activities in the watershed.

e There are no identified cumulative impacts of the proposed project.

Section 22-157(2)(e)  The probable impact on recognized historic, cultural, scenic, ecological, or recreational
values and on the public health or safety, or fish or wildlife.

e Introduction of additional stormwater into site wetlands may impair the existing functions and values of the
wetlands, especially if the wetlands convert into open water bodies. Degraded wildlife habitat and impaired
ecological value may result.

e No other impacts on recognized historic, cultural, scenic or recreational values are apparent for the
proposed activities. In addition, no impacts on fish or public health or safety are apparent.

Section 22-157(2)(f) Economic value, both public and private, of the proposed land change to the general
township area.

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2018\181579\WORK\PERMITSREGULATORY\WUP_APP_REVIEW.DOCX



Mr. Mark Kieselbach
Page 4
November 2, 2018

e The question of economic value associated with the proposed activity is beyond the scope of the issues
FTCH was retained to address. Accordingly, FTCH offers no opinion, recommendations, or advice with
respect to this criterium.

Section 22-157(2)(g)  The size and quality of the wetland being considered.

e The proposed activities will result in stormwater being discharged into an approximately 4.78-acre
marsh/forested wetland complex and an approximately 0.65-acre forested wetland.

Section 22-157(2)(h)  The findings of necessity for the proposed activity which have been made by other
agencies.

e FTCH is not aware of any findings of necessity for the proposed activity which have been made by other
agencies.

Section 22-157(2)(i) Amount of wetland remaining in the general area and proximity to a waterway.

® According to the Township wetland map, Wetlands A and B are located approximately 500 feet and 100 feet
(respectively) northwest of Township Wetland 4-22, a 47.75-acre wetland complex. The Costigan Drain, a
designated county drain, flows through this wetland.

e Wetlands A and B are located approximately 1,800 feet north of the Costigan Drain. The Costigan Drain
discharges into Lake Lansing via the Pine Lake Outlet Intercounty Drain.

Section 22-157(2)(j) Proximity to any waterbodly.

e Lake Lansing is located approximately 0.9 mile east of Wetlands A and B.

® An approximately 3.8-acre pond is located approximately 0.25 mile north-northeast of Wetlands A and B.
Section 22-157(2)(k)  Extent to which upland soil erosion adjacent to the protected wetland is controlled.

® Asoil erosion and sedimentation control (SESC) plan was not submitted as part of the WUP application.

e Design details for the stormwater pipes and forebays were not provided to assure that appropriate
measures would be implemented to curtail erosion resulting from stormwater flow.

e The potential exists that soil will erode as stormwater is discharged from the numerous stormwater forebays
and flows into Wetland A and B and as it flows through a pipe between Wetland A and B.

Recommendations

An essentiality determination should be completed to assess whether Wetland B provides essential functions as
described in Section 22-156 of the Township wetland ordinance. If Wetland B provides essential functions, a
wetland use permit will be required from the Township for regulated activities in the wetland.

Based upon our review of the submitted materials, it is our opinion that insufficient information was submitted
in the WUP application to ensure that irreparable harm would not result to site wetlands from proposed
stormwater discharge to the wetlands. This harm could result from:

e Altering wetland hydrology to the extent that the wetlands become ponds, instead of wetlands.
e Erosion from water discharging down the slopes between the numerous forebays to the wetlands, resulting
in deposition of soil within the wetlands.

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2018\181579\WORK\PERMITSREGULATORY\WUP_APP_REVIEW.DOCX



Mr. Mark Kieselbach fT(:{rh
Page 5

November 2, 2018

e Utilizing the wetlands for water quality treatment and not adequately addressing water quality treatment in
the sediment forebays prior to discharging into the wetlands.

FTCH recommends the Applicant provide additional information to ensure the above harm would not result
from the proposed project. This information may include design details pertaining to the forebays, storm pipes
and outlet structure, and water budgets for site wetlands that reflect both before and after site development
conditions. FTCH recommends that a WUP not be issued until the Applicant adequately addresses the concerns
noted in this letter.

We appreciate the opportunity to assist in the review of this file. If you have any questions or require additional
information, please contact me at 616.464.3738 or ehtripp@ftch.com.

Sincerely,

FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER, INC.
Ue M—Trgy

Elise Hansen Tripp, PWS

pmb

By email
cc:  Mr. Peter Menser — Township

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2018\181579\WORK\PERMITSREGULATORY\WUP_APP_REVIEW.DOCX



January 3, 2019
Project No. 181579

Mr. Mark Kieselbach

Charter Township of Meridian
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, M| 48864

Re: Review of Voice Environmental Group, LLC Response Letter
Wetland Use Permit (WUP) #18-03 Application
Newton Pointe, LLC
Newton Park MUPUD

Dear Mr. Kieselbach:

FTCH has reviewed a letter and associated site and drainage plans and calculations from Voice Environmental
Group, LLC (Voice), dated December 12, 2018. This information was submitted to the Township of Meridian
(Township) in response to FTCH’s October 24, 2018, Wetland Use Permit #18-03 Application Review.

In our prior review, we concluded that insufficient information was submitted in the WUP application to ensure
that irreparable harm would not result to site wetlands from proposed stormwater discharge to the wetlands.
This harm could result from:

e Altering wetland hydrology to the extent that the wetlands become ponds, instead of wetlands.

e Erosion from water discharging down the slopes between the numerous forebays to the wetlands, resulting
in deposition of soil within the wetlands.

e Utilizing the wetlands for water quality treatment and not adequately addressing water quality treatment in
the sediment forebays prior to discharging into the wetlands.

FTCH recommended Newton Pointe, LLC (the Applicant) provide additional information to ensure the above
harm would not result from the proposed project. This information may include design details pertaining to the
forebays, storm pipes and outlet structure, and water budgets for site wetlands that reflect both before and
after site development conditions. In response to this request, Voice submitted:

® An existing Drainage Area Map

® A proposed Drainage Area Map

e An updated MUPUD site plan, including the proposed stormwater management plan and typical details for
stormwater features (i.e. level spreader, preformed scour hole, and rock barrier overflow)

e A proposed water budget with an updated “Detention Requirement and Discharge Allowance for Small
Sites” calculation spreadsheet for the project.

Voice noted that final engineering design details for stormwater forebays, the storm pipe between Wetlands A
and B, and the outlet structure would not be prepared until the Township Land Use Committee approves the
proposed site plan. The Applicant wishes to avoid engineering the site twice and noted the Township may
request changes to the site plan that impact the above noted stormwater control structures.

Voice confirmed the following design details that address FTCH’s wetland impact concerns:

e Twelve stormwater forebays will be constructed in upland at each stormwater outlet. The forebays will be
designed after the Township approves the site plan to provide sufficient capacity for 100 percent of the first
flush volume of stormwater. Some of the forebays will be constructed within the 40-foot wetland buffer
near the wetland boundary and some would be constructed outside it.

5913 Executive Drive, Suite 100 517.882.0383 Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc.
Lansing, Michigan 48911 www.ftch.com engineers | scientists | architects | constructors



Mr. Mark Kieselbach
Page 2
January 3, 2019

® A 12-inch diameter wetland equalizer culvert will be installed between Wetlands A and B to ensure
stormwater flow from Wetland B to Wetland A and to avoid excessive ponding in Wetland B that could be
detrimental to the forested wetland plant community. It is FTCH’s opinion that a 12-inch diameter pipe is
too small and will be prone to clogging. As a result, water could become trapped within Wetland B at a
depth and duration in excess of the existing conditions, resulting in subsequent tree mortality in the
forested wetland. An 18-inch minimum diameter pipe would be more appropriate; it is the pipe size
recommended by the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality for wetland equalizer pipes.

e The proposed elevation of the wetland equalization pipe is 870 feet. Based upon the Existing Drainage Area
Map, the overall approximate elevation of the wetland boundary in Wetlands A and B is between 870.5 and
871 feet. The wetland boundary elevation at the east end of the equalizer pipe (in Wetland B) is
approximately 870.75 feet. Setting the equalization pipe at 870 feet would ensure drawdown of stormwater
in Wetland B to ensure wetland hydrology is maintained at existing depths and duration of inundation.
Refined engineering drawings are needed to indicate the installation of the equalization pipe at this
elevation.

e The updated water budget indicated the water level in the wetlands after a 100-year storm would increase
0.27 foot (approximately 3 inches). Voice did not indicate the anticipated drawdown time within the
wetlands.

Based upon the above information, FTCH recommends the Township issue a WUP for the proposed project with
the following conditions:

1. The Applicant must submit the final engineering design for stormwater forebays, the storm pipe between
Wetlands A and B, and the outlet structure to the Township for Township approval prior to Site
development to ensure these features are engineered appropriately to ensure no harm to Site wetlands
(i.e. maintenance of appropriate wetland hydrology and stormwater management).

2. Due to increased runoff into the wetlands, as a result of the proposed impervious surfaces and increased
drainage area to the wetlands, we recommend that the stormwater outlet be sized for a discharge rate that
will dewater the 100-year storm event within 24 hours, with the understanding that the acceptable
discharge rate must meet Meridian Township engineering standards and not cause harmful interference to
the downstream receiving waters.

3. Stormwater forebays must be constructed outside the 40-foot wetland buffer to the greatest extent
possible and must not extend into the wetlands.

4. A minimum 18-inch diameter wetland equalization storm pipe must be installed between Wetlands A and B,
not a 12-inch diameter pipe. The pipe should be installed at an elevation of 870 feet.

We appreciate the opportunity to assist in the review of this file. If you have any questions or require additional
information, please contact me at 616.464.3738 or ehtripp@ftch.com.

Sincerely,

FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER, INC.
ﬂ»v;w ’)‘l‘k__- | '\o-;q/

Elise Hansen Tripp, PWS

pmb

By email
cc:  Mr. Peter Menser — Township

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2018\181579\WORK\CORR\FTCH RESPONSE LETTER_WUP 18-03.DOCX



To: Environmental Commission

From: Peter Menser, Principal Planner
Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner

Date: January 4, 2019

Re: Wetland Use Permit #18-04

Sierra Homes of Michigan has requested a wetland use permit to install a culvert within the
Chimney Oaks Branch of the Ingham County Povey Drain located at 60 Chimney Oaks Drive. The
approximate 2.89 acre subject site is zoned RR (Rural Residential) and is located on the north side
of Chimney Oaks Drive, west of Meridian Road.

The proposed elliptical corrugated metal culvert would total 40 linear feet in length (57 inch x 38
inch diameter) and would allow for the construction of an asphalt driveway across the Povey
County Drain to access a proposed single family house. The Township environmental consultant
delineated the project area on October 17, 2018 to determine the boundary, regulatory status, and
size of the wetland. The consultant’s delineation report stated a channel with steep banks is
present at the proposed drain crossing location. The channel extends from an Ingham County
stormwater detention basin west of the site and runs through the southeast end of the subject site.
The stormwater detention basin and associated drainageway is part of Township Wetland #25-1D,
which is a 12.17-acre wetland regulated by both the State of Michigan and Meridian Township.
Both the detention basin and the channel crossing the site are part of the Chimney Oaks Branch of
the Ingham County Povey Drain. The Township environmental consultant stated emergent
wetland is present within the channel at the location of the proposed drain crossing.

The submitted application materials indicate installation of the proposed culvert would impact
approximately 0.006 acre (240 square feet) of regulated wetland. 45 cubic yards of fill is proposed
to facilitate installation of the culvert with approximately five cubic yards of riprap on each end of
the culvert. The Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) granted approval of the
culvert installation project and issued a permit on December 14, 2018.

The Wetland Protection Ordinance requires wetland mitigation in order to satisfy the Township
requirement of no net loss of wetlands. Wetland must be mitigated at a ratio of 1.5 to 1. As 240
square feet of wetland would be impacted by the proposed culvert installation, 360 square feet of
on-site mitigation is required. The applicant is proposing a 360 square foot mitigation wetland
adjacent to an existing pond along the west property line. The Township’s environmental
consultant has recommended the proposed mitigation wetland be monitored for a period of five
years, starting in the first full growing season after construction.



Wetland Use Permit #18-04 (Sierra Homes)
Environmental Commission (January 9, 2019)
Page 2

WETLAND MAP

Williamstown
Township

Meridian Rd

=== [ngham County Drains

|I] Wetlands

In accordance with Section 22-155 of the Code of Ordinances, for wetland use permit applications
submitted in conjunction with activities that do not require approval by the Planning Commission
and/or Township Board, the Director of Community Planning and Development has the authority
to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the application for a wetland use permit. As
construction of a driveway for a single family house does not require approval from the Planning
Commission or Township Board, this request will be decided by the Director of Community
Planning and Development.

The Township’s environmental consultant has reviewed the request and has recommended approval
with conditions. Details of the wetland use permit review and suggested conditions of approval are
included in the attached report.

Environmental Commission Options
The Environmental Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial of
the proposed wetland use permit. A motion to recommend approval in accordance with the

conditions proposed by Township’s wetland consultant is provided.

e MOTION to recommend approval of Wetland Use Permit #18-04 to install a culvert within
the Povey Drain subject to the conditions proposed by the Township’s wetland consultant

in the report dated January 4, 2019.

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Wetland Use Permit #18-04 (Sierra Homes)
Environmental Commission (January 9, 2019)
Page 3

Attachments

1. Wetland use permit joint application, dated November 5, 2018 and received by the Township
on December 6, 2018.

2. Wetland use permit and mitigation plan, dated January 4, 2019 and received by the Township
on January 4, 2019.

3. Michigan Department of Environmental Quality permit, dated December 14, 2018 and received
by the Township on December 17, 2018.

4. Ingham County Drain Commissioner permit, dated October 8, 2018 and received by the
Township on November 16, 2018.

5. Final wetland use permit report prepared by the Township environmental consultant dated
January 4, 2019 and received by the Township on January 4, 2019.

G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\WETLAND USE PERMITS (WUP)\2018\WUP 18-04 (Sierra Homes)\WUP 18-
04.envl.docx

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



U.S. Ariny Corps of Engineers

Detroit District Office

Phone: 313-226-2218, Fax: 313-226-6763
Website: vawy Ire usace.army. mil

Michigan Depairunent of Environimental Quality
Water Resources Division

See staff map on page iii for contlact information
Wehsite: www.ri.qov/ioinioermil

Joint Permit Application

For Wark in inland Lakes and Streams, Great Lakes, Wetlands, Floodplains, Dams,

High Risk Erosion Areas and Critical Dune Areas
www.mi.govljointpermit

—
What is the purpose
of the Joint Permit
Application?

This Joint Parmit Application was developed to facilitate the state and federal permit application process
administered by the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and the U.S. Army Corps of

Engineers (USACE).

The Joint Permit Application is a multi-purpose application used to describe and quantify proposed
activities regulated by the DEQ and/or the USACE. This application is for those activities regulated by
the following Parts of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as
amended by the State of Michigan.

Part 301, Inland Lakes and Streams

Part 325, Great Lakes Submerged Lands

Part 303, Wetlands Protection

Floodplain Regulatory Authority found in Part 31, Water Resources Protection
o Part 315, Damn Safety

Part 323, Shorelands Protection and Management (High Risk Erosion Areas)
o Part 353, Sand Dunes Protection and Management (Critical Dune Areas)

@ ° L] o

The regulated activities are summarized in Appendix D. The statutes and rules are available at
www.mi.gov/jointpermit.

This application is also for those activities regulated by the USACE within the waters of the United
States under Section 10, Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C. 403) and Section 404, Clean Water
Act of 1977 (33 U.S.C. 1344).

Preapplication Meeting: This is an optional service available for activities proposed in inland lakes and
streams (Part 301), wetlands (Part 303), and critical dune areas (Part 353). A preapplication meeting
can answer many questions regarding whether or not a permit is required and the review process. The
application form and fee schedule are available at www.mi.gov/jointpermit.

How do | complete
the Joint Permit
Application?

An accurate and
complete application
package is required for
processing, inaccurate
or missing information
will delay processing.

There are three parts to a complete Joint Permit Application package:

1. Application Form
2. Maps and Drawings
3. Fee

Follow the checklists on the following page for each part of the application package.
When you have questions or need assistance in completing the application package refer to the

following information on our website www.mi.govl/jointpermit or you may contact the appropriate
district office, page iii, or through the website link “Who to Contact.”

Joint Permit Application Training Manual

EZ Guides for small projects

Acronyms in Appendix A

Sample drawings in Appendix B

Minor Project and General Permit Categories in Appendix C
Fee schedule in Appendix C

State and Federal Authority and Penalties in Appendix D

o Glossary in Appendix E

Joint Permit Application

Pageiofiv EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)




W . A . . . .
UJUb Aviny Corps of Engineers wvivlre.usace army.mil - Michigan Departinent of Environmental Quality vavve.ini.govijointperinit

DE

Application
Checidist

The following websile
will provide township,
range, seclion, latitude
and longitude
information:

www. rcgl. stale.mi.us
Avellands/

wwiwv.geocoder.us

In each section check
all boxes that apply (o
your project.

Show and lahel
property lines on the
site plan.

Label existing and
proposed contours,
dimensions, excavation
and/or fill on the site
plans and cross
sections.

Provide tables for
multiple impact areas.

1. Application Forin
[ Complete Sections 1 through 9 of the application form.

(A" An authorization letler from the properiy owner if someone other than the properly owner is
signing the application.

[l Complete those Sections 10 through 20 thal apply (o yaur project. Follow the insiructions at

the beginning of each section. For additional information, the instructions for each sample

drawing in Appendix B indicate the application sections you will most likely need to complete.

Complete the application form as much as possible before adding attachments. Label each

attachment with the applicant's name.

lZ/ Stake or flag the area for site inspection including the property corners, proposed road or
driveway centerlines, and areas of proposed impacts. The site must be flagged when the

application is submitted.

2. Maps and Drawings

A" All maps and drawings must be black and white, legible, reproducible, and sized to 8.5" x 11",
Aerial photographs do not substitute for site plans. If larger drawings or blueprints are required
to show adequate detail for review, you may also submit one full size copy.

Vicinity Map: A map to the proposed project location that includes ALL streets, roads,
intersections, highways, or cross-roads to the project. Do not assume review staff knows your

project location.

a Project Site Plan: Overhead drawings to scale or with dimensions, length and width, of the
proposed project are required. Show and label property lines on the site plan.

[} Cross-section drawings are required. Provide the cross-sections and profile views to scale or
with dimensions, length, width, and height.

[ Elevation data must include a description of the reference point or benchmark used and its
corresponding elevation. For projects on the Great Lakes or Section 10 Waters, elevations
must be provided in IGLD 85. For observed Great Lake water elevations in IGLD, visit the
USACE website under “water levels”. If elevations are from still water, provide the observation
date and water elevation. On inland sites, elevations can use NGVD 29, NAVD 88, a local

datum or an assumed bench mark.

Provide descriptive photographs of the proposed work site showing vegetation if wetlands
are involved or the shoreline for shore protection projects. All photographs must be labeled
with your name and the date of the photograph, indicate what they show, and be referenced
to the site plan. Proposed activities or structure(s) may be indicated directly on the
photographs using indelible markers or ink pens. Provide aerial photographs 1:400 or larger
for major projects.  ( wievland £ qu':__r)

3. Fee

Payment to the State of Michigan. Fees typically range from $50 to $4,000 depending on the
type of project. Refer to Appendix C of the application and/or visit www.mi.gov/jointpermit to
determine the appropriate fee for your project and for directions to pay by credit card or
electronic fund transfer payment.

[Z/Applicalions should be sent directly to the district offices. Please refer to page iii, or refer to
www.mi.gov/jointpermit “who to contact” for address and/or phone number. Applications that
cross county boundaries should be sent to the district containing the primary work effort.

Applications for dams regulated under Part 315 or from public agencies eligible to receive
federal andfor state transportation funding for a project involving public roadways, non-
motorized paths, airports, or related facilities should be mailed to: DEQ, WRD, P.0. BOX
30458, LANSING, MI 48909-7958.

a

ot

Joint Permit Application

Page ii of iv EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)



T i ‘ &=
[E’E'JQJU.S. Army Coips of Engineers vuwavlre.usace.army.mil - Michigan Depaitiment of Environinental Quality vawaw.ini.qovijointperimit @EEQ_.L

~  Land/Water Interface
. Permitting Staff Map

Fall. www.mi.gov/jointpermit

-’{inughtﬂn

Baraga

Peninsula

Marquette

Mackinac

Dickinson

1]

"lenominee

Field/District Offices

#  Office Location

N District Boundary

Cheboygan
L Presque Isle

fontmorenc
Otsego | Alpena

*Gﬁylord

Leelanau | ¥,
Cravdord | Oscoda Alcona

oty Grand Kalkaska
Traverse
Upper Peninsula: 906-228-4853 - - -
1504 W. Washington St., Marquette, M| 49855 M e A sk Ogemaw | losco
Cadi Iac*_ Roscommon

Gaylord: 989-731-4920

Arenac

2100 West M-32, Gaylord 49735 \Mason Lake | Osceola || Clare |Gladwin

Cadillac: 231-775-3960
120 W. Chapin St, Cadillac 49601

Isabella | Midland

Oceana | Newaygo |Mecosta

Sanilac

Tuscola

Saginaw Bay: 989-894-6200

401 Ketchum Street, Suite B Bay City 48708 ociei - N .
ratiot

Grand Rapids: 616-356-0500 .

5th FI. 350 Ottawa Ave NW, Grand Rapids 49503 s : ' P WSt orair
Ottavia fonia | clinton 725 | Genesea

Lansing: 517-284-6651 7, 0

P.O. Box 30242, Lansing, 48909 Grand Rapids bl

SE Michigan: 586-753-3700 ) o |, |HLansing fERe

27700 Donald Court, Warren 48092 ] e |

Kalamazoo: 269-567-3500 NanBuren ?*l 5 *Jdckson

7953 Adobe Road, Kalamazoo 49009 ka{f:uimiigfn Jackson  |Washtenaw

Jackson: 517-780-7690 el b Bt ilsdalo. | Lenawes | Montos

301 E. Louis Glick Hwy, Jackson 49201 Sezlen

&5 \Vater Resources Division  517-284-5567 -

EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)

Jo'nt Permit Application Page iii of iv



Lﬂ_f'? U.S. Arimy Corps of Engineers wwavlre.usace.army.mil - Michigan Depariment of Environmental Qualily wwavani.govljointoermii @é%&
APPENDICES

Appendix A: Acronyms and Abbreviations ... e e A-1

Appendix B:  Sample Drawings
1. General Instructions for all Drawings and Sample Site Location Maps....................ocoi. B-1
2. Inland Lake Shore Protection. ........... i e S A A SRR e B-2
3. Bulkhead/Seawall..................ooooooiii wio B2
4. Pond Construetion....oqwwesi R R e P R S T R Sat G S R B-3
5. Floodplain Fill ... SN B-3
6. Welland BoardWalk ... e, B-4
7. Dredging..........coevn.. R T S T A B-4
8. Driveway ACrosS WELIANC ..........oovii oo B-5
9. Residential Wetland Fill and Boardwalk Construction........................................ s v.B-5
10:. Docks - Piers:- Moorng PileSis i s s i i m i ihi s oo s sonsssemsgm e anesn s B-6
11, BACK SANUING ......oooiiiiii et et B-6
12. Pipe/Ulility Crossings in @ TrENCH ..ot B-7
13. Pipe/Utility Crossings using Directional BOr ..........cc.ooviiiiiesoeoe oo e B-7
14. Bridge or CUIVETT (4 AraWINUS)....oo oo B-8
15, Dam CONSIUCHON. .......oooiiiiiiiiic et S T T B-12
16: WALEr INtaKE ouciimsmnmmm s s o s 8 e e B S e S e e b B-12
17. Great Lakes Shore Prot@CHON .......ocooooiooe et B-13
18. Maintenance Dredge Channel...........ccocccoviiiien S e B S S A S R R B-13
19. Proposed Residence in a High Risk Erosion Ar@a.........c...coocoiiiiiiii e, B-14
20. Proposed Residence in @ Critical DUNE A& ..........c.ccvioiiiieeee ettt B-14
21, MEFINA SIE PIAN ..ot ettt B-15
22, DU PIPB. ettt ettt B-16
23. Temporary Logging ROad CroSSING ........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e B-16

Appendix C:  Fees and Categories for Minor Project and General Permit for Minor Activities.....................ccooovviivvevin C-1

Appendix D:  State Authority, Federal Authority, Privacy Act Statement, and State and Federal Penalties ....................... D-1

Appendix E:  Glossary (listed words are italicized in the application package) ... E-1

Application status can be viewed on the Water Resources Division (WRD) website at www.deq.state.mi.us/CIWPIS. During the
application period, if any information is missing from the application or if any clarification is needed regarding materials provided,
the application is incomplete and staff will request the information from the applicant/agent by letter, email, fax or phone call. If a

complete response is not provided within 30 days, the application will be closed. Some regulatory parts allow extensions if
requested within the 30 day time frame. Once the WRD has received the information necessary for review of the project,
including a thoroughly completed application, consistent drawings that have adequate detail for review and the full application
fee, the file will be reviewed for final processing. A mailed postcard or a public notice will provide the file number and the
telephone number of the office where the application is being processed. The review time to determine if an application is
complete for processing ranges from 15 to 30 days. Technical processing times, after the application is administratively
complete, may range from 60 to 90 days. Processing times will be longer if a public hearing is held. Staff from your local
District/Field Office may visit the project site and may request additional information prior to a decision on the application.
Application fees are not refundable or transferable.

If a federal permit will also be required, a copy of the permit application will be sent to the Detroit District Office,
USACE, for processing at the federal level. Additional copies of this application form can be downloaded from the WRD
website at www.mi.gov/jointpermit or can be photocopied from the original. If you have any questions about the permitting
process or if you need to modify your application, you can contact the WRD by phone or fax at the addresses on the previous
page, or email at DEQ-WRD-jointpermit@michigan.gov.

Joint Permit Application Pageiv of iv

EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)



T -
[{;‘”Ub Army Corps of Engineers vway.lre usace army.mil - Michigan Department of Enviromnental Quality vawnvimi.govijointpermit [‘)E

st

| DEQ File Mumnber

. Previous USACE File Number %

Qw o 2

i 3 = = —

&r') - USACE File Number } er) Fee received $

Validate that all parts of this checklist are submitted with the application package. Fill out applicalion and addilional pages as needed
[] All items in Sections 1 through 9 are completed.
[_] Project-specific Sections 10 through 20 are completed.

[] Dimensians, volumes, and calculations are provided for all impacl areas.
[] All information contained in the headings for the appropriate Seclions (1-20) are addressed, and identified attachments () are included.

[1 Map, site plan(s), cross seclions; one set must be black and white on 8 ¥ by 11 inch paper, photographs
[1 Application fee is attached.

n Project Location Information For Latitude, Longilude, and TRS info anywhere in Michigan see wwiw.mcqi. state.mi.us/wellands/

Project Address (road, if no street address) Zip Code Municipalily County
60 Chimney Oaks Drive 48864 (Township/Village/City) Ingham
Meridian/Okemos
Properly Tax Identification Number(s) Latitude Township/Range/Section (TRS)
33-02-02-25-478-004 42.698507 N TANNorS; R1WE or W:
Subdivision/Plat and Lot Number Longitude Sec25
Chimney Oaks - Lot 30 - 84 363848 W OR Private Claim #
Applicant and Agent Information
Owner/Applicant (individual or corporate name) Agent/Contractor (firrm name and contact person)
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc. KEBS Inc. - Greg Petru
Mailing Address 10476 West Walker Road Mailing Address 2116 Haslelt Road
Cily Fowler State M/ Zip Code 48835 City Haslett State M Zip Code 48840
Contact Phone Number Fax Contact Phone Number Fax
517-204-3641 989-593-4154 517-339-1014 517-339-8047
Email christhelen@yahoo.com E-mail gpetru@kehs.com

B No [J Yes Is the applicant the sole owner of all property on which this project is to be constructed and all property involved or impacted by
this project? = If no, attach letter(s) of authorization from all properly owners including the owner of the disposal site.

Property Owner's Name (If different from applicant) Nancy Mailing Address 60 Chimney Oaks
Houthoofd
Contact Phone Number 517-930-1359 City Okemos State M1 Zip Code 48864
—E Project Description
Project Name Lot 30, Chimney Oaks Preapplication File Number - - -P
Name of Water body Povey Drain Date project staked/flagged
The proposed project is on, within, or involves (check all that apply) Project Use
[ aninland lake (5 acres or more) [] a Great Lake or Seclion 10 Waters X private _
[] a pond (less than 5 acres) a wetland B gzg}?;;rg\lglmmem
i i i a 100-year floodplain
B a stream, rwer,_ ditch or drain ) B a damy . [ project is receiving federal/state
X a legally established County Drain ; o ) transportation funds
Date Drain was established [] a designated high risk erosion area [J] Wetland Restoration
[] a designated critical dune area [ other

[1 a channel/canal
[X] 500 feet of an existing water body

[] a designated environmental area

Indicate the type of permit being applied for: [] General Permit (< Minor Project [ Individual (All other projects.) = See Appendix C.

Written Summary of All Proposed Activilies A new driveway is proposed across the Povey Drain, which is an Ingham County drain. The
driveway has been placed to cross the drain at the point of least impact. There is also a small wetland that will be impacted by the
construction of the driveway, but impact is very minimal. There is a 36" culvert that is proposed to be placed underneath the driveway.
The 36" culvert is larger than the existing 30" culvert that exists underneath Meridian Road.

Construction Sequence and Methods Soil Erosion Control methods will be put in place prior to construction including silt fence, rip rap
and other measures to minimize erosion to the drain and the existing pond. Culvert will be placed within the center of the drain area
and fill will be placed to construct the driveway. All slopes from the driveway will be stabilized vsith large rip rap and/or mulch blankets

Joint Permit Application Page 10f 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)



- nml

o=t

s B , _ :
Ei‘}JU.S. Army Corps of Engineers www Ire usace.army.mil - Michigan Depaitinent of Environmental Quality wanw.mi.qov/jointnermit Bé AR

@ Project Purpose, Use and Alternatives Allach additional sheels as necessary.

Describe the purpose of the project and its intended use; include any new development or expansion of an existing land use.
a driveway off of Chimney Oaks Drive to access a horne location on Lot 30. The only way to

The purpose of the project is to place
provide a driveway from Chimney Oaks Drive is {o cross the exisling drain.

Describe the alternatives considered to avoid or minimize resource impacts  Include factors such as, but to limited to, alternalive locations,
project layout and design, and consiruction technologies. For ulility crossings include alternative routes and construclion methods.

The first alternative considered was placement of the home. [t was attempted to be placed on the South side of the drain, but there
was not enough room within setbacks to allow this. The second alternative considered vas location of the crossing. After looking at
the driveway locations, this spot was chosen to cause the least amouni of impaci. The third alternative \as to consider the size of the
culveri crossing. Afier revievr of the project with the Drain Commission (Ingham), it was determined a 36" culveri vvould be used.

Bl Locating Your Project Site Attach a legible black and while map with a North arrow.

Names of roads of closest intersection Meridian Road and Chimney Oalks Drive
Directions from main intersection to the project site, with distances from the best and nearest visible landmark and water body NW corner of the
intersection

Description of buildings on the site (color; 1 or 2 story, other) Description of adjacent landmarks or buildings (address; color; elc)

n/a n/a
How can your site be identified if there is no visible address? at the NW corner of the intersection

6] Easements and Other Permits
[C] No Yes Is there a conservation easement or other easement, deed restriction, lease, or other encumbrance upon the properly?
= If yes, altach a copy. Provide copies of courl orders and legal lake levels if applicable.

List all other federal, interstate, state, or local agency authorizations including required assurances for Critical Dune Area projecls.

Agency Type of Approval | Number Date Applied Date approved /denied Reason for denial
Meridian Twp Wetland 11-5-18
Ingham Drain (ICDC)| Drain Crossing 78-088 9-1-18 10-8-18
Compliance
If a permit is issued, when will the aclivity begin? (M/D/FY) 12/1/2018 Proposed completion date (M/D/Y) 6/1/2018

B No [J Yes Has any construction activity commenced or been completed in a regulated area?

2 |If Yes, identify the portion(s) underway or completed on drawings or aitach project specifications and give completion date(s).
[ No [ Yes Were the regulated activities conducted under a DEQ and/or USACE permit?

21f Yes, list the permit numbers

[ No [ Yes Are youaware of any unresolved violalions of environmental law or litigation involving the properly?

» |f Yes, attach explanation.
B Adjoining Property Owners Provide current mailing addresses. Attach additional sheets/labels for long lists.

[] Established Lake Board | Contact Person Mailing Address City Slate and Zip Code
[ Lake Association

List all adjoining property owners.
If you own the adjoining lot, provide the requested information for the first adjoining parcel that is not owned by you.

Properly Owner's Name Mailing Address City State and Zip Code
Ingham County Drain Commission 707 Buhl Ave. Mason MI 48854

Mark and Gina Rynlies 10257 S. Bay Drive Laingsburg M 48848

Thomas & Courtney Rodziewicz 55 Victorian Hills Drive Okemos 48864

Joint Permit Application Page 2 0f 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)



S

waaliy RriR] Sefiotnt

Corps of Enginszis wwwilreusses armay ! Clichigan ©

¥

1 ST LR Do s ool ER o LT .
Bl  zpplicants Cedification
i

i carsiiilly ¢

am applying for a perii(s) (o authorize the aciviiias dzscnbad harein | ceriny i3 | am familizr valh ihe wicrmztion coniained in This
applicaiion; ihat it is irue and accurate; 2nd, fo the bast of my knowledge, ihai il is in compliance with the Siale Coasisl Zons Manzazamani
Program. | undersiand thal ihare are panaliies for suhmitiing false information and ihat any perit issued pursuzni io this application may ha
rsvoked il information on ihis applicaiion is unirue | cerily ihai | have ins aulhority io underizke the aciiviiies proposed in this application Gy
signing ihis applicalion, | agree (o allow representaiives of ihe DEQ, USACE, and/or their agenis or coniraciors fo eniar upon said propariy in
order (o inspzcl ine propozed aciivily site bafore and during construction 2nd afier tha cermplzlion of the project. | undarsiand that | must obiain
all otiier necessary locsl, county, stale, or fzderal parmils and thal the granting of olhar parmiis by local, county, slaie, or federal agencies does
not releaze me from the requirements of obiaining ihe parmit requested herein before commencing ihe aclivity. | undarsiznd (hai ihe paymeani
of [he applicalion fes dogs noi guaranize iha issuance of a parmit.

1 Properiy Ownzr Printed Name Dzte

Signature
X Agent/Coniractor Chiis Thalen
[ Corp. or Public Agancy / Tiil Wsa; //’f://

Joint Permit Application ) Paga3of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)




O A o
!&ﬂua Army Corps of Engineers www.lre.usace.army.mil - Michigan Depariment of Environmental Quality vivaw.mi.govijointpermit @gﬂé

10 Projects Impacting Inland Lakes, Streams, Great Lakes, Wetlands or Floodplains

»  Complate only those seclions A through M applicable to your project

If your project impacts wetlands also complete Section 12 If your project impacts regulated floodplains also complete Section 13

To calculate volume in cubic yards (cu yd), mulliply the average length in feet (fi) imes the average widih (fi) Uimes the average depth (ft)
and divide by 27. Example: (25 fi long x 10 fi wide x 2 feet deep) / 27 = 18.5 cubic yards

«  Some projecls on lhe Greal Lakes require an application for conveyance prior to Joint Permit Application completeness

= Provide a black and while overall site plan, with cross-section and profile drawings. Show existing lakes, streams, wetlands, and other water
features; existing structures; and the localion of all proposed structures, land change activities and soil erosion and sedimentation control
reasures. Review Appendix B and EZ Guides for aid in providing complete site-specific drawings

< Provide tables for mulliple impact areas or multiple activities such as mulliple fill areas or multiple culveris. Include your calculations.

Water Level Elevation
On inland waters [[] NGVD 29 NAVD 88 [] other Observed waler elevation (fl) 854.4 date of observation (M/D/Y) 9/14/18

On a Great Lake []1GLD 85 []surveyed [] converted from observed still water elevation.

[X] A. PROJECTS REQUIRING FILL (See All Sample Drawings)
# Altach a site plan and cross-section views to scale showing maximum and average fill dimensions with calculations.
2 For multiple impact areas on a site provide a table with location, dimensions and volumes for each fill area.

Purpose [] bioengineered shore protection ] boat ramp [[] boat well X bridge or culvert [] erib dock
|1 riprap [ seawall [ swim area [ other culvert and driveway
Dimensions of fill (ft) Total volume (cubic yards) Volume below OHWM (cubic yards)
Length 40 Width 15 Maximum Depth § 111 22
i i ?
Maximum water depth in fill area (ft) 4 Area filled (sq f) 685 Will filter fabric be used under proposed fill?
[J No B Yes (If Yes, type) geotextile
Fill will extend feet into the water from the shoreline and upland feet out of the water.
Type of clean fill [1 peastone % [X] sand 80% [X] gravel 20% [ other
Source of clean fill £ commercial [] on-site & If on-site, show location on site plan.
[ other = If other, attach description of location.

[J B. PROJECTS REQUIRING DREDGING OR EXCAVATION (See Sample Drawings)

s Refer to www.mi.gov/iointpermit for spoils disposal and authorization requirements.
e Attach a site plan and cross-section views lo scale showing maximum and average dredge or excavation dimensions with calculations.

® For mulliple impact areas on a site provide a table with location, dimensions and volumes for each dredge/excavation area.

Purpose [] boat ramp [ boat well [ bridge or culvert [J maintenance dredge
[ navigation 1 pond/basin [ other
Dimensions (ft) Total volume (cu yds) Volume below OHWM (cu yds)
Length Width Maximum Depth
Has this same area been previously dredged? [[INo [] Yes | IfYes, provide date and permit number:
Will the previously dredged area be enlarged? [ONo [JYes [ IfYes, whenand how much?
Is long-term maintenance dredging planned? [ No [ Yes If Yes, how often?

Dredge or Excavation Method [J Hydraulic [0 Mechanical [] other

Dredged or excavated spoils will be placed [ on-site [ landfill [] USACE confined disposal facility [] other upland off-site

For disposal, provide a = Detailed spoils disposal area location map and site plan with property lines.
= |etter of authorization from properly owner of spoils disposal site, if disposed off-site.

Spoils
Disposal

For volumes less than 5,000 cu yards, has proposed dredge material been tested for contaminants within the past 10 years?
[ No [ Yes =IfYes, provide test resulls with a map of sampling locations.

[] C. PROJECTS REQUIRING RIPRAP (See Sample Drawings 2, 3, 8, 12, 14, 22, and 23)

Riprap water ward of the ordinary high water mark: dimensions (ff) length width depth Volume(cu yd)
Riprap landward of the ordinary high water mark: dimensions (ft) length width depth Volume(cu yd)
Type and size of riprap (inches) Will filter fabric or pea stone be used under proposed riprap?

[ field stone [ angular rock [] other [1No [ Yes, Type

Joint Permit Application Page4of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)



A
““?"‘ -jJL],S, Army Corps of Engineers wwaw.lre usace army.mil - Michigan Departiment of Environmental Quality woenvw.mi.govijoiintpermit @é

] D. SHORE PROTECTION PROJECTS (See EZ Guides and Sample Drawings 2, 3, and 17. Complele Seclions 10A, B, and/or C.)
& For bioengineering projects include the list of nalive plants/seeds, if available

Type and length () [ | bioengineering (fi) [ revetrent (ft) [ riprap (ft) [[1 seawallfoulkihead (fi)
Structure is [] new [ repair [ replacement of an existing struclure Will thz existing structure ba removad? [ Mo ] Yes
Proposed Toe Stone (linear feet) Distance of project from adjacent properly lines (i)

Distance of projeci from an obvious fixed structure (example - 50 fi frorn SW corner of house)

Far bioengineering projecis indicate the siructure type [ brush bundles [ coirlog [] live stakes [] tree revetment [] other

[] E. DOCK - PIER -~ MOORING PILINGS (See Sample Drawing 10)
) Attach a copy of the property legal description, mortgage survey, or a properly boundary survey report.

Dock Type  [Jopenpile [Jfiled [Derib [ floating [ cantilevered [ spring piles [ piling clusters [] other

Is the structure within the applicant's riparian area interesl area? [] No [] Yes = Show parcel properly lines on the site plan,

Proposed structure dimensions (ft) length width Use [ private [ public [] commercial

Dimensions of nearest adjacent structures (ft) length width Distance of dack from adjacent property lines (ft)

[] F. BOAT WELL (See EZ Guide. Complete Sections 10A and 10B)

Dimensions (ft) length width depth ‘ Nurmber of boats

Type of sidewall stabilization [] concrete [ riprap [] steel [Jvinyl [ wood [ other
Volume of backfill behind sidewall stabilization (cu yd) | Distance of boat well from adjacent property lines (it)

[ G. BOAT RAMP (See EZ Guide. Complete sections 10A, 10B, and 10C for maltress and pavement fill, dredge, and riprap)

Type [Inew [Jexisting [ maintenance/improvement Use [ private [ public [l commercial
Existing overall boat ramp dimensions (ft) Type of construction material
length width depth [] concrete [[]wood [Jstone [ other
Proposed overall ramp dimensions (ft) Proposed ramp dimensions (ft) below ordinary high water mark
length width depth length width depth
Number of proposed Proposed skid pier dimensions (ft) : ; )
i i Distance of ramp from adjacent property lines (ft
skid piers length widih I p j property (ft)
[J H. BOAT HOIST —~ ROOFS (See EZ Guide)
Type [cradle [1 side lifter [ other Located on [] seawall [] dock [] bottomlands
Hoist dimensions, including catwalks (ft) length width
Area occupied, including cat walks (sq ft) Distance of hoist from adjacent property lines (ft)
Permanent Roof [J No [] Yes Maximum Roof Dimensions (ft): length width height
& |f Yes, how is the roof supported?

] 1. BOARDWALKS and DECKS in WETLANDS or FLOODPLAINS (See Sample Drawings 5 and 6. Complete Sections 12 and/or 13)
= Provide a table for multiple boardwalks and decks proposed in one project; include locations and dimensions.

Wetlands Floodplains
Boardwalk [ on pilings [Jonfill | Deck (] on pilings [Jonfill | Boardwalk (] on pilings [ on fill Deck [ on pilings [ on fill
Dimensions (ft) Dimensions (ft) Dimensions (ft) Dimensions (ft)
length width length width length width length width

[ J. INTAKE PIPES (See Sample Drawing 16) or OUTLET PIPES (See Sample Drawing 22)
If outlet pipe, discharge is to [ inland lake [ stream, drain or river [] overland flow [] Great Lake []wetland [] other

]

Number of pipes Pipe diameters and invert elevations Does pipe discharge below the OHWM? [0 No [ Yes
|s the water treated before discharge? [JNo [ Yes
Dimensions of headwall OR end section (ft)

Type [ headwall [ end section [] other length width height

Jaint Permit Application Page50f 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)




i

3

i . - ; .
ao§1ULS, Ariny Corps of Engineers wwavlre.usace. army.mil - Michigan Depariment of Environmental Quality waww.mi.qovijoinipermit

!

i

ol

[
1 K. MOORING and NAVIGATION BUOYS (See EZ Guide for Sample Drawing)

2 Provide a site plan showing the distances between each buoy and from the shore to each buoy, and depth (ft) of water at each location.
= Provide cross-seclion drawing(s) showing anchoring syslem(s) and dimensions

Purpose of buoy [] mooring [ ] navigation [] scientific structures [ swimming [ other
MNumber of Dimensions of buoys (i) Boal Lengths Type of anchor system
buoys vidth height swing radius chain length
Buoy Location: Latilude ; N Longitude - ; W. = Provide a table for mulliple buoys.
Do you own the properiy along the shoreline? [T No [ Yes = If No, altach an authorization lztter from the properly owner(s).
Do you own the bottomlands? [INo [Yes & If No, attach an authorization lelter from the properly owner(s).

| | L. FENCES

= Provide an overall site plan showing the proposed fencing through streams, wetlands or floodplains.
e Provide a drawing of fence profile showing the design, dimension, post spacing, mesh, and distance from ground to bottom of fence.

Purpose of [ Airport [] Cervidae [ Livestock [] Residential [ Security [] Other
fence ;

Total length (ft) of fence through Fence height (ft) Fence type and material

streams wetlands floodplains

[J] M. OTHER - e.g., structure removal, maintenance or repair, aerator, dry fire hydrant, gold prospecting, habitat structures, scientific measuring
devices, soil borings, or survey activities.

Structure description, dimensions and volumes. Complete Sections 10A-C as applicable.

m Expansion of an Existing or Construction of a New Lake or Pond (See Sample Drawings 4 and 15)

=¥ Complete Section 10J for outlets and Section 17 for water control structures.

= Provide elevations, cross-sections and profiles of outlets, dams, dikes, water control structures and emergency spillways to nearest water
bodies.

Which best describes your proposed water body use (check all that apply)
[J mining [ recreation [] storm water retention basin [] wastewater basin [] wildlife [] other

Water source for lake/pond
[ groundwater [ natural springs [ Inland Lake or Stream [ storm water runoff [ pump [ sewage [ other

Location of the lake/basin/pond [ floadplain [ wetland [ stream (inline)  [] upland

Maximum dimensions (ft)

Maximum Area: [Jacres [sqft

length width depth
Has the there been a hydrologic study performed on the site? [J No [ Yes = If Yes, provide a copy.

% If Yes, provide a copy or WIP number:
Has the DEQ conducted a wetland assessment for this parcel? [ No [] Yes

= If Yes, provide a copy with data sheets.
Has a professional wetland delineation been conducted for this parcel? [J No [] Yes

Dredged or excavated spoils will be placed [] on-site [] landfill [] USACE confined disposal facility [] other upland off-site

For disposal, provide a = Detailed spoils disposal area location map and site plan with property lines.

Spoils
Disposal

2 Letter of authorization from property owner of spoils disposal site, if disposed off-site.

Jo'nt Permit Application Page6of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)



—
=

JU.S. Arimy Corps of Engineers v lre.usace.army.mil - Michigan Depaitinent of Environimental Quality wnw.mi.govijoinipermit @Eg

P Activities That May Impact Wetlands (See Sample Drawings 8 & 9). Complele other Sections as applicable

» Locale your site and welland informalion with the DEQ Wetlands Map Viewer at wavwv.mcai.state.mi.us/wetlands/

o Forinformation on the DEQ's Wetland Identification Program (WIP) visit vavrer mi.goviwellands
= Provide a detailed site plan with labeled properly lines, upland and welland areas, and dimensions and volumes of welland impacts
= Complete the welland dredge and wetland fill dimension information below for each impacted weiland area.

w Attach tables for multiple impact areas or activities.
o Altach at least one cross-seclion for each wetland dredge and/or fill area; show wetland and upland boundaries on the cross-section.

Has the DEQ conducled a wetland assessment for this parcel? . <] No [] Yes * If Yes, provide a copy or WIP number:
Has a professional wetland delineation been conducted for this parcel? [ No [ Yes & If Yes, provide a copy wilh dala sheets
Is there a recorded DEQ easement on the property? Xl No [] Yes & If Yes, provide the easement number
Did the applicant purchase the properly before October 1, 19807 4 No [ Yes o If Yes, provide documentalion.
Is any grading or mechanized land clearing proposed? [JNo [X Yes & If Yes, label the locations on the site plan.
Has any of the proposed grading or mechanized land clearing been & No [ Yes ® If Yes, label the locations on the site plan
completed?
Proposed Activity ~ [] boardwalk or deck (Section 101) A bridges and culveris [[] designated environmental area
(Section 14)
[1 dewatering [[] draining surface water (X driveway / road
[] fences (Section 10L) fill or dredge [] restoration
[ ] septic system [ stormwater discharge [ other
N (Section 10J)
Dimensions AT WeTAud Area . Average depth (ft) Volume (cu yd)
maximum length (ft) 40 Hox 2_ 1z [ acres [ sq ft 685 20 4 “1 ¥5
FILL . it 45 HPE ey -
maximurh width (ft) ”l‘.' iy JACDRTED +o ZYO ST upsien e H 2
Z 16 5k
Dimensions Area Average depth (ft) Volume (cu yd)
maximurmn length (ft) [0 acres [ sqft
OREDGE maximum width (ft)

Dredged or excavated spoils will be placed [] on-site [ landfill [[] USACE confined disposal facility [] other upland off-site

For disposal, provide a = Detailed spoils disposal area location map and site plan with property lines.

Spoils
Disposal

e Letter of authorization from property owner of spoils disposal site, if disposed off-site.

g E [ The proposed project will be serviced by: If a private septic system is proposed, has an application for a permit been made to
2 @ [ public sewer [] private septic system the County Health Department? [ No [JYes
) If Yes, has a permit been issued? [] No [ Yes » Provide a copy of the permit.

= Show system on plans.

Describe the wetland impacts, the proposed use or development, and the alternatives considered:

The project proposes to place a driveway across an existing drain that has wetland delineated along the outer edges . A culvert has
been proposed under the driveway. The impact to the wetland will be proposed fill to construct the driveway. There were alternatives
considered for the placement of the driveway. The first alternative was to see if the driveway could be placed off of Meridian Road
instead of Chimney Oaks. A driveway access was not allowed off of Meridian. The next alternative was to determine the hest location
to cross the existing ditch/wetland fo get to the home site. The location shown was chosen because it crosses at the shortest span of

wetland area.

Does the project impact more than 1/3 acre of wetland? [X] No [] Yes
= |f Yes, submit a Mitigation Plan with the type and amount of mitigation proposed. For more information go to wvaw.mi.gov/wetlands

Describe how impacts to waters of the United States will be avoided and minimized:

Impacts to the wetland areas will be minimized in a few ways. The location of the driveway was reviewed and placed in a location that
crosses the wetland/drain area at it's shortest span. Measures will be used before and during construction to protect the drain and
wetland from sediment and erosion. Once the culvert is installed, fill will be placed and all side slopes will be stabilized with rip rap.

Describe how the impact to waters of the United States will be compensated. OR  Explain why compensatory mitigation should not be required
for the proposed impacls.

Joinl Permit Application Page7of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)



HJL} U.S. Army Corps of Engineers vivaelre usace army mil - Michigan Depariment of Environmental Quality www.mi.qov/jointpermit DE

ot

Mitigation is not proposed due to the small amount of wetland that is heing filled.

i eames Puins (Redp ep e Tt sihe

Joint Permit Application Page 8 of 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)




=
m
(1S

: JU.S. Army Corps of Engineers vavvslre.usace.army.mil - Michigan Department of Environimential Quality waav.ini.qov/iointperinit

@ Bridges and Culverts Including Foot and Cari Bridges. (See EZ Guides and Sample Drawings 5, 14A, 14B, 14C, 14D.)
s Complete other applicable Sections, including 10A-C.
» A hydraulic analysis or hydrologic analysis may be required to fully assess impacts = Altach hydraulic calculations
o High Water Elevation - describe reference point and highest known water level above or below reference point and date of observation
= Attach additional sheats for multiple bridges and/or culverts.
= Provide delailed site-specific drawings of existing and proposed Plan and Elevation View at a scale adequate for delailed review
= Provide all information in the boxes below; do not write in a reference to plan sheets. Show reference datum used on plans.
The site has a high water elevation (fi) [[] above or < below lhe Reference Point of 854.4 Date observed 9/14/2018
o Reference datum used [[] NGVD 29 [X] NAVD 88 [] IGLD 85 (Great Lakes coastal areas) [ | other
-_:-_2, Average stream width (ft) at the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) outside the influence of Upstream 15
o any ponding or scour holes around the structure B
E Downsiream 15
"'g Cross-sectional area of primary channel (sq ft) 3.75 (See Sample Drawing 14C for more information)
E The width of the stream where the water begins to overflow its banks. Bankfull width (ft) 25
g The invert of the stream 100-feet from structure (ft) Upstream 854.00
a Downstream 853.80
Is the existing culvert perched? [] No [] Yes If Yes, provide a profile of the channel bottom at the high and low points for a distance of
200 feet upsiream and downstream of the culvert.
Complete this form for each bridge / culvert location. Existing Proposed
Number of bridge spans
Bridge type (concrete box bearm, concrete |-beam, timber, elc.)
Bridge span ( length perpendicular to stream) (ft)
g-, Bridge width (parallel to stream) (ft)
g Bottom of bridge beam (ft) Upstream
m Downstream
Stream invert elevation at bridge (ft) Upstream
Downstream
Bridge rise from bottom of beam to streambed (ft)
Number of culveris 1
Culvert type (arch, bottomless, box, circular, ellipical, etc.) tArc | Circular—
Culvert material (concrete, corrugated metal, plastic, etc.) ) CMP
Culvert length (ft) W 40
Y | cuvert [Owidth [ diameter (f) 57 w38 |a—
% Culvert height prior to any burying (ft) 3
(@] Depth culvert will be buried (ft) .67
Elevation of culvert crown (ft) Upstream 856.43
Downstream 856.38
Higher elevation of [] culvert invert OR streambed within culvert (ft) Upstream 854.00
Downstream, 854.05
Entrance design (mitered, projecting, wingwalls, etc.) m
g Total structure waterway opening above streambed (sq ft) 5.9
© Total structure waterway area below the 100-year elevation (sq ft) (if known)
g‘, Elevation of road grade at structure (ft) 859.20
2 Elevation of low point in road (ft) 859.00
2 g Distance from low point of road to mid-‘poin{ of bridge cr_os.sing (ft) 30'
9 > | Length of approach fill from edge of bridge/culvert to existing grade (ft) 12’
5 5 A Licensed Professional Engineer may certify that your project will not cause a harmful interference for a range of flood discharges up to
= and including the 100-year flood discharge. The "Required Certification Language” is found under “forms” on the “maps, forms and
§ documents” link from the www.mi.gov/jcintpermit page or a copy may be requested by phone, email, or mail. A hydraulic report
E— supporting this certification may also be required.
8 Is Cerlification Language attached? [] No [ Yes

Jeint Permit Application Page 10¢f 15 EQP 2731 (Rev. 12/2013)



=
- |
44 MARX
{  WETLANDS
LLC

3309 Platt Road
Ann Arbor, Michigan
Mobile: 734-478-8277

e-mail

bg.marxwetlands@gmail.com

January 4, 2019

Mr. Mark Kieselbach

Charter Township of Meridian
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, Michigan 488864

Re: Meridian Township Wetland Use Permit & Mitigation Plan
60 Chimney Oaks Drive — Lot 30 of the Chimney Oaks Subdivision
Section 25 of Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

Dear Mr. Kieselbach:

On behalf of our client, Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.—Applicant, Marx
Wetlands LLC (MW) prepared a Meridian Township wetland use permit and
mitigation plan for the wetland impact associated with the project located on
vacant parcel (ID # 33-02-02-25-478-004) within Section 25 of Meridian
Township (T4N, R1W), Ingham County, Michigan.

Project Activities: The project proposes the construction of an access drive
from Chimney Oaks Drive to the proposed house development, involving the
installation of a 57”x 38” diameter culvert within Watercourse 1 (Ingham
County’s FKA Povey, Chimney Oaks Branch Drain), totaling 40 linear feet in
length. Approximately 0.006 acres (240 square feet) of Wetland A will be
impacted, requiring approximately 45 cubic yards of wetland fill and
approximately 5 cubic yards of riprap on either end of the culvert.

Summary of Proposed Wetland Mitigation

Pursuant to Meridian Township Wetland Ordinance, the Applicant has
prepared a wetland mitigation plan for the proposed wetland impact
associated with the project. Because the proposed development will impact a
Township-regulated wetland, mitigation will be required in order to meet the
Township’s goal of no net loss of wetlands. The Applicant is proposing on-site
wetland creation as mitigation to satisfy the requirements of Meridian
Township Wetland Ordinance.

The on-site impacted wetland (Wetland A; along the banks of the existing
watercourse/drain) is largely an emergent wetland. Therefore, the Applicant
proposes the creation of one (1) wetland mitigation area on-site totaling 360
square feet (0.008 acres) within the project property, meeting the 1.5:1
wetland mitigation ratio requirement for wetland impacts in Meridian
Township.

The project appears to meet state and local water quality standards and
follows sedimentation and erosion control best management practices (BMPs)



January 4, 2019
Page 2 of 2

through the use of appropriate soil erosion control methods (i.e., silt fencing,
matting, and etc.). It is the professional opinion of MW that the proposed
project has minimized impacts to natural features to the maximum extent
practicable.

Feel free to contact me should you have any questions and/or comments. We
appreciate your consideration and attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

. G4 3
A, ilmeaiin)
[ Ta s %‘) i

Marx Wetlands LLC

Bryana J. Guevara, PWS 2949
ISA Certified Arborist MI-4240A
bg@marxwetlands.com
734-478-8277

CC: Chris Thelen

Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.
10476 West Walker Road
Fowler, Michigan 48835

Enclosures:
= Summary Report & Mitigation Plan
=  Impact Plans & Wetland Mitigation Plan



MERIDIAN WETLAND USE PERMIT APPLICATION & WETLAND MITIGATION PLAN

SUMMARY REPORT

for the

60 Chimney Oaks Drive — Lot 30
of the
Chimney Oaks Subdivision

Prepared for:

Chris Thelen
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.
10476 West Walker Road
Fowler, Michigan 48835

7 4
1!
MARX

WETLANDS

LLC

January 4, 2019



Meridian Township Wetland Use Application & Wetland Mitigation Plan
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.—60 Chimney Oaks Dr (Lot 30)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Section Page
1.0 INTRODUCGTION ..ottt e e et e e et e e e ettt e e e e aaa e e e eeaaaeeeeeaseeeeenreeeas 1
2.0 EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS ......ooiiiii ettt e e e e e eaaa e e e anneas 1
3.0 PROPOSED ACTIVITIES AND IIMPACTS ... ..ottt et e 1
3.1 IMpact 1= Drain/Wetland .........couveiiiiiiiiieceeee e 2
4.0 ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS ... ..ottt et e et e e e et e e e e eate e e e enraaeeenns 2
4.1  Project PUrpose & LOCAtion .........ooovviiiiiiiiiiiieeee, 2
4.2  Development Sit€ LaYOUL........ooovviiiiiiiiiii e 2
5.0 PROPOSED WETLAND MITIGATION ...ttt e 3
5.1 PROPOSED WETLAND MITIGATION GOALS AND OBJECTIVES......cccceeeeevieeeerieeenns 3
5.2 PROPOSED WETLAND MITIGATION DESIGN......ccuviiiiiiiee et 4
5.2.1  Proposed Wetland Hydrology ..........oooeiieiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee s 5
5.2.2  Proposed Mitigation SOilS .........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiieeceeeeeeeeeee s 5
5.2.3  Proposed Mitigation Vegetation ...........cccoeooveeiiieeiii e 5
5.2.4  Proposed Habitat StrUCLUIES........coocvuvveeiiii e 7
5.3 PROPOSED MITIGATION PERFORMANCE STANDARDS .......ccooovveeeeeeeeeiiieeeeeeeeeenns 7
5.4 PROPOSED MITIGATION MONITORING PROTOCOL & REPORTING ......ccccvvveereeeennns 8
5.5  LONG-TermM ProteCtiON .....ccooiiiiieieee e e e et e e e e e enaees 10
5.6 FINANCIAl ASSUIANCE......oiiiiiiiie ettt e e e rtee e e et e e e e e abae e e saraeeesnaaeaeennes 10
APPENDICES
I. Impact Plans & Proposed Wetland Mitigation

II. FTCH’s Wetland Delineation — WDV 18-13 (Dated October 24, 2018)
I1I. Site Photo Log

Marx Wetlands LLC i



Meridian Township Wetland Use Application & Wetland Mitigation Plan
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.—60 Chimney Oaks Dr (Lot 30)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Marx Wetlands LLC (MW) was contracted by Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc. (Applicant) prepare a
Meridian Township wetland use permit and mitigation plan for proposed wetland impacts
associated with the proposed project located on parcel 33-02-02-25-478-004 in Section 25 of
Meridian Township (T4N, R1W), Ingham County, Michigan, located at 60 Chimney Oaks Drive,
directly northwest of the intersection of Chimney Oaks Drive and Meridian Road (hereafter
referred to as “Site”). The Site contains undeveloped land, consisting of areas of upland grassy
fields, upland forest/scrub-shrub, and wetland. In addition, the Site contains a stormwater
detention basin owned by the Ingham County Drain Commissioner (ICDC), which has a channel
extending east-west towards Meridian Road. Refer to the Site Location Map on Sheet 1 of Impact
Plans in Appendix I.

2.0 EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS

The region of Ingham County where the Site is situated is largely rural residential with with
some commercial development; however, contains fragmented natural areas as well. The
proposed project is located directly north of Chimney Oaks Drive and west of Meridian Road.

On October 17, 2018, Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. (FTCH) staff conducted a wetland
delineation for the Site (on Parcel No. 33-02-02-256-478-004; 60 Chimney Oaks Drive). Based on
FTCH’s findings, the western portion of the Site contains a stormwater detention basin, which
forms a channel that transects the Site (in an east-west direction) and appears to be part of the
Ingham County’s FKA Povey, Chimney Oaks Branch Drain. FTCH identified two (2) wetland areas
within the Site; one wetland along the edge of the channel of the drain and an adjacent
approximately 700-square foot wetland was present north of the channel in a steep depression.
Based on FTCH’s determination, both wetland areas are regulated by both the State of Michigan
and Meridian Township. Refer to the FTCH’s Wetland Delineation — WDV 18-13 (Dated October
24, 2018) provided in Appendix Il, for more information regarding this delineation and site
investigation.

3.0 PROPOSED ACTIVITIES AND IMPACTS

The proposed project involves the construction of one (1) single-family house with an adjoining
garage, and one (1) asphalt driveway, which will require a new road crossing of on-site
watercourse (Watercourse 1; FKA Povey, Chimney Oaks Branch Drain) and wetland fill. Refer to
the Site Photo Log for on-site conditions provided in Appendix Ill. Detailed information of
proposed activities are described below and depicted on the Impact Plan presented in
Appendix I.

Marx Wetlands LLC | 3309 Platt Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan | 734.478.8277



Meridian Township Wetland Use Application & Wetland Mitigation Plan
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.—60 Chimney Oaks Dr (Lot 30)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

3.1 Impact 1- Drain/Wetland

Approximately 0.006 acres (240 square feet) of Wetland A will be impacted for the construction
of the proposed access drive, involving the installation of a 57”x 38” diameter culvert within
Watercourse 1, totaling 40 linear feet in length. The total amount of wetland impact at this
location includes approximately 45 cubic yards of wetland fill and approximately 5 cubic yards
of riprap on either end of the culvert. This road is necessary to provide site access from Lot 30
to Chimney Oaks Drive. Refer to the Impact Plan in Appendix | for details on the proposed on-
site wetland/watercourse impact for the proposed driveway crossing.

4.0 ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS

Meridian Township typically reviews the proposed project development along with any feasible
alternatives when considering wetland impacts and permitting.

MW and the Applicant believe that the proposed development is not dependent upon being
located in wetland; however, no feasible or prudent alternatives are available given the
characteristics of soils, topography, site accessibility, setbacks, building constraints, and the
configuration of existing on-site natural features.

The Applicant has developed a site layout that minimizes impacts to the natural features (i.e.,
wetlands/watercourse) on-site; however, one (1) regulated wetland/drain will be impacted in
order to provide a reasonable usage of the available land. Impacts to wetland and natural
features were minimized to the maximum extent practicable.

4.1 Project Purpose & Location

The purpose of this project is to develop Lot 30 of the overall Chimney Oaks development. It is
imperative that this development is approved to ensure affordable housing in a rapidly
developing area and growing community. The Site is ideally located within close proximity (one
to two miles) to two (2) main thoroughfares, including M-14 (W. Grand River Avenue) and
Interstate 1-96, which would provide access to the Site and a convenient commute for the
future resident for the proposed development. The Applicant has carefully reviewed and
considered several on-site alternatives throughout the site selection process and after
examining all of the potential alternatives, the Preferred Design was selected.

4.2 Development Site Layout

The Applicant has reviewed and considered alternative layouts to the proposed project design.
After review, the proposed layout was selected because it is economically feasible for
development given the Site geometric constraints, specific project and site requirements,
building requirements and setbacks, visibility and accessibility, safety, traffic flow into and out
of the Site, and existing natural features. The proposed site layout has been designed to

Marx Wetlands LLC | 3309 Platt Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan | 734.478.8277



Meridian Township Wetland Use Application & Wetland Mitigation Plan
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.—60 Chimney Oaks Dr (Lot 30)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

minimize impacts to the to the maximum extent practicable, compared to other possible
options that were also feasible.

The Applicant has chosen the current design, because this configuration minimizes impacts to
natural features to the maximum extent practicable, while ensuring the development’s financial
feasibility. It was determined that site access from Chimney Oaks Drive would improve site
accessibility to the proposed house/garage and ensure public safety given the current traffic
flow on Meridian Road. The placement of an access drive connected directly to Meridian Road
would present a potential traffic safety risk because of the moderate traffic flow and limited
visibility from the proposed house.

The small disjunct wetland was avoided and only the drain/watercourse and adjacent wetland
fringe will be impacted. MW believes that the current site layout does minimize impacts to on-
site natural features to the maximum extent practicable, given the existing constraints
discussed above. Refer to the Impact Plan provided in Appendix | of this report.

5.0 PROPOSED WETLAND MITIGATION

Pursuant to Meridian Township Wetland Ordinance, the Applicant has prepared a wetland
mitigation plan for the proposed wetland impact associated with the project. Because the
proposed development will impact a Township-regulated wetland, mitigation will be required in
order to meet the Township’s goal of no net loss of wetlands. The Applicant is proposing on-site
wetland creation as mitigation to satisfy the requirements of Meridian Township Wetland
Ordinance.

The on-site impacted wetland (Wetland A; along the banks of the existing watercourse/drain) is
largely an emergent wetland. Therefore, the Applicant proposes the creation of one (1) wetland
mitigation area on-site totaling 360 square feet (0.008 acres) within the project property,
meeting the 1.5:1 wetland mitigation ratio requirement for wetland impacts in Meridian
Township.

The Applicant proposes the wetland mitigation area adjacent to the existing pond along the
western boundary of the property and it will remain post-construction. By siting the mitigation
area within close proximity of the existing pond and near the proposed house development, it is
anticipated that it will likely provide sufficient wetland hydrology.

5.1 PROPOSED WETLAND MITIGATION GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

The main goal of the mitigation plan will be to recreate the approximate habitat and functional
values of the wetlands proposed for impacts:

Marx Wetlands LLC | 3309 Platt Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan | 734.478.8277



Meridian Township Wetland Use Application & Wetland Mitigation Plan
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.—60 Chimney Oaks Dr (Lot 30)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

. Sediment Retention - The proposed impacted wetland is generally topographically
lower than the surrounding areas.

. Flood Control — The concavity of the proposed impacted wetland appears to
capture and detain water during significant rain events.

J Wildlife Habitat & Usage — The proposed impacted wetland provides potential
habitat that is currently utilized and visited by birds, amphibians, insects, deer,
small mammals, etc.

J Habitat Variety — The proposed impacted wetland is largely an emergent wetland
within the banks of the existing on-site watercourse/drain.

The goal of the mitigation wetland area will be to re-create wetland habitat of similar type and
function to the emergent wetland being impacted for the proposed development. The proposed
wetland mitigation area will be larger than the proposed wetland impact area, but otherwise will
be similar in providing green/open space, sediment retention, flood control, wildlife habitat, and
habitat variety.

Adequate mitigation will be assured by creating a wetland area that is larger than the proposed
impacted wetland and by proposing the wetland mitigation area within the existing property.
Sediment retention and flood control will be developed by siting the proposed wetland
mitigation adjacent to the existing on-site pond. Wildlife habitat will be provided and retained in
part by constructing the mitigation area near the existing pond, remaining wetlands, and tree
lines, which may attract animals and provide more habitat diversity.

5.2 PROPOSED WETLAND MITIGATION DESIGN

In order to comply with Meridian Township wetland mitigation requirements, the Applicant
proposes to construct one (1) on-site compensatory mitigation wetland area for the creation of
1.5 acres of mitigation for any one (1) acre of permitted impact.

The proposed project proposes impacting approximately 0.006 acres (240 square feet) of total
wetland impact. Using the 1.5:1 ratio, mitigation for the site would require approximately 0.008
acres (360 square feet) total acres of emergent wetland mitigation. Therefore, the Applicant
proposes the creation of one (1) small wetland mitigation area on-site within the property
totaling approximately 360 square feet (0.008 acres). The Applicant proposes the mitigation area
to be adjacent to the on-site pond. Refer Impact Plans in Appendix | for additional information
on the proposed Wetland Mitigation Plan.

Marx Wetlands LLC | 3309 Platt Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan | 734.478.8277



Meridian Township Wetland Use Application & Wetland Mitigation Plan
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.—60 Chimney Oaks Dr (Lot 30)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

The proposed wetland mitigation area is designed to be relatively flat and match existing
contours of the on-site pond. It is intended that this design will allow for the collection and
retention of overland run-off, precipitation, groundwater, and standing water. The goal of the
mitigation wetland will be to recreate a habitat of similar type and function to the impacted
wetland proposed by the site development; therefore, the mitigation design includes the
creation of habitat structures, if applicable.

The mitigation area will be constructed in conjunction with site grading and leveling. All
excavated material during the wetland mitigation construction will be placed in upland (non-
wetland). The proposed project activities will meet state and local water quality standards and
follow sedimentation and erosion control best management practices (BMPs) using appropriate
soil erosion control methods (i.e. silt fencing, etc.) to meet requirements of the Ingham County
and any best management practices required by Meridian Township Wetland Use Permit.

5.2.1 Proposed Wetland Hydrology

The wetland mitigation design relies upon precipitation and overland runoff, along with the
placement of topsoil, and the planting of wetland vegetation. The proposed wetland mitigation
area will receive water sufficient to support wetland conditions through direct precipitation and
overland flow runoff. In addition, the mitigation area will likely receive overflow water from the
adjacent pond. The mitigation area will be constructed to match the existing grade of the on-site
pond. In addition, the mitigation area will be designed flat and will be lined with a clay-rich layer
in order to retain runoff or precipitation and maintain adequate wetland hydrology.

Based upon a desktop review of the soils in the proposed mitigation area, the subsoils primarily
comprised of loam/sandy loam subsoils. Therefore, the proposed wetland mitigation areas may
need an approximately 6-inch layer of clay-rich soil to maintain wetland hydrology. Any sandy
soil layers should be undercut with clay to maintain appropriate soil texture for wetland
hydrology.

5.2.2 Proposed Mitigation Soils

The mitigation area will be excavated to a minimum depth of six (6) inches (or to a depth that
matches the thickness of the existing topsoil), stockpiled on-site, and replaced onto the
mitigation area bottom, which will have been over-excavated to a depth approximately 12 inches
below the finished contour elevation. A six-inch layer of clay will line the bottom of the wetland
mitigation area. Then the mitigation area will be topped with a six-inch layer of top-soil. The
replacement of this local topsoil will ensure fertile soils with the natural seedbed and will likely
allow spontaneous or volunteer plant growth from the adjacent wetland areas.

5.2.3 Proposed Mitigation Vegetation

Vegetation in the wetland mitigation area will include spontaneous or volunteer plant growth
from adjacent pond and existing topsoil placed back during site grading and construction

Marx Wetlands LLC | 3309 Platt Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan | 734.478.8277



Meridian Township Wetland Use Application & Wetland Mitigation Plan
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.—60 Chimney Oaks Dr (Lot 30)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

activities. In addition, the wetland mitigation areas will be applied with emergent wetland seed
mix following construction and grading activities. The vegetation will include species and/or
varieties native to Michigan or the Midwest, depending on availability at local nurseries.

The proposed wetland mitigation area will be seeded at rate of 35.44 pounds/acre of Pure Live
Seed (PLS) with native emergent vegetation. The seed mix includes several permanent and
temporary grasses, sedges, rushes, and herbaceous forbs. The emergent wetland seed mix list is
listed below in Table 1. Wetland Mitigation Seed Mix list and on Sheet 1 of the Wetland
Mitigation Plan (Sheet 4 of Impact Plan set) provided in Appendix I.

WETLAND MITIGATION SPECIES LIST

Following construction, the wetland mitigation areas will be seeded with the following
temporary cover species: redtop (Agrostis alba), seed oats (Avena sativa), and annual rye (Lolium

multiflorum).

WETLAND MITIGATION SEE LISTSUMMARY

SEED MIX RATE (LBS/ACRES) ACREAGE REQUIRED LBS
EMERGENT WETLAND SEED MIX 35.44 0.004 0.1418
Wetland Mitigation Plant List
Emergent Wetland Vegetation
Species 0z/Acre Indicator
Permanent Grasses, Sedes, and Rushes
Bristly Sedge Carex comosa 2 OBL
Common Lake Sedge Carex lacustris 1.5 OBL
Bottlebrush Sedge Carex lurida 4 OBL
Spike Rush Eleocharis obtusa 3 OBL
Common Rush Juncus effusus 4 OBL
Rice Cut Grass Leersia oryzoides 3 OBL
Hardstem Bulrush Schoenoplectus acutus 6 OBL
Chairmakers Rush Scirpus pungens 6 OBL
Softstem Bulrush Scirpus validus 8 OBL

Total 37.50 0z/acre
Temporary Cover
Redtop Agrostis alba 4
Seed Oats Avena sativa 360
Annual Rye Lolium multiflorum 100

Total 464.00 oz/acre
Forbs
Sweet Flag Acorus calamus 3 OBL
Swamp Milkweed Asclepias incarnata 2 OBL
Water Plantain Alisma spp. 4 OBL
Spotted Joe-Pye-Weed Eupatorium maculatum 1 OBL
Rosemallow Hibiscus spp. 3 OBL
Blue Flag Iris Iris virginica 4 OBL
Cardinal Flower Lobelia cardinalis 1 OBL
Great Blue Lobelia Lobelia siphilitica 1 FACW
Monkey Flower Mimulus ringens 1 OBL
Arrow Arum Peltandra virginica 12 OBL
Pickeral Weed Pontederia cordata 8 OBL
Broad-leaf Arrowhead Sagitaria latifolia 8 OBL
Bur Reed Sparganiiium eurycarpum 4 OBL
Blue Vervain Verbena hastata 2 FACW

Total 54 oz/acre

Marx Wetlands LLC | 3309 Platt Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan | 734.478.8277




Meridian Township Wetland Use Application & Wetland Mitigation Plan
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.—60 Chimney Oaks Dr (Lot 30)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

5.2.4 Proposed Habitat Structures

The goal of the mitigation wetland area will be to recreate wetland habitat of similar type and
function to the impacted wetland areas and provide natural wildlife habitat. The mitigation area
includes the creation of an emergent wetland, which can attract wildlife that currently utilize
adjacent habitats within undeveloped areas of the property. In addition to the creation of the
emergent wetland mitigation area, the mitigation includes the placement of a couple logs and/or
tree stumps as habitat structures. The habitat structures will be placed with heavy equipment
following a precipitation event in order to create the natural micro-topography within the
wetland. The habitat structures may provide breeding, nesting, and feeding grounds for several
wildlife species, including amphibians, reptiles, birds, and mammals.

5.3 PROPOSED MITIGATION PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

The Applicant will be responsible for contracting out monitoring of the wetland construction
area for five years following the completion of construction of the wetland mitigation area. The
monitoring of the wetland mitigation area will be conducted by a qualified wetland consultant.
A complete assessment of the development for the wetland mitigation area will be made
annually.

The Applicant will provide Meridian with annual reports no later than December 30 of each
year following the completion of construction. The reports will be provided to Mr. Mark
Kieselbach or Peter Menser, Charter Township of Meridian, 1515 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml
48864. Utilizing recognized and established scientific procedures, the annual monitoring
report, at a minimum will include:
1) Construction has been completed in accordance with approved plans and
specifications referenced in the permit and supporting documentation.

2) One (1) emergent wetland totaling 0.008 acres (360 square feet) should be
constructed and characterized by the presence of water at a frequency and
duration sufficient to support predominance of wetland vegetation at the
end of the monitoring period.

3) A layer of high-quality soil, an organic or loamy texture soil, is placed over
the mitigation area at a minimum average thickness of 5 inches.

4) The mitigation areas shall be free of oil, grease, debris, and all other
contaminants.

5) Mean relative percent cover of native species in the herbaceous layer in
the mitigation area at the end of the monitoring period is not less than 80
percent for the overall mitigation area.

Marx Wetlands LLC | 3309 Platt Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan | 734.478.8277



Meridian Township Wetland Use Application & Wetland Mitigation Plan
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.—60 Chimney Oaks Dr (Lot 30)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

6) Extensive areas of bare soil shall not exceed 5 percent of each mitigation
areas. Typically, extensive areas refer to areas greater than 0.01 acre in
size.

7) The mitigation area supports a predominance of wetland vegetation
(defined as more than 50% relative plant cover of species rated FAC or
wetter; wetland indicator status during the given monitoring year) and is
represented by a minimum number of native wetland species, at the end
of the monitoring period.

8) At the end of the monitoring period, the mitigation wetland should
support a predominance of wetland vegetation in each vegetative layer,
represented by a minimum number of native wetland species, which shall
not be less than: 8 species within the mitigation wetland area.

9) In the mitigation area, the combined percent cover of the following
invasive species shall not exceed 10%: common reed (Phragmites
australis), musk thistle (Carduus nutans), field thistle (Cirsium arvense), bull
thistle (Cirsium vulgare), purple loosestrife (Lythrum salicaria), and reed
canary grass (Phalaris arundinacea). In the mitigation area, the percent
cover of the following invasive species shall not exceed 2%: autumn-olive
(Elaeagnus umbellata), common buckthorn (Rhamnus cathartica), glossy
buckthorn (Frangula alnus) and multi-flora rose (Rosa multiflora).

5.4 PROPOSED MITIGATION MONITORING PROTOCOL & REPORTING

Monitoring of the mitigation area will occur over five consecutive years. In the first two years,
the monitoring activities will be conducted twice per year. Monitoring activities in the first two
years should be conducted at least 60 days apart. With the possible exception of Year 1, the
monitoring activity window will be from June 1 through October 15.

Monitoring in Year 1 will begin June 1, after wetland mitigation construction is final. However, if
mitigation construction is finalized between June 1 and July 31, at the discretion of the Applicant,
monitoring in Year 1 may also begin between August 1 and August 15 and continue thereafter
until October 15. Wetland mitigation monitoring should occur during the growing season, or
roughly between June 1 through October 15 of each monitoring year. The monitoring of the
mitigation area by a wetland professional will track the progress of wetland development and
provide information to the Township, such as any contingencies or if the mitigation areas are not
developing as planned per performance standards.

The wetland mitigation monitoring and data collection protocol should include the following:

Marx Wetlands LLC | 3309 Platt Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan | 734.478.8277



Meridian Township Wetland Use Application & Wetland Mitigation Plan
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.—60 Chimney Oaks Dr (Lot 30)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

Photographic Documentation: One photograph from at least four (4) unique permanent
points within each mitigation area.

Document Topsoil: Record topsoil depth at least 4 locations within each mitigation area
(First monitoring visit only).

Document any waste materials: Inspect the mitigation area for oil, grease, man- made
debris, yard or pet waste, and all other contaminants.

Document Vegetation: Determine percent cover of species in each vegetative stratum
(i.e., herbaceous, shrubs, vines, and trees) and areas of open water or bare soils within
each wetland mitigation area.

Document Hydrology: Record depth of standing water, or depth to water table if within
20 inches of surface in two permanent station locations in each mitigation area.

Document Wetland Acreage: Determine total wetland acreage and mark wetland
boundaries of each wetland mitigation area.

Document Habitat & Wildlife Usage: Record animal species observed to be using or to
have used in each mitigation area based on yearly inspections.

Document total Plant Species: Record all plant species growing in each mitigation area.

Document Invasive Species Levels: Provide invasive species coverage in_each report,
grouped according to Performance Standards Item 9 listed above.

10) Document Native Vegetation Performance Standard Progress: Provide mean relative

percent cover and number of native species for each mitigation area in each report.

11) Document Wetland Vegetation Performance Standard Progress: Provide relative plant

cover of species rated FAC or wetter in each report.

12) Evaluate Mitigation Progress: Document wetland progress include details of water levels,

wetland vegetation (species composition), soils, and hydrology. This should include a
summary discussion of trends in data compared to previous monitoring visits.

13) Assure Mitigation Progress: Document any incidents, issues, and/or conditions that may

delay wetland progression. Provide any recommendations, including corrective actions, if
applicable.

Marx Wetlands LLC | 3309 Platt Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan | 734.478.8277



Meridian Township Wetland Use Application & Wetland Mitigation Plan
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.—60 Chimney Oaks Dr (Lot 30)
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

All monitoring data will be collected, compiled, and analyzed together for each proposed
mitigation area, unless specifically noted otherwise. A monitoring report will be provided by the
Applicant to the Meridian Township by December 30 of each year that follows each of the five (5)
consecutive monitoring years.

5.5 Long-Term Protection

The Applicant will ensure that no construction activities will occur within wetland mitigation
boundaries. In addition, signage will be place along buffer edges beyond the wetland mitigation
area. Typical signage will read: Wetland Conservation Easement | No construction or placement
of structures allowed. | No mowing, cutting, filling, dredging or application of chemicals
allowed. | Meridian Township.

5.6 Financial Assurance

If the proposed Wetland Use Permit Application is approved, the Applicant will post a surety
bond to the Meridian Township (if necessary) to ensure the mitigation is timely and properly
completed, that the mitigation is thereafter managed, monitored, and protected, as provided by
the mitigation plan, and to guarantee compliance with the plan.

Marx Wetlands LLC | 3309 Platt Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan | 734.478.8277
10



APPENDIX |

Impact Plan & Proposed Wetland Mitigation Plan



(s Ti0w <« “\%HH@M?/ $3d0TS IZMIEVLS €
el _ A T~ & AYMIAIEA LONYLSNOD 2
MU TNI BB 7000 ~ L\ /W L¥3IATIND TIVISNI "L
9010 20 S == RN MY
- = (atn enion & ] ™~ — -~ Q Q SAILALLDY ONISS0HD NIVYG J3S0d0dd
= . —
2 |m M L4658 =3 \./ ~ .26
22 4oy 0%, 26°9g v,
g 1CD i ] 7/
F_oLE | = e N ~ 9 INAWISYI NIVHQ
s a3 [ LBCX, LS "dOMd -
B L - — — AL VAlEd 30IM 02
P2 38 |Z
35 .5 O NIvHQ A3AOd
L3 3 | 404 ININISYI ] .
@ JivAlYd 3dIM 001 ~_ =
=) _..,lv.-u dop u_.w/r
gs -
wm //i MUYWHONIEG
B
4
—— e SYAUY |
YT | ANYII3M ONHSIX3
w | ¥ m
L=
@ |l @ |\ =
wulwm |O
5 g |5 SIYOV GS00'0 MO
313 4S O¥Z = SvIdv T4
> | 2 ONYTILIM "dO¥d
<
‘spJoosy Ajunog woybup [ [T]
- T ‘t—1 sabod ‘siold |0 4 48qI Ul pepiodad | 1)
A @ gD ‘oelay) 1D|d peplodad ayl ¢} Duipiooon | —
A 3| 3 z ‘upBryayy ‘Apunog woybu) *diysumoy | T
2 m A Hm T | | uplpusy ‘uoisnipgng soQ Aeuwiyy ‘g 307 | T
T2 e mm @ (pepinoad sp) uopdiuossq [pbe e
Ligls |78 Z
& d V i W 0S Sz i) “G
A —
8 29 NO| Y20 =
IR - O
Y i | ©
z3 =7
- Om % W
30 3
>y o
ﬂm m. >
. .
i 8
= 5 _
ro / o -
b fA o
4 =2 AL NN e .
m & a9 RENTR S ,/m LA / ' sdyov oo ¥o| _— . 15858 ¥VE/
O = & & % N 45 0eC = Wiy HINICD m}._.w_mmomm ”_,<
o =33 3 J/_ LR R {00852y NOLYOLUA "dONd W AMYIHONIS
) b N T
.w_. D ! 1 3 ~
o w\_@q _.zmmuﬁw_wm w__ﬁﬁammﬂ NYIIHOIA AINNOD WVHONI "dIHSNMOL NYIAIMIN
\Hv\%@ . ; . < - - - i
P —— SAVO AHININIHDO 0¢ LOT




G = 1 LU3A
Or = 1 ZIdOH F1IVIS

MIIN J1140dd
|2 00+11 0040}
[+ 1
2z |m 058 i a T
”H-.ﬂ m S ] r N _ i o
_Cm .ﬂ i “ ; ! & m __ _ @
28 32 |= (vauy NOWNZU3Q BNy ONY HOLID pO) i
a2 382 |£ 07 VRS ANENS PNEII~r=—1
2o .2 O TENF] 3] ‘Holig X3 L
13 »T * = P
we X
o I ———
8 mm S8 : AR T AaNINg oS8
-c_‘ . s . : .. n—wm anh.u‘ . PN I P R R
ﬂm L savee | ] LA . 40y au
¥ JWOS OL ION TWOS OL LON ; DT A
22 (13A31_d3ivm X3 oL) = - N IRNN A
4S SZCIF = NOLJ3S 4S SL'EF = NOILD3S = e _f B e ] LN
=~ |3 SS50d0 "dOad SSO¥O HOLIQ X3 \ N
H H _m_u_ Iﬁ' LG NVdS 0¢l Oww i \ \\ ///M Oww
LlL < =1|.wll - I O T T T . d L IN L
=l {tn = D= s
m m 5 WOLLOA TINNVHDL ! H e 050 N IR \\ m_ MW N
1HE AN A S / & ]8T et
33 S I R B Y3) SRR IRRE T ORYILIM
2 43“&1_: | B
"ddud _ b
98 . i G98
)
21213 43 z
2|2 3g T B 77 T T
2 m f wm b / TH'988 Tl Vi diY TILAEL039 \ i\ \\N\\ g
T2 2 |RS| v NO 330N ,8-19 QAQ § 0350d¥d 1o 7 )
e | ¥ R8T . o NS S
|5 lg] 42 = I ) ,
. v »| |= \ ; - & 74 / ( f
% 3 P : 010 @ SHINN0 LBEX L ,,
&2 Ay / _\_._Saumo%ﬂm N £
28 2 . d Bl g
27 g2 G —mesnn | L3
S =
20° : $:‘ Tl ANV ILIM /0 =
SG‘ . .o
e TR . / E | >
lol=g SR - \ =
S5 E EZy f 2
=3 m ) g
- . yay [/ / \ y \ 3
r3& e \ yay T <
= »x \@o P [7/ & erese 3 ‘v di ANXAL03 rr
mg | & 2 /) [ NO00H 8-, A & a30d0¥d
% # = Q._VA.. K ,\. { — y _
1 . NYIIHOI &%\m. ATHONI “dit AOL NI S %\m , T =
n —
SAVO KHNIATHD ‘0€ 10T o =\ wes s
e =R m—

£ 40 2 L3AHS




3

NITIHL SRIHD
‘A8 Q3ZIHOHLNY

§23886-3
# gor

8L—-£Z2—0) 31V0

g—8 NOLWIIS SS0yD
AYMIAIEN] —LH3ATIND d3SCd0oud

YD AE NMYAG

dWD A8 G3IA0YdAY

TvLllingns 8l—<-21

nat3d 9

TYLLWENS sl—1y—01

0086—18.~69Z "Yd
20440 |IPYSION

LPOR=BCC=L1S 'X¥4 +L0L—6CE—/ 1S "Hd
OFESF IW LLTISVH 'avod LLTISVH SLIT

SHEET 3 OF

"HOW 103rQdd
NYTd 235 J1v3S

syeQ Aoty ‘0 107 "ONI ‘Sg3X

SNOISIAZY

865
860
855

s

.40

Rl LEVEL

1

Y, =35

|
RAP

GEOTEXTIL
gl( ‘ |

LOT 30, CHIMNEY OAKS
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN
/

DURING| SURVE

D0 vaR

1400

T+l EX.| DITCH, WATE

5 |CY0 RiR
OVEl
JFAB

AT

g

SECTION B—B

IEERRY Zr'eel—1|

/

1" = 40

.
ey
.
/
7
///a.’/
N
N

b

PLAN VIEW

8ees8—1i

F
RES
/7

7
PROF.
G‘RAD

7

fow |
PROPOSEEY 40 LF /
57'}(387

SCALE:

S0$68

CULVERT & /0.1055
%

0+00

WETLAND FILL /

AREA = 240
OR_0.0055

N
EX.| /L
OF [DRAIN-]

Ao AEOTEATL R
o U ANTEE

' FABRIC

VERT. 1" = %’

865
860 Tt
855
850

PROFILE VIEW
SCALE: HORIZ. 1" = 40




"\
S = ,0 Ly3A N
GC = .1 "ZRROH 3IV0S N
M3IA I7130d “
R 0S++ Q0+¥ 0G+C Q0+¢ —
e |m ] |
...._W g NY14 NSIS30 335 45 OWM’ N¥1d NpI1S3d ‘335 ‘84S 03g
¥ b N QA0 "Y2aN NOUVOIUA |'do J0IACHd Jvadk NOLVOLIN "dOMd
F ]
%m ,_om ) \\ |
°F 3= —
e ﬂm = sado|s juected ¢ 01 O ‘swDO|
R _f O cco folore) opdpo—2aqgnpuasqqny  yuy
122z | 3avHO : _
g3 | - e 'S710S ONILSIX3
o _ﬂc
o4
©
% ALLIS .
m oow oom : aIE/20 1Y 304
QY ¥3NYNL | | Aovd Fa DFOISDY CUIqIF, MEERELTT:]
Jul = : g0 t windanading wnyueBinds pasy ing
| M e KR - 8o g oifofizn) OUDIBOS PEaYMOLIY Jes)-peolg
™ % ] 180 8 DIDPIOT DUSPSWIC Pa3AR jEI3 4
% O i b0 1 popiGan pipUnag winiy Moy
5 |Z g8 Go8
ol _ 190 T suabup snymugA Ismold Asjualy
3 d—a NOLL23S =0 NOWJI3S MV T PRHI4ES 012907 e[j2qo an|g 18319
E 190 1 SHOURIGD 2G0T lomo|q |ELpIRD
190 v BB st si#| Seyg anjg
. 180 £ ‘dds snasiafy PAO(IBLUSS Oy
h N /b 180 1 LMD Wnpopodn 3 P -IAd 307 PaNods
oo > @ / N /0% 180 v dds psipy UtejuE(d t81EAN
M 2 I 4 O ™ ~ 180 z DIDLIDILY SHId3fIsy paamy || duliemg
K M _Sm o // ~ 160 £ SPGB STMG2Y 3et 13ams
p_u m|@ 2B ” / £Q404
N S @ ml m alse/20 00 1O [T
1o l” HW oot LHLIONIILL LYo aky |enuuy
- o Sl o m,. e |
o ﬂ Ly e \ ou..# OO+ oot DADS BUANY 5180 pess
R Z — ) ¥ Gj0 sis0IBYy doypay
0 » We [505¢ 2] 1807 Aeiodus ]
. —_ M [ ot *
- G/'GGR—05'SG8F 7§ % 3 SRS R IR )
w m NCHYAITI NOILYOILIN %”0 ”M“ o 18D g SARHEA SOUES YsnANg Wiaisios
¥ T STV 5000 H0 & 0or _ : e g
hal 2% ONVIE3M LNIOMIWI 03S0-0Nd 150 ? 20 S2[douBoips S WaispeH
F < S L a0 € SIPIZAIO BISIZFT SR INT) 2y
n . a tr snsaffs snoung SN W oLALOD
£ O ¢ ONY Z 39¥d NOILYOILIN 335 I 4 !
5 180 £ DSNIGO SHOYI03)F ysny ads
30 O STIY13Q ONY S3LON NOILONYLSNOD o G
> & 804 '39vd SIHL ‘'XIN Q33S 33S i ’ P P e
H:M -y . W G 90 <1 SHISHID] X240 SApoS AT UOWILO
m m . Y34V NOILVOILIN d3S0d04d i 190 z OSOLUCD X2407) a8pas Ausg
d-_i _ . o = SIYSITY PUE ‘59P9% 5aSses) JUSUEILE
W o L2 = 1 JvOE N lo1eDIpU| 220 sapadg
NM.:A FMITA NV 1d ~ uoneradon puepam uadiawsy
ﬂ__._ w M 0 .3.MQ i 181 WE]d UOHESMIA PUEAS
T “
0y, > )
o vyl o)
()] £, ry JE—
N PBE'D 800 t'se XA 3335 GNVTLIM INIDHINS
ot NY1d NOLLYOILIN 61 035IN03Y IOV (SDv/sg1) vy XIA Q335
. - ] ) P AVVIIAING 1517 335 NOHLYEH LI ONVTL 3
| NOLLVOILW L35S SAVO AANINIHD 0¢ LOT




av0y LLITSYH 91T

"ONI ‘Sg3X

vH

“SRNSEFW 2n|jaalina ay) uswsdue fEpalir eadde sSNBRUGW Joadn Il
MELNES ID) UBIpLERY 0] sednsesill enjltanad pasedesd 51 10 Adsa g Jwgns P

uAwdoEAsp pUe|am uoclelii au) jo 5583703
BINGSE O] LR[pUFY .E Liessansl Pollsan LoeIYIPOL eRELOSER) fue R i)

weyd euwbug
) ©) UDISAD) B S8 Salniesl Smpalns UBCesool PUE S[EUOSERE dogenal] g

‘seanea agesoid 51 pUe wagoud By ssassy e

1 JUEDpddy s ba) LB rsieeud a) fapisasoo
oding) EMEDHES wRALAT pUe (sER)S Aleuzn) peay] ERJELIPUTIE Suepyg ‘(peay
utlulyngy) SyEsne SayEEly BB L2ns ‘sanads asseal| AQ Jead IUsouad al) sogpue
pauBizop sE wHsAs pueem Bulue|sns-es 8 o) ssauboid AJIOEENES ) 1B) 'SU0SEDS
Bupesli paisiduias aay Joue ysiqeles o) By BrE uagebmuu puejied SUi ploYs

FAIEU 9 0 WINWILW B Y M50 pU ‘pays|qese Busrans
aq _u__..ccw Bale pepaas [eubue |e)0) 4] (o wog fEiewxeiddy (Janem o Oy} ¥ uw%
ARSI PUENIEM SE08 JSER| 18 0 lanos anEseban e oUeBN 5 JRsA g pul

“Bll|#tIng
29 pinoys Bate papase eu|Buo |E5m ay) jo 902 AaEwxeddy [JayE 10 DY) saeads
IESIpL PLEIRM G405 JEE3] B Jo Ias0D Sae(obos mae LopeBign 7 2ean Jo pug

0086-18.-692 "Yd
P20 IIPYSION

oragy N '

L¥rQ@-BEE—LIS UVd  +IO0L—BEL—LIS "Hd

S_qﬁa\mﬁoz NOILVOILIA
SAVO AANINTHD ‘0€ 1LOT

ILLIWANS Ql—F—ZL
SNOISIAZY

RETR 1|

FIvas

W paeg puedn g
iy paag PUB[RM "
“SEEUIGNS -
Buinoyo) alf} JUBINS LT PUBAR, AU ©f BPIADITE IBYS J0ZENI0] C|

SENENS
-g-uoseas Guimoid
1511 AU} 10 BLS 1) € S22IE PIPATS Ju JBA0D GGG XU PSS PUE|ISA, B

2 |[Bys MuBlem L

‘£RaIE pRpdRd |8 19n0 Aok ted suo)
'] 10 218 U1 P UDinW mens Mdde 'Bupsas S|l AFe|paluw) g
‘0238 [o JARNgIEIP LA|UN 205U 0) |B1Iaew
panoidte 1240 10 pUes Bgjls] J3WEeD B aplio]d s8Il paaads
ay| |& seele payaads su jana paas pay yoads jseopeoug AWOJUN G

WO B [|ESU pOOE Jo Bu|n aUY Ja) Juelnsuos

. ‘Bulatng
aq pINDYS BRI papass (ewibLIC (2107 81 5 w0e Aoieuxciddy :mzm..s 1o <) seoads
lajeaiout PUENSA BL0Z 1SEF] JF JO 1RA0D aniejebisn eaue yoReBlW 1| JEBA Jo pug

. EE PRI s

-pouad Bulshuow Jeed-aay au) YEnNoU JUaLIdD|BABD PUBSM JUSIINTCH
os|g 0} paulisep aq (|Bys pue saseyd Lolonisued |8 UsWnaop Ajensia {im
puozar oiydelficioyd syl Hodal [ENUUE BUL YL PALILKNS PUE 1day 3
EmEuo_m>mu puE oA UG|IANEUGD plijas mau o Loy u.caﬂmso:n " {u

‘sleak Buucyuow
snomeld (e 16 elep yiw Jead Bulopuow sLnd sy w paualjet Elep
2/edwod (m pue paplaatd 2q (I JuBdolanap puelasm jo JIEWWNS usilm v {B

‘SPUBU|WEUOT Jay)o IoypUe 'suqep Spelr-uew ‘sseallb o Aus jo pioda v 1]

313 “AER $9jEM 'SSU0Z Uoheln)es {Bupaoy) uoiEpunu) 1o seJbap pue
spopiad ‘sUdop Jales jo jswaunsesw soll|Ba Jmem 0 uogEzIaRERYD

BUIPTE ‘Jualidoiaasp o1BeicpAy 0 uopduossp pUE piodel v {=
‘BUNgIns EE:EES SAP|IM O sedUsSED Y {p

H.E:uun.zm Aurruies sapereboan Jo UodUDsap ¥ {a

AT onp uoglaban Jo ansESLG ¢ . i

‘sapads wed puedn snaios ..ﬁm_omn_m Wwed puejas jo 15 jued
Jowgn Buisn) se|sads uonE1sBan pLe)iam Ja Janns Juadled Byl J0 amsEell Y ]

BPBLU [M LUNWILHY € J8 “Hodad BULIsHuow [enuue ay) 'salnfpad0ld SIUsIos
Faysinelse pue pezmbonal BUIZHNN '#9R8Y W 'SOWSND 'Prdy YSIEW GLGL “UBIpUSK
o hysUMO | JAUBYD UITQISTEY e g o poplncd 9q i spedad oy "UONONISUOd
jo usgsdwios &gy Buimoyoy Jead yoee o QF JoquWada] UByl JejE| QU spodal jEnUUe
Lyim UeIpriafy epmoad | jureceddy ayy Aj[Enuue Spell &q |im Ba1E uonebjiw puejam
Ay oy alzdojpsep oY) jo MAWSEASSE Sjaduion ¥ JUBYNSUDS RURSM pellEnb
g A pSINPUOD aG M ERUE uolESIIL pUe[E BU) jo Guoiuow syl eS8 uonediiy
puUBEM Y] J0 Uojenasusa Jo uohadines sy Bulmo)io) sleal sal) Jo) e UBIIONUISUOD
pugpas 8y jo Buuojuow no Bujpesuoa sop ajgiuodss og (Im usanddy suy

SUG SN0 ] JUSWEBEUB]) PUE UEld BULOTUOR

“ARURLALLICT)
Bre1aBan paysiqelse Awasu ay) juawhsep o) Buipsas pue Bljueid 'UOJONIISUOD
Jae uoseas Bunoel ny sy sy vi peanhs) s paudljuoll &g |ia B318 uoedpw ey)

U0y aoyy ucneDn

'SEBIE PUE[IEIM pesodold
sy Bumsgelss J0 spoyew a1y sulEdxe uoonMsUs jo 2oUanbas Buwmonol syl

yBhuns Jo sjunowe E:E.me
Bao8] 0} RS0 pUe |15 Jajem-L Gy panajoid auj BAcyE SEYIUl B
[BL 2R 100 2/eNbe (07 2 1283 JB SrEY ||BYS pUNoW pUes @Y1 hdep ul
sl ] 15e6| 18 BUUNSYaLU ISIEM 199} OF 0 WL B A4 papUNC) NG
ale Asyy 1By} o5 SeoRld puUE yidap W SeuDul gl 1sE3| JB SpUNOW puEg "B
28] Buryriad pue "Bupes) 'GunsaU se poddns euogoun;
|ennw smacud o) e og Jayiebe) pedneab |q pinous sBeuy HAQ T3YoW
Zb JO Wneibi & ag (eys sBeus egejdasoy  Cjeuney Brus jo usjear
ayl 10y pasn ag pnoys sanads By o AlELes v PUELSM PAEILD Ul
opu 3B pajEItul seaH Sjols Jo 'Blp pUe PEPOS|) SO (1% 1BL} S231] S
10 'Buidp 1o pesp /8 1By Buipuels ys| S2au AuLM BPNISUL YDl sBeug p
‘(Haa} mbisy
1SE8IE 18 J8IAWIEID Ul FILOU| Z| 40 WNWJIL B puE [pRll[guwod |jeq jee pus
BaJ}) Guo) 183 (7 JO LUNWLUIW E 83 PUE (UCRE|EISY| JO) SayaLel JofBw o]
LWy PALLLULE JGU "8 1981l Ua| Samanis siap sagl Jo 2 Saey ([eys 93U
Sjoym S[gEjdeaoy BAIR pueam Su) Wlim Aleuczymy piE] seBH oM P
“JB}sUIRIP Ul 53UIUEG PUB BUS] 198y 0) J0 WRLEIL e B |Bys
sboy siqejdenny  eals pueam pRjEa. Uy wyIm A ewozicy plep sBey g
IQISWEID Ul Sa4ou 71 pug
(Pauqwos |leq ool pue So) Bug| 195) 9 40 WNWUW E 8] [BYS Sdens
slamdacsyy Bale pUENSM PIBAIS Ay Uj A|lejuozucy ple| sduing s B
‘smihpanlis jelgey sqeydesoe jo uondiosap perelap g
5| moleg oHs (Y bs Qoe) eJoe-goQ g Ayl 1o 2npiule | Jo 808 Jad paoed ag (|BYs "Ula
‘sBoy 'Sdlungs #eg) S2 YINS 'SHMINULE Jepqey G Jo Wnllsuy & SERIE Uo{IEBIIW B LRI
Al EgEH 4

"RIC| PUBMAM SU] JO LB LIS qe{SS 0} L_.o_a usoua juanaid

o1 paysin eps suy pue ‘ejyddrs paas 2ur AG upoy jas sawapsaold Ww sousmoace
Ul pajued ary [ Kl BEAS BYE CHM DRSS PUBEM UL U] UMOL S 3B SiUejd pue|ism angEu
10 Aouen B GUpNEUr JO XIW PSS PUBRSM € UlIM PERREs 5 [ £0I8 uchEBH S
FEERUEFMETSEE IETEEEERY

sllslted islyeam |BuoiBal o paseq

ussess Buwoub sy noySnoug spuepam wedun pascdoid auy s sawnBay miem se|w)s
asuanedks Aqeqoid Hm eaue uonefimd 2] ey pedidjue s) )| esnolp pue Aemanlip
pasatold aly) 4o S7al 1| 58 WBWSS JYEEL 3 IBL SRLElSGIS JOW0 10 1R Fie|noed
fue o Huofew sl Bunowal ‘siopeiel) (Eae uonelinw puejasm pasodosd v SURIp
y alojan =se1B Bys-ua ybrady) |sarl) LaW (s gouny Uonejadas pUB[lem sAleU 3uy) O
paBigyosip 2q pue uoneBigul BU} JO UD[EASS 1aM0] SUf ajuy doap i ) 334 1S3 Su}
o} oy AiEspt s Jouns sy ABDjeIpAY pue| o Slenbspe LEew pue uoieydiesid 1o
UOUN UIRIRI 0) SR WL J5AR) Lou-Ae|2 &y paul] 89 jm pue jep pauBisap &g | eale
goebyw auyy ‘uopppe up puod B)s-ue syl jo apeil Buiisixe syl yojew o] pRonsuCy
aq [ eale uaheBiil By]  pucd JUIDE(RE SU WOy ISIEM MOILBAD SAE0R) A3y Os|E
il E30e UgieBidu 841 'UOILIPRE Ul HOoURI Mol pUE(las pue Uoijeudinesd 1290 ybno:
suolpuoa puefjas poddns o} JUBPDIYRS JAjEm oS3l (I gale uonefinu puepsm
pogodosd SU) yours JAjEM SDEMNS pue lielp JUSOE(pE Wl molidso uche)diald
e puneab woy Afiojoapdy sy sanE0) pLEjes paledul ag | sSeane pueam Aqieau
Bl o JEuIs ABOIDIRAY LHEBW O] _uwzm_ww_u s zaue Uonedimw puepam pesodeld syt
REA[BIPAH

‘sesle pUeha Juzdeipe ay) wnu yimelh

M pUE peOpaas [BINJRU 2U1 Yl $)108 &|110)

Jued Jagunon Jo SnoauBUods Moje Ajsy

. 198 aenbs Qpz 'samE GO0) SPEdW| pUEpEM S|EPOABUN o) 31BN G} Japio Y|

PUEB2A 541 AHOU (43 JOREINGS JUBLIYSIORISS pue Uo|jeujw ati

‘B3IN0oIHEM 10 puk| e Bulsea

‘gesie paueda

NSUD |10, 103d0} |Bo0| BIL) )0 JUawase|dat 8] Cos-doy Jo Jafe| LoU|-Xis B L)iv paddo)
a0 | eole uonefiu syl usyl ‘Eaie UoeSgw pUEREM 8U4) 0 WWCHCQ BU] aUE s
fepo jo Jode| yon W UONEASI3 INOJL0D paysiul s mojad sayoul z| Ajlewrxcadde
ipdap B 07 polEAmdrm-Jane Uasg oShey I UDIYM 'wopnogq Bsus uonebpun au)
oue pestded pue 'as-uo papdyoois {osdot Bus|e Sul o sSeLaI) SU] SRURIEW B
gidap & o) Jo) ssyaul () xS Jo (1dap WRWILNG B 0] peierssa ag ||x eaue Uajelbpw syl

‘BUR|d MO UaoLs
sB Seae UoeBIIW pUBIEM PEIZABIXE AMall S} j0 95BG BU1 LIIM pealds Bg Jim seal
Ys-UG JAY)o 1o sEwE pajoedwy] ol woy {losdo]) sios JIUeGID jo SaYoUl g JO Luhujuill &

g

‘s2alE D43} Wl dosaap o) BUNZ) pUE BI0|) 85 184D SU0L B 10} mOJ|E O] AIn1ar)s Jeligey
-oiow SpIAeld pUE SUDINEUST DRBHSM [Samey sed)ded o Basg uopeBipa pueiam Ay
o} pApPE 80 UED SEURISMYE JENqEY JAW0 Jo syuna o sl sad) sios sweBio yaw spelf
s puod iUy o) Yaeg JYEnolg pue puod &)is-Uo jusselpe Busixs au (o uOiess|@ aU) Moledq
58USUI § UOHBASID UB D} UMOP PRIEABDIXE 80 W Bale UoheBiil el ] "2s/nDaIsiEmuUIER
Bunsixe 8} J0 syuUeq 24 Guole pue(em pajdedw Sy 40 sUDIALNY pUE SSN(ER BU) asedas
o] spuepam wabialla o dojasap o) paublsap 5 BalR puepa pelesld {matl sy

“josioud paousuaya-BACqE B4} LILTIM (S2usE
BOOTD pusfss Wablews pejesls Asmau o DUNSISUCD WUALISSE? LHOIBAIOSUCT Y =

w0190 PAGUDSAp St pajeda ag || Bals uoneSpw pueyem syt ueieBiw
Se jueLIBsEd UDHEAIBSUD2 B J13pun peocerd 9g [l B9IE puEjam palesis Apweu Jo
{188 mienbs (o) S$ai0e U0 O (B19] B 'ubhesndde paclarael asage ol Ul Jog pejdde

) ‘seaE pueiam funsxe
sy} Bueulew se jfjam S8 §B8se UDBBjW SU) U] saumuluod juBjd puesm WELENS
o} ffio|mpdy HENbepe splnmd o) paoedde @ eue LaneBw pusiom oy) yoe uBlsap
oyy puod oys-u0 syl Of JUeoce(pE pRiEIO| S| BBIE UOREBNILWL puejes pasodold syl

. ‘apg uoeBniw
al)] Bupunoilns Apgjpellun fiwloe pasadoid pus suoppucd Guys|xs su) =enpzas
o etep pannbal ey) spinold o pepusiu) 5| verd uepeBl Sk} o UoIpRE U 'Uoiet ol
papwgns Asnomend snt]  puded doy uopeoydde ey upw paljwgns  Apspoiaaad
uzsq ARy susd juawdoanap 1S pue ‘uaneluojul diysreumo ‘dews uoneso| ajs

SUDNIPUG D DUNSIKg

. Bl PRDURIRL-BARE
ayy U {UBIpLalY) UBIRpUSK Jo diysumoL TeURYD m_._ﬂ £g malael Jepun pue o} pRIuIgns
Apeaije sslnoop pUe sueid 850U 0] USIPRE Ul paiwgns Bujeg me sjaundop 53y ]

17 ' Auna weyBy | iy s | uelpliap
Bl BHEC ABULNYD 09 'O 10
uopEd||ddy JuLEd B3 PUE[EM

ue|d UoneDiyi pUefag

AH NMYHQ

A8 J3A0HddY

Ndidd 9

paas Ja} SISEq JUB)TISUED B UD Sa)S usiiediil ay) 19iem #|atenbape
oy BIqusucdSal S1LDITERMAT BU) "1 Januiv BEnay) 5| suny uSamaq
5IN230 GLIpaas §| Iuled SUDIIPUES S2 16 OF J3TWaAaN yBnoug)

[ 10003300 49 &) aunp ybnouy) L AR D SMER Bl) UAAY]ET paAs |EISL K

2L—L£Z2—01
a9
Y9
MW 103r0ud
N¥1d 338

NITIHL SIHHD
A8 QIZIHOKLNY

‘GuipesE auy ;0 woljsd ued SulMo)|0] AREIRSUIL D3OS RSN R

‘Bu.peas of Jond Bujyels pue sagelrzdaid
pan paEs 10] PAUIBILe 37 1S JUBYNSUaA] PURIIEAN Jo eaouddy g

‘jerordde Jn) JuejnsLoD
PUBHEA €] SERWANE KU pass Bplyoad pue SUlpess Jo spu) a9els )

BUIp555

‘uneess Bulnalfi (i B 243108 0 5B 05 JB2A Ay Byl
10 1990130 40 P U BN papusla G 2YS paUad AUBLEH AUl
‘G| SURP DB SIND20 LarR|Esup | IEEA BLRS ] 0 A0 K PUS
sy yBnosy Sepy 1o BuluuEog ayr se pavyap stuaseas Gupaell yng

o ‘lzsaas Bupscaf |y 121y 2] o pus 9N 16 o [BYS pouay Auebes 'y

-speq bujued pus 'sgnigs
'saal) Jo Blizsap do) Jo)p HGEURS pue ''ole 'S ' FH0s 'sELEeLr
snplranaisp Wl ) L3IAW YIeq BOOMEI0 PERRAIMS 20 IS YN B

papdasoe aq Wi SJEAND 1O SEIGAY ap SEUKEIR SU) UG BANPaYIS
pUE UMECYS 5519348 FUE S35 MTBU 3NN 943 Ba ||B4S (BUSjewWw prag 'Z

wows #deaspue| U] pEoUaladza
puE Surgnrnads iaenuon ajbiuis e &g 2ued ag |eugs Bupaos )

EEYBEIERED]

suoneoyloads poag

Aue ol umsnia juasad o) peziigels pUe papelb a4 jieys |rusEW
ssmoxa papdyjonig -sapeuasaidey S 1aumg y) fq pereubisap

se Ayadoud 5 aumg ay) vo uokeao) puedn Ue ul o pasadsip

20 |[eUs {|2REW uoierEDKa pue(Es ||e Buipnw) suoyeiada
Gujpelb 1o Buy Joj SjqEHnSu [RUB|EU 10 J2USLEW paEABRE SNing

'EREINDIUIEM

Bl spuk|s GUsis Bulsus woy suonelado Buoseasan

LG 113 BUWI0q Jetem tusnaud o] uBKE) 3¢ {|BYS BB MOpYeq
weha.d 0] SUDEARIXD SUY| WCY ROUBIEIP USRS B UQ=I0| puedn
ue je pabileyosip 2q |[BYS JAEAL SUOTRARING WD J5jem 2y] A3aUaD
o] palnbal srueusundde JBU0 PUR Si5U[EYS 'sas0y SdWND Se 4Ins
sa0hap DULS{EMEP JURISIYNS PUE SRINSESI [2HU0D USO8 LIBJUIEW
U apinalg “aperE-gns oul o Algete s O [euawap satiueyo 1os
wianad o (padnba i) Baie UOPABINS Ul UCIE|NLINZIE Ja[esh BAJWUSY

JUENNEUDTY

pue|ag, Aq pRIDSIR S Sp0S SED pojredilod UesiD i )

WURG PUE S[0S-qNS Jo 52U KIS [BUDIHRRE US J)eaeake 1o uaie|onad
13ew gy o} ;usons a3163p e o S|0s GNs @i)eu 1aEduen

1BYJ1F {EYS JOJPEYUCT ‘pEUNMIEES §1 5141 UONeID pLENEM BU) jo
Sl Sy S polsluansd 0} 2Eeannad Jeyem 0oy S8 $103-qns Bunsxs
et uoEanuans speib-gns Buunp supueiep Aew UeNSUSY pUSIaa

“opge e apelb-ghe 10) 'SARP SSSUISNG S314| WNUIEW JUBHNSUO D
P, AP SUTNERRTO |y JOJPUE UD||EARIXS (E71 HIjaRUn

Aue 1oy spgiEuodsel 8q ([BYS MJDENUOD) PIYED|PUI SY1dap aY) mojaq
AR JOU O] USYE] 2 |[BYS 2B UOIEIID PUEJISM (THLISIUrLIE
PUE JUSEISUE SY) 10 JUSIU| L] BIEPULIOIIE ] SUCIIA 0D

2113 UD paEeq play-u sapead jsnipe Aew el nsuog pueiang

‘2| |U PUE J2jTewr diuetuo sdun|a Hig 'SInd 10U #2POLWIHOD0E

o} suepd sy} uo palyzeds sapelf pasodosd wow (jas) 5E7¢) SeLay|

Jo soUeLBLIBW PUE "SUMLPUGS pUE apeld Buisia ymew o pagnbas
s® Buipass pue Bulpedb ysiuy spnjouw jeys neday oo sy opLn
Guypessde An pefiewep S|l Jom 34 8p|5IN0 sear Jajpeey ewbio

payl o) aeday  saiagoe Dupelf (o woyadwund uodn jo pasods:p
Allebay pue Bp% SU) LUOY PEA0LISN 20 ||BLS SN2 PUR YSEL ||y

10 pUE(}EA JUBDEIPE WD) paanwal ABjE|pauILl 3q 0 8| BORE| USRS
FUE }[I5 |8 'AIBSTA05U || JWELIPES PHEIMLNSOE S 2 550 3]
2Z|WUNL O [eacluas Bulnp uaye) 5 |eys saes seeld U Liewsl )
JLEYNSUOT PUE B BU} AQ p2iZabbng seeiun s Jo souedaose [guy
18}}# pasoLual 8q |[BYs seunseawl |0lUes Detala-gad jig CeSLDdYa

U S MIDERUDD Sy 42 Jajoeieys el b aeys o] pelo)ssl Bulag

SERIE 23y Y|IM A2Ie peuwsnL) panedal ag Jlels sued SU| uo pajesipu)
1ou spuejam Sunsixe auj o) efewep Auy ReRIAM ||ElER AU} O} pUE
ugd By} uo pa)EIpUL SHWI 3L 0F PS(EISY| 2 0} 20e S|oUod Losel]

Lonedi sy jo dn uesp pue ‘wogezggels (o5 ‘Gupaas ' Bupe.d
‘Bupes | 0) |ejUSHau SIS |12 |18 uoepodsuen uswdinbs

‘PRSI DD 3 O} 8 Y0
U} Y1+ SSPUN SWONIPLOS SHS JUSLND aunueEx A1l o) sas-un s pegs
1B{IRAUGD FUE WEYNSUGT PUE|IAN L ' Bujpeid auy Sumcioy AsiEpowly

¥ UENNEUDD

5 PUERRA, &L} Woly (enoad de uaqLsm 0 Jaeigns s Seans Uofe1o)sal
Sasinoo Ay puE UDGEBNIL pusiem ) 5epell padsdd |oedsy peaids pue soe| 4
‘zpelB-gne sy o Aigels ey o] Biuawpep safueyn o8 Juassids

O} sEedE uaneb i av] O paENWNTIe SNEL] AL LIS JaiRe AUE Sndilsy

ALY Sl 1§ pEpEEr

aq |[eus uogebiiw ga afesune auy) o) suawsnipe Mg 708459 j0 jusuased

21 0y Joud WoRENIW |0 BIIE POIEHS DY IACIdTE [UR rmaEvad O JUELRSUCGT

BLESAA " HBIE UOIR a apefigne 10} SIS SYENE PUB ARANG

suSyERD|3

ApeJB-qna palinbas SU1 o) Yras | SR EU) HLIA [ PUE S]BABSNY

. “eale uonebin sl

£ Joy BLiMes @y maad) pUE SHU BUE SUDINBAESXS 105 BUIEs INopuoe muanal oy

JUBIINSUOD PUERSAY  LONITNSUCD 98 10y (noder pexodoid ayes pue dawng

RAEN ] ‘SEAIE
ucieBijel puefiar sU) o S sl U v voeaBan Apooe gufi pue e

sBuwelp BupoouiBua ||z pug ualebiw puelam aug

z LG QAT 2 U By gl zﬂ_uum__u_n_ 28]} pUg S2UNSeatl [0IUoD UDSOID |[es0)

“ngr) s|etreyew e Badddng i) apsuodsal &) Jopreguoo By |

‘BlLLLSE pEnss
10 PLE [0 DN Y Aidwoo gEys o i 'sauenss uadn

L

e Tl WNT-IETNETS)

suoneoyoads Buipels)

‘dn-ues|2 ays 2peoid PUE JUBYNSURD PUSHEN
Ay paaoadde J SanSes wAUnd UGIS0IS (105 pUE USIaHod 831| aaowey

L

‘Slad ajgEmi|dae | F o Suclpuna mammal
LB BUOD 2 O} 5| WO BUL YHUM ISPUN SEDNEUND pLe 3)E)S aU) UEISISE D)
S5 a1|| SuRxT pasjeaur saiped e gis Bugeal ueionEuer-aid € piop

UOIJOMNJISU0”) 1O mocmzwmm

el JoppUE sl 20 8g) 0 uoleInp 3y o) ERlad s
usisladns Jadaad Jo) DqeIene 20 IBYS PUE 30M 3} o WWELEIUSWILODD ©}
Joud Fwew Aq poipubisop aq peys Jesluedng 19alod syl BroRAUCIGNS
[ 12y Bjgreuacdes) an o) pue JUBGE IS 58 198 & FRELOYINE

510U Uoeele0ng (2alodd SUH-||n e speubinep ||EYs Jopoeydon 2]

-Loipariisliea a) Joud Juepnsuog
PuEpEnA O paUada ag jegs ok pasoded pUeE SN uBawE SEuag
‘suaieaa) (e Guifjuan 1o} ajgisuodsa)
A7 |1 JaTRE U] Sl PUE SE Ul AUeCciuoT AN Ao 53U 21eaud eean|
ToU (% S0 SN 1EW PODTEIBEUN 3] [NAYS M o 0 HELS o) 1o saglin
FUNAIEIBPLN JO LAEIS| 10} JARENUaT AG PRIDEIUCS 20 (IBYS ST 531,
"BPEU I 'SLDIORASUN SIS [BUC|IPIE AUE |6 JEL: PUE U0J ELUG] L
Sty 0 S1SEG 8} Lo BPELW SUMENIUOT 10 BUDNINRAR AUE Jo) s:ojsuotsar
AHNL 39 FIBYS SUCIIDUSD 315 A P3RS SIDEUa2OnS 256UT pUe ICIIBOUOT
“WASA)d 22 10U AELW 10 APLU UMOUE 3S0LY UBLY ISUD FaUl| 1BY] 0 BIEINIDE
818 SUONEIO| PIIETEW 121 3HURIEND ou s (0D " BlqepRag Lo[lEiLofL
1530 3] BUISN HMwoLs R s puncabiapun Guijsxe o suo.4EI57

Bl

‘lenely gy Joud

AN 1 [EUDIEW (05 55a9%7 YodSuzl] 0] 1582 IUKINS || BLYE J0IDENUO T
[ JUEYNSUDT) PLejlEn Jo [Enosdde 1od jnoyim |ENE R IDS 558003
JOJPUE JADINS] [OIF B S IDERIUOT HRINDI A 16 puefaw Dunskme
AR E:_ umseia usazild 1) paas gum pE2Iiqels pue popell Bg (|BYS | Bl e
250348 PIJANIDIS 3]IS-UD UDJTEDD| UEdn UE 12 83md By IS Y B 25
10 B|E1dATIE 10U 3|EUDI B PUE [BUSIELL 14T pAjRAEINE SEA3XNS |0 |Eends'g
spumad weip Alunas

PRIE SUUDSE [OIU0D UD(S0I3 105 o) paajur joe ng Bulprouy "o s

Jo o sy Joy Aausbe Bulusaal Aue g pednbed og Asur 1B s)wad
|EUSHIPPE ALE Yl m:.EnEon_ pue Bupnacrd Jo) 3jqisuodeay s QR0
BB LGNS JO W) S} 8 5FR0 SNI00 (|BYS

= puR sBumerg BU) La cm;w:pﬂwm S8 YO [ SN
‘ual sl [UanE ] SSUOUNE W5 Uoissiad [nounm

08| PEEn 10 pdnzoo IUSIEpS 1sun pUe 'syew ‘15305 |ongege 1o
0507 10U O] " SHGHDE} PESM 10 pa|dnodn juatelpE U0 QUE SHIEM "519RU]E
B2 YjirA SOUSIANEIUN WALLIUNL 2NS) o) SUoyelado Guress #is JPnpuag

-Blipesas prepdn pue pueijes | pue GC du 0u0)sgq02 ongEy

# gor

SILON NOLINILSNOD NOILYOLLIW
AVMAAIEMA —1Y3ATINS d3S0408d

syeQ Asuwiy)) ‘0g 1071

S2GE6-4

*¢apEIf PRSI SL] |0 RALEEA e

o) 'shep R FIE] AALLY L [ Sue L e A0 Salal
w0 yidop e o) Bureopd Jo Bupbiuess Ag paussaq) AluBcIsL) &4 ___m:w
zday papaesiues jaas juawdinba Guipesids ay) Aq popinoid ey
pucian Bugoeduicy 1aan pasy el eele) ape il pagads ay) ouodag
sl as eeadld [|eus el asufap i) on Aja 1370 [EYs swonelado
Hulpesids Bump uopaedwes posdo) ajge;dzi08 a1E Japewl Huebio
puUE sdWwna Jip siru Jouiw jedg) yans Ay Sned peaids aq |gys asdo]
R GU-pEE ABE ' BRIE LBERID PURIE B|IE SUE IS8T S

A Jo gibsp oy e e |Gsdo) pancsdde QU pERIds pUR ORI 'h

)

Z3IU] PEI0%E 10U [|BYS sanEi2R] apell sjqeidauy nERp Cunpe:f
o] Jalal ‘espRIG BulsHe pUT sanajues 10 Sed 4shs Laasag io
<InojLed pue sidlod Lasmiad Auasy opell *S51aL10 paIeDIpLY BSOUN

o SR yaeduw) WDy 105 pue|as pofizaes 2 (leys I0sdo] |osde o
JalsaaE|d Si) Jo) ojle o) SUalEAs|s [06S PUE SIND)E0D 8Re 6 pays|uy
pasodoud UEY) JBMG| SEYGUI KIS B |EYS PUENEW PR Ul sopeib-gng oy

"SLIDYR e El

‘amngs pEneldde ue won

HIGmE

L pARALD Ama BY) e O] JEEYIEIN D PUSTEAY UINA 100 I

10y plie TENsLo T PUE B, B 01 SHuelp |
‘sERIE uonetipw puepem pue pueyov Busixe o) jusselpe sadajs uo
JEHUE|] i0JuDD uoiscud Aldde put seMT GUIp3os 130 [N fMELE Splaald
‘SESIE pUE|dn PSQIMIEIS AUE PUT BOUE UDUREGII e 2 peag L

PUE %W paas esldde o] UEYNSLGD pUEyEas  (hAuEor|d pass
07 frlE(lEA O SIETILINS Bpineid puE upaees o

VO-58 BY] 0 ADCD B UIEIGD pUE

JSUMCS
-se aplanid] o] Jeyrenuss oy

EE

Fl

‘fupaas

] e gL

NS 3 AR $a AL FAYE pUS UelErulsuas oy Jond sEaie ucnedijul
plefisi ey o aliealze sl pue sINOWODE3ACIE B o Jnade] DUyl Al ||Bgs
JUENITSUGT) PUEEAA IDASAINS PREUSDIN B A pAuuapad ay (eys e bpe

PUE SUCHIEADID JO INDATT SEUMBIE sHYk Lo usiags e v s vonefing
e sabealse aenbane el GUEs|ueEnt
eaue Ucedip Saprpatn sjiond w0 aul) esuss) ) s
L0 [ OUE CSYLYIURg 'EIpEE LIEILEW FUR USIAFIES IS 19Eq00D )

‘sapell Buipnjaul  abeu CIp LOTS T GMULED |07 URsia Bulaqnid pue Guyes)sy
UONONIEUDD |G

RCTE

oo A el i) snled age e e s Ao (89S s |y

‘nguoy polpods 28 ropuE sEamaE] SU Le ueals
=B Y B1edian of paanban o edagncdde ESEI0EU PUE SEIAES
‘woyepadeoen) oadinba 'spEisew IOGE] (B YSILN] BT HOL O LMD

SOI0N _m_m:mo

oRET




APPENDIX 11

FTCH’s Wetland Delineation — WDV 18-13 (Dated October 24, 2018)



October 24, 2018
Project No. 181578

Mr. Mark Kieselbach

Charter Township of Meridian
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, M| 48864-1198

Re: Wetland Delineation — WDV 18-13
Sierra Homes Property
60 Chimney Oaks Drive, Okemos, Ingham County, Michigan

Dear Mr. Kieselbach:

On October 17, 2018, Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. (FTCH) staff conducted a field investigation and
delineated wetlands on Parcel No. 33-02-02-256-478-004, located at 60 Chimney Oaks Drive, Charter Township
of Meridian (Township), Michigan (the Site) The approximately 1.5-acre Site is located in Section 25 of Town 4
North, Range 1 West. The Site is surrounded by vacant and residential property. Chimney Oaks Drive is located
along the Site’s southern boundary and Meridian Road is located along the Site’s eastern boundary. The parcel is
irregularly shaped. A stormwater detention basin owned by the Ingham County Drain Commissioner (ICDC) is
located along the Site’s western boundary. A channel extends from the basin to the east and crosses the
southeast end of the Site (see Figure 1). The wetland delineation was limited to the area of a proposed driveway
that will cross this drainageway (see proposed plan in Appendix 1). The results of the investigation are included
in this report.

The wetland delineation was conducted in a manner consistent with the 1987 Corps of Engineers Wetlands
Delineation Manual and 2012 Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual:
Northcentral and Northeast Region (Version 2). The wetlands identification and delineation procedures outlined
in these manuals require evaluation of site vegetation, soils, and hydrologic characteristics. Dominant wetland
vegetation, hydric soil, and wetland hydrology must all be present for an area to be classified as a wetland.
Hydrophytic vegetation decisions are based on the wetland indicator status of species that are dominant in the
plant community. Species with indicator statuses of obligate wetland (OBL), facultative wetland (FACW), and
facultative (FAC) are considered wetland species, while species with indicator statuses of facultative upland
(FACU) and upland (UPL) are considered upland species. FAC species are also commonly present in upland plant
communities.

Literature Review

The Township wetland map for Section 25 indicates the stormwater detention basin and associated
drainageway is part of Township Wetland 25-1D, a 12.17-acre, open water and forested wetland that is a
tributary to the Red Cedar River and a designated county drain. The ICDC Preliminary Meridian Township
Southeast Drain map confirms the stormwater detention basin, the channel that crosses the Site, and a second
short swale that connects to the channel from Chimney Oaks Drive on the Site are all part of the FKA Povey,
Chimney Oaks Branch Drain.

According to the U.S. Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service Web Soil Survey, the
soil at the proposed driveway crossing is Colwood-Brookston loams (80% hydric rating) (Appendix 2).

5913 Executive Drive, Suite 100 517.882.0383 Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc.
Lansing, Michigan 48911 www.ftch.com engineers | scientists | architects | constructors



Mr. Mark Kieselbach ﬁc,{rl'l

Page 2
October 24, 2018

The National Wetlands Inventory (NWI) map indicates wetland in the stormwater detention basin and the
drainageway that extends from the basin onto the Site. The NWI code for this wetland is PUBGx, which indicates
the wetland has an unconsolidated bottom, was historically excavated, and is intermittently exposed

(Appendix 3).

Site Investigation

The area of investigation and Wetland Sampling Point SP-A are noted in Figure 1. A well-defined channel with
steep banks was present at the proposed driveway crossing location. Emergent wetland was present at the toe
of the slope and was dominated by reed canarygrass (Phalaris arundinacea, FACW). Although reed canarygrass
grew up the channel slope, wetland hydrology appeared to be limited to the toe of slope. Soil was saturated at
Wetland Sampling Point SP-A, while the adjacent channel contained 11 inches of water. Emergent wetland along
the edge of the channel was approximately 2 to 3 feet wide on either side of the channel.

A separate, 700-square foot wetland was present north of the channel in a steep depression, as indicated in
Figure 1. The wetland contained shallow standing water covered in common duckweed (Lemna minor, OBL). The
wetland edges contained reed canarygrass, highbush cranberry (Viburnum opulus, FAC), silver maple (Acer
saccharinum, FACW), and riverbank grape (Vitis riparia, FACW). An upland plant community was observed at the
top of slope around the wetland, and included black walnut trees (Juglans nigra, FACU), American basswood
(Tilia americana, FACU), invasive honeysuckle shrubs (Lonicera sp.), black raspberry (Rubus occidentalis, UPL),
and tall goldenrod (Solidago altissima, FACU). Photographs of the Site’s wetlands are included in Appendix 4.

A U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Wetland Determination Data Form was completed to describe site vegetation,
soil, and hydrology at sampling location SP-A (Appendix 5). A wetland data form was not completed for the
wetland in the depression due to the obvious signs of wetland vegetation and hydrology, and difficulty accessing
this area due to steep slopes and unstable soil. FTCH flagged the wetland boundaries with pink ribbon labelled
Al through A5 on the north side of the channel, A13 through A16 on the south side of the channel, and A6
through A12 around the wetland north of the channel. Flagged points were surveyed with a handheld GPS unit
with submeter accuracy. Wetland boundaries are noted on Figure 1.

Conclusions

According to Michigan’s Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, Act 451, Section 30301(d),
wetlands "contiguous to the Great Lakes or Lake St. Clair, an inland lake or pond, or a river or stream" or "more
than 5 acres in size" are regulated by the State of Michigan. In addition, the Township regulates wetlands
greater than two acres in size which are not contiguous to a water body and wetlands between 0.25 acre and
two acres in size that are determined to be essential to the preservation of the natural resources of the
Township.

Wetland along the edge of the channel and the adjacent delineated wetland are contiguous to the Povey Drain
and are therefore regulated by both the State of Michigan and the Township. It appears construction of the
proposed driveway will impact both the wetland along the edge of the channel and the adjacent wetland.

A wetland use permit is required from the Township for the following activities within wetlands regulated by the
Township:

e Placing fill or permitting the placement of fill in the wetland.
e Dredging, removing, or permitting the removal of soil or minerals from the wetland.

Z:\2018\181578\WORK\REPT\WETLAND REPORT.DOCX



Mr. Mark Kieselbach
Page 3
October 24, 2018

e Constructing, operating, or maintaining any use or development in the wetland.
e Draining surface water from the wetland.
e Discharging water into the wetland.

In addition, the Township requires that all structures and grading activities during site development shall be set
back 40 feet from the delineated wetland boundary and a natural vegetation strip shall be maintained within
20 feet of the wetland boundary.

If you have any questions regarding this letter, the wetland permitting process, or any other wetland-related
issues, please contact me at 616.464.3738 or ehtripp@ftch.com.

Sincerely,

FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER, INC.
Ute M—Trugy

Elise Hansen Tripp, PWS

pmb

Attachments

By email
cc/att: Mr. Peter Menser — Township of Meridian

Z:\2018\181578\WORK\REPT\WETLAND REPORT.DOCX


mailto:ehtripp@ftch.com

Figures



paniasay SIB IV
8102 WBUAdOO®

T

‘ON 34N9old

8/S18T
‘ON 103roydd

@®
=
o
=
o
W)
@
=
®
2
o
S

uebIyaI ‘sowaxO ‘1g syeQ Asuwiy)d 09
uelpLIB\ Jo diysumo] Jayreyd

*9zIS Iay10 Aue
10} @1eINddE A 10U
Kew Ayrenb oiydelf

pue paresipul

(s)areos "panojd
usym L TX.IT
aq 0} papuaiul
sI Adoo preH

‘oul 1agny % 11ed
‘uosduwioys oaqusy

$1019NJ1SU0D
s10911yoJe
SEIEIRS

slaaulbua

gDy

09 0g 0 HI1YON
1334

NV1d 41IS

Arepunog Auadoud srewixosddy |

'
Cem=—rr=1l

puepo paresuljadg

ulod buidwes puepspy @

CNEREN

Ay S5y Sb €U PUE NSRRI RVESe SR asn *Sa Snlv/SEle Sejyditoss)

' e1sULe R 9h 300, 2d0[9) BRI ST IN0S, AluniiluosssniS| ol liplEeEsionginioaldeNissinSisd@
- B eipliAtlide i sulio ARSI LSS oIngIiledlde 1o oS isd @l RelpUlAlde N ks Wiog o @I d = H isT

puejiaM ‘) "bs 002

uiseg uonuslag 0dol

deu\S|D\aVO\82ST8T\8T0Z\:Z :04NI LOld

SOV H8sN  INd T€:2S:T 8T02/2¢/0T 21ed  PXWNYTd ILIS TOOI4\00p!




Appendix 1



For: PLOT PLAN Survey Address: .
Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc. 60 Chimney Oaks Drive
10476 W. Walker Road Okemos, M|l 48864
Fowler, Ml 48835 ID: 33—-02-02-25-478—-004
Legal Description (as provided): Lot 30, Chimney Oaks Subdivision, Meridian Township, Ingham
County, Michigan, according to the recorded plat thereof, as recorded in Liber 44 of Plats,
Pages 1—4, Ingham County Records.
Soil Erosion Control Notes: NOTES:
1. Clean roads daily 1. A LOT SURVEY IS REQUIRED FOR THE
2. Clean catch basin filters once a week. EXACT LOCATION OF FENCE AND
3. Inspect and maintain silt fence once a week. PROPERTY LINES.
4. Keep soil erosion permit posted at oll times until site is stabilized.
5. All BMP's must remain in working order unit site is stabilized. 2. ALL EASEMENTS MAY NOT BE SHOWN.
6. Excavated soil to be used as fil on site.
7. Standard basement foundation. .
8. Temporary construction drives shall be 1"—2" crushed concrete or stone. ;%Rpgllj\gi\}g 5%%{;‘5;1‘
| ' : 1 K
{' ¥ R255.00’ ELENELE
i 8 \ %, \ \ -—Cg‘
I BUILDING SETBACK LINE Los d AN Y
" \ n—i g N 2 Y Y 8
VN , i = A RN N =%
-®)- o B SO LR L o WS ERY )
S N %% B\ o |- BNV
SR )4 F i RO (P
N
N s Wl ?\A\'ﬁ 4 I LOT 30 g LU e
N\ " ‘%tﬁ» | EEmsm | 1E855E 3 OFWE Ve
AN EAC < Ese.08| \ \
I ] tj\d-. \ ) \ Ily‘ 0:
1" = 80 \ W 2 PROPOSED \ @ L
N S & X (\ ok ! HOUSE & GARAGE N 2|
" \ . 4, SEE DETA Lo \\ =
Pe X = ON PAGE 2 0, A
POND . \ / “*Tot\\ \
 ~g8sg \ / LINE Y\
~857— (N WA PHYSIC
—858 \?‘fg O Bﬁ L [oF|RoDY, !
~ T % 8
ey W Qo'?'?;i, g vy
R Sl LS WXy
J g ML Tox =y \
' e | e Y % @
\ SN o
e ® e fLE\ \
ﬂ‘c? \ S
- \tfé" . \ e e 1L
o 2% ™o \
(@] ’9‘3 % = N N |
% g N TG N WM~ \ \ T g /) \
g 86 {“{/¢\ / /‘7,& 17 -._“:gg % R : a. | 1| |
rd N WAL / 655 i Bl
¥ 3 0’ WIDE PRIVATE- l |
20° m&vE PRIVATE s9A 15/ EASEMENTFOR Ly
= ) OVEY BRAIN™ ~ \
850—pga~ DRAIN EASEMENT //35/ 45 \ 1| \
S ey ¥ES f/ fﬂ-'// & % | ||
ST =SS g N Q< ;
'Wxa{“%““x_/ N A0 Fy e *\;\:\H ~ss f{
%.25 \<,//_; | % N S~ !/ )
o e N\ |
8sg, = ) / \?&-R /
R N /) =
iy Py ey & / <y N/
/S’/A;Se.a““& ANRSg~ | N >
N/ 85 TRl I
£y 8
04‘9 9 I e \\ 2
S < — i i e
Doty 692 R107.99°{ =
PROPOSED TOFP OF BASEMENT WALL = B868.0+% /?/ 9 T~ S 861/
PROPOSED TOP OF BASEMENT FLOOR = 859.0+ ’/ <. e S = ‘Jf" _\a_;’
PROPOSED FINISH GARAGE FLOOR = 867.0% se0 O ==t —— = &
This plon was made at the direction of the parties hereon and intended solely for their immediate use and no
survey has been made and no property lines were monumented, all easements recorded or unrecorded may not
be shown, unless specifically noted, and no dimensions are intended for use in establishing property lines.
R = Recorded Distance x = Existing Elevation KYES ENGINEERING
—o0——o0- = Silt Fence D = Surface Drainage KEBS' |N C. BRYAN LAND SURVEYS
S X = P d
S0 Lie SO PVin TGrate 2116 HASLETT ROAD, HASLETT, Mi 48840
——~— = Distance Not to Scale PH. 517—-339-1014 FAX. 517—-339—-8047
= Dack, Porch, Sidewalk, & Patio Areas 13432 PRESTON DRIVE, MARSHALL, MI 490638
a PH. 269—781—-9800 FAX. 269—-781-9805
Vi i 7 o /
{1 / _/////P/ C/‘Pr/; LiF DRAWN BY  SLH SECTION 25, T4N, R1W
/,’ [ &= ¢ F FIELD WORK BY ——— JOB NUMBER:
(ERICK R. FRIESTROM DATE 93525.HSE
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYO 7 SHEET 1 OF 2 ‘




Appendix 2



G 10 | abed KaAng |10S aAneiadoo) [euoneN 99IAI9S UOIRAIBSUOD
810Z/LL/0L Aaning [0S g $921n0say |einjeN

|——=

8SOM NOT 3UOZ ALLN S8 86p  H8SOM :SS1euIpIocd JaWo)  J0jedisly gap uonpafold dejy
00e 00C oL 08 0
==Y
05l 00l 05 74 0
SRR
393Us (,5°8 X ,,TT) ddedspue] v uo psjuud Ji 0T6'T:T S[eds dep

09612 0c/SLL 089G1L

NS TP ot : - N.ZS . TY ol
¥
SSEERS SIUR 1R RIIRA BE 20U ABWY dRR] [0S

N.T.Zb olb N.T 2P olh

(I ‘sowayO ‘aAuq sxeQ Asuwiyd 09)
uebiyoipy ‘Ajunon weybu—yun depy Aq Buiey oupAH




G jo Z abed AaAIng [10S 8AlleIado0) [euoieN 9DIAI9G UONEAIOSUOCD  pue

|——==

810Z/LL/0L AaAIng |10S gop $92IN0SdY [ednjeN VS|

S|eue) pue sweans

‘juspine ag Aew sauepunog jun dew jo Buyiys Sainjes isjep

Joujw awos ‘nsai e sy ‘sdew asay} uo pake|dsip Aiabew S1GBJIBAE 10U 10 PaJEl JON O
punoibyoeq ay} wouy siayip Ajlgeqoid pazyibip pue pa|idwod )

alam saul| |10s 8y} yoiym uo dew aseq Jayjo 1o ojoydoyuo ay | (%0) oupAHon  H

9102 (%zeor ) oupiy O

‘L1 190—1102 ‘2L Int  :paydeibojoyd aiam sabew jeuse (s)areq (%59 01 £2) OUPAH o

Jabuel 10 000°05: | (%66 01 99) oupiH O

so|eos dew 1o} (smoje aoeds se) pajage| aJe sjun dew [10S
(%001) oupA M

810z ‘9 dog ‘gl uoisiap :ejeq ealy AeAing
sjulod Buney jlog

uebiyoiy ‘Aluno) weybu|  :ealy ABAING |10S

"MoJoq pajsl| (S)a)ep UOISIBA 8y} JO S|Ge|leAB JOU JO pajel JON ¥

se ejep payiHed SOYN-YASN du} woly pajessusb si jonpoud siy | (%0) OUPAH JON ~ ww
‘palinbal aJe eaJe 1o 9oUB)SIp JO SUOIE|NJ|BD d)eInNdoe (%zE 0y L) OUpAH = ¥
alow JI pasn aqg p|noys ‘uoioafoid o1uod eale-jenbas siaq|y
ay) se yons ‘eale sansasald jey) uonosfoid y ‘Bale pue aoue)sIp (%S9 o1 eg) ouphy  # =
suo)sIp Inq adeys pue uondallp saatasald yoiym ‘uonosfoid (%66 01 99) OUPAH ~ wr
J0}R0IBIN g9AA BU} UO paseq ale ASAINS |I0S gapA Y} woly sdey ’
(%001) OUpAH e

(298€:9S8d3) J0jedso gOM  Wa)sAg 8jeulpioo)

749N A8AINg [10S gapn saul Bupey 108

BJIAIBS UOIJBAIBSUOD S82IN0SBY |einjeN ”QN_\/_ JO 82In0g a|ge|ieAe jou 1o pajel 10N _H_
‘sjuswiainsesw (%0)oupAHION  []
deuw Joj }19ays dew yoea uo 9|eas Jeq ay} uo Ajal ases|d
Audesbojoud evey [ (%zg oy L) oupAH  []
] punoubyoeg
SIeds (%59 01 €g) oupAH [
pajielap alow e Je UMOYS Usaq aAeY pInod Jey} s|ios Buijsesyuoo speoy [e207]

JO seale |jews ay} moys jou op sdew ay] ‘juswaoe|d auj| (%66 0199) oupAH  []
l10s Jo Aoeinooe pue Buiddew Jo [iejop sy Jo Bulpuelsiapunsiw speoy Jofepy (%004) oupk =
asneo ueo Buiddew jo ajeos ay) puokeq sdew jo Juswabieju] senoy sn %001} SUPAH

suobAjod Buney |i10s
"8|B0S SIU} e pljeA 8q jou Aew dep [0S :Bulutepn sAemybiH ajejsiayu| Lt s|ilog
‘008'SL:1 siiey H (10V) 1s8181U] Jo BRIY
je paddew alam |QV InoA asudwod yey} sAains |10s ay | uoneyodsues) (I0V) 1sa13)u] jo eary
NOILVINHO4NI dVIN aN3O31 dVIN

(I ‘sowayO ‘aAuq sxeQ Asuwiyd 09)
uebiyoipy ‘“Ajunon weybu—jun depy Aq Buiey oupAH




Hydric Rating by Map Unit—Ingham County, Michigan

60 Chimney Oaks Drive, Okemos,

Ml
Hydric Rating by Map Unit
Map unit symbol Map unit name Rating Acres in AOI Percent of AOI
AnA Aubbeenaubbee-Capac |8 4.6 30.3%
sandy loams, 0 to 3
percent slopes
Co Colwood-Brookston 80 4.7 30.7%
loams
KbA Kibbie loam, 0 to 3 10 0.8 5.5%
percent slopes
otC Oshtemo-Spinks loamy |0 2.6 17.2%
sands, 6 to 12 percent
slopes
OowB Owosso-Marlette sandy |0 0.6 4.0%
loams, 2 to 6 percent
slopes
W Water 0 1.9 12.4%
Totals for Area of Interest 15.2 100.0%
UsbA  Natural Resources Web Soil Survey 10/11/2018

—=S - -
== Conservation Service

National Cooperative Soil Survey

Page 3 of 5



Hydric Rating by Map Unit—Ingham County, Michigan

60 Chimney Oaks Drive, Okemos,

Ml

Description

This rating indicates the percentage of map units that meets the criteria for hydric
soils. Map units are composed of one or more map unit components or soil
types, each of which is rated as hydric soil or not hydric. Map units that are made
up dominantly of hydric soils may have small areas of minor nonhydric
components in the higher positions on the landform, and map units that are made
up dominantly of nonhydric soils may have small areas of minor hydric
components in the lower positions on the landform. Each map unit is rated based
on its respective components and the percentage of each component within the
map unit.

The thematic map is color coded based on the composition of hydric
components. The five color classes are separated as 100 percent hydric
components, 66 to 99 percent hydric components, 33 to 65 percent hydric
components, 1 to 32 percent hydric components, and less than one percent
hydric components.

In Web Soil Survey, the Summary by Map Unit table that is displayed below the
map pane contains a column named 'Rating'. In this column the percentage of
each map unit that is classified as hydric is displayed.

Hydric soils are defined by the National Technical Committee for Hydric Soils
(NTCHS) as soils that formed under conditions of saturation, flooding, or ponding
long enough during the growing season to develop anaerobic conditions in the
upper part (Federal Register, 1994). Under natural conditions, these soils are
either saturated or inundated long enough during the growing season to support
the growth and reproduction of hydrophytic vegetation.

The NTCHS definition identifies general soil properties that are associated with
wetness. In order to determine whether a specific soil is a hydric soil or nonhydric
soil, however, more specific information, such as information about the depth and
duration of the water table, is needed. Thus, criteria that identify those estimated
soil properties unique to hydric soils have been established (Federal Register,
2002). These criteria are used to identify map unit components that normally are
associated with wetlands. The criteria used are selected estimated soil properties
that are described in "Soil Taxonomy" (Soil Survey Staff, 1999) and "Keys to Soil
Taxonomy" (Soil Survey Staff, 2006) and in the "Soil Survey Manual" (Soil Survey
Division Staff, 1993).

If soils are wet enough for a long enough period of time to be considered hydric,
they should exhibit certain properties that can be easily observed in the field.
These visible properties are indicators of hydric soils. The indicators used to
make onsite determinations of hydric soils are specified in "Field Indicators of
Hydric Soils in the United States" (Hurt and Vasilas, 2006).

References:

Federal Register. July 13, 1994. Changes in hydric soils of the United States.
Federal Register. September 18, 2002. Hydric soils of the United States.

USDA

=0
|

Natural Resources Web Soil Survey
Conservation Service National Cooperative Soil Survey

10/11/2018
Page 4 of 5



Hydric Rating by Map Unit—Ingham County, Michigan 60 Chimney Oaks Drive, Okemos,

MI
Hurt, G.W., and L.M. Vasilas, editors. Version 6.0, 2006. Field indicators of hydric
soils in the United States.
Soil Survey Division Staff. 1993. Soil survey manual. Soil Conservation Service.
U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 18.
Soil Survey Staff. 1999. Soil taxonomy: A basic system of soil classification for
making and interpreting soil surveys. 2nd edition. Natural Resources
Conservation Service. U.S. Department of Agriculture Handbook 436.
Soil Survey Staff. 2006. Keys to soil taxonomy. 10th edition. U.S. Department of
Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service.
Rating Options
Aggregation Method: Percent Present
Component Percent Cutoff: None Specified
Tie-break Rule: Lower
USDA  Natural Resources Web Soil Survey 10/11/2018

=== Conservation Service National Cooperative Soil Survey Page 5 of 5



Appendix 3



Jaddew |MN 8y Aq paonpoud sem abed siyl
(IMN) A10)uBAU| SPUBIBAA [BUOKEN

suuany [ puod seremysaid [ puepam auuen pue sutensy [
syio  [] puepsm gniys/parsaiod seremysaid [l jgremdeaq suie pue suenss B

‘als gam Jadde spuepsp
SU1 UO puNnoj eIEpRISW Jake| BY) YIIM 3dUBpPIOII. Ul Pash aq axe . puepspn u:mmhmEm laremysalH _H_ Spue|sp

pInoys elep parejas spuepiem ||y “dew Siyl uo UMoys ejep aseq
a1 Jo SSauUUaLND 10 AdeINJOR By} J0) 3|qIsuodsal JoU S| 3IAIBS 8T0Z ‘TT 1840100

SJIIPIIM PUe Usi4 SN 3yl “Ajuo aduaisal [esauab oy st dew siyL

IIN 'sowaXO ‘aANQ seQ Asuwiyd 09 ._o“_:0>c_M__wc_.“mm_w“u$ _g_m“._.m__wmm—w__




Appendix 4



8/ST8T "ON 193/oid W UI]

IN ‘sowax O ‘@Al sYeQ Asuwiyd 09
sydelboloyd a1s

U] 49qgnH R 11e) ‘uosdwoy] “raqysi4



€T-8T AQM/dML uelpLIB|A| :awep 13foid 8T0T/LT/0T :91e@ Q/STYT "ON 33loid *'oN 1293foud




€T-8T AQM/dML uelpLIB|A| :awep 13foid 8T0T/LT/0T :91e@ Q/STYT "ON 33loid *'oN 1293foud

- A
P

3se3 3upjoo 1S9\ Sujo0o

Y-dS WOl [guuey) JO SMIA



€1-8T AQM/dM] UBIpLBIN ‘aweN 123(o1d 8T0Z/LT/0T  :®1e@ 8/ST8T ON 13f0id "N 323f0ud H.Euﬂ

1se3 3upjoo

puejIa/\ |euolssaldaqg JO SMIIA



Appendix 5



WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region

Project/Site: 60 Chimney Oaks Drive City/County: Meridian Twp\Ingham Sampling Date: 17-Oct-18
Applicant/Owner: Sierra Homes of Michigan State: Michigan Sampling Point: SP-A
Investigator(s): Elise Tripp Section, Township, Range: S. 25 T. 4N R. 1W

Landform (hillslope, terrace, etc.): Channel (active) Local relief (concave, convex, none): convex Slope: 00% / 0.0 °
Subregion (LRR or MLRA): | RR L Lat.: 42.698636890 Long.: -84.364034858 Datum: WGS84

Soil Map Unit Name: Colwood-Brookston NWI classification: PUBGx

Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes @ No O (If no, explain in Remarks.)

Are Vegetation |:| , Soil D , or Hydrology D significantly disturbed? Are "Normal Circumstances" present? Yes @ No O

Are Vegetation D , Soil D , or Hydrology D naturally problematic? (If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Summary of Findings - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Yes @ No O
B : Is the Sampled Area

Hydric Soil Present? Yes @ No© within a Wetland? Yes @ No O

Yes @ No O

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Remarks: (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)

Hydrology
Wetland Hydrology Indicators: Secondary Indicators (minimum of 2 required)
Primary Indicators (minimum of one required; check all that apply) [] Surface Soil Cracks (B6)
[ ] Surface Water (A1) [ ] Water-Stained Leaves (B9) [] Drainage Patterns (B10)
High Water Table (A2) [] Aquatic Fauna (B13) [ ] Moss Trim Lines (B16)
Saturation (A3) [ ] Marl Deposits (B15) [] Dry Season Water Table (C2)
D Water Marks (B1) D Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1) D Crayfish Burrows (C8)
D Sediment Deposits (B2) D Oxidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3) D Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)
D Drift deposits (B3) D Presence of Reduced Iron (C4) D Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)
] Algal Mat or Crust (B4) [ ] Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6) [ ] Geomorphic Position (D2)
[ 1ron Deposits (B5) L] Thin Muck Surface (C7) (] shallow Aquitard (D3)
D Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7) D Other (Explain in Remarks) D Microtopographic Relief (D4)
L] Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8) FAC-neutral Test (D5)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present? Yes O No O] Depth (inches): 0

Water Table Present? Yes @ No O Depth (inches): 1 ® O
: 5 Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes No

Saturation Present? Yes @ No O Depth (inches): 0

(includes capillary fringe)
Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:
Adjacent channel has 11 inches of water in it.

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0



VEGETATION - Use scientific names of plants

Sampling Point: SP-A

Absolute Dominant pngicator

Tree Stratum _ (Plotsize: 30' ) % Cover
1. Salix nigra 10
2. 0
3. 0
4, 0
5. 0
6. 0
7. 0
Sapling/Shrub Stratum  (Plot size: 15' ) 10
1. Salix nigra 10
2. 0
3. 0
4, 0
5. 0
6. 0
7. 0
Herb Stratum (Plot size: 5' ) 10
1. Phalaris arundinacea 70
2. Lemna minor 30
3. 0
4. 0
5. 0
6. 0
7. 0
8. 0
9. 0
10. 0
11. 0
12. 0
100
Woody Vine Stratum (Plot size: )
1. 0
2. 0
3. 0
4 0
0

Species?

OO0 O]

= Total Cover

LY

= Total Cover

0 OO0 00 OO0 IRIK]

= Total Cover

[]
[]
[]
[

= Total Cover

Status
OBL

OBL

FACW
OBL

Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species
That are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 4 (A)

Total Number of Dominant
Species Across All Strata: 4 (B)

Percent of dominant Species
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 100.0%__ (A/B)

Prevalence Index worksheet:

Total % Cover of: Multiply by:

OBL species 50 x 1= 50

FACW species 70 X 2 = 140

FAC species 0 x 3 = 0

FACU species 0 X 4= 0

UPL species 0 X 5 = 0

column Totals: 120 A 190 (®
Prevalence Index = B/A = 1.583

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:
Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
Dominance Test is > 50%
Prevalence Index is <3.0 !

L] Morphological Adaptations ® (Provide supporting
data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

[ ] Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation ' (Explain)

1 Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Tree - Woody plants, 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in diameter
at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Sapling/shrub - Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH and
greater than 3.28 ft (1m) tall..

Herb - All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless of
size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.

Woody vine - All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in
height.

Hydrophytic
Vegetation
Present? Yes @ No O

Remarks: (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

*Indicator suffix = National status or professional decision assigned because Regional status not defined by FWS.

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




Soil Sampling Point:  SP-A

Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth Matrix Redox Features

(inches) Color (moist) % Color (moist) % Type !  Loc? Texture Remarks
0-6 10YR 5/1 100 Silty Clay Loam
6-17 10YR 2/1 100 Silty Clay Loam

1 Type: C=Concentration. D=Depletion. RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains 2Location: PL=Pore Lining. M=Matrix

Hydric Soil Indicators:

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils : 3
D Histosol (A1) D Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R,

[ ] 2 em Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)

. : MLRA 149B)
% ::::l: EZE:?:Z)(AZ) (] Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 149B) % goaSt;'aTe:e‘:” (:1? (S';RRL'ER'-IK R?_ A
[] Hydrogen Sulfide (A4) [] Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) LRR K, L) O Dcn; S U(; ¥ esa7 OrLR(:{aK( i )lvf LR
D Stratified Layers (A5) [] Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2) O Palr Iur a;:el( ;(rf ’SBI BRR ‘L
[ ] Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11) Depleted Matrix (F3) H o.yva ue Below Surface (S5 ( o
D Thick Dark Surface (AL2) [ Redox Dark Surface (F6) Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRRK, L)

[] Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)

[ ] piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)
[ ] Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)
[] Red Parent Material (F21)

[ very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

[ other (Explain in Remarks)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

[] Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

D Sandy Muck Mineral (S1)
[ ] Redox Depressions (F8)

D Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)

D Sandy Redox (S5)

[] Stripped Matrix (S6)

[ ] Dark Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

Restrictive Layer (if observed):
Type:

Depth (inches): Hydric Soil Present? Yes @ No O

Remarks:

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0



APPENDIX IlI

Site Photos Log



‘pue|1am 1004 a4enbs QQ/ ||ews ‘paie|os! (8T02/6T/TT U el 010Yd) suolleao| uissoud
9Y3 PIOAE |[IM YdIym ‘Buissoud ABMIALIP BY3 JO MIIA JBYlouy ({7 Aemannp pasodoud ayl 1e uledq/y pueIdpn Jo MaIA Sudey-1samy (€

"(8T02/62/TT uay el 010yd) Suissoud Aemanlip syl Joy ‘peoy UBIPLIBIAl 4O 1S9M pue daALI]
pasodoud ulep/puejiam a1s-uo 3ullSIXa JO MIIA Suldef-1ses uy (¢ syeQ Asuwiy) Jo yuou ays pasodoid ayl Jo mala Sudej-yuou (T

SOLOHd 31IS

uediyain Axuno) weysu| ‘diysumo] uelplA
aAQ s3eQ Asuwiyd 09 -0€ 107
1WIdd SN pueam "dm] uelpuan g uonesiMA pueja M pasodold



‘(8T02/62/TT ‘(8T02/62/TT
udde1 0l1oyd) aALQ e ASuwiy) pue peoy uelplIdN JO MIIA (8 udde1 010yd) aALQ e AsSuwiy) wod) 31S 3yl Jo MAIA (£

‘puod 33IS-Uo 03Ul S98J4eYDSIP UIBJpP BY] dJoYym
J0 1s9myou 1934 05 Aj91ewixosdde paledo| aq [jim uonediiw
puejiam pasodoud ay] ‘puod 91S-uo 3y1 JO M3IA Sudey-1SaM Y (S

‘puejiam/ulelp
3unsixa ay3 Jo yiou ‘uoizedo| asnoy pasodoid syl Jo MaIA (9

SOLOHd 31IS

uediyain Axuno) weysu| ‘diysumo] uelplA
aAQ s3eQ Asuwiyd 09 -0€ 107
UWI™d 9SN puepam "dm] uelpus|A 1@ uoneSiuN puejiap pasodoud



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



S
>
DE'&’

NOTICE OF AUTHORIZATION

Permit Number: WRP014628v. 1 Date Issued: December 14, 2018
Site Name: 33-60 Chimney Oaks Drive-Okemos-Lot 30 Expiration Date: December 14, 2023

The Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, Water Resources Division, P.O. Box 30458,
Lansing, Michigan 48909-7958, under provisions of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act,
1994 PA 451, as amended; specifically:

[] Part 31, Floodplain Regulatory Authority of the Water Resources Protection.

X Part 301, Inland Lakes and Streams.

X Part 303, Wetlands Protection.

[] Part 315, Dam Safety.

Authorized activity:

Construct a 40-foot-long, 38-inch by 57-inch diameter elliptical corrugated metal culvert
on the Povey Drain at Lot 30 Chimney Oaks, including 80 cubic yards of backfill and
10 cubic yards of natural stone riprap at the end sections.

To be conducted at property located in: Ingham County, Waterbody: Povey Drain
Section 25, Town 04N, Range 01W, Meridian Charter Township

Permittee:

Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc.
Attention Mr. Chris Thelen
10476 West Walker Road
Fowler, M| 48835-9714

2

Carol Valor

Lansing District Office
Water Resources Division
517-388-3667

This notice must be displayed at the site of work.
Laminating this notice or utilizing sheet protectors is recommended.
Please refer to the above permit number with any questions or concerns.



Ingham County Drain Commissioner
Patrick E. Lindemann

PERMIT TO CROSS A COUNTY / INTERCOUNTY DRAIN

Date Issued O Commercial Permit
& Residential
10/8/2018 O Agricultural
Drain Number Drainage District
P39-00 POVEY DRAIN

PermiTTED ACTIVITY:

Install a 36”

14 guage CMP culvert in the inlet to the Chimney Oaks detention basin to be

used as a driveway for a single family home (l.E. 853.4).

PERMITTEE:

Permittee:
Address:
City:
Phone:
E-Mail:

Sierra Homes of Michigan - Jim Houthoold

10476 W. Walker Road

Fowler State: MI  Zip: 48835

517.204.3641 Fax:

christhelen@yahoo.com

CONTRACTOR

Contractor:
Address:
City:
Phone:
E-Mail:

Slerra Homes of Michigan

State: Zip:

Fax:

PermiT CONDITIONS:
1. The permitted activity shall be completed in accordance with the approved plans and specifications, and
the attached general conditions and responsibilities.

2. Initiation of work approved under this permit confirms the permittee's acceptance and agreement to
comply with the terms and conditions of this permit.

3. This permit does not waive the necessity for obtaining all other required federal, state, or local permits.

4, Permit must

be posted visibly on-site. (Post permit near entrance to site)

Addtional Conditions:

Call Dave Solberg at least 3 days before starting the work (719-4898).
Drain Commissioner’s inspector must be onsite during construction authorized by permit.

APPROVED BY @Q,Qﬁ% APPROVAL DATE 10/8/2018




TR BT RS R

I

shibrE A

oo

ERILEAL LR

v
57|55
1 Bl |d|d
; (3 ORI DaYS) SSNGER [
i % wlllolo
K SHEET 1 OF 3

l

LOT 30, CHIMNEY OAKS

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Legal Description (as provided):

Lot 30, Chimney Oaks Subdivision, Meridion
Township, Ingham County, Michigan, according to
the recorded plat thereof, as recorded in Liber
o 44 of Plots, Poges 1—4, Ingham County Records.

10" PRIVATE EASEMENT
FOR PUBLIC UTIUTIES

N N

/// /m..r_./ /

//Jm—m/ \
I,/.I//// TV

R255.00°

RSOV
g N /_ N \ VY,
] N NI YV
\, \ f_ /
qa/ _\v AN /:
v
//-.wm\o ce\ \ N
RPN NI AN
c &
QUS!

/&vl/’l S
- N
~ ~ /////
m. ‘I.lauwl\|/////
PN ,
| ~N \
- N \
o
1O ~
o N
2 o ..l:Au%@
ix 7 \
i/
L Fo5
Ay s T — Nﬂ[
|IL/I/ - ~ /”. —~—
~
~

20" WIDE PRIVATE
ORAIN EASEMENT

o
<
o
x
=z
<
Q
o
L
=

100" WIDE PRIVATE
[~ EASEMENT FOR
POVEY DRAIN

(VR
£
" -
M 8l 9
S g3
Ow.wo,
D %
g o
=
CH
O,M..m.
T &g
BE
HoBe
Eg
<C
o
<
- - O
HRELE
VTVDW”
g |28 £ 2
28 1R1£2|%
BE |2|2|2
3
=3
g
8
-3
=3
mm
w0
23 o
O 4 SE
9. 3%
Z| 25 1§
b
Ui mu £
B H.-.u
Ll =9
¥l &F




B
Fi

LOT 30, CHIMNEY OAKS

w
[72]
ol ng
©u e}
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN bnM m o
v, o
PROPOSED 3 S.Y. %\ VY y 2 & O ZES
¥ > @
= m b
% = 3
= x
: = @)
] vn.u =3 M g
<< £ QO x|83d
; x e =
il O EE
1= S u
h... /4 \\. \\0 ole |15 W
> ﬁ Sosed 2 e ¥ . T2 3% e
0 ‘\ PROPOSEF'S S.Y., 70 | \ ol g
) §°— QN T — . |loz @ 5
! cEOTEXRLE RIF RAP ) | glEo| sz |2
S (&=
Be z
\ d 865 5
865 = p= 1
]
o] =3
U\. m.._u
0
L 3 | |Pkap il <3 mm
LGRADE E TN A Gl = &
| 880 T 01z & &
] TTTh T - mw £
24 S |
Amm LT e o =z
K / L1 GRADE] Laf W.D.
w \ \J/ Y! &E
] v PROP]| 36"
| 855 CUERT [T e 835
w S
.‘ h! 1)
3 2 S ge 3| g 5| B
i 5 o T \o o) 15 o EJ”
w mm 2! o RO e o] KO oo (&) mmo m mm w mw
R T 1+00 2+00 3+00 7133
g SN
MW PROFILE VIEW ld &1
' SCALE: HORIZ 1" = 50°
VERT. 1" = § SHEET 2 OF 3




EXHIZT A

s
(72}
LOT 30, CHIMNEY OAKS 2 gl g
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN b?m. <=3
O gg:
> (<]
O o
x
5 =
-~ D 5
< §).:
n o
¥l "k
» \ =&
P i ROPBSED S .. / 25
—— i [ B8 ROCK ON 5
| .% GEOTEXTILE RIP RAP/ ol | 1=|3
U2\, f g |5]%.
R \ =l
865 = 865 865 + 865 JHEHE
= 5 =
- LTS #
¥ BRADE | | T A 53
D omas ) \\hﬁ. =L
- 860 860 8604 860 b
v ARNA £% mm
| ST 2 & MM
B O/L ; £\ /11 Jd Es *g
| a5/ TERCH Fpace oo 855 855 - 855 @0 :
1 e GULVERT] N~ o
i - Hy PROA._|367 L) =2,
] 11 [quivERT x| &%
| ) ~ N her 10| b M3
850 B e 850 850t Hel | L1 g
,“ 0 O] 0| 0! 00 00 o O
. 0+0C +00 0+00 9lo | o | o
Zlv= = | =
=l
| PROFILE VIEW 204
. SCALE: HORIZ. 1" = 50' T
VERT. 1" = 5 SHEET 3 OF 3




January 4, 2019
Project No. 181842

Mr. Mark Kieselbach

Charter Township of Meridian
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, M| 48864

Re: Wetland Use Permit (WUP) #18-04 Application Review
60 Chimney Oaks Drive
Lot 30 of the Chimney Oaks Subdivision

Dear Mr. Kieselbach:

Sierra Homes of Michigan, Inc. (the Applicant) is requesting to construct an access drive from Chimney Oaks
Drive to a proposed house development located at 60 Chimney Oaks Drive, Okemos, Michigan (the Site). The
drive will traverse a county drain (FKA Povey, Chimney Oaks Branch Drain) that crosses the Site. The drain
contains emergent wetland approximately three feet wide at the toe of its banks.

At the request of the Township of Meridian (Township), FTCH reviewed the Wetland Use Permit (WUP) request,
including the following:

e A Joint Permit Application (JPA) prepared by the Applicant, dated November 5, 2018;

® Meridian Wetland Use Permit Application & Wetland Mitigation Plan Summary Report (Report), dated
December 5, 2018, prepared by Marx Wetlands LLC (Marx)

This report provides a brief description of the resources that would be impacted by the proposed work,
evaluates WUP Application #18-04 according to review standards in the Township Wetland Protection
Ordinance (Article IV of Chapter 22 of the Code of Ordinances of the Charter Township of Meridian), and makes
recommendations to the Township regarding issuance or denial of the WUP application.

Overview of Proposed Wetland Impacts

The proposed activities are located in Parcel Number 33-02-02-25-478-004 in the southeast quarter of

Section 25, Town 4 North, Range 1 West, Ingham County, Michigan. The approximately 1.5-acre parcel is
currently undeveloped. A stormwater detention basin owned by the Ingham County Drain Commissioner (ICDC)
is located along the Site’s western boundary. The Povey Drain flows across the southeast end of the Site into the
basin. FTCH delineated wetlands in the vicinity of the proposed driveway in October 2018. Emergent wetland
was delineated along the edge of the channel. In addition, a separate, 700-square ft wetland was present north
of the channel in a steep depression. Both wetlands are contiguous to the Povey Drain and are therefore
regulated by both the State of Michigan and the Township.

The Applicant has submitted a WUP application to the Township requesting the following:

e Construct an access drive that crosses the Povey Drain and associated wetlands. The access drive will not
impact the 700-square foot wetland. The access drive will terminate at a single-family house with attached
garage.

5913 Executive Drive, Suite 100 517.882.0383 Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc.
Lansing, Michigan 48911 www.ftch.com engineers | scientists | architects | constructors



Mr. Mark Kieselbach fTC{rh
Page 2

January 4, 2019

e Install a 40-foot long culvert in the drain. The JPA notes discrepancies in culvert size (36-inch diameter and
57-inch by 38-inch pipe arch).

e Place fill in 240 square feet of wetland, due to culvert construction. FTCH noted discrepancies in the
proposed fill volume. Marx’s cover letter and the Report note 930 cubic yards of wetland fill and 5 cubic
yards of riprap at either end of the culvert. Page 7 of the JPA includes updated calculations of wetland fill
area and volume, reflecting filling the three-foot wide wetlands along the 40-foot long culvert to a depth of
five feet (as noted in the design cross-section). The resultant fill volume is 45 cubic feet.

e Construct a 360 square-foot mitigation wetland east of the stormwater detention basin at the northwest
end of the Site. The mitigation plan did not note if pre-existing wetland is present in this area. The mitigation
wetland is designed to be approximately three feet east of the stormwater detention pond’s edge of water.

Review of WUP Application

The review standards used to evaluate WUP applications are found in Section 22-157 of Article IV (Wetland
Protection) of Chapter 22 of the Township’s Code of Ordinances. WUPs are not to be issued unless the proposed
activity is found to be in the public interest, the permit is necessary to realize the benefits from the activity, and
the proposed activity is otherwise lawful in all respects. Section 22-157(2) lists eleven general criteria to be
considered when evaluating whether or not a proposed activity is in the public interest. An evaluation of the
proposed activity, according to each of the eleven criteria, is as follows:

Section 22-157(2)(a)  The relative extent of the public and private need for the proposed activity.

e No information regarding the relative extent of the public and private need for the proposed housing
development was provided.

Section 22-157(2)(b)  The availability of feasible and prudent alternative locations and methods to accomplish
the expected benefits from the activity.

e The WUP application discussed alternative locations for the access drive and house placement. There is not
enough room for placement of the house on the south side of the drain, due to required setbacks. The
chosen drain crossing location has the least possible impact on site wetlands and entirely avoids the
700-square ft depressional wetland.

® Access to the house from Meridian Road was deemed unsafe due to moderate traffic flow on Meridian Road
and limited visibility from the house.

e Alternative culvert sizes were discussed with the ICDC. A 57-inch by 38-inch diameter culvert was selected,
as noted in the design drawings, however, the rationale for selecting this culvert size was not discussed in
the reviewed documents.

Section 22-157(2)(c)  The extent and permanence of the beneficial or detrimental effects which the proposed
activity may have on the public and private uses to which the area is suited, including the benefits the wetlands
provide.

e FTCH’s wetland delineation report indicated the emergent wetland on the edge of the drain varied from two
to three-feet wide and primarily consisted of reed canarygrass (Phalaris arundinacea), which is an invasive
species.

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2018\181842\WORK\PERMITSREGULATORY\WUP_APP_REVIEW.DOCX



Mr. Mark Kieselbach
Page 3
January 4, 2019

e Due toits narrow width and poor floristic quality, the impacted wetland provides limited functions and
values. These functions and values include sediment retention, flood control, and wildlife habitat.

e The proposed access drive construction will result in permanent loss of 240 square feet of wetland. This loss
will be compensated by construction of a 360 square foot mitigation wetland on the Site. The mitigation
wetland will likely be of higher quality than the wetland impacted by this project.

e The proposed access drive construction will allow construction of a single-family residence, a use for which
this Site is well suited. The Site is part of a housing subdivision.

Section 22-157(2)(d)  The probable impact of each proposal in relation to the cumulative effect created by
other existing and anticipated activities in the watershed.

® There are no identified cumulative impacts of the proposed project.

Section 22-157(2)(e) The probable impact on recognized historic, cultural, scenic, ecological, or recreational
values and on the public health or safety, or fish or wildlife.

e Construction of the access drive from Chimney Oak Drive provides a safer alternative than providing site
access directly from Meridian Road. However, access from Chimney Oaks Drive requires an unavoidable
drain and wetland crossing.

e Limited ecological impact will result from the access drive construction, due to the minimal wetland impacts
and the incised nature of the drain at the proposed drain crossing.

e No other impacts on recognized historic, cultural, scenic or recreational values are apparent for the
proposed activities. In addition, no impacts on fish are apparent.

Section 22-157(2)(f) Economic value, both public and private, of the proposed land change to the general
township area.

® The question of economic value associated with the proposed activity is beyond the scope of the issues
FTCH was retained to address. Accordingly, FTCH offers no opinion, recommendations, or advice with
respect to this criterium.

Section 22-157(2)(g)  The size and quality of the wetland being considered.

® The proposed activities will result in placement of 45 cubic yards of fill in 240 square feet of wetland. The
impacted wetland is low quality. The dominant vegetation consists of an invasive species.

Section 22-157(2)(h)  The findings of necessity for the proposed activity which have been made by other
agencies.

e FTCH is not aware of any findings of necessity for the proposed activity which have been made by other
agencies.

Section 22-157(2)(i) Amount of wetland remaining in the general area and proximity to a waterway.

e The Township wetland map for Section 25 indicates the stormwater detention basin on the west edge of the
Site and associated drainageway is part of Township Wetland 25-1D, a 12.17-acre, open water and forested
wetland that is a tributary to the Red Cedar River and a designated county drain.

e The ICDC Preliminary Meridian Township Southeast Drain map confirms the stormwater detention basin, the
channel that crosses the Site, and a second short swale that connects to the channel from Chimney Oaks
Drive on the Site are all part of the FKA Povey, Chimney Oaks Branch Drain.

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2018\181842\WORK\PERMITSREGULATORY\WUP_APP_REVIEW.DOCX



Mr. Mark Kieselbach
Page 4
January 4, 2019

Section 22-157(2)(j) Proximity to any waterbody.
e The Red Cedar River is located approximately one-third mile west-northwest of the proposed drain crossing.
Section 22-157(2)(k)  Extent to which upland soil erosion adjacent to the protected wetland is controlled.

e Erosion control measures are noted on Sheet: Mitigation 2, Mitigation Construction Notes (see Sequence of
Construction and Grading Specifications). The notes indicate that damage to wetlands will be repaired
immediately and wetlands will be restored to their original character.

Recommendations

Section 22-158(6) of the Township ordinance states “wetland mitigation plans that create less than two-acre
wetlands shall meet one of the conditions listed subsection 22-156(a).” Of the listed conditions, the proposed
mitigation wetland provides the following functions and values: flood and stormwater control, wildlife habitat,
and erosion control.

Based upon our review of the submitted materials, FTCH recommends the Township approve a WUP for the
proposed project and the proposed wetland mitigation plan, with the following conditions/modifications:

e Mitigate wetland impacts at a ratio of 1.5:1, constructing an emergent wetland at the northwest end of the
Site. The minimum size of the mitigation wetland will be 360 square-feet.

e Clarify if wetland is present along the edge of the stormwater detention pond at the proposed wetland
mitigation site. If wetland is present, update Sheet: Mitigation 1 to include the delineated wetland boundary
and verify the mitigation wetland does not overlap with existing wetland.

e |Installation of only one habitat structure is required. Delete snags and sand mounds from the mitigation
plan as acceptable habitat structures.

e Soil placed within the surface six inches of the mitigation wetland shall consist of mineral topsoil (not
organic soil, such as muck). It is acceptable to utilize topsoil removed from mitigation wetland site if it is of
sufficient quality and quantity to support wetland vegetation.

e The mitigation wetland shall be monitored for a period of five years, starting in the first full growing season
after construction. Therefore, if construction is finalized after June 1, a monitoring report will not be
required until the following year.

® Due to the small size of the mitigation wetland, only one permanent station is required for obtaining
hydrology data (i.e. monitoring well or staff gage).

e The wetland boundary in the mitigation wetland only needs to be flagged in the fifth year of monitoring, not
yearly. However, estimating wetland area yearly is recommended to determine if permit requirements are
being met.

® The mitigation wetland must meet the following performance standards at the end of five full growing
seasons:

o  60% cover of native, wetland species comprised of at least 15 species
o Less than 10% cover of invasive species, as noted in the mitigation plan.

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2018\181842\WORK\PERMITSREGULATORY\WUP_APP_REVIEW.DOCX



Mr. Mark Kieselbach fTCfrh
Page 5

January 4, 2019

We appreciate the opportunity to assist in the review of this file. If you have any questions or require additional
information, please contact me at 616.464.3738 or ehtripp@ftch.com.

Sincerely,

FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER, INC.
i ! L ] q ' rl .

Elise Hansen Tripp, PWS

pmb

By email
cc:  Mr. Peter Menser — Township

\\FTCH\ALLPROJECTS\2018\181842\WORK\PERMITSREGULATORY\WUP_APP_REVIEW.DOCX



	January 9 2019 Environmental Commission Packet
	L.Burghardt 2018
	E.Schroeder 2018
	WUP 18-03 Environmental Commission staff report 1-4-19
	WUP 18-03 Newton Park WUP Application
	1a - Newton Park MUPUD Site Plan - Sheet 1  11192018
	Wetland delineation report - WDV 18-05
	Ltr_of_Essentiality_Meridian_WUP_18-03_2018_1128_FNL
	Newton Pt WUP - Response to 10-24-18 FTCH App Review
	PAGE1-WUP
	PAGE2-WUP
	PAGE3-WUP
	WUP 18-03 Twp consultant review letter 10-24-18
	WUP 18-03 Twp consultant final report 1-3-19

	WUP 18-04 Environmental Commission staff report 1-4-19
	WUP 18-04.env1
	MDEQ-APPLICATION
	MW_Wetland Use & Mit Plan_ Meridian Twp_1-4-2019_v2-merged
	Placard (WORD)
	ICDC permit
	WUP 18-04 Twp consultant final report 1-4-19



<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /All

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice




<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /All

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice





